
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Council 
 
 
 
 
Mon 25 Jun 
2007 
7.00 pm 
 
Council Chamber 
Town Hall 
Redditch 

 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 

Access to Information - Your Rights 
 

The Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 
1985 widened the rights of 
press and public to attend 
Local Authority meetings 
and to see certain 
documents.  Recently the 
Freedom of Information Act 
2000, has further broadened 
these rights, and limited 
exemptions under the 1985 
Act. 

Your main rights are set out 
below:- 

• Automatic right to attend 
all Council and 
Committee meetings 
unless the business 
would disclose 
confidential or “exempt” 
information. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
agenda and public reports 
at least five days before 
the date of the meeting. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
minutes of the Council 
and its Committees (or 
summaries of business  

 

undertaken in private) for 
up to six years following a 
meeting. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
lists of background 
papers used in the 
preparation of public 
reports. 

• Access, upon request, to 
the background papers 
on which reports are 
based for a period of up 
to four years from the 
date of the meeting. 

• Access to a public 
register stating the names 
and addresses and 
electoral areas of all 
Councillors with details of 
the membership of all 
Committees etc. 

• A reasonable number of 
copies of agenda and 
reports relating to items to 
be considered in public 
must be made available 
to the public attending 
meetings of the Council 
and its Committees etc. 

• Access to a list specifying 
those powers which the 
Council has delegated to its 
Officers indicating also the 
titles of the Officers 
concerned. 

• Access to a summary of the 
rights of the public to attend 
meetings of the Council and 
its Committees etc. and to 
inspect and copy 
documents. 

• In addition, the public now 
has a right to be present 
when the Council 
determines “Key Decisions” 
unless the business would 
disclose confidential or 
“exempt” information. 

• Unless otherwise stated, all 
items of business before the 
Executive Committee are 
Key Decisions.  

• (Copies of Agenda Lists are 
published in advance of the 
meetings on the Council’s 
Website: 
www.redditchbc.gov.uk 

 
If you have any queries on this Agenda or any of the decisions taken or wish to 

exercise any of the above rights of access to information, please contact  
Ivor Westmore  

Committee Support Services  
 

Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH 
Tel:  Fax: (01527) 65216 

e.mail: committee@redditchbc.gov.uk                Minicom: 595528 
 



 

 
Welcome to today’s meeting. 

Guidance for the Public 
 
 
Agenda Papers 

The Agenda List at the front 
of the Agenda summarises 
the issues to be discussed 
and is followed by the 
Officers’ full supporting 
Reports. 
 
Chair 

The Chair is responsible for 
the proper conduct of the 
meeting. Generally to one 
side of the Chair is the 
Committee Support Officer 
who gives advice on the 
proper conduct of the 
meeting and ensures that 
the debate and the 
decisions are properly 
recorded.  On the Chair’s 
other side are the relevant 
Council Officers.  The 
Councillors (“Members”) of 
the Committee occupy the 
remaining seats around the 
table. 
 
Running Order 

Items will normally be taken 
in the order printed but, in 
particular circumstances, the 
Chair may agree to vary the 
order. 
 
Refreshments : tea, coffee 
and water are normally 
available at meetings - 
please serve yourself. 
 

 
Decisions 

Decisions at the meeting will 
be taken by the Councillors 
who are the democratically 
elected representatives. 
They are advised by 
Officers who are paid 
professionals and do not 
have a vote. 
 
Members of the Public 

Members of the public may, 
by prior arrangement, speak 
at meetings of the Council or 
its Committees.  Specific 
procedures exist for Appeals 
Hearings or for meetings 
involving Licence or 
Planning Applications.  For 
further information on this 
point, please speak to the 
Committee Support Officer. 
 
Special Arrangements 

If you have any particular 
needs, please contact the 
Committee Support Officer. 
 
Infra-red devices for the 
hearing impaired are 
available on request at the 
meeting. Other facilities may 
require prior arrangement. 
 
Further Information 

If you require any further 
information, please contact 
the Committee Support 
Officer (see foot of page 
opposite). 

Fire/ Emergency  
instructions 
 
If the alarm is sounded, 
please leave the building 
by the nearest available 
exit – these are clearly 
indicated within all the 
Committee Rooms. 
 
If you discover a fire, 
inform a member of staff 
or operate the nearest 
alarm call point (wall 
mounted red rectangular 
box).  In the event of the 
fire alarm sounding, leave 
the building immediately 
following the fire exit 
signs.  Officers have been 
appointed with 
responsibility to ensure 
that all visitors are 
escorted from the 
building. 
 
Do Not stop to collect 
personal belongings. 
 
Do Not use lifts. 
 
Do Not re-enter the 
building until told to do 
so.  
 
The emergency 
Assembly Area is on 
Walter Stranz Square. 

 
 
 



 
 
 

Declaration of Interests: 
Guidance for Councillors 
 
 
DO I HAVE A “PERSONAL INTEREST” ? 
 
• Where the item relates or is likely to affect your  registered interests 

(what you have declared on the formal Register of Interests) 
OR 
 
• Where a decision in relation to the item might reasonably be regarded as affecting your 

own well-being or financial position, or that of your family, or your close associates more 
than most other people affected by the issue, 

 
you have a personal interest. 
 
WHAT MUST I DO?  Declare the existence, and nature, of your interest and stay 
 
• The declaration must relate to specific business being decided - 

a general scattergun approach is not needed 
 
• Exception - where interest arises only because of your membership of another public 

body, there is no need to declare unless you speak on the matter. 
 
• You can vote on the matter. 
 
 
IS IT A “PREJUDICIAL INTEREST” ? 
 
In general only if:- 
 
• It is a personal interest and 
 
• The item affects your financial position (or conveys other benefits), or the position of your 

family, close associates or bodies through which you have a registered interest (or 
relates to the exercise of regulatory functions in relation to these groups) 

 
 and 
 
• A member of public, with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably believe the 

interest was likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 
 
 
WHAT MUST I DO?  Declare and Withdraw 
 
BUT you may make representations to the meeting before withdrawing, if the public have similar 
rights (such as the right to speak at Planning Committee). 



 
 

 
 
 
COUNCIL 
 

 

 

 

Monday, 25th June, 2007 

7.00 pm 

Council Chamber Town Hall 

 

Agenda Membership: 

 Cllrs: D Hunt (Mayor) 
J Field (Deputy 
Mayor) 
P Anderson 
K Banks 
I Beech 
K Boyd-Carpenter 
M Braley 
J Brunner 
M Chalk 
G Chance 
B Clayton 
J Cookson 
D Dudley 
D Enderby 
A Fry 
 

C Gandy 
M Hall 
W Hartnett 
N Hicks 
P Hill 
R King 
W King 
C MacMillan 
P Mould 
B Passingham 
M Shurmer 
D Smith 
D Taylor 
D Thomas 
 

1. Mayor's Welcome  The Mayor will open the meeting and welcome all present. 

 
The Mayor’s Chaplain, Deacon Tony Martin, will lead the 
Council in prayer. 
 
  

2. Apologies  To receive any apologies for absence on behalf of Council 
members. 
 
  

3. Declarations of Interest  To invite Councillors to declare any interests they may have 
in items on the agenda. 
 
  

4. Minutes  To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of 
the Council held on the 
 
(Minutes circulated in Minute Book - 2009/10) 
 
  



 
 
COUNCIL 
 

 

 

Monday, 25th June, 2007 
 

5. Communications and 
Mayor's Announcements  

To receive a report from the Mayor on civic matters which 
have arisen since the last meeting or events which may be 
occurring in the near future.   

To give notice of any variation to the items listed in the 
Forward Plan and/or items accepted as "Urgent Business". 

(No separate report / oral update) 
 
  

6. Matters Arising - Council 
Appointments / 
Nominations etc.  

To note and/or approve any required minor additions or 
amendments to the appointments approved at the Annual 
Council meeting, to include: - 

WREC representatives should be Cllrs Shurmer & King ; 
REDI Trust update; Grants Panel update. 
 
(No separate report) 
 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  

7. Leaders' Questions  

(Pages 1 - 4)  

To consider the following Questions for the Leader which 
have been submitted in accordance with Standing Order 8A: 

1.   “Planning & Development” 
(Mr C T Wareing) 

2.   “Budget Overspends” 
     (Councillor J Brunner) 

3.   “Council Funding” 
     (Councillor C MacMillan) 

 (Questions attached) 

(Abbey / All Wards) 

  

8. Notices of Motion  



 
 
COUNCIL 
 

 

 

Monday, 25th June, 2007 
 

(Pages 5 - 6)  To consider Notices of Motion submitted in accordance with 
Standing Order 6: 

 
A.  Redditch Student Council. 
     (Councillors Brunner and Clayton) 

B.  CCTV in Crabbs Cross. 
     (Councillors Field and Smith) 
 

(Report attached) 

(All Wards / Crabbs Cross Ward) 
 
  

9. Deputation  

(Pages 7 - 8)  

To receive a Deputation in accordance with Standing Orders 
49 and 51. 

The theme of the Deputation is the special showing of Al 
Gore's film about climate change “An Inconvenient Truth” at 
the Palace Theatre on Thursday 6th September 2007. 

The Deputation comprises representatives of the Trade 
Justice Network, Redditch Vegetarians and Vegans and 
Friends of the Earth, all members of the Redditch Alliance of 
Greens. 

(Report attached) 

 
 
All Wards  

10. Executive Committee  

(Pages 9 - 12)  

A.  To receive the Minutes and consider the 
recommendations and/or referrals from the following 



 
 
COUNCIL 
 

 

 

Monday, 25th June, 2007 
 

 meetings of the Executive Committee : 
 
23rd May  2007 

Matters of interest to the Council are: 

• Street Naming Policy – Update (Minute 5 refers) 

• Waste And Street Sweeping Tender – Proposed Joint 
District Councils’ Approach (Minute 10 refers – see 
also item 13(3) – Urgent Business under Standing 
Order 36 – below – Matter now resolved). 

     (Minutes circulated in Minute Book 1 - 2007/08) 

B.  To receive the Decision Notice and consider the 
recommendations and/or referrals from the following 
meetings of the Executive Committee : 
 
13th June 2007 

Matters of potential referral to the Council are: 

• The District of Stratford-on-Avon Local Development 
Framework – Core Strategy Issues and Options – 
Officers’ response 

• Smoke-Free Policy 

• Local Land Charges – Fees & Charges 

• Consolidated Out-turn 2006/07 

• Capital Programme 2006/07 

• Corporate Plan / Performance Plan 
(see separate agenda item) 

• Regional Housing Board Capital Grant – Decent 
Homes in Private Sector occupied by vulnerable 
households 

• Playing Fields Improvements – Capital Works 

• Referrals / Advisory Panels Reports 

• Extension of Contract (Confidential item) 

(Decision Notice to follow) 

(Full minutes of the above meetings will be submitted to 
the next ordinary meeting of the Council on the 13th of 
August 2007, via Minute Book 2 2007/08.) 

Any matters arising, not covered elsewhere in the agenda, 
will be considered under this heading. 

Confidential matters may be taken after the Exclusion of the 
Public, subject to notification at this point in the meeting. 
 
  



 
 
COUNCIL 
 

 

 

Monday, 25th June, 2007 
 

11. Regulatory Committees  

 

To formally receive the minutes of the following meetings of 
the Council's Regulatory Committees: 

Planning Committee  - 22nd May 2007 

(Minutes circulated in Minute Book 1 - 2007/08) 
 
 

12. The Corporate Plan and 
Performance Plan  

(Pages 13 - 126)  

 

To consider the Council’s Corporate and Performance Plans 
(item deferred from the Executive Committee agenda of the 
13th of June 2007). 

(Report attached / Appendices to follow) 

 
 
(No Direct Ward Relevance)  

13. Statement of Accounts  

(Pages 127 - 178)  

To approve the Statement of Accounts for the 2006/07 
financial year. 

(Report / Statement to follow) 

 
 
(No Direct Ward Relevance)  

14. Authorisation of Officers  To seek the Council’s approval of the following authorisation: 

 “that John Wilcox, Revenues Officer, be authorised to 
take Council Tax and Business Rates cases to the 
Magistrates’ Court on behalf of the Council.”  

(No separate report) 
 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  



 
 
COUNCIL 
 

 

 

Monday, 25th June, 2007 
 

15. Constitution  Further to decisions taken at the Council’s meeting of the 
23rd of April 2007, to endorse the Council’s current 
Constitution and associated documents (Standing Orders, 
Financial Regulations, Scheme of Delegation to Officers, 
Scheme of Members’ Allowances, Codes and Protocols etc.) 
as now revised.  

(In view of their bulk, the revised Constitutional documents 
will be available in electronic copy and, on a limited basis 
only, as paper copies  - please request hard copies, if 
required.)  
 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  



 
 
COUNCIL 
 

 

 

Monday, 25th June, 2007 
 

16. Urgent Business - 
Record of Decisions  

To note the following decisions taken in accordance with 
SO36 and/or the Overview & Scrutiny Procedure Rules 
(Constitution), as specified :   

 
1)   EDMS (Electronic Document Management Service) - 

Anite           (Borough Director) (Decision Reference 464) 
 

      The Council already had the Anite system in Housing 
Benefits and it was therefore considered to be  best 
value for money to contract with the same supplier for  
the extension of the service into the Housing area. 
 
In this case the exceptional urgency was that  the Capital 
costs for the purchase of this system were provided by 
Anite, and Anite were also offering a discount on the 
price of the licences if the order was guaranteed by the 
first week in May.   

 
       RESOLVED that 

 
an Electronic Document Management System for 
Housing be purchased from the Council’s existing 
supplier, ANITE. 

 
2)  Purchase of Refuse Vehicles 
      (Director of Environment & Planning) (Decision 465) 
 

The reason for urgency was to ensure that delivery of 
the vehicles could be achieved by September 2007, 
which would enable optimum operational  
implementation of the Alternative Weekly Collection 
Scheme to be achieved.  
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the existing Vehicle Replacement Programme be 
varied to allow the orders for the Refuse Collection 
Vehicles to be placed, and a revised Vehicle 
replacement Programme showing the amendment be 
submitted to the next Capital Programme meeting of 
the Executive Committee. 
 
(Full details of the resolution are contained in the 
Decision Notice, attached to the Council agenda, in 
respect of item 7 above.) 

3)   Wychavon Waste and Street Cleansing Tender 
– Proposed Joint Approach 
(Director of Environment & Planning) (Decision 466) 

 
 

 
 



 
 
COUNCIL 
 

 

 

Monday, 25th June, 2007 
 

17. Urgent Business - 
general (if any)  

To consider any additional items exceptionally agreed by the 
Mayor as Urgent Business in accordance with the powers 
vested in him by virtue of Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 

(This power can be exercised only in cases where there are 
genuinely special circumstances which require consideration 
of an item which has not previously been published on the 
Order of Business for the meeting and/or on the Leader's 
Forward Plan.) 

 
 
  

18. Exclusion of the Public  It may be necessary, in the opinion of the Chief Executive, to 
consider excluding the public from the meeting in relation to 
the following items of business on the grounds that exempt 
information is likely to be divulged. It may be necessary, 
therefore, to move the following resolution: 
 
“that, under S.100 I of the Local Government Act 1972, 
as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following matter(s) on 
the rounds that it/they involve(s) the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in the relevant 
paragraphs (to be specified) of Part 1 of Schedule 12 (A) 
of the said Act, as amended.” 
 
  

19. Confidential Minutes / 
Referrals (if any)  

To consider confidential matters not dealt with earlier in the 
evening and not separately listed below (if any). 
 
  

20. -  (Note:  Anyone requiring copies of any previously circulated 
reports, or supplementary papers, should please contact 
Committee Services Officers in advance of the meeting.) 
 
  

  

 
 



 

 
 

 

 
 

COUNCIL 
 

 

Abbey / All Wards  

25th June 2007 
 

G:Council070625/questions/sms/6.6.7 

701 

7. LEADER’S QUESTIONS 
 
 
The following questions for the Leader have been received in accordance 
with Standing Order 8A:- 
 
 
1. Question submitted by Mr C T Wareing: 

“Planning & Development” 
  

“ Planning means sensible anticipation. The Offensive against the 
unforeseen. He/she who plans well seldom fails. 
 
Would the Leader of the Council accept my submission that to 
contemplate the proposed Abbey Stadium Development, together 
with a huge expansion of housing provision within the Redditch 
Area, before giving detailed consideration to the Ways and Means of 
providing an infrastructure to support such massive developments, is 
the height of folly, as well as a negation of Civic Duty? " 
 
 

2. Question submitted by Cllr J Brunner: 
“Budget Overspends” 
 

"In light of current budget constraints, would the Leader of the 
Council agree with me that the Council did in fact overspend on its 
 2006/7 budget and  this was only alleviated by a change in 
treatment of Capital Charges?  

The Council's Constitution clearly lays down a process to be 
followed if any budget overspend exceeds £1,000. 

 Could he please inform this Council of the following; 

1. Which budgets were overspent by more than £1,000 where the 
correct procedures as laid down in Council's Constitution were not 
followed? 

2. List all the departments that have not followed the proper 
procedures as laid out in the Council's Constitution. 

3. What action has or is to be taken where the correct procedures 
were not followed? 

4. Could he advise what steps are being taken to ensure that the 
Council's Constitution is followed in 2007/8 ?" 

 

Agenda Item 7Page 1



   
 

 
 

COUNCIL 
 

  

 

23rd April 2007 
 

G:council 070129/questions/sms15.1.7 

702 

3. Question submitted by Cllr C MacMillan 
“Council Funding” 
 

"It is normal for officially recognised Charities to give an overall 
estimate of what proportion of the donations it receives is spent on 
overheads and administration and what proportion is spent on front 
line services. 

Could the Leader of the Council give a similar breakdown of the 
Council's funding. Funding includes all monies the Council receives 
from all sources.  

As some of our funding is dedicated to specific activities, could the 
Leader of the Council also give an indication of what percentage of 
our Council Tax is consumed by overheads and administration and 
how both of the above proportions have changed over the last 3 
years?" 

 

Page 2



 

 

URGENT BUSINESS 

 

 
 

COUNCIL 
 

 

Greenlands Ward  

25th June 2007 
 

G:Council070625/questionsLATE/sms/19.6.7 

704 

7. LEADER’S QUESTIONS 
 
 
The following additional question for the Leader has been received after the 
deadlines required by Standing Order 8A. 
 
In view of the timing of this matter and the Leader’s view that there is some 
urgency / importance in taking the question at this meeting rather than in 
August, the Leader has accepted the question, subject to the Mayor’s 
agreement to its consideration as Urgent Business:- 
 
 
4. Question submitted by Mr C T Wareing: 

“Our Education System” 
  
 

“Our Education System is based on sound Christian principles. 
Jesus said: ‘Suffer the little children to come to me and forbid them 
not, for of such is the Kingdom of Heaven’! The Good Lord included 
children in areas of social deprivation, such as Woodrow. 
 
What action is the Leader of the Council proposing, in order to 
ensure that Woodrow continues to enjoy an educational presence, at 
Middle School level?” 

Page 3



Page 4



 

 
 

 

 
 

COUNCIL 
 

 

All Wards / Crabbs Cross Ward  

25th June 2007 
 

G:Council070625/NoM/sms/6.6.7 

801 

8.  NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
 
The following Notices of Motion have been submitted, by the Councillors 
indicated, in accordance with Standing Order 6:- 
 
A. REDDITCH STUDENT COUNCIL 
 
 
"At the present time, Redditch Student Council does not have any 
representation from Students attending Special Schools in the Town. 

Redditch Borough Council seeks to address this and would offer the 
opportunity for young people from our Special Schools to be included as a 
matter of urgency. 

Redditch Borough Council actively encourages inclusion and will task 
Officers to work with Redditch Student Council enabling students from all 
schools to be represented.” 

 

Proposed by Councillor J Brunner 
 

Seconded by Councillor B Clayton. 
 

 

B. EXTENSION OF CLOSED CIRCUIT TV PROVISION 
  
 
“Redditch Borough Council has extended CCTV across the town. 
  
However Crabbs Cross does not currently benefit from this provision. 
  
We believe that, with the level of Anti Social Behaviour in Crabbs Cross, 
CCTV should be installed as a matter of urgency to combat this. 
We call on the Leader of the Council to bring forward the schedule for the 
extension of the CCTV programme so that this can be dealt with as soon 
as possible.” 
  
 
Proposed by   Cllr Jack Field 
  
Seconded by  Cllr David Smith 
 

 

Agenda Item 8Page 5



Page 6



 

 
 

 

 
 

COUNCIL 

 

All Wards  

25th June 2007 

 

G:Council070625/Deputation/sms/11.6.7 

901 

9. DEPUTATION 
 
 
The following request for the Council to receive a deputation has been 
received in accordance with Standing Orders 49 and 51:- 
  
Summary of Deputation 
  
“We wish to invite all Redditch Borough Councillors to a special showing of 
Al Gore's film about climate change, 'An Inconvenient Truth', at the Room 
Upstairs at the Palace Theatre on Thursday 6th September 2007. 
 
This showing is to an invited audience of people in a particular position to 
make a difference to the life of our community. 
 
In the light of Redditch Borough Council's signing of the Nottingham 
Declaration, this film will sharpen awareness of the issue and stimulate 
thought and action about how Redditch Borough Council with other partners 
in Redditch can together carry forward the commitments in the Nottingham 
Declaration.” 
 
The following named representatives of the Trade Justice Network, 
Redditch Vegetarians and Vegans and Friends of the Earth, who indicate 
that they are all part of the Redditch Alliance of Greens, form the 
deputation. 
 
Rev. Noel Sharp        Emmanuel Church / Redditch Trade Justice Network 
  
Diane Harrison          St Matthias and St George Church, Astwood Bank,       
                                  Trade Justice Network  
  
Kevin White               Redditch Vegetarians and Vegans 
  
Alistair Waugh           Redditch Friends of the Earth. 
  
  
 
 

Agenda Item 9Page 7



Page 8



 

 

 

 
 

COUNCIL 
 

 

No Ward Relevance  

25th June 2007 

 

1001 

10B. SMOKE FREE POLICY – UPDATE REPORT 
 
 
(Report of Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer) 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
Members asked at Executive Committee on the13th of June 2007 
who gets prosecuted for offences relating to smoking under the 
legislation.  There are three offences created by the Health Act 
2006: 
 
1. Offence of smoking in a smoke-free place 
 
 Under Section 7 (2) of the Health Act 2006, a person who smokes 
in a smoke-free place commits an offence.  For the purposes of this 
Section, a “smoke-free place” can mean premises, places and 
vehicles.  It is a defence for a person charged with this offence to 
show that he did not know, and could not reasonably have been 
expected to know, that it was a smoke-free place.  This links into 
the requirement for signage.  The penalty for this offence is level 
one on the standard scale (currently £200.00). 
 
2. Offence of failing to prevent smoking in a smoke-free place 
 
 Under Section 8 (1) of the Health Act 2006, any person who 
controls or is concerned in the management of smoke-free 
premises is under a duty to stop people smoking in those premises.  
Any person who fails to comply with this duty commits an offence 
(Section 8 (4)).  It is a defence for a person charged with this 
offence to show that he took reasonable steps to cause the person 
in question to stop smoking or that he did not know, and could not 
reasonably have been expected to know, that the person in 
question was smoking or that, on other grounds, it was reasonable 
for him not to comply with the duty.  The penalty for offences under 
this section is level four on the standard scale (currently £2,500.00). 
 
3. Offence of failing to display signs 
 
 There is also an offence of failing to comply with the duty to make 
sure that no-smoking signs complying with the legislative 
requirements are displayed in relevant premises (Section 6 (5)).  
The offence would be committed by any person who occupies or is 
concerned in the management of smoke-free premises.  
The penalty for this offence is level three on the standard scale 
(currently £1,000.00). 

Agenda Item 10Page 9



    
 

 
 

COUNCIL 
 

  

 

25th June 2007 
 

1002 

Under Regulation 3 of the Smoke-free (Premises and Enforcement) 
Regulations 2006 (SI 2006/3368), District Councils are designated 
as enforcement authorities for the purposes of the smoke-free 
legislation contained in the Act.   
 
Premises are treated as smoke-free if they are used as a place of 
work – they are smoke-free all the time (Section 2 Health Act 2006). 
 
The Council has a duty as an employer to provide and maintain a 
safe working environment.  In order to comply with this duty, Officers 
are recommending the provisions in relation to domiciliary visits 
contained in the draft smoke-free policy. 
 
 

Page 10



   

EXECUTIVE 
C O M M I T T E E /  

COUNCIL 
 

APPENDIX A 
AMENDED 

 
 

13th June 2007 /  

25th June 2007 
 

G:council070625/MA Local Land Charges Fees amended/sms/22.6.7 

1 

Local Land Charges Searches 
Proposed Fees and Charges – corrected : 

 Current £ Proposed £ 
 
BASIC FULL SEARCH 
(LLC1 + CON 29) 
 

  
£124 

 
£80 

 
LLC1 ONLY 
(= Land Charges Register only)  

  
6.00 

 
11.00 

 
CON 29 ONLY  
(= Supplementary Enquiries only) 
(including Worcestershire County 
Council fees of £12.00) 

  
118.00 

 
69.00 
 

 
PART II OPTIONAL ENQUIRIES 
EACH              [+ £6.00 if WCC Qu. ] 
 

  
10.00 

 
5.00 

[* 11.00] 

 
ADDITIONAL ENQUIRIES  
EACH              [+ £6.00 if WCC Qu. ] 
 

  
14.00 

 
5.00 

[* 11.00] 

 
EACH ADDITIONAL PARCEL OF 
LAND 

  
14.00 

 
11.00 

 
PERSONAL SEARCH 

  
11.00 

 
11.00 

 
EXPEDITED SEARCH (24HR) 

  
165.00 

 
91.00 

 
REFRESH SEARCH 

  
N/A 

 

 
15.00 

 
COPY OF AGREEMENT 
 

  
37.60 

 
37.60 

 

Page 11



   

 
EXECUTIVE 
C O M M I T T E E 

 
APPENDIX B 

 

 

13th June 2007 
 

G:council070625/MA Local Land Charges Fees amended/sms/22.6.7 

2 

 
 
Comparative Fees 07/08 06/07 
 
Redditch Borough Council          £ 80                Reduced from £124 
        (proposed)   
 
Malvern Hills District Council £140 No change 
Worcester City Council £113 No change 
Wychavon District Council £97 Reduced from £114.30 
Wyre Forest District Council £118 No change 
Bromsgrove District Council £95 Reduced from £132 
Birmingham City Council  £75 Reduced 

 

Page 12



 

 

 

 
 

COUNCIL 
 

 

No Direct Ward Relevance 

25th June 2007 

 

g:council/070625/corporate and performance plan 2007-10/st/070611.paw 

1201 

12. CORPORATE AND PERFORMANCE PLAN 2007/2010 
 
 
(Report of the Borough Director) 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
To present Members with the Corporate and Performance Plan for 
2007 to 2010. 
 

2. Recommendation 
 
The Council is asked to RESOLVE that 
 
the Corporate and Performance Plan, attached to the report 
under separate cover, be approved. 
 

3. Financial, Legal, Policy and Risk Implications 
 
Financial 
 

3.1 The Council’s priorities as articulated within the plan set the broad 
framework for allocating the authority’s finances in subsequent 
financial years. 
 

Legal 
 

3.2 There are no legal implications. 
 

Policy 
 

3.3 The plan sets out the Council’s immediate and long term aims and 
objectives and how their achievement are to be measured. 
 

Risk  
 

3.4 Failure to adopt the plan would leave the authority without clear 
direction for the use of resources. 
 
Report 

 
4. Background 
 
4.1 The Corporate and Performance Plan attached, combines the 

Corporate Plan and Best Value Performance Plan and therefore has 
to be adopted by the Council and available for consultation / 
publication by the 30th of June.  It describes the vision, priorities, 
opportunities and challenges for the Borough Council.  

Agenda Item 12Page 13



   
 

 
 

COUNCIL 
 

  

 

25th June 2007 
 

g:council/070625/corporate and performance plan 2007-10/st/070611.paw/sms 12.6.7 

1202 

The Plan also highlights the relationships with the Community 
Strategy and individual Service Plans. 

 
4.2 It is a critical document and will be used for reviewing the 

performance of the Council and setting its future direction. 
 
5. Key Issues 
 
5.1 As a statement of strategic priorities, the plan includes aims, 

objectives and targets which the Executive Committee will oversee 
and scrutinise. 

 
5.2 Initial assumptions have been made about the timescale for each of 

the tasks. 
 
6. Other Implications 
 

No specific Community Safety, Human Resources, Social Exclusion, 
or Sustainability implications have been identified. 

 
7. Conclusion 
 
 The Corporate and Performance Plan will influence how the 

resources of the Council will be expended during the three year 
period commencing the 1st of April 2007. 

 
8. Background Papers 

 
CPA Improvement Plan. 
BVPI Outturn Report 2006/07. 
 

9. Consultation 
 
The following have been consulted in the preparation of this report: 
 

All Directors. 
 

10. Author of Report 
 
The author of this report is Chris Smith (Borough Director) who can 
be contacted on extension 3250 (e-mail chris.smith@redditchbc. 
gov.uk) for more information. 
 

11. Appendices 
 
Corporate Plan (to follow under separate cover). 

 
 

Page 14



   

R
ed
d
it
ch
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
o
u
n
ci
l 

     

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 &
 P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 P
la
n
 2
00
7-
10
 

 
 

Page 15



 

C
o
n
te
n
ts
: 

 
  S

ec
ti
o
n
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
ag
e 

 
1.
 
F
o
re
w
o
rd
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  1
 

 2.
 
In
tr
o
d
u
ct
io
n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  1
 

 
 

3.
 
W
h
at
 is
 t
h
is
 d
o
cu
m
en
t 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  3
 

 
an
d
 h
o
w
 c
an
 it
 b
e 
u
se
d
?
 

 
 

4.
 
P
ro
g
re
ss
, P

er
fo
rm

an
ce
, A

im
s 
an
d
 O
b
je
ct
iv
es
 

 
 

  5
 

  
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 1
 –
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
sa
fe
ty
 

 
 

 
 

 
  6
 

 
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 2
 –
 e
n
vi
ro
n
m
en
t 
an
d
 t
ra
n
sp
o
rt
 

 
 

 
13
 

 
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 3
 –
 h
o
u
si
n
g
  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

23
 

 
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 4
 –
 le
is
u
re
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
34
 

 
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 5
 –
 w
el
l m

an
ag
ed
 o
rg
an
iz
at
io
n
 

 
 

 
42
 

 A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
: 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 R
is
k 
P
ro
fi
le
 
 

 
 

 
 

56
 

 A
p
p
en
d
ix
 B
: 
 
i 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
, C

o
m
p
ar
is
o
n
s 
an
d
 T
re
n
d
s 

58
 

 
 

 
ii.
 

C
u
st
o
m
er
 S
at
is
fa
ct
io
n
 

 
 

 
72
 

 A
p
p
en
d
ix
 C
 :
 C
o
n
tr
ac
t 
S
ta
te
m
en
t 

 
 

 
 

 
78
 

 A
p
p
en
d
ix
 D
 :
 A
ct
io
n
 P
la
n
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

79
 

  

Page 16



 1.
 

F
O
R
E
W
O
R
D

 
 “T
he
 
C
ou
nc
il 
is
 
co
m
m
itt
ed
 
to
 
co
nt
in
uo
us
 
im
pr
ov
em

en
t 
an
d 
to
 

en
su
rin
g 
th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
 is
 a
 p
le
as
an
t p
la
ce
 to
 li
ve
, w
or
k 
an
d 
vi
si
t. 
T
he
 

C
ou
nc
il 
al
so
 r
ec
og
ni
se
s 
its
 c
om

m
un
ity
 l
ea
de
rs
hi
p 
re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
ie
s 

an
d 
se
ek
s 
to
 ‘
m
ak
e 
a 
di
ffe
re
nc
e’
 n
ot
 o
nl
y 
in
 t
he
 d
ire
ct
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
it 

pr
ov
id
es
 
bu
t 
al
so
 
in
 
th
os
e 
pr
ov
id
ed
 
in
 
pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
p 
w
ith
 
ot
he
rs
. 

S
ig
ni
fic
an
t 
pr
og
re
ss
 
ha
s 
al
re
ad
y 
be
en
 
m
ad
e 
bu
t 
w
e 
ar
e 
no
t 

co
m
pl
ac
en
t a
bo
ut
 th
e 
is
su
es
 w
e 
st
ill
 fa
ce
.”
  

 
P
hi
l M
ou
ld
, 
Le
ad
er
 o
f t
he
 C
ou
nc
il 

  

2.
 

In
tr
o
d
u
ct
io
n
 

  T
he
 C
ou
nc
il’
s 
C
or
po
ra
te
 a
nd
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 P
la
n 
fo
r 
20
07
 t
o 

20
10
 is
 a
 k
ey
 d
oc
um

en
t w

hi
ch
 d
em

on
st
ra
te
s 
ho
w
 t
he
 C
ou
nc
il 

w
ill
 w
or
k 
to
w
ar
ds
 t
he
 v
is
io
n 
fo
r 
th
e 
to
w
n 
(t
he
 “
20
:2
0 
V
is
io
n
 –
 

R
ed
d
it
ch
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
S
tr
at
eg
y1
”)
 d
ev
el
op
ed
 i
n 
20
03
 o
n 
th
e 

ba
si
s 
of
 e
xt
en
si
ve
 c
on
su
lta
tio
n 
w
ith
 o
ur
 r
es
id
en
ts
. 
T
he
 m
ai
n 

th
em

es
 o
f t
hi
s 
ar
e:
 

 

 
H
E
A
L
T
H
Y
 

C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
IE
S
 

 
S
A
F
E
R
 

C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
IE
S
 

 
B
E
T
T
E
R
 

E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 

 
E
D
U
C
A
T
IO
N
, 

L
E
A
R
N
IN
G
 

   
   
   
&
 S
K
IL
L
S
 

 
E
C
O
N
O
M
Y
 

 
 
C
O
N
N
E
C
T
IN
G
 

R
E
D
D
IT
C
H
 

 
C
U
L
T
U
R
E
 

&
 

R
E
C
R
E
A
T
IO
N
 

   
        

1 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1  
w
w
w
.r
ed
di
tc
hm

at
te
rs
.c
om

 

Page 17



 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il’
s 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
n
d
 P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 P
la
n
 i
de
nt
ifi
es
 

ou
r 
co
nt
rib
ut
io
n 
to
 t
hi
s 
vi
si
on
, 
an
d 
gi
ve
s 
fir
m
 c
om

m
itm
en
ts
 o
n 

ho
w
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 d
el
iv
er
 o
n 
its
 o
w
n 
fo
ur
 p
rio
rit
y 
ar
ea
s:
 

 «
 
Im
p
ro
vi
n
g
 t
h
e 

re
al
it
y 
an
d
 

p
er
ce
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
S
af
et
y 

 

«
 
P
ro
te
ct
in
g
 

an
d
 

im
p
ro
vi
n
g
 

E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en
t 

an
d
 

tr
an
sp
o
rt
 

«
 
P
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 

b
es
t 

st
an
d
ar
d
s 

an
d
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 

in
 

H
o
u
si
n
g
 

«
 
P
ro
vi
d
in
g
 

a 
w
id
e 

ra
n
g
e 

o
f 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 

fo
r 

L
ei
su
re
  

 It 
al
so
 e
xp
la
in
s 
w
ha
t 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 b
e 
do
in
g 
to
 k
ee
p 
its
 o
w
n 

ho
us
e 
in
 
or
de
r,
 
to
 
en
su
re
 
w
e 
co
nt
in
ue
 
to
 
be
 
a 
w
el
l-

m
an
ag
ed
 o
rg
an
is
at
io
n
.  

 T
hi
s 
pl
an
 r
ef
le
ct
s 
on
 w
ha
t 
ha
s 
al
re
ad
y 
be
en
 a
ch
ie
ve
d,
 i
n 

pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
p 
w
ith
 l
oc
al
 p
eo
pl
e 
an
d 
w
ith
 o
th
er
 o
rg
an
is
at
io
ns
 i
n 

th
e 
pu
bl
ic
, 
pr
iv
at
e,
 v
ol
un
ta
ry
 a
nd
 c
om

m
un
ity
 s
ec
to
rs
. 
It 
w
ill
 b
e 

a 
“li
vi
ng
 d
oc
um

en
t”
 b
ec
au
se
 it
 s
et
s 
th
e 
fr
am

ew
or
k 
fo
r 
w
ha
t t
he
 

C
ou
nc
il 
ne
ed
s 
to
 b
e 
do
in
g.
 T
he
 p
la
n 
w
ill
 b
e 
re
vi
ew
ed
 r
eg
ul
ar
ly
 

an
d 
re
-is
su
ed
 o
n 
an
 a
nn
ua
l b
as
is
 w
ith
 u
pd
at
ed
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
on
 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 a
ga
in
st
 o
ur
 t
ar
ge
ts
 d
em

on
st
ra
tin
g 
ou
r 
'd
ire
ct
io
n 

of
 
tr
av
el
'. 

T
he
 
pl
an
 
pr
ov
id
es
 
th
re
e 

ye
ar
 
ta
rg
et
s,
 
to
 

de
m
on
st
ra
te
 th
at
 c
on
tin
ui
ng
 to
 im

pr
ov
e 
th
e 
to
w
n 
is
 n
ot
 a
 q
ui
ck
 

fix
, b
ut
 th
e 
re
su
lt 
of
 fo
cu
se
d 
lo
ng
-t
er
m
 a
m
bi
tio
n.
 

  In
 d
ev
el
op
in
g 
th
e 
pl
an
, 
w
e 
ha
ve
 t
ak
en
 i
nt
o 
ac
co
un
t 
no
t 
on
ly
 

th
e 
C
om

m
un
ity
 
S
tr
at
eg
y,
 
bu
t 
al
so
 
th
e 
as
pi
ra
tio
ns
 
of
 
ou
r 

re
si
de
nt
s,
 a
nd
 t
he
 p
ar
tic
ul
ar
 f
ea
tu
re
s 
of
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
as
 a
 f
or
m
er
 

ne
w
 to
w
n.
 

 T
he
 C
or
po
ra
te
 P
la
n 
se
ts
 o
ut
 w
ha
t n
ee
ds
 to
 b
e 
ad
dr
es
se
d 
in
 

or
de
r 
fo
r 
th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
to
 m
ak
e 
pr
og
re
ss
 in
 

ac
hi
ev
in
g/
fa
ci
lit
at
in
g 
th
e 
ab
ov
e.
 T
he
 C
o
u
n
ci
ls
 v
al
u
es
, a
s 

ou
tli
ne
d 
be
lo
w
, p
ro
vi
de
 th
e 
fr
am

ew
or
k 
in
 w
hi
ch
 d
ec
is
io
ns
 w
ill
 

be
 m
ad
e 
an
d 
th
es
e 
ar
e 
re
fe
rr
ed
 to
 th
ro
ug
ho
ut
 th
e 
pl
an
. 

 «
 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 

«
 

F
ai
rn
es
s 
(E
qu
al
ity
 o
f t
re
at
m
en
t)
 

«
 

Q
u
al
it
y 
o
f 
S
er
vi
ce
 (
B
es
t V
al
ue
) 

«
 

M
o
d
er
n
is
at
io
n
 (
C
on
su
lta
tio
n)
 

  
 

T
he
 p
la
n 
pr
ed
om

in
an
tly
 a
dd
re
ss
es
 th
e 
sh
or
t a
nd
 m
ed
iu
m
 te
rm
 

(u
p 
to
 th
re
e 
ye
ar
s)
 a
im
s 
an
d 
ob
je
ct
iv
es
 o
f t
he
 B
or
ou
gh
 

C
ou
nc
il 
bu
t r
ec
og
ni
se
s 
w
he
re
 is
su
es
 a
re
 li
ke
ly
 to
 b
e 
on
go
in
g 

in
 th
e 
lo
ng
 te
rm
. T
he
 P
la
n 
is
 d
el
ib
er
at
el
y 
co
nc
is
e 
be
ca
us
e 
it 
is
 

a 
w
or
ki
ng
 d
oc
um

en
t u
se
d 
by
 m
an
ag
em

en
t o
n 
a 
da
ily
 b
as
is
. 

 
T
he
 C
or
po
ra
te
 P
la
n 
al
so
 o
ut
lin
es
 h
ow
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 

C
ou
nc
il 
w
ill
 p
ro
ac
tiv
el
y 
m
an
ag
e 
its
 r
es
ou
rc
es
 in
 o
rd
er
 to
 

ac
hi
ev
e 
its
 o
bj
ec
tiv
es
 a
nd
 s
et
s 
ta
rg
et
s 
w
hi
ch
 th
e 
pu
bl
ic
 c
an
 

us
e 
to
 m
ea
su
re
 th
e 
A
ut
ho
rit
y’
s 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
. 

 
T
hr
ou
gh
ou
t t
he
 d
oc
um

en
t t
he
 P
la
n 
se
ek
s 
to
 a
dd
re
ss
 th
e 

is
su
es
/v
ie
w
s 
of
 a
 w
id
e 
va
rie
ty
 o
f s
ta
ke
ho
ld
er
s 
in
cl
ud
in
g 

R
es
id
en
ts
, M

em
be
rs
 o
f t
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
an
d 
P
ar
tn
er
 

O
rg
an
is
at
io
ns
. R
es
po
ns
ib
ili
ty
 fo
r 
ov
er
se
ei
ng
 p
ro
gr
es
s 
on
 th
e 

pl
an
 r
es
ts
 w
ith
 th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
’s
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
C
om

m
itt
ee
. 

 
2 

Page 18



 3.
 
W
h
at
 is
 t
h
is
 d
o
cu
m
en
t 
an
d
 h
o
w
 

ca
n
 it
 b
e 
u
se
d
?
 

 Is
 it
 ju
st
 g
o
o
d
 in
te
n
ti
o
n
s?
 

 N
o!
 T
hi
s 
pl
an
 is
 d
es
ig
ne
d 
to
 p
ro
vi
de
 a
 c
le
ar
 s
et
 o
f 
pr
io
rit
ie
s 
to
 

in
flu
en
ce
 w
ha
t t
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
do
es
 d
ay
-t
o-
da
y.
  

 T
he
 a
ct
io
ns
 id
en
tif
ie
d 
in
 t
hi
s 
pl
an
 a
re
 s
up
po
se
d 
to
 b
e 
ta
ng
ib
le
 

an
d 
m
ea
su
ra
bl
e,
 
an
d 
to
 
ha
ve
 
an
 
im
pa
ct
 
on
 
th
e 
liv
es
 
of
 

in
di
vi
du
al
s,
 a
nd
 t
he
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 o
f 
th
e 
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
n.
 T
he
y 

al
so
 r
ec
og
ni
se
 t
he
 C
ou
nc
il’
s 
w
id
er
 r
ol
e 
as
 m
or
e 
th
an
 j
us
t 
a 

pr
ov
id
er
 o
f 
se
rv
ic
es
 –
 a
s 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
al
so
 h
as
 a
 r
es
po
ns
ib
ili
ty
 

fo
r 
C
om

m
un
ity
 L
ea
de
rs
hi
p,
 a
nd
 d
ev
el
op
in
g 
a 
lo
ng
 t
er
m
 v
is
io
n 

fo
r 
th
e 
to
w
n 
w
ith
 it
s 
re
si
de
nt
s,
 w
or
ke
rs
 a
nd
 p
ar
tn
er
 a
ge
nc
ie
s.
 

 T
he
 
pl
an
 
ou
tli
ne
s 
th
e 
pr
io
rit
y 
ar
ea
s,
 
bu
t 
it 
co
ul
d 
ne
ve
r 

en
co
m
pa
ss
 t
he
 f
ul
l r
an
ge
 o
f 
ac
tiv
iti
es
 t
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
un
de
rt
ak
es
. 

D
et
ai
le
d 

S
er
vi
ce
 
P
la
ns
 
de
sc
rib
e 

w
ha
t 
th
e 

C
ou
nc
il 

is
 

co
m
m
itt
ed
 to
 d
el
iv
er
in
g:
 

 T
he
 
S
er
vi
ce
 
P
la
ns
 
ar
e 

th
e 

m
ai
n 

dr
iv
in
g 

do
cu
m
en
t 
fo
r 

de
te
rm
in
in
g 
th
e 
da
y 
to
 
da
y 
m
an
ag
em

en
t 
of
 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 

te
am

s,
 
an
d 
w
ill
 
be
 
su
bj
ec
t 
to
 
de
ve
lo
pm

en
t 
or
 
ch
an
ge
 
as
 

ci
rc
um

st
an
ce
s 
ch
an
ge
 o
ve
r 
tim

e.
 

       

T
he
re
 a
re
 a
ls
o 
a 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 c
ro
ss
 c
ut
tin
g 
or
 m

ul
ti 
ag
en
cy
 

st
ra
te
gi
es
 a
nd
 p
la
ns
, 
an
d 
ke
y 
ac
tio
ns
 f
ro
m
 t
he
se
 m

ay
 b
e 

in
cl
ud
ed
 a
cr
os
s 
a 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 S
er
vi
ce
 P
la
ns
. T
he
se
 in
cl
ud
e:
 

 «
 
C
on
su
lta
tio
n 
S
tr
at
eg
y 

«
 
C
us
to
m
er
 A
cc
es
s 
S
tr
at
eg
y 

«
 
E
m
er
ge
nc
y 
P
la
n 

«
 
E
qu
al
iti
es
 S
tr
at
eg
y 

«
 
P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t S
tr
at
eg
y 

«
 
R
is
k 
M
an
ag
em

en
t S
tr
at
eg
y 

«
 
V
ol
un
ta
ry
 S
ec
to
r 
C
om

pa
ct
 (
P
A
C
T
) 

 T
he
se
 
w
ill
 
be
 
pu
bl
is
he
d 

on
 
th
e 

C
ou
nc
il’
s 

w
eb
si
te
, 

w
w
w
.r
ed
di
tc
hb
c.
go
v.
uk
 ,
 o
r 
av
ai
la
bl
e 
fr
om

 t
he
 P
ol
ic
y 
T
ea
m
 a
t 

th
e 
T
ow
n 
H
al
l, 
01
52
7 
64
25
2.
 

 H
o
w
 lo
n
g
 d
o
es
 it
 la
st
?
 

 T
he
 p
la
n 
co
nt
ai
ns
 b
ot
h 
im
m
ed
ia
te
 a
nd
 l
on
ge
r 
te
rm
 a
ct
io
ns
, 

re
co
gn
is
in
g 
th
e 
im
po
rt
an
ce
 o
f 
de
liv
er
in
g 
fo
r 
th
e 
"h
er
e 
an
d 

no
w
",
 a
s 
w
el
l a
s 
de
liv
er
in
g 
lo
ng
er
 t
er
m
, 
hi
gh
-im

pa
ct
 in
iti
at
iv
es
 

to
 t
ac
kl
e 
so
m
e 
of
 t
he
 i
ss
ue
s 
in
 t
he
 t
ow
n,
 f
or
 e
xa
m
pl
e 
th
e 

co
m
m
itm
en
t o
ve
r 
th
e 
ye
ar
s 
to
 d
ev
el
op
in
g 
th
e 
A
bb
ey
 S
ta
di
um

, 
ba
se
d 
on
 e
co
no
m
ic
 a
nd
 c
on
su
lta
tio
n 
da
ta
. 

 A
ll 
up
da
te
s 
to
 t
he
 p
la
n 
w
ill
 b
e 
su
bj
ec
t 
to
 a
pp
ro
va
l b
y 
E
le
ct
ed
 

M
em

be
rs
 a
nd
 w
ill
 in
cl
ud
e 
a 
fu
ll 
re
vi
ew
 a
ga
in
st
 ta
rg
et
s 
to
 d
at
e.
 

     
3 

Page 19



 H
o
w
 d
o
es
 it
 f
it
 in
to
 t
h
e 
w
o
rk
 o
f 
o
th
er
 a
g
en
ci
es
?
 

 T
hi
s 
pl
an
 d
es
cr
ib
es
 C
ou
nc
il 
ac
tiv
iti
es
 t
ha
t 
co
nt
rib
ut
e 
to
w
ar
ds
 

th
e 
20
:2
0 
V
is
io
n.
  T
he
 d
el
iv
er
y 
by
 a
ge
nc
ie
s 
to
w
ar
ds
 th
is
 v
is
io
n 

is
 c
o-
or
di
na
te
d 
by
 t
he
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 B
oa
rd
, 
w
hi
ch
 t
he
 

C
ou
nc
il 
su
pp
or
ts
 t
hr
ou
gh
 a
dm

in
is
tr
at
io
n 
an
d 
th
e 
pr
ov
is
io
n 
of
 

fu
nd
in
g.
 

 H
o
w
 d
o
 I 
fi
n
d
 o
u
t 
m
o
re
?
 

 M
or
e 
in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
ca
n 
be
 
fo
un
d 
at
 
w
w
w
.r
ed
di
tc
hb
c.
go
v.
uk
, 

w
he
re
 
a 

hy
pe
rli
nk
ed
 
ve
rs
io
n 

of
 
th
is
 
do
cu
m
en
t 
ca
n 

be
 

do
w
nl
oa
de
d.
 A
lte
rn
at
iv
el
y,
 c
on
ta
ct
 t
he
 P
ol
ic
y 
T
ea
m
 o
n 
01
52
7 

64
25
2.
 

                    

                                
4 

Page 20



  

Page 21



Page 22



 

56
 

D
R
A
F
T
 

R
ed
d
it
ch
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
o
u
n
ci
l C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 R
is
k 
P
ro
fi
le
 

 R
IS
K
 L
E
V
E
L
 

IM
P
A
C
T
/L
IK
E
L
IH
O
O
D
 

T
H
E
M
E
/R
IS
K
 

L
E
A
D
 D
IR
E
C
T
O
R
/ 

H
E
A
D
S
 O
F
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
 

 
F
in
an
ci
al
 

 
 

M
ed
iu
m
 

F
ai
lu
re
 to

 e
lim

in
at
e 
th
e 
re
qu

ire
m
en

t t
o 
ut
ili
se

 g
en

er
al
 fu

nd
 r
ev

en
ue

 b
al
an

ce
 to

 s
up

po
rt
 

th
e 
ba

se
 b
ud

ge
t. 

 

C
 S
m
ith

/T
 K
ris

tu
na

s 

M
ed
iu
m
 

F
ai
lu
re
 to

 d
el
iv
er
 “
ef
fic

ie
nc

y”
 s
av

in
gs

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 a
nn

ua
l s
ta
te
m
en

t 
C
 S
m
ith

/T
 K
ris

tu
na

s 
 

H
ig
h
 

Lo
ss

 o
f e

xt
er
na

l f
un

di
ng

 v
ia
 R
S
G
/L
A
A
/R
ew

ar
d 
M
on

ie
s.
 

 
C
M
T
/T
 K
ris

tu
na

s 

H
ig
h
 

F
ai
lu
re
 t
o 
de

liv
er
 o
n 
th
e 
C
ou

nc
il’
s 
P
ro
cu

re
m
en

t 
A
ge

nd
a 
in
cl
ud

in
g 
S
ha

re
d 
S
er
vi
ce

s,
 

jo
in
t w

or
ki
ng

 a
nd

 a
lte

rn
at
iv
e 
m
ea

ns
 o
f d

el
iv
er
y.
 

 

C
M
T
/C
 S
m
ith

 

 
P
o
lit
ic
al
 

 
 

M
ed
iu
m
 

C
ap

ac
ity
 to

 m
ee

t M
em

be
r 
ex

pe
ct
at
io
ns

 in
 a
cc
or
da

nc
e 
w
ith

 b
ud

ge
ta
ry
 li
m
ita

tio
ns

 
 

C
 S
m
ith

/C
M
T
 

 
IC
T
 

 
 

H
ig
h
 

S
ys
te
m
s 
fa
ilu
re
s 
(n
ew

 a
nd

 e
xi
st
in
g)
 

 
P
 P
at
te
n/
R
 S
ea

ge
r/
  

T
 K
ris

tu
na

s 
H
ig
h
 

In
-h
ou

se
 c
ap

ac
ity
 to

 s
up

po
rt
/d
ev

el
op

 c
us

to
m
er
 a
cc

es
s 
de

ve
lo
pm

en
ts
. 

 
P
 P
at
te
n 

 
S
ta
ff
/P
eo
p
le
 

 
 

H
ig
h
 

F
ai
lu
re
 to

 d
el
iv
er
 r
ob

us
t p

ro
je
ct
 a
nd

 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

rr
an

ge
m
en

ts
. 

 
C
 S
m
ith

/M
 F
ra
nc

is
 

M
ed
iu
m
 

F
ai
lu
re
 to

 r
ed

uc
e 
si
ck
ne

ss
 a
bs

en
ce

 le
ve

ls
 to

 in
cr
ea

se
 c
ap

ac
ity
 a
nd

 d
el
iv
er
 e
ffi
ci
en

ci
es

 
(H

S
E
 a
ct
io
n 
pl
an

) 
 

S
 H
an

le
y/
E
 S
to
re
r 

Page 23



 

57
 

H
ig
h
 

F
ai
lu
re
 to

 e
nh

an
ce

 c
or
po

ra
te
 c
ap

ac
ity
 a
t a

 s
tr
at
eg

ic
 le

ve
l (
M
an

ag
em

en
t R

ev
ie
w
) 

 
C
 S
m
ith

 

M
ed
iu
m
 

F
ai
lu
re
 to

 d
el
iv
er
 im

pr
ov

ed
 r
ec

ru
itm

en
t a

nd
 r
et
en

tio
n 
ar
ra
ng

em
en

ts
 in

 k
ey

 a
re
as

. 
 

S
 H
an

le
y/
E
 S
to
re
r 

 
S
tr
at
eg
ic
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

 
 

H
ig
h
 

F
ai
lu
re
 to

 d
el
iv
er
 e
nh

an
ce

d 
ex

te
rn
al
 C
om

m
un

ic
at
io
ns

. 
 

C
 S
m
ith

/M
 F
ra
nc

is
 

H
ig
h
 

F
ai
lu
re
 t
o 
em

be
d 
ris

k 
m
an

ag
em

en
t 
th
ro
ug

ho
ut
 t
he

 o
rg
an

is
at
io
n 
w
ith

 p
ar
tic
ul
ar
 r
eg

ar
d 

to
 m

aj
or
 p
ro
je
ct
s.
 

 

C
M
T
 

 
M
aj
o
r 
P
ro
je
ct
s 

 
 

H
ig
h
 

F
ai
lu
re
 to

 d
el
iv
er
 a
nd

 im
pl
em

en
t C

us
to
m
er
 A
cc
es

s 
S
tr
at
eg

y.
 

 
P
 P
at
te
n 

H
ig
h
 

F
ai
lu
re
 to

 d
el
iv
er
 a
 n
ew

 A
bb

ey
 S
ta
di
um

 S
ch

em
e.
 

 
P
 P
at
te
n 

H
ig
h
 

 
F
ai
lu
re
 to

 c
on

cl
ud

e 
S
in
gl
e 
S
ta
tu
s 
ar
ra
ng

em
en

ts
. 

S
 H
an

le
y/
E
 S
to
re
r 

H
ig
h
 

 
F
ai
lu
re
 to

 d
el
iv
er
 r
ob

us
t B

us
in
es

s 
C
on

tin
ui
ty
 A
rr
an

ge
m
en

ts
. 

P
 P
at
te
n 

H
ig
h
 

F
ai
lu
re
 to

 in
flu

en
ce

 R
eg

io
na

l S
pa

tia
l S

tr
at
eg

y.
 

 
J 
S
ta
ni
la
nd

/S
 H
an

le
y 

  

Page 24



 

56
 

 

Page 25



Page 26



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 B
(i
) 

 5
8
 

A
p
p
en
d
ix
 B
 (
i)
 
: 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
, C

o
m
p
ar
is
o
n
s 
an
d
 T
re
n
d
s 

 20
05
/0
6 

 In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t o

f m
an

y 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 K
ey

 A
im

s 
an

d 
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 d
ur

in
g 

20
05

/0
6,

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
ly

 
m

an
ag

ed
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

its
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

cr
os

s 
a 

w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 T

ar
ge

ts
 a

nd
 In

di
ca

to
rs

. A
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 D

ire
ct

io
n 

of
 T

ra
ve

l A
ss

es
sm

en
t J

an
ua

ry
 2

00
7 

th
e 
ex
te
n
t 
o
f 
im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
fo
r 
R
ed
d
it
ch
 w
as
 7
7%

 
co
m
p
ar
ed
 t
o
 t
h
e 
av
er
ag
e 
fo
r 
al
l o
th
er
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
ci
ls
 o
f 
58
%
.  

 A
tta

ch
ed

 is
 a

 s
um

m
ar

y 
of

 h
ow

 o
ur

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 c
om

pa
re

s 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 A
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

in
 2

00
5/

06
, b

ei
ng

 th
e 

la
te

st
 y

ea
r 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 n

at
io

na
l i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
 

 20
06
/0
7 
co
m
p
ar
is
o
n
 w
it
h
 2
00
5/
06

 
 W
e 
ar
e 
ve
ry
 p
le
as
ed
 t
o
 r
ep
o
rt
 t
h
at
 t
h
is
 r
at
e 
o
f 
im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
h
as
 b
ee
n
 m
ai
n
ta
in
ed
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
20
06
/0
7.

 D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 w
e 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
to

 c
ol

le
ct

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 a

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f i

nd
ic

at
or

s 
to

 s
ho

w
 h

ow
 w

el
l w

e 
w

er
e 

pe
rf

or
m

in
g 

as
 

a 
co

un
ci

l. 
 C

le
ar

ly
, s

om
e 

of
 th

es
e 

ar
e 

na
tio

na
l i

nd
ic

at
or

s 
fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 o
ur

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 c
an

 b
e 

co
m

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 th

at
 o

f 
ot

he
r 

A
ut

ho
rit

ie
s;

 th
es

e 
ar

e 
m

os
tly

 p
re

fix
ed

 B
V

 (
B

es
t V

al
ue

).
  F

or
 a

ll 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 w
e 

ag
ai

n 
se

t o
ur

se
lv

es
 c

ha
lle

ng
in

g 
ta

rg
et

s 
th

at
 w

er
e 

m
on

ito
re

d 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ye
ar

. 
 T

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

pa
ge

s 
sh

ow
 o

ur
 a

ct
ua

l a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t f
or

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
es

e 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 a
nd

 h
ow

 th
es

e 
co

m
pa

re
 w

ith
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

ye
ar

s.
  

 W
ith

in
 th

is
 P

la
n 

w
e 

ha
ve

 r
ep

or
te

d 
ou

r 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 in

 2
00

6/
07

 a
s 

m
ea

su
re

d 
by

 1
30

 d
iff

er
en

t i
nd

ic
at

or
s.

 K
ey

 to
 th

is
 

ar
e 

10
8 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 w

hi
ch

 c
an

 b
e 

di
re

ct
ly

 m
ea

su
re

d 
ag

ai
ns

t p
re

vi
ou

s 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 a

nd
 c

an
 b

e 
co

m
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 fr
om

 2
00

5/
06

.  
T

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

ta
bl

es
 s

ho
w

 th
e 

di
re

ct
io

n 
of

 c
ha

ng
e 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 o
f t

he
se

 1
08

 in
di

ca
to

rs
. O

f 
w

hi
ch

; 
 

Page 27



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 B
(i
) 

 5
9
 

• 
73
 h
av
e 
sh
o
w
n
 a
 c
le
ar
 im

p
ro
ve
m
en
t.
 

• 
 2
 h
av
e 
b
ee
n
 p
o
si
ti
ve
ly
 m
ai
n
ta
in
ed
.  

• 
33
 h
av
e 
d
ec
lin
ed
. 

 A
n
al
ys
is
 o
f 
th
e 
in
d
ic
at
o
rs
 r
ev
ea
ls
 t
h
at
 6
8%
 h
av
e 
im
p
ro
ve
d
 s
in
ce
 2
00
5/
06
. 

 C
u
st
o
m
er
 S
at
is
fa
ct
io
n
 S
u
rv
ey
 R
es
u
lt
s 

 D
ur

in
g 

20
06

/0
7 

w
e 

al
so

 h
ad

 to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 th
e 

th
re

e 
ye

ar
ly

 c
us

to
m

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

su
rv

ey
s 

on
: 

 
• 

G
en

er
al

 S
ur

ve
y 

• 
P

la
nn

in
g 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
• 

B
en

ef
its

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
• 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
 T

he
 r

es
ul

ts
 o

f t
he

se
 a

re
 s

ho
w

n 
at

 A
pp

en
di

x 
B

(ii
).

 It
 is
 p
le
as
in
g
 t
o
 n
o
te
 t
h
at
 u
n
lik
e 
a 
n
u
m
b
er
 o
f 
n
at
io
n
al
 t
re
n
d
s 

al
m
o
st
 a
ll 
o
f 
o
u
r 
su
rv
ey
 r
es
u
lt
s 
ar
e 
p
o
si
ti
ve
 a
n
d
 c
le
ar
ly
 d
en
o
te
 a
 g
en
er
al
 in
cr
ea
si
n
g
 s
at
is
fa
ct
io
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci
l’s
 s
er
vi
ce
s.

  
 

Page 28



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 B
(i
) 

 6
0
 

In
 2
00
6/
07
 o
u
r 
p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 im

p
ro
ve
d
 f
o
r 
ea
ch
 o
f 
th
e 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 7
3 
in
d
ic
at
o
rs
: 

 P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 1
 –
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 S
A
F
E
T
Y
 

C
S

2 
 

N
um

be
r 

of
 B

rit
is

h 
C

rim
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

C
om

pa
ra

to
r 

C
rim

es
 R

ep
or

te
d 

  
B

V
12

6 
D

om
es

tic
 B

ur
gl

ar
ie

s 
pe

r 
1,

00
0 

H
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

B
V

12
8 

V
eh

ic
le

 C
rim

e 
pe

r 
1,

00
0 

P
op

ul
at

io
n 

B
V

17
5 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 r

ac
ia

l i
nc

id
en

ts
 th

at
 r

es
ul

te
d 

in
 fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n 

 P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 2
 –
 E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 A
N
D
 T
R
A
N
S
P
O
R
T
 

B
V

08
2a

 (
i) 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
as

te
 a

ris
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

se
nt

 b
y 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 fo
r 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
B

V
08

2a
 (

ii)
 

T
he

 to
ta

l t
on

na
ge

 o
f h

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
as

te
 a

ris
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

se
nt

 b
y 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 fo
r 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
B

V
08

4a
 

K
ilo

gr
am

m
es

 o
f h

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
as

te
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 p
er

 h
ea

d 
B

V
08

4b
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

ch
an

ge
 fr

om
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 fi

na
nc

ia
l y

ea
r 

in
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 k
ilo

gr
am

m
e 

of
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
as

te
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 p
er

 h
ea

d 
of

 th
e 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
B

V
09

1a
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
re

si
de

nt
 in

 a
re

a 
se

rv
ed

 b
y 

a 
ke

rb
si

de
 

re
cy

cl
ab

le
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
B

V
09

1b
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
re

si
de

nt
 in

 a
re

a 
se

rv
ed

 b
y 

a 
ke

rb
si

de
 

re
cy

cl
ab

le
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
of

 a
t l

ea
st

 tw
o 

re
cy

cl
ab

le
s 

B
V

10
6 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 n

ew
 h

om
es

 b
ui

lt 
on

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
la

nd
 

 
B

V
10

9a
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 m

aj
or

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 1
3 

w
ee

ks
 

B
V

10
9c

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 o
th

er
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 8

 
w

ee
ks

 
B

V
16

6a
 

S
co

re
 a

ga
in

st
 a

 c
he

ck
lis

t o
f e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t b

es
t p

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
/tr

ad
in

g 
st

an
da

rd
s 

B
V

19
9b

 
T

he
 p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 r
el

ev
an

t l
an

d 
an

d 
hi

gh
w

ay
s 

(e
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
) 

fr
om

 w
hi

ch
 u

na
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

le
ve

ls
 o

f g
ra

ffi
ti 

ar
e 

vi
si

bl
e 

B
V

19
9c

 
T

he
 p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 r
el

ev
an

t l
an

d 
an

d 
hi

gh
w

ay
s 

(e
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
) 

fr
om

 w
hi

ch
 u

na
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

le
ve

ls
 o

f f
ly

-p
os

tin
g 

ar
e 

vi
si

bl
e 

B
V

20
0a

 
D

id
 th

e 
lo

ca
l p

la
nn

in
g 

au
th

or
ity

 s
ub

m
it 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
S

ch
em

e 
by

 2
8t

h 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

5 
an

d 
th

er
ea

fte
r 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

3-
ye

ar
 

ro
lli

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e-
 

B
V

 2
00

b 
H

as
 th

e 
lo

ca
l p

la
nn

in
g 

au
th

or
ity

 m
et

 th
e 

m
ile

st
on

es
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t L

oc
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
ch

em
e 

se
ts

 o
ut

- 

B
V

20
0c

 
D

id
 th

e 
lo

ca
l p

la
nn

in
g 

au
th

or
ity

 p
ub

lis
h 

an
 a

nn
ua

l m
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rt

 b
y 

31
st

 D
ec

em
be

r 
of

 th
e 

la
st

 y
ea

r-
 

B
V

 2
16

a 
N

um
be

r 
of

 s
ite

s 
of

 p
ot

en
tia

l c
on

ce
rn

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

ar
ea

, 
w

ith
 r

es
pe

ct
 to

 la
nd

 c
on

ta
m

in
at

io
n 

B
V

21
6b

 
N

um
be

r 
of

 s
ite

s 
fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 d

et
ai

le
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 d
ec

id
e 

w
he

th
er

 r
em

ed
ia

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
la

nd
 is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
, 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 a

ll 
's

ite
s 

of
 p

ot
en

tia
l c

on
ce

rn
' 

B
V

21
7 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

ol
lu

tio
n 

co
nt

ro
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

 
in

st
al

la
tio

ns
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 o
n 

tim
e 

B
V

21
8b

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 a
ba

nd
on

ed
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

re
m

ov
ed

 w
ith

in
 2

4 
ho

ur
s 

fr
om

 
th

e 
po

in
t a

t w
hi

ch
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

is
 le

ga
lly

 e
nt

itl
ed

 to
 r

em
ov

e 
th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 

B
V

21
9b

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
ar

ea
s 

in
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

ar
ea

 w
ith

 
an

 u
p-

to
-d

at
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ap

pr
ai

sa
l 

B
V

21
9c

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
ar

ea
s 

w
ith

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
s 

 

E
T

04
 

N
um

be
r 

of
 p

ub
lic

 r
ep

or
ts

 o
f l

itt
er

 

Page 29



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 B
(i
) 

 6
1
 

E
T

05
 

N
um

be
r 

of
 p

ub
lic

 r
ep

or
ts

 o
f f

ly
 ti

pp
in

g 
E

T
07

a 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 s
ch

ed
ul

ed
 h

ig
h 

ris
k 

fo
od

 p
re

m
is

es
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 th
at

 
w

er
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 o

n 
tim

e 
  

E
T

07
b 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 s

ch
ed

ul
ed

 lo
w

 r
is

k 
fo

od
 p

re
m

is
es

 in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 th

at
 

w
er

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 o
n 

tim
e 

  
E

T
08

a 
N

um
be

r 
of

 r
ep

or
ts

 o
f '

ab
an

do
ne

d'
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

E
T

08
c 

N
um

be
r 

of
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

cl
as

se
d 

as
 a

ba
nd

on
ed

 a
nd

 s
ub

se
qu

en
tly

 
re

m
ov

ed
 

E
T

09
 

N
um

be
r 

of
 D

ia
l-A

-R
id

e 
pa

ss
en

ge
r 

tr
ip

s 
pe

r 
ye

ar
 

E
T

10
 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 D

ia
l-A

-R
id

e 
us

er
s 

sa
yi

ng
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
is

 g
oo

d 
or

 e
xc

el
le

nt
 

E
T

12
 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 S

ho
pm

ob
ili

ty
 u

se
rs

 s
ay

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

is
 

ei
th

er
 g

oo
d 

or
 e

xc
el

le
nt

. 
E

T
15

 
N

um
be

r 
of

 c
on

ce
ss

io
na

ry
 jo

ur
ne

ys
 p

er
 y

ea
r 

 
 P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 3
 –
 H
O
U
S
IN
G
  

B
V

06
2 

(f
or

m
er

) 
P

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 u
nf

it 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 m

ad
e 

fit
 o

r 
de

m
ol

is
he

d 
as

 a
 d

ire
ct

 r
es

ul
t o

f a
ct

io
n 

by
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

B
V

P
I 6

3 
E

ne
rg

y 
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 -
 t

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 S

A
P

 r
at

in
g 

of
 l

oc
al

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
ow

ne
d 

dw
el

lin
gs

 
B

V
P

I 1
64

 
D

oe
s 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 f
ol

lo
w

 t
he

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 f
or

 R
ac

ia
l 

E
qu

al
ity

’s
 

co
de

 o
f 

pr
ac

tic
e 

in
 r

en
te

d 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
fo

llo
w

 t
he

 G
oo

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 fo

r 
so

ci
al

 la
nd

lo
rd

s 
on

 ta
ck

lin
g 

ha
ra

ss
m

en
t i

nc
lu

de
d 

in
 

th
e 

co
de

 o
f P

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r 

S
oc

ia
l L

an
dl

or
ds

? 

B
V

P
I 6

6c
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

te
na

nt
s 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
ha

d 
N

ot
ic

es
 

S
ee

ki
ng

 P
os

se
ss

io
n 

se
rv

ed
 

B
V

P
I 6

6d
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 l

oc
al

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
te

na
nt

s 
ev

ic
te

d 
as

 a
 r

es
ul

t 
of

 r
en

t 
ar

re
ar

s 
B

V
P

I 1
56

 
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
bu

ild
in

gs
 o

pe
n 

to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 in
 w

hi
ch

 
al

l p
ub

lic
 a

re
as

 a
re

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
fo

r,
 a

nd
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
to

, d
is

ab
le

d 
pe

op
le

 
B

V
P

I 1
83

b 
T

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 l

en
gt

h 
of

 s
ta

y 
(w

ee
ks

) 
in

 h
os

te
l 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

of
 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 w

ith
 e

ith
er

 d
ep

en
de

nt
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

or
 p

re
gn

an
t 

w
om

en
 

an
d 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 u

ni
nt

en
tio

na
lly

 h
om

el
es

s 
an

d 
in

 p
rio

rit
y 

ne
ed

 

B
V

P
I 1

84
a 

T
he

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 L

A
 H

om
es

 w
hi

ch
 w

er
e 

no
n-

de
ce

nt
 o

n 
th

e 
fir

st
 

da
y 

of
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r 

B
V

P
I 1

84
b 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

ch
an

ge
 i

n 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 n

on
-d

ec
en

t 
LA

 h
om

es
 

ov
er

 th
e 

co
ur

se
 o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l y
ea

r 
B

V
P

I 2
02

 
T

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

sl
ee

pi
ng

 r
ou

gh
 o

n 
a 

si
ng

le
 n

ig
ht

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f t
he

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
B

V
P

I 2
03

 
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
ch

an
ge

 in
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 fa
m

ili
es

, w
hi

ch
 

in
cl

ud
e 

de
pe

nd
en

t c
hi

ld
re

n 
or

 a
 p

re
gn

an
t w

om
an

, p
la

ce
d 

in
 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
un

de
r 

th
e 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s 
le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
co

m
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

fr
om

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 y
ea

r 

B
V

P
I 2

12
 / 

LI
B

 2
40

 
A

ve
ra

ge
 ti

m
e 

(d
ay

s)
 to

 r
e-

le
t L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
H

ou
si

ng
 

B
V

P
I 2

13
 

N
um

be
r 

of
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
w

ho
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
th

em
se

lv
es

 a
s 

ho
m

el
es

s,
 

w
ho

 a
pp

ro
ac

he
d 

th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y'
s 

ho
us

in
g 

ad
vi

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
, a

nd
 

fo
r 

w
ho

m
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

dv
ic

e 
ca

se
w

or
k 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

re
so

lv
ed

 th
ei

r 
si

tu
at

io
n,

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 p

op
ul

at
io

n.
 

H
H

 5
 (

LL
) 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 L

ife
lin

e 
us

er
s 

sa
yi

ng
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
is

 g
oo

d 
or

 
ex

ce
lle

nt
 

H
H

 9
 (W

R
D

) 
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 u
se

rs
 o

f t
he

 W
ar

de
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

sa
yi

ng
 th

at
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
is

 g
oo

d 
or

 e
xc

el
le

nt
 

H
H

 1
2 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 S

ur
e 

S
ta

rt
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
fa

m
ili

es
 u

si
ng

 R
E

D
D

I l
ei

su
re

 
ca

rd
 

H
H

01
3 

C
ar

e 
an

d 
R

ep
ai

r 
- 

av
er

ag
e 

le
ng

th
 o

f t
im

e 
fr

om
 fi

rs
t c

on
ta

ct
 to

 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
(w

ee
ks

) 
 

 

Page 30



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 B
(i
) 

 6
2
 

P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 4
 -
 L
E
IS
U
R
E
 

B
V

P
I 1

70
a 

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 v

is
its

 to
/u

sa
ge

s 
to

 m
us

eu
m

s 
pe

r 
10

00
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
B

V
P

I 1
70

b 
T

he
 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

th
os

e 
vi

si
ts

 
th

at
 

w
er

e 
in

 
pe

rs
on

 
pe

r 
10

00
 

po
pu

la
tio

n.
 

B
V

P
I 1

70
c 

T
he

 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 
pu

pi
ls

 
vi

si
tin

g 
m

us
eu

m
s 

an
d 

ga
lle

rie
s 

in
 

or
ga

ni
se

d 
sc

ho
ol

 g
ro

up
s 

 
LT

 1
 

T
ot

al
 c

on
ce

ss
io

na
ry

 u
se

 

LT
 2

 
S

po
rt

 a
nd

 L
ei

su
re

 o
ve

ra
ll 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

ra
te

 
LT

 3
 

A
ve

ra
ge

 n
um

be
r 

of
 v

is
its

 to
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

pe
r 

he
ad

 o
f p

op
ul

at
io

n 
 

 P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 5
 –
 W

E
L
L
 M
A
N
A
G
E
D
 O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
 

B
V

P
I 1

c 
(f

or
m

er
) 

H
as

 t
he

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
re

po
rt

ed
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

to
w

ar
ds

 i
m

pl
em

en
tin

g 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
to

 t
he

 w
id

er
 c

om
m

un
ity

- 
If 

no
 w

he
n 

w
ill

 t
hi

s 
be

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n-

 

B
V

P
I 2

a 
T

he
 le

ve
l o

f t
he

 E
qu

al
ity

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
fo

r 
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t t
o 

w
hi

ch
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

co
nf

or
m

s 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f g

en
de

r,
 r

ac
e 

an
d 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 

B
V

P
I 2

b 
T

he
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 a
n 

A
ut

ho
rit

y'
s 

R
ac

e 
E

qu
al

ity
 S

ch
em

e 
(R

E
S

) 
an

d 
th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 r

es
ul

tin
g 

fr
om

 it
s 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

B
V

P
I 8

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 in
vo

ic
es

 fo
r 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 g
oo

ds
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
at

 
w

er
e 

pa
id

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

 o
r 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
ag

re
ed

 p
ay

m
en

t t
er

m
s 

B
V

P
I 1

1a
 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 th

e 
to

p 
pa

id
 5

%
 o

f l
oc

al
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

st
af

f w
ho

 a
re

 
w

om
en

 
B

V
P

I 1
1b

 
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

to
p 

pa
id

 5
%

 o
f l

oc
al

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
st

af
f w

ho
 a

re
 

fr
om

 a
n 

et
hn

ic
 m

in
or

ity
 

B
V

P
I 1

1c
 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 t

he
 t

op
 p

ai
d 

5%
 o

f 
lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
ity

 s
ta

ff 
w

ho
 

ha
ve

 a
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 
B

V
P

I 1
2 

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s/

sh
ift

s 
lo

st
 t

o 
th

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

du
e 

to
 s

ic
kn

es
s 

ab
se

nc
e 

pe
r 

F
T

E
 s

ta
ff 

m
em

be
r 

B
V

P
I 1

5 
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 l
oc

al
  

au
th

or
ity

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

re
tir

in
g 

on
 t

he
 

gr
ou

nd
s 

of
 il

l h
ea

lth
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l w
or

kf
or

ce
 

B
V

P
I 1

6a
 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
w

ith
 a

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 

 
B

V
P

I 7
8a

 
T

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 p

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
tim

e 
(d

ay
s)

  
ta

ke
n 

fo
r 

al
l 

ne
w

 H
ou

si
ng

 
an

d 
C

ou
nc

il 
T

ax
 B

en
ef

it 
cl

ai
m

s 
su

bm
itt

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
ity

, 
fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 t
he

 d
at

e 
of

 d
ec

is
io

n 
is

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 f

in
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r 
be

in
g 

re
po

rt
ed

 

B
V

P
I 2

26
b 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 m

on
ie

s 
sp

en
t o

n 
ad

vi
ce

 a
nd

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 w
as

 g
iv

en
 to

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 h

ol
di

ng
 th

e 
C

LS
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

M
ar

k 
at

 'G
en

er
al

 H
el

p'
 le

ve
l a

nd
 a

bo
ve

 

W
M

O
 3

 
O

ne
 S

to
p 

S
ho

p:
 C

us
to

m
er

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
W

M
O

 5
 

S
w

itc
hb

oa
rd

 &
 C

on
ta

ct
 C

en
tr

e:
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 c
al

ls
 a

ns
w

er
ed

 
w

ith
in

 2
0 

se
co

nd
s 

W
M

O
 6

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

de
al

t w
ith

 a
t t

he
 fi

rs
t p

oi
nt

 o
f c

on
ta

ct
 

 
 In
 2
00
6/
07
 o
u
r 
p
o
si
ti
ve
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 h
as
 b
ee
n
 m
ai
n
ta
in
ed

 f
o
r 
ea
ch
 o
f 
th
e 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 2
 in
d
ic
at
o
rs
: 

 P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 2
 –
 E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 A
N
D
 T
R
A
N
S
P
O
R
T
 

B
V

20
5 

T
he

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y'
s 

sc
or

e 
ag

ai
ns

t a
 'q

ua
lit

y 
of

 p
la

nn
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
' 

ch
ec

kl
is

t 
 

 P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 4
 -
 L
E
IS
U
R
E
 

LT
 4

 
S

po
rt

 a
nd

 L
ei

su
re

: s
ub

si
dy

 p
er

 v
is

it 
 

Page 31



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 B
(i
) 

 6
3
 

In
 2
00
6/
07
 o
u
r 
p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 d
ec
lin
ed
 fo

r 
ea
ch
 o
f 
th
e 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 3
3 
in
d
ic
at
o
rs
: 

 P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 1
 –
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 S
A
F
E
T
Y
 

B
V

12
7a

 
V

io
le

nt
 C

rim
e 

pe
r 

1,
00

0 
P

op
ul

at
io

n 
B

V
12

7b
 

R
ob

be
rie

s 
pe

r 
1,

00
0 

P
op

ul
at

io
n 

 P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 2
 –
 E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 A
N
D
 T
R
A
N
S
P
O
R
T
 

 
 

B
V

10
9b

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 m
in

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 8

 
w

ee
ks

 
B

V
19

9a
 

T
he

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 r

el
ev

an
t l

an
d 

an
d 

hi
gh

w
ay

s 
(e

xp
re

ss
ed

 a
s 

a 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

) 
th

at
 is

 a
ss

es
se

d 
as

 h
av

in
g 

co
m

bi
ne

d 
de

po
si

ts
 o

f 
lit

te
r 

an
d 

de
tr

itu
s 

th
at

 fa
ll 

be
lo

w
 a

n 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 le
ve

l 

B
V

19
9d

 
T

he
 y

ea
r 

on
 y

ea
r 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 th
e 

to
ta

l n
um

be
r 

of
 in

ci
de

nt
s 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
to

ta
l n

um
be

r 
of

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t a
ct

io
ns

 ta
ke

n 
to

 d
ea

l 
w

ith
 fl

y-
tip

pi
ng

 (
sc

or
ed

 1
 to

 4
, w

ith
 1

 b
ei

ng
 b

es
t)

 
B

V
20

4 
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 a
pp

ea
ls

 a
llo

w
ed

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

's
 

de
ci

si
on

 to
 r

ef
us

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
, a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

 
to

ta
l n

um
be

r 
of

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pe
al

s 
ag

ai
ns

t r
ef

us
al

s 
of

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
  

B
V

21
8a

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 n
ew

 r
ep

or
ts

 o
f a

ba
nd

on
ed

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
in

ve
st

ig
at

ed
 

w
ith

in
 2

4 
ho

ur
s 

of
 n

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n 

E
T

01
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

in
g 

in
 th

e 
R

B
C

 k
er

bs
id

e 
dr

y 
re

cy
cl

ab
le

s 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

E
T

11
 

T
ot

al
 n

um
be

r 
of

 u
se

s 
of

 S
ho

pm
ob

ili
ty

 

 P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 3
 –
 H
O
U
S
IN
G
  

B
V

06
4 

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 v
ac

an
t d

w
el

lin
gs

 r
et

ur
ne

d 
in

to
 

oc
cu

pa
tio

n 
or

 d
em

ol
is

he
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r 

as
 a

 d
ire

ct
 

re
su

lt 
of

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
ac

tio
n 

B
V

P
I 6

6a
 

R
en

t c
ol

le
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

as
 a

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 r

en
ts

 
ow

ed
 o

n 
H

ou
si

ng
 R

ev
en

ue
 A

cc
ou

nt
 (

H
R

A
) 

dw
el

lin
gs

 

B
V

P
I 6

6b
 

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

te
na

nt
s 

w
ith

 m
or

e 
th

an
 s

ev
en

 
w

ee
ks

 o
f (

gr
os

s)
 r

en
t a

rr
ea

rs
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l n
um

be
r 

of
 c

ou
nc

il 
te

na
nt

s 

B
V

P
I 1

83
a 

T
he

 a
ve

ra
ge

 le
ng

th
 o

f s
ta

y 
(w

ee
ks

) 
in

 b
ed

 a
nd

 b
re

ak
fa

st
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

of
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
w

ith
 e

ith
er

 d
ep

en
de

nt
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

or
 

pr
eg

na
nt

 w
om

en
 a

nd
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 u
ni

nt
en

tio
na

lly
 h

om
el

es
s 

an
d 

in
 

pr
io

rit
y 

ne
ed

. 
B

V
P

I 2
14

 
P

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 a
s 

st
at

ut
or

ily
 h

om
el

es
s 

w
ho

 
w

er
e 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 a
s 

st
at

ut
or

ily
 h

om
el

es
s 

by
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

la
st

 tw
o 

ye
ar

s 

LI
B

 2
19

 
T

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 le

ng
th

 o
f s

ta
y 

in
 B

 &
 B

 (
w

ee
ks

) 

LI
B

 2
31

 
R

en
t a

rr
ea

rs
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f r
en

t r
ol

l 
 

LI
B

 2
36

 
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 te
na

nt
s 

ow
in

g 
ov

er
 1

3 
w

ee
ks

 r
en

t (
ex

cl
ud

in
g 

le
ss

 th
an

 £
25

0)
 

H
H

 1
 

(R
E

N
T

) 
R

en
t w

rit
te

n 
of

f a
s 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 r
en

t r
ol

l 
H

H
 2

 
(R

E
N

T
) 

V
oi

d 
lo

ss
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 a
s 

a 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f g

ro
ss

 r
en

t 

H
H

 4
 (

LL
) 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 L

ife
lin

e 
C

on
tr

ol
le

r 
re

sp
on

se
s 

w
ith

in
 6

0 
se

co
nd

s 
of

 c
al

l 
H

H
 1

0 
A

ve
ra

ge
 r

el
et

 ti
m

e 
(d

ay
s)

 fo
r 

dw
el

lin
gs

  (
ex

cl
ud

in
g 

th
os

e 
w

he
re

 
on

e 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ap

pl
ie

s:
 n

o 
w

ai
tin

g 
lis

t, 
lo

ng
 te

rm
 v

oi
d,

 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
to

 le
t, 

un
de

rg
oi

ng
 m

aj
or

 r
ep

ai
rs

) 
H

H
 1

5 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 S
ur

e 
S

ta
rt

 r
eg

is
te

re
d 

ch
ild

re
n 

ac
ce

ss
in

g 
S

ur
e 

H
H

 1
7 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 r

ep
ai

rs
 r

eq
ui

rin
g 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 a
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 a

n 

Page 32



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 B
(i
) 

 6
4
 

S
ta

rt
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ap
po

in
tm

en
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
H

H
 1

8 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 r
ep

ai
r 

ap
po

in
tm

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
th

at
 w

er
e 

ke
pt

 b
y 

R
B

C
 

 
 

 P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 5
 –
 W

E
L
L
 M
A
N
A
G
E
D
 O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
 

B
V

P
I 9

 
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

in
 t

he
 

ye
ar

 
B

V
P

I 1
0 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 N

on
-D

om
es

tic
 R

at
es

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

in
 th

e 
ye

ar
 

B
V

P
I 1

4 
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

re
tir

in
g 

ea
rly

 (
ex

cl
ud

in
g 

ill
-h

ea
lth

 
re

tir
em

en
ts

) 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

to
ta

l w
or

k 
fo

rc
e 

B
V

P
I 7

8b
 

T
he

 a
ve

ra
ge

 p
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

tim
e 

(d
ay

s)
 ta

ke
n 

fo
r 

al
l w

rit
te

n 
no

tif
ic

at
io

ns
 to

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l A
ut

ho
rit

y 
of

 c
ha

ng
es

 to
 a

 c
la

im
an

t's
 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

 th
at

 r
eq

ui
re

 a
 n

ew
 d

ec
is

io
n 

on
 b

eh
al

f o
f t

he
 

au
th

or
ity

 
B

V
P

I 7
9a

 
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 c
as

es
 w

ith
in

 a
 r

an
do

m
 s

am
pl

e 
fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

's
 c

al
cu

la
tio

n 
of

 H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 B
en

ef
it 

is
 

fo
un

d 
to

 b
e 

co
rr

ec
t 

B
V

P
I 7

9b
(i)

 
T

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 

ov
er

pa
ym

en
ts

 r
ec

ov
er

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

be
in

g 
re

po
rt

ed
 o

n 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 H
B

 d
ee

m
ed

 
re

co
ve

ra
bl

e 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

ts
 d

ur
in

g 
th

at
 p

er
io

d 
B

V
P

I 7
9b

(ii
) 

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 

(H
B

) 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

ts
 r

ec
ov

er
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

to
ta

l a
m

ou
nt

 o
f H

B
 o

ve
rp

ay
m

en
t d

eb
t 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

at
 th

e 
st

ar
t o

f t
he

 p
er

io
d 

pl
us

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f H

B
 

ov
er

pa
ym

en
ts

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 

B
V

P
I 7

9b
(ii

i) 
H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

it 
(H

B
) 

ov
er

pa
ym

en
ts

 w
rit

te
n 

of
f d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 th

e 
to

ta
l a

m
ou

nt
 o

f H
B

 o
ve

rp
ay

m
en

t d
eb

t 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
at

 th
e 

st
ar

t o
f t

he
 p

er
io

d,
 p

lu
s 

am
ou

nt
 o

f H
B

 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

ts
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

W
M
O
 4
 

E
nq

ui
rie

s 
de

al
t w

ith
 a

t f
irs

t p
oi

nt
 o

f c
on

ta
ct

 
 

 

Page 33



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 B
(i
) 

6
5
 

 C
h
an
g
es
 t
o
 t
h
e 
B
V
P
I S
et
 2
00
7/
08
 

 F
ro

m
 1

st
 A

pr
il 

20
07

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
se

ve
n 

B
V

P
I i

nd
ic

at
or

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

m
ov

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
da

ta
 s

et
.  

It 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

ec
id

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 p

ro
vi

de
 u

se
fu

l i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
or

 in
 r

es
po

ns
e 

to
 r

ec
en

t r
ep

or
ts

 fr
om

 th
e 

‘li
fti

ng
 th

e 
bu

rd
en

s 
ta

sk
 fo

rc
e’

: 
 

• 
B
V
 1
83
 (
a)
: 
“T
he
 a
ve
ra
ge
 le
ng
th
 o
f s
ta
y 
(w
ee
ks
) 
in
 

ho
st
el
 a
cc
om
m
od
at
io
n 
of
 h
ou
se
ho
ld
s 
w
ith
 e
ith
er
 

de
pe
nd
en
t c
hi
ld
re
n 
or
 p
re
gn
an
t w
om
en
 a
nd
 w
hi
ch
 a
re
 

un
in
te
nt
io
na
lly
 h
om
el
es
s 
an
d 
in
 p
rio
rit
y 
ne
ed

.” 
T

he
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

us
ed

 fo
r 

th
is

 in
di

ca
to

r 
is

 h
is

to
ric

 a
nd

 
th

er
ef

or
e 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
se

en
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 c
ur

re
nt

 s
ta

tis
tic

s.
 

 • 
B
V
 2
03
: 
“T
he
 a
ve
ra
ge
 le
ng
th
 o
f s
ta
y 
(w
ee
ks
) 
in
 h
os
te
l 

ac
co
m
m
od
at
io
n 
of
 h
ou
se
ho
ld
s 
w
ith
 e
ith
er
 d
ep
en
de
nt
 

ch
ild
re
n 
or
 p
re
gn
an
t w
om
en
 a
nd
 w
hi
ch
 a
re
 

un
in
te
nt
io
na
lly
 h
om
el
es
s 
an
d 
in
 p
rio
rit
y 
ne
ed
.” 

T
he

 
in

di
ca

to
r 

is
 s

ee
n 

as
 fl

aw
ed

 b
ec

au
se

 it
 d

oe
s 

no
t i

nc
lu

de
 

al
l h

ou
se

ho
ld

s’
 ju

st
 fa

m
ili

es
.  

 
• 

B
V
 2
14
: 
“P
ro
po
rt
io
n 
of
 h
ou
se
ho
ld
s 
ac
ce
pt
ed
 a
s 

st
at
ut
or
ily
 h
om
el
es
s 
w
ho
 w
er
e 
ac
ce
pt
ed
 a
s 
st
at
ut
or
ily
 

ho
m
el
es
s 
by
 th
e 
sa
m
e 
A
ut
ho
rit
y 
w
ith
in
 th
e 
la
st
 tw
o 

ye
ar
s.
” 

T
he

 in
di

ca
to

r 
ca

n 
le

ad
 to

 d
is

pa
rit

ie
s 

in
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

be
tw

ee
n 

co
un

ci
ls

 e
.g

. I
n 

Lo
nd

on
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
ar

e 
un

lik
el

y 
to

 h
av

e 
be

en
 r

e-
ho

us
ed

 w
ith

in
 tw

o 
ye

ar
s 

of
 

in
iti

al
 p

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

so
 a

re
 u

nl
ik

el
y 

to
 r

e-
pr

es
en

t a
s 

ho
m

el
es

s.
 

 
• 

B
V
 2
19
 (
a)
: 
“T

ot
al

 n
um

be
r 

of
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

s 
in

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
ar

ea
.”

 A
s 

th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
of

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
 

 

      
   

   
  a

re
as

 v
ar

ie
s 

gr
ea

tly
, c

om
pa

ris
on

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

em
 c

an
 b

e 
   

   
  

se
en

 a
s 

m
ea

ni
ng

le
ss

. 
 

• 
B
V
 2
19
 (
c)
: 
“P
er
ce
nt
ag
e 
of
 c
on
se
rv
at
io
n 
ar
ea
s 
w
ith
 

pu
bl
is
he
d 
m
an
ag
em
en
t p
ro
po
sa
ls

.”
 N

ot
 e

ve
ry

 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
ar

ea
 n

ee
ds

 a
ct

iv
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

In
 m

an
y 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s,

 q
ua

lit
y 

is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 d

es
ig

n 
or

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t g
ui

da
nc

e.
 

 
• 

B
V
 7
6 
(a
):
 “

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 b

en
ef

it 
cl

ai
m

an
ts

 in
 

th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
ar

ea
 v

is
ite

d,
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 c
as

el
oa

d”
  

D
es

pi
te

 s
til

l b
ei

ng
 a

 k
ey

 a
ct

iv
ity

, t
he

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t f

or
 

w
or

k 
an

d 
pe

ns
io

ns
 h

as
 d

ee
m

ed
 th

at
 it

 is
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

fo
r 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

is
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

   
 

• 
B
V
 2
00
 (
c)
: 
“D
id
 th
e 
lo
ca
l p
la
nn
in
g 
au
th
or
ity
 p
ub
lis
h 
an
 

an
nu
al
 m
on
ito
rin
g 
re
po
rt
 b
y 
31
st
 D
ec
em
be
r 
of
 th
e 
la
st
 

ye
ar
?”
  
D

ue
 to

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

B
V

 2
00

a 
an

d 
b 

it 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

ec
id

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
su

pp
lie

d 
by

 B
V

 2
00

 (
c)

 is
 s

ur
pl

us
 to

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

co
nt

ex
t 

of
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

re
po

rt
in

g 
bu

rd
en

. 
         

Page 34



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 B
(i
) 

6
6
 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 t
re
n
d
s  

 D
ur

in
g 

20
06

/7
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
de

liv
er

ed
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 m
an

y 
ar

ea
s.

  T
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
gr

ap
hs

 c
le

ar
ly

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 o

ur
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
la

st
 fe

w
 y

ea
rs

. I
n 

ad
di

tio
n 

th
ey

 d
ra

w
 

co
m

pa
ris

on
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f a

ll 
di

st
ric

t c
ou

nc
ils

 n
at

io
nw

id
e.

 
   

B
V
P
I 1
2 
- 
T
h
e 
n
u
m
b
er
 o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 d
ay
s 
lo
st
 t
o
 s
ic
kn
es
s 
ab
se
n
ce
 p
er
 F
T
E
 s
ta
ff
 m
em

b
er
 

02468101214

20
02

/0
3

20
03

/0
4

20
04

/5
20

05
/6

20
06

/7

F
in
an
ci
al
 Y
ea
r

Days

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s 

lo
st

 to
 s

ic
kn

es
s 

ab
se

nc
e 

pe
r 

F
T

E
 s

ta
ff 

m
em

be
r

W
or

st
 Q

ua
rt

ile

M
ed

ia
n

B
es

t Q
ua

rt
ile

 
 F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
la

st
 y

ea
rs

 tr
en

d 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s 
lo

st
 to

 
si

ck
ne

ss
 p

er
 F

T
E

 s
ta

ff 
m

em
be

r 
ha

s 
de

cl
in

ed
. A

dd
iti

on
al

ly
 th

is
 

st
at

is
tic

 h
as

 n
ow

 fa
lle

n 
be

lo
w

 th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

w
or

st
 q

ua
rt

ile
 fo

r 
di

st
ric

t 
co

un
ci

ls
 n

at
io

nw
id

e.
 

 

B
V
P
I 1
09
a 
- 
P
er
ce
n
ta
g
e 
o
f 
m
aj
o
r 
p
la
n
in
g
 a
p
p
lic
at
io
n
s 
d
et
er
m
in
ed
 w
it
h
in
 1
3 
w
ee
ks

0.
00

%

10
.0

0%

20
.0

0%

30
.0

0%

40
.0

0%

50
.0

0%

60
.0

0%

70
.0

0%

80
.0

0%

90
.0

0%

20
02

/0
3

20
03

/0
4

20
04

/5
20

05
/6

20
06

/7

F
in
an
ci
al
 Y
ea
r 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 m

aj
or

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 1
3 

w
ee

ks
N

at
io

na
l T

ar
ge

t

   
 

  O
ur

 P
la

nn
in

g 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t h
av

e 
on

ce
 a

ga
in

 b
et

te
re

d 
th

e 
  

G
ov

er
nm

en
t t

ar
ge

ts
 fo

r 
th

e 
le

ng
th

 o
f t

im
e 

ta
ke

n 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 in
 a

ll 
th

re
e 

ar
ea

s 
– 

m
aj

or
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
, m

in
or

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

.  
 

  

Page 35



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 B
(i
) 

6
7
 

B
V
P
I 1
99
 -
 P
er
ce
n
ta
g
e 
o
f 
la
n
d
 a
n
d
 h
ig
h
w
ay
s 
w
it
h
 a
n
 u
n
ac
ce
p
ta
b
le
 le
ve
l o
f 
lit
te
r 
o
r 
d
et
ri
tu
s

0.
00

%

5.
00

%

10
.0

0%

15
.0

0%

20
.0

0%

25
.0

0%

30
.0

0%

35
.0

0%

20
03

/0
4

20
04

/5
20

05
/6

20
06

/7

F
in
an
ci
al
 Y
ea
r

Lo
ca

l S
tr

ee
t a

nd
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l C

le
an

lin
es

s 
– 

Li
tte

r 
&

 D
et

rit
us

M
ed

ia
n

B
es

t Q
ua

rt
ile

W
or

st
 Q

ua
rt

ile
 

   A
s 

th
e 

gr
ap

h 
cl

ea
rly

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

s 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l f
ar

 e
xc

ee
ds

 th
e 

na
tio

na
l b

es
t q

ua
rt

ile
 s

ta
tis

tic
. 

 R
ed

di
tc

h 
B

or
ou

gh
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 o
ne

 o
f o

nl
y 

th
re

e 
ot

he
r 

di
st

ric
t c

ou
nc

ils
 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
co

un
tr

y 
th

at
 c

an
 b

oa
st

 th
at

 it
s 

co
un

ci
l h

ou
si

ng
 is

 o
f t

he
 

ve
ry

 h
ig

he
st

 s
ta

nd
ar

d.
 Y

ea
r 

on
 y

ea
r 

si
nc

e 
20

00
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l h
as

 a
 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 s

co
re

 r
at

in
g 

be
lo

w
 3

%
. I

n 
th

e 
pa

st
 tw

o 
ye

ar
s 

th
is

 fi
gu

re
 

ha
s 

be
en

 r
ed

uc
ed

 to
 0

%
. I

t i
s 

ho
pe

d 
th

at
 th

is
 fi

gu
re

 c
an

 b
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 th

e 
ye

ar
s 

to
 c

om
e.

 
        

  In
 s

pi
te

 o
f a

 s
lig

ht
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 c
om

pa
ris

on
 to

 la
st

 y
ea

r 
th

e 
st

at
is

tic
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f l
an

d 
an

d 
hi

gh
w

ay
s 

w
ith

 a
n 

un
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 le
ve

l 
of

 li
tte

r 
or

 d
et

rit
us

 th
e 

fig
ur

e 
re

m
ai

ns
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 lo

w
er

 th
an

 th
e 

na
tio

na
l m

ed
ia

n.
 H

ow
ev

er
 d

es
pi

te
 c

om
pa

rin
g 

fa
vo

ur
ab

ly
 w

ith
 th

e 
na

tio
na

l i
nd

ic
at

or
s,

 s
ta

tis
tic

s 
fo

r 
20

06
/0

7 
ar

e 
m

ar
gi

na
lly

 h
ig

he
r 

th
an

 
th

e 
be

st
 q

ua
rt

ile
 in

di
ca

to
r 

fo
r 

20
05

/0
6.

 
           

B
V
P
I 1
84
a 
- 
T
h
e 
p
er
ce
n
ta
g
e 
o
f 
R
ed
d
it
ch
 C
o
u
n
ci
l h
o
m
es
 w
h
ic
h
 d
id
 n
o
t 
m
ee
t 
th
e 
D
ec
en
t 

H
o
m
es
 S
ta
n
d
ar
d
 a
t 
1s
t 
A
p
ri
l  

0.
00

%

10
.0

0%

20
.0

0%

30
.0

0%

40
.0

0%

50
.0

0%

60
.0

0%

20
00

/0
1

20
01

/0
2

20
02

/0
3

20
03

/0
4

20
04

/5
20

05
/6

20
06

/7

F
in
an
ci
al
 Y
ea
r

T
he

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 R

ed
di

tc
h 

C
ou

nc
il 

ho
m

es
 w

hi
ch

 w
er

e 
no

n-
de

ce
nt

 a
t 1

st
 A

pr
il 

W
or

st
 Q

ua
rt

ile
M

ed
ia

n
B

es
t Q

ua
rt

ile
 

Page 36



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 B
(i
) 

6
8
 

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 it
s 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

to
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 fr
om

 
w

hi
ch

 it
 p

ro
cu

re
s 

go
od

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 w

e 
re

m
ai

n 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 to
 

th
e 

pr
om

pt
 p

ay
m

en
t o

f i
nv

oi
ce

s.
   

A
lth

ou
gh

 w
e 

ha
ve

 fa
ile

d 
to

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t’s
 ta

rg
et

 o
f p

ay
in

g 
ev

er
y 

bi
ll 

w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 o

ur
 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
ts

 in
 2

00
6/

7 
im

pr
ov

ed
 fo

r 
th

e 
th

ird
 y

ea
r 

ru
nn

in
g 

w
ith

 
fig

ur
es

 e
xc

ee
di

ng
 th

e 
na

tio
na

l m
ed

ia
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

fir
st

 ti
m

e.
 

        

B
V
P
I 8
4 
- 
H
o
u
se
h
o
ld
 w
as
te
 c
o
lle
ct
ed
 p
er
 h
ea
d
 a
n
d
 B
V
P
I 8
2a
 -
 P
er
ce
n
ta
g
e 
o
f 
th
at
 w
as
te
 

re
cy
cl
ed
 

0.
00

%

5.
00

%

10
.0

0%

15
.0

0%

20
.0

0%

25
.0

0%

20
00

/0
1

20
01

/0
2

20
02

/0
3

20
03

/0
4

20
04

/5
20

05
/6

20
06

/0
7

F
in
an
ci
al
 Y
ea
r

BVPI 82a - Percentage of household 
waste recyled

38
5

39
0

39
5

40
0

40
5

41
0

41
5

42
0

42
5

43
0

BVPI 84 - Kilogrammes of household 
waste collected

H
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 p

er
 h

ea
d 

(B
V

P
I 8

4)
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 r
ec

yc
le

d 
(B

V
P

I 8
2a

)

 
   

B
V
P
I 8
 -
 P
er
ce
n
ta
g
e 
o
f 
in
vo
ic
es
 p
ai
d
 w
it
h
in
 3
0 
d
ay
s

80
.0

0%

82
.0

0%

84
.0

0%

86
.0

0%

88
.0

0%

90
.0

0%

92
.0

0%

94
.0

0%

96
.0

0%

98
.0

0%

20
02

/0
3

20
03

/0
4

20
04

/5
20

05
/6

20
06

/7

F
in
an
ci
al
 Y
ea
r

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 in

vo
ic

es
 fo

r 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 g

oo
ds

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

at
 w

er
e 

pa
id

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

W
or

st
 Q

ua
rt

ile

M
ed

ia
n

B
es

t Q
ua

rt
ile

 
    A

lo
ng

 w
ith

 b
ot

h 
ce

nt
ra

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t a

nd
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

co
un

tr
y 

w
e 

ar
e 

co
nc

er
ne

d 
at

 th
e 

ev
er

-in
cr

ea
si

ng
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

w
as

te
 g

en
er

at
ed

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
. W

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 s

tr
iv

in
g 

to
 

m
ee

t s
tr

ic
t G

ov
er

nm
en

t t
ar

ge
ts

 fo
r 

re
cy

cl
in

g.
   

 In
 2

00
6/

07
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
w

ei
gh

t o
f h

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
as

te
 h

as
 o

nc
e 

ag
ai

n 
fa

lle
n.

 T
hi

s 
is

 r
ef

le
ct

ed
 in

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f h

ou
se

ho
ld

 
w

as
te

 b
ei

ng
 r

ec
yc

le
d.

 B
ot

h 
fig

ur
es

 c
om

pa
re

 w
el

l n
at

io
na

lly
 w

ith
 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
w

as
te

 m
ar

gi
na

lly
 a

bo
ve

 th
e 

na
tio

na
l m

ed
ia

n 
an

d 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

ra
te

s 
ju

st
 b

es
t t

he
 n

at
io

na
l b

es
t q

ua
rt

ile
. A

s 
a 

co
un

ci
l w

e 
ar

e 
ke

en
 to

 c
on

tin
ue

 w
ith

 th
is

 p
os

iti
ve

 tr
en

d.
   

 
    

Page 37



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 B
(i
) 

6
9
 

  In
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

ye
ar

s 
th

er
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
 te

nd
en

cy
 fo

r 
th

e 
co

st
 o

f 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

w
as

te
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

. T
he

 fi
gu

re
s 

fo
r 

th
is

 
ye

ar
 a

pp
ea

r 
to

 s
ho

w
 a

 s
lig

ht
 y

et
 e

nc
ou

ra
gi

ng
 d

ec
re

as
e.

 T
he

 
co

st
s 

re
m

ai
n 

m
ar

gi
na

lly
 lo

w
er

 th
an

 th
e 

na
tio

na
l m

ed
ia

n 
qu

ar
til

e 
fo

r 
20

05
/0

6,
 h

ow
ev

er
 it

 is
 h

op
ed

 th
at

 w
ith

 a
 s

us
ta

in
ed

 
ef

fo
rt

 fu
rt

he
r 

re
du

ct
io

ns
 in

 c
os

t c
an

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 in
 2

00
7/

08
. 

          

B
V
P
I 1
0 
- 
P
er
ce
n
ta
g
e 
o
f 
n
o
n
-d
o
m
es
ti
c 
ra
te
s 
co
lle
ct
ed

95
.5

0%

96
.0

0%

96
.5

0%

97
.0

0%

97
.5

0%

98
.0

0%

98
.5

0%

99
.0

0%

99
.5

0%

10
0.

00
%

20
01

/0
2

20
02

/0
3

20
03

/0
4

20
04

/5
20

05
/6

20
06

/7

F
in
an
ci
al
 Y
ea
r

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 n

on
-d

om
es

tic
 r

at
es

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
W

or
st

 Q
ua

rt
ile

M
ed

ia
n

B
es

t Q
ua

rt
ile

 

B
V
P
I 8
6 
- 
C
o
st
 o
f 
H
o
u
se
h
o
ld
 W

as
te
 C
o
lle
ct
io
n

£0
.0

0

£1
0.

00

£2
0.

00

£3
0.

00

£4
0.

00

£5
0.

00

£6
0.

00

20
03

/0
4

20
04

/5
20

05
/6

20
06

/7

F
in
an
ci
al
 Y
ea
r

C
os

t o
f H

ou
se

ho
ld

 W
as

te
 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n

W
or

st
 Q

ua
rt

ile
M

ed
ia

n
B

es
t Q

ua
rt

ile

 
    R

ed
uc

in
g 

no
n-

pa
ym

en
t o

f N
on

-d
om

es
tic

 R
at

es
 is

 c
ru

ci
al

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 

m
ax

im
is

e 
th

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

fo
r 

de
liv

er
in

g 
im

pr
ov

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 th

e 
pe

op
le

 o
f R

ed
di

tc
h.

  I
n 

20
06

/7
 d

es
pi

te
 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 to

 b
e 

on
e 

of
 th

e 
to

p 
co

un
ci

ls
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 w
he

n 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 th

e 
na

tio
na

l b
es

t q
ua

rt
ile

 o
f 2

00
5/

06
, o

ur
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 h

as
 

de
cl

in
ed

 s
lig

ht
ly

 fr
om

 la
st

 y
ea

r.
 

         

Page 38



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 B
(i
) 

7
0
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

 T
he

 o
ve

ra
ll 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ha

s 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 im

pr
ov

ed
 s

in
ce

 2
00

3/
04

. T
ho

ug
h 

th
e 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
ar

e 
no

t a
s 

hi
gh

 a
s 

th
ey

 w
er

e 
in

 2
00

0/
01

 c
ur

re
nt

 
le

ve
ls

 n
ow

 e
xc

ee
d 

th
e 

na
tio

na
l w

or
st

 q
ua

rt
ile

 a
nd

 a
re

 ju
st

 
be

lo
w

 th
e 

na
tio

na
l m

ed
ia

n.
 It

 is
 h

op
ed

 w
ith

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y 

as
 r

ef
le

ct
ed

 
by

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

co
lla

te
d 

in
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t, 

th
at

 in
 th

e 
co

m
in

g 
ye

ar
s 

th
e 

le
ve

l o
f s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 im

pr
ov

e.
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
                    

B
V
P
I 3
 -
 P
er
ce
n
ta
g
e 
o
f 
ci
ti
ze
n
s 
sa
ti
sf
ie
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
o
ve
ra
ll 
se
rv
ic
e 
p
ro
vi
si
o
n

0.
00

%

10
.0

0%

20
.0

0%

30
.0

0%

40
.0

0%

50
.0

0%

60
.0

0%

70
.0

0%

80
.0

0%

20
00

/0
1

20
03

/0
4

20
06

/7

F
in
an
ci
al
 Y
ea
r

P
ec

en
ta

ge
 o

f c
iti

ze
ns

 s
at

is
fie

d 
w

ith
 th

e
 o

ve
ra

ll 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

W
or

st
 Q

ua
rt

ile
M

ed
ia

n
B

es
t Q

ua
rt

ile

            

Page 39



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 B
(i
) 

7
1
 

20
05
/0
6 
co
m
p
ar
is
o
n
 w
it
h
 o
th
er
 C
o
u
n
ci
ls
 

 F
or

 s
om

e 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 it
 is

 p
os

si
bl

e 
to

 c
om

pa
re

 o
ur

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
at

 o
f o

th
er

 C
ou

nc
ils

.  
C

ou
nc

ils
 a

re
 r

an
ke

d 
in

 a
 le

ag
ue

 ta
bl

e 
fo

r 
ea

ch
 in

di
ca

to
r 

an
d 

th
en

 
cl

as
si

fie
d 

by
 ‘q

ua
rt

ile
’. 

 T
he

 m
os

t r
ec

en
t n

at
io

na
l i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

th
at

 is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

is
 fo

r 
th

e 
20

05
/6

 fi
na

nc
ia

l y
ea

r 
an

d 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ta
bl

e 
su

m
m

ar
is

es
 h

ow
 w

e 
fa

re
d 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 o
f t

he
 3

9 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

co
m

pa
re

d.
 

 

W
o
rs
t 
25
%
 

W
o
rs
e 
th
an
 h
al
fw
ay
 

B
et
te
r 
th
an
 h
al
fw
ay

 
B
es
t 
25
%

 
B

V
-1

2 
W

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s 

lo
st

 d
ue

 to
 

si
ck

ne
ss

 a
bs

en
ce

 
B

V
-8

 
In

vo
ic

es
 p

ai
d 

pr
om

pt
ly

 
B

V
-2

b 
T

he
 d

ut
y 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

ra
ce

 e
qu

al
ity

 
B

V
-1

0 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 n
on

-d
om

es
tic

 
ra

te
s 

co
lle

ct
ed

 
B

V
-1

5 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 il
l h

ea
lth

 
re

tir
em

en
ts

 
B

V
-9

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 
co

lle
ct

ed
 

B
V

-1
1b

 
B

la
ck

 a
nd

 m
in

or
ity

 e
th

ni
c 

pe
op

le
 in

 
se

ni
or

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

B
V

-
11

a 
W

om
en

 in
 s

en
io

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 

B
v-

16
a 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
ity

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

w
ith

 
a 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 

B
V

-6
6a

 
P

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 r
en

t c
ol

le
ct

ed
 

B
V

-7
9a

 
A

cc
ur

ac
y 

of
 H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 C

ou
nc

il 
T

ax
 

B
en

ef
it 

C
la

im
s 

B
V

-1
4 

E
ar

ly
 r

et
ire

m
en

ts
 (

ex
cl

ud
in

g 
ill

 
he

al
th

) 

B
V

-8
2a

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 

w
as

te
 r

ec
yc

le
d 

B
V

-7
8a

 
S

pe
ed

 o
f  

pr
oc

es
si

ng
 n

ew
 H

ou
si

ng
 

an
d 

C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 b
en

ef
it 

cl
ai

m
s 

B
V

-1
66

 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 c
he

ck
lis

t o
f 

be
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
B

V
-6

3 
E

ne
rg

y 
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 o
f l

oc
al

 
au

th
or

ity
 o

w
ne

d 
dw

el
lin

gs
 

B
V

-9
1 

K
er

bs
id

e 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

of
 

re
cy

cl
ab

le
s 

B
V

-8
4 

W
ei

gh
t o

f h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 
co

lle
ct

ed
 p

er
 h

ea
d 

B
V

-1
70

c 
T

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 p
up

ils
 v

is
iti

ng
 

m
us

eu
m

s 
an

d 
ga

lle
rie

s 
in

 o
rg

an
is

ed
 

sc
ho

ol
 g

ro
up

s 

B
V

-
78

b 
S

pe
ed

 o
f p

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
ch

an
ge

s 
of

 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s 

fo
r 

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 
C

ou
nc

il 
T

ax
 B

en
ef

it 
B

V
-1

09
c 

O
th

er
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 8
 w

ee
ks

 
B

V
-1

06
 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 n

ew
 h

om
es

 b
ui

lt 
on

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
la

nd
 

B
V

-1
83

a 
Le

ng
th

 o
f s

ta
y 

fo
r 

ho
m

el
es

s 
pe

op
le

 in
 

be
d 

an
d 

br
ea

kf
as

t a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

B
V

-
10

9b
 

M
in

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 8

 w
ee

ks
 

B
V

-1
57

 
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 ty
pe

s 
of

 in
te

ra
ct

io
ns

 th
at

 a
re

 
en

ab
le

d 
fo

r 
el

ec
tr

on
ic

 
de

liv
er

y 

B
V

-
10

9a
 

M
aj

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 1

3 
w

ee
ks

 
B

V
-2

03
 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

ch
an

ge
 in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 fa

m
ili

es
 p

la
ce

d 
in

 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

 
co

m
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 y
ea

r 

B
V

-
18

4a
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 L

A
 H

om
es

 w
hi

ch
 

w
er

e 
no

n-
de

ce
nt

 a
t 1

st
 A

pr
il 

20
04

 

B
V

-
12

7b
 

R
ob

be
rie

s 
pe

r 
1,

00
0 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
B

V
-

19
9 

Lo
ca

l S
tr

ee
t a

nd
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

C
le

an
lin

es
s 

– 
Li

tte
r 

&
 D

et
rit

us
 

B
V

-
17

0a
 

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 v

is
its

 to
/u

sa
ge

s 
of

 
m

us
eu

m
s 

pe
r 

10
00

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

B
V

-
20

2 
T

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

sl
ee

pi
ng

 
ro

ug
h 

on
 a

 s
in

gl
e 

ni
gh

t w
ith

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f t
he

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 

B
V

-
17

0b
 

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 th

os
e 

m
us

eu
m

 
vi

si
ts

 th
at

 w
er

e 
in

 p
er

so
n 

pe
r 

10
00

 
po

pu
la

tio
n.

 

B
V

-
20

4 
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 a
pp

ea
ls

 
al

lo
w

ed
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
's

 
de

ci
si

on
 to

 r
ef

us
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

B
V

-
18

3b
 

Le
ng

th
 o

f s
ta

y 
fo

r 
ho

m
el

es
s 

pe
op

le
 

in
 h

os
te

l a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

B
V

-
20

5 
T

he
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y'

s 
sc

or
e 

ag
ai

ns
t a

 'q
ua

lit
y 

of
 p

la
nn

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

' c
he

ck
lis

t 
B

V
 3

 
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 c
iti

ze
ns

 s
at

is
fie

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
 o

ve
ra

ll 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

 

B
V

-
21

9b
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

s 
in

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
w

ith
 

an
 u

p 
to

 d
at

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l  

 

B
V

86
 

C
os

t o
f H

ou
se

ho
ld

 W
as

te
 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

      
 

 

Page 40



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 B
(i
) 

7
2
 

 

Page 41



Page 42



 72 

Appendix B(ii) 
 

Customer Satisfaction Performance Indicators  2003  2006  
 

Change 

Planning  
 

   

BV 111 
The % of applicants satisfied with the service received 
 

65 68 +3% 

Benefits  
 

   

BV 80 
Overall Satisfaction with the Benefit service 
 

79 83* +4% 

General  
 

   

BV 3 
The % of citizens satisfied with the overall service provided 
by their local authority 
 

48 54 +6% 

BV 4 
The % of complainants satisfied with the handling of their 
complaint 
 

25 35 +10% 

BV 89 
The % of people satisfied with the cleanliness standard in 
their area 
 

57 72 +15% 

BV 90a 
The % of people satisfied with household waste collection 
 

86 87 +1% 

BV 90b 
The % of people satisfied with waste recycling facilities 
 

77 79 +2% 

BV 119a 
The % of residents satisfied with sports and leisure facilities 
 

53 56 +3% 

BV 119d 
The % of residents satisfied with arts activities and venues 
 

58 53 -5% 

BV 119e 
The % of residents satisfied with parks and open spaces 
 

75 78 +3% 

Housing  
 

 
 

  

BV 74a 
Satisfaction of tenants of council housing with the overall 
service provided by their landlord 
 

64 77 +13% 

Page 43



 73 

BV 75a 
Satisfaction of tenants of council housing with opportunities 
for participation in management and decision making in 
relation to housing services provided by their landlord 

50 62 +12% 

BV 3 – The % of citizens satisfied with the overall service provided by their local 
authority 
 

54 53.2

58

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

BVPI 3

A
ct
u
al
 P
er
ce
n
ta
g
e 
(%
)

BVPI Redditch Mean Average Top Quartile 2nd Quartile 
 
BV 4 – The % of complainants satisfied with the handling of their complaint 
 

35 33.8
37

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

BVPI 4

A
ct
u
al
 P
er
ce
n
ta
g
e 
(%
)

BVPI Redditch Mean Average Top Quartile 2nd Quartile 
 

        
 
 
 
 

Page 44



 74 

 
 
 
 
BV 89 – The % of people satisfied with the cleanliness standard in their area 
 

72

67.4

73

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

BVPI 89

A
ct
u
al
 P
er
ce
n
ta
g
e 
(%
)

BVPI Redditch Mean Average Top Quartile  
 2nd Quartile 
 
 
BV 90A – The % of people satisfied with household waste collection 
 

87

78.9

85

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

BVPI 90A

A
ct
u
al
 P
er
ce
n
ta
g
e 
(%
)

BVPI Redditch Mean Average Top Quartile  
 Top Quartile 
 
 

Page 45



 75 

 
 
 
 
BV 90B – The % of people satisfied with waste recycling facilities  
 

79

70

75

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

BVPI 90B

A
ct
u
al
 P
er
ce
n
ta
g
e 
(%
)

BVPI Redditch Mean Average Top Quartile
 

 Top Quartile 
  
 
BV 119A – The % of residents satisfied with sports and leisure facilities 
 

56
57.9

63

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

BVPI 119A

A
ct
u
al
 P
er
ce
n
ta
g
e 
(%
)

BVPI Redditch Mean Average Top Quartile
 

 1st Quartile
  

Page 46



 76 

 
 
 
 
BV 119B – The % of residents satisfied with libraries 
 

77
73.5

77

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

BVPI 119B

A
ct
u
al
 P
er
ce
n
ta
g
e 
(%
)

BVPI Redditch Mean Average Top Quartile
 

 Top Quartile 
 
BV 119C – The % of residents satisfied with museums and galleries 
 

31

40.9

51

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

BVPI 119C

A
ct
u
al
 P
er
ce
n
ta
g
e 
(%
)

BVPI Redditch Mean Average Top Quartile
 

 1st Quartile
  

Page 47



 77 

 
 
 
 
BV 119D – The % of residents satisfied with arts activities and venues 
 

53

41.4

53

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

BVPI 119D

A
ct
u
al
 P
er
ce
n
ta
g
e 
(%
)

BVPI Redditch Mean Average Top Quartile
 

 Top Quartile 
 
 
BV 119E – The % of residents satisfied with parks and open spaces 
 

78

72.9

78

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

BVPI 119E

A
ct
u
al
 P
er
ce
n
ta
g
e 
(%
)

BVPI Redditch Mean Average Top Quartile
 

 Top Quartile 

Page 48



 

 7
8

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C
 

 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 

 W
e 
ha
ve
 p
re
vi
ou
sl
y 
in
cl
ud
ed
 a
 b
rie
f s
ta
te
m
en
t o
n 
co
nt
ra
ct
s 
to
 c
on
fir
m
 th
at
 a
ll 
in
di
vi
du
al
 c
on
tr
ac
ts
 a
w
ar
de
d 
du
rin
g 
th
e 
pa
st
 y
ea
r 
w
hi
ch
 in
vo
lv
ed
 

a 
tr
an
sf
er
 o
f s
ta
ff 
co
m
pl
ie
d,
 w
he
re
 a
pp
lic
ab
le
, w
ith
 th
e 
re
qu
ire
m
en
ts
 in
 th
e 
C
od
e 
of
 P
ra
ct
ic
e 
on
 W
or
kf
or
ce
 M
at
te
rs
 in
 L
oc
al
 A
ut
ho
rit
y 
S
er
vi
ce
 

C
on
tr
ac
ts
.  
 

 W
e 
di
d 
no
t a
w
ar
d 
an
y 
su
ch
 c
on
tr
ac
ts
 d
ur
in
g 
20
06
/7
, s
o 
no
 s
ta
te
m
en
t i
s 
in
cl
ud
ed
. 

 

Page 49



Page 50



 
79

  C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
E
 A
N
D
 P
E
R
F
O
R
M
A
N
C
E
 P
L
A
N
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
 :
 2
00
7 
- 
20
10
 

 

 
O
B
JE
C
T
IV
E
 

L
E
A
D
 

D
ir
ec
to
r 

(H
o
fS
) 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 

T
A
R
G
E
T
 

M
IL
E
S
T
O
N
E
S
 

1.
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 S
A
F
E
T
Y
  

1.
1 

T
o
 r
ed
u
ce
 c
ri
m
e.
 

 
 

 
 

 

a.
 

T
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

C
D

R
P

 T
as

ki
ng

 to
 h

av
e 

a 
di

re
ct

 a
nd

 c
on

ce
rt

ed
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

cr
im

in
al

, a
nt

i-s
oc

ia
l a

nd
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l i
ss

ue
s.

 
 

S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

£2
0,

00
0 

ha
s 

be
en

 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

R
ed

di
tc

h 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
S

af
et

y 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

(R
C

S
P

) 
fo

r 
ta

rg
et

ed
 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

. 
 D

at
a 

A
na

ly
st

 fu
nd

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

R
C

S
P

. 
 £1

00
,0

00
 p

um
p 

pr
im

in
g 

m
on

ey
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

ne
xt

 3
 y

ea
rs

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 

in
iti

at
iv

es
. 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

7 
   M

ar
ch

 2
00

8 

C
om

pl
et

e 
a 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 
pu

rp
os

e,
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
an

d 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

of
 R

C
S

P
 T

as
ki

ng
 

 E
va

lu
at

io
n 

of
 C

D
R

P
 T

as
ki

ng
 

b.
 

T
o 

ca
rr

y 
ou

t a
n 

op
tio

ns
 a

pp
ra

is
al

 
on

 m
er

gi
ng

 th
e 

R
ed

di
tc

h 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

. 

S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 to

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 b

y 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
G

ro
up

/e
ac

h 
D

is
tr

ic
t. 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

7 
  A

pr
il 

20
09

 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f B

us
in

es
s 

C
as

e 
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

(A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

to
 b

e 
se

cu
re

d 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 
D

is
tr

ic
t C

ou
nc

ils
/C

D
R

P
s)

 

Page 51



 
80

c.
 

T
o 

m
ai

ns
tr

ea
m

 S
ec

tio
n 

17
 o

f t
he

 
C

rim
e 

an
d 

D
is

or
de

r 
A

ct
 1

99
8.

 
S

 H
an

le
y 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
W

ith
in

 e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

dg
et

s 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

8 
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

9 

D
ev

el
op

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
re

so
ur

ce
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.
 

d.
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

P
ro

je
ct

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 c
rim

e 
re

du
ct

io
n 

ta
rg

et
s.

 
  

(i)
 

H
om

e 
S

ec
ur

ity
 P

ro
je

ct
 

   
(ii

) 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
ay

ba
ck

 S
er

vi
ce

 
P

la
ce

m
en

ts
 

  
(ii

i) 
W

oo
dr

ow
 D

is
tr

ic
t C

en
tr

e 
P

ro
je

ct
 

    S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

 S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

 S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

    £2
,0

00
 T

ar
ge

t 
H

ar
de

ni
ng

.  
 

£2
,0

00
 P

rin
tin

g 
bu

dg
et

 
P

ro
ba

tio
n 

S
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 
R

B
C

 S
up

er
vi

si
on

 
 £5

5,
00

0 
m

ai
ns

tr
ea

m
 

ca
pi

ta
l. 

 £
3,

00
0 

C
D

R
P

 
fu

nd
in

g.
 

    S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
07

 
  Ju

ly
 2

00
7 

  O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

7 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
to

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
07

 

    La
un

ch
 

  P
ro

m
ot

io
n 

  S
ec

ur
ity

 u
pg

ra
de

s 
O

th
er

 u
pg

ra
de

s 

1.
2 

T
o
 k
ee
p
 lo
ca
l c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
fe
el
in
g
 s
af
e 

 
 

 
 

 

a.
 

T
o 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 fo
r 

re
co

rd
in

g 
an

d 
ta

ki
ng

 a
ct

io
n 

ag
ai

ns
t 

ra
ci

al
 a

nd
 a

ll 
fo

rm
s 

of
 h

ar
as

sm
en

t. 

S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
))

 
F

un
di

ng
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

fo
r 

co
nt

in
uo

us
 p

ro
m

ot
io

n 
of

 
sc

he
m

e,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 IT
. 

 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

07
 

  D
ec

em
be

r 
20

08
 

T
en

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
ce

nt
re

s 
to

 b
e 

la
un

ch
ed

. 
 E

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 fu
ll 

ye
ar

 o
f 

op
er

at
io

n.
 

b.
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
st

ra
te

gy
 

fo
r 

th
e 

R
ed

di
tc

h 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

. 

S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

£8
,0

00
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

by
 th

e 
R

C
S

P
. 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
07

 
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 s
tr

at
eg

y 

1.
3 

T
o
 p
ro
vi
d
e 
cl
ea
n
er
, g
re
en
er
 p
u
b
lic
 

sp
ac
es
. 

 

 
 

 
 

a.
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f C

ou
nt

y 
w

id
e 

G
ra

ffi
ti 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

. 
S

 H
an

le
y 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 

W
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s.
 

Ju
ly

 2
00

7 
  D

ec
em

be
r 

20
07

 

P
ro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 r

ep
or

t a
nd

 d
ra

ft 
se

rv
ic

e 
st

an
da

rd
s.

 
 A

do
pt

io
n.

 

Page 52



 
81

 
b.

 
D

ev
el

op
 m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
to

 m
an

ag
e 

th
e 

S
m

al
l A

re
a 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t F
un

d.
 

  
*N

ot
e:

 R
ef

er
 to

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t &

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 

S
ec

tio
n 

- 
C

le
an

er
 G

re
en

er
 P

ub
lic

 S
pa

ce
s 

S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

£5
0,

00
0 

pe
r 

an
nu

m
. 

Ju
ne

 2
00

7 
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

7 

R
ef

er
ra

l s
ys

te
m

s.
 

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n.

 

1.
4 

B
u
ild
 r
es
p
ec
t 
in
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
an
d
 

re
d
u
ce
 a
n
ti
-s
o
ci
al
 b
eh
av
io
u
r:
 

 

 
 

 
 

a.
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 R

es
pe

ct
 A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

to
 

en
co

m
pa

ss
: 

• 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

&
 Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

• 
B

eh
av

io
ur

 &
 A

tte
nd

an
ce

s 
at

 
S

ch
oo

l 
• 

S
up

po
rt

in
g 

fa
m

ili
es

 
• 

S
tr

en
gt

he
ni

ng
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 

• 
E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t a

nd
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 ju

st
ic

e 

S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 to

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d/
co

st
ed

. 
A

ug
us

t 2
00

7 
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

8 
  A

ug
us

t 2
00

8 
 A

pr
il 

20
09

 

Id
en

tif
y 

P
ro

je
ct

 T
ea

m
. 

 D
ra

ft 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n/
co

st
ed

 r
es

ou
rc

es
. 

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n.

 
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n.

 

b.
 

Im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 R
es

pe
ct

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
fo

r 
H

ou
si

ng
 M

an
ag

em
en

t. 
 

J 
S

m
ith

/ 
S

 H
an

le
y 

(H
ea

d 
of

)/
 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 

T
o 

be
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 

A
ug

us
t 2

00
7.

 
M

ay
 2

00
7 

A
ug

us
t 2

00
7 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

7 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

08
 

A
pr

il 
20

08
 

D
es

k 
T

op
 A

ud
it.

 
D

ra
ft 

re
po

rt
/a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
. 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n.

 
R

ep
or

t t
o 

M
em

be
rs

. 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n.

 
c.

 
D

el
iv

er
 th

e 
R

es
pe

ct
 a

nd
 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 S

ch
oo

ls
 P

ro
je

ct
. 

S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

£2
00

 in
 c

er
tif

ic
at

es
. 

20
07

/0
8 

E
ng

ag
e 

w
ith

 s
ix

 s
ch

oo
ls

 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

. 

Page 53



 
82

 

O
B
JE
C
T
IV
E
 

L
E
A
D
 

D
ir
ec
to
r 

(H
o
fS
) 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 

T
A
R
G
E
T
 

M
IL
E
S
T
O
N
E
S
 

2.
 
E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 &
 T
R
A
N
S
P
O
R
T
 

2.
1 

T
o
 e
n
ab
le
 im
p
ro
ve
m
en
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e 
b
u
ilt
 

en
vi
ro
n
m
en
t 
to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 h
ig
h
 q
u
al
it
y 

d
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t 
in
 t
h
e 
co
n
te
xt
 o
f 
p
o
te
n
ti
al
 

g
ro
w
th
: 

 

 
 

 
 

a.
 

R
es

po
nd

 to
 th

e 
W

es
t M

id
la

nd
s 

R
eg

io
na

l S
pa

tia
l S

tr
at

eg
y.

 
S

 H
an

le
y 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
P

la
nn

in
g 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
st

af
f 

an
d 

P
la

nn
in

g 
C

on
su

lta
nt

s 
(w

he
re

 
re

qu
ire

d)
. 

M
ay

 2
00

7 
C

om
m

en
ce

 J
oi

nt
 S

tu
dy

 to
 

ex
am

in
e 

fu
tu

re
 g

ro
w

th
 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

. 

b.
 

R
es

po
nd

 to
 W

es
t M

id
la

nd
s 

R
eg

io
na

l S
pa

tia
l S

tr
at

eg
y 

P
ha

se
 3

 
R

ev
is

io
n.

 
 

S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

P
la

nn
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

st
af

f. 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

8 
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
8 

Is
su

e 
an

d 
O

pt
io

ns
. 

 P
re

fe
rr

ed
 O

pt
io

n 
pu

bl
is

he
d.

 

c.
 

P
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

of
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 (

D
P

D
s)

. 
S

 H
an

le
y 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
P

la
nn

in
g 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
st

af
f. 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
07

 
to

 M
ay

 2
00

8.
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

08
 

Ju
ne

 2
00

9 

P
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

of
 is

su
es

 a
nd

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
op

tio
ns

. 
P

ub
lic

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n.
 

P
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

of
 s

ub
m

is
si

on
 

D
P

D
. 

d.
 

P
re

pa
re

 a
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 P
la

nn
in

g 
D

oc
um

en
ts

 (
S

P
D

s)
. 

 

S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

P
la

nn
in

g 
S

ta
ff/

 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l s

ta
ff/

 
H

ou
si

ng
 s

ta
ff.

 
U

rb
an

 d
es

ig
n 

in
pu

t. 

20
07

/0
8 

E
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

9 
ag

re
ed

 
S

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 P
la

nn
in

g 
D

oc
um

en
ts

 a
re

 li
st

ed
 in

 fu
ll 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t &
 

P
la

nn
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

w
ith

 a
 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

tim
et

ab
le

 a
gr

ee
d 

w
ith

 C
ou

nc
il/

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

O
ffi

ce
. 

A
nt

ic
ip

at
e 

7 
of

 th
e 

9 
S

P
D

s 
to

 
be

 a
do

pt
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

20
07

. 

Page 54



 
83

 
e.

 
R

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
C

on
ta

m
in

at
ed

 L
an

d 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

w
ith

 id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 n
ew

 
pr

io
rit

ie
s.

 
 

S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

C
ap

ita
l b

id
 o

ut
co

m
e 

aw
ai

te
d.

 
D

ep
en

de
nt

 o
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

 

P
rio

rit
y 

si
te

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 

2.
2 

T
o
 a
ch
ie
ve
 a
 s
u
st
ai
n
ab
le
 le
ve
l o
f 

h
o
u
se
h
o
ld
 w
as
te
. 

 

 
 

 
 

a.
 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 im

pr
ov

ed
 w

as
te

 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 “

ha
rd

 to
 r

ea
ch

 
pr

op
er

tie
s”

. 

S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

 

O
ffi

ce
r 

tim
e 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s/
 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
. 

R
ev

en
ue

 a
nd

 c
ap

ita
l 

bu
dg

et
s 

in
 p

la
ce

.  
A

dd
iti

on
al

 b
id

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

P
ro

je
ct

 O
ffi

ce
r 

to
 d

el
iv

er
. 

A
pr

il 
20

08
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
 

b.
 

A
ch

ie
ve

 th
e 

Jo
in

t M
un

ic
ip

al
 W

as
te

 
T

ar
ge

t o
f 2

4%
. 

S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 

O
ffi

ce
r 

tim
e 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s/
 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
. 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
8 

24
%

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 
ta

rg
et

. 

c.
 

P
re

se
nt

 o
ut

co
m

es
 o

f m
ov

e 
to

 
A

lte
rn

at
e 

W
ee

kl
y 

C
ol

le
ct

io
ns

. 
S

 H
an

le
y 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
O

ffi
ce

r 
tim

e 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l S

er
vi

ce
s/

 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

. 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

08
 

R
ep

or
t t

o 
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 

de
ta

ile
d 

ou
tc

om
es

. 
   

d.
 

T
o 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
ils

 in
 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 to

 u
pd

at
e 

th
e 

Jo
in

t 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 W
as

te
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

in
ve

st
ig

at
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r 

sh
ar

ed
 

se
rv

ic
es

/ p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

ki
ng

. 

S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

 

O
ffi

ce
r 

tim
e.

 
Le

ga
l a

nd
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 
fe

es
 (

if 
re

qu
ire

d)
. 

M
ay

 2
00

7 
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
07

 

N
at

io
na

l W
as

te
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

pu
bl

is
he

d.
 

U
pd

at
e 

re
po

rt
 to

 M
em

be
rs

. 

2.
3 

P
ro
vi
d
e 
C
le
an
er
 G
re
en
 P
u
b
lic
 S
p
ac
es
. 

 
 

 
 

 
a.

 
P

ub
lis

h 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
t s

er
vi

ce
 

st
an

da
rd

s 
fo

r 
S

tr
ee

t C
le

an
si

ng
 a

nd
 

La
nd

sc
ap

in
g.

 

S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

M
em

be
rs

 W
or

ki
ng

 
G

ro
up

/ F
oc

us
 G

ro
up

/ 
O

ffi
ce

r 
tim

e.
 

A
ug

us
t 2

00
7 

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

7 

F
oc

us
 G

ro
up

s.
 

 A
do

pt
io

n.
 

Page 55



 
84

  
b.

 
T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. 
S

 H
an

le
y 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
C

ap
ita

l f
un

di
ng

/P
ro

je
ct

 
T

ea
m

/E
xt

er
na

l 
C

on
su

lta
nt

s.
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

7 
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

08
 

C
on

fir
m

at
io

n 
of

 H
LF

B
id

. 
 S

ub
je

ct
 to

 b
id

 s
uc

ce
ss

 
fin

al
is

e 
pr

oj
ec

t p
la

n.
 

 
c.

 
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
 d

el
iv

er
y.

 
S

 H
an

le
y 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
C

ap
ita

l m
on

ie
s.

  P
ro

je
ct

 
T

ea
m

.  
C

D
R

P
 T

as
ki

ng
 

G
ro

up
. 

A
pr

il 
20

08
 

C
om

pl
et

e 
an

nu
al

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

(4
0 

si
te

s)
. 

 
d.

 
E

st
at

e 
E

nh
an

ce
m

en
t P

ro
je

ct
. 

S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

P
ro

je
ct

 T
ea

m
.  

C
ap

ita
l 

re
so

ur
ce

s.
  C

om
m

un
ity

 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t. 

Ju
ly

 2
00

7 
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
07

 
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

07
 

 A
pr

il 
20

08
 

  D
ec

em
be

r 
20

07
 

W
oo

dr
ow

 P
ro

je
ct

. 
 W

in
ya

te
s 

P
ro

je
ct

. 
 Lo

dg
e 

P
ar

k 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n.
 

 C
om

m
en

ce
 L

od
ge

 P
ar

k 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
 C

om
pl

et
e 

si
te

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 
C

hu
rc

h 
H

ill
 a

nd
 

M
at

ch
bo

ro
ug

h.
 

 
e.

 
E

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 C
le

an
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

an
d 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

A
ct

. 

 
 

Ju
ne

 2
00

7 
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

08
 

P
ub

lic
ity

 P
la

n.
 

 R
ep

or
t t

o 
M

em
be

rs
. 

 
f. 

Im
pl

em
en

t F
lo

od
 A

lle
vi

at
io

n 
S

ch
em

e 
– 

B
at

ch
le

y 
B

ro
ok

 
J 

S
m

ith
 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

10
6 

m
on

ie
s 

W
or

ks
 c

om
pl

et
e 

-M
ar

ch
 2

00
8 

S
ur

ve
y 

an
d 

de
si

gn
 c

om
pl

et
e 

- 
O

ct
 2

00
7 

2.
4 

T
o
 d
ev
el
o
p
 p
la
n
s 
an
d
 s
tr
at
eg
ie
s 
to
 

im
p
ro
ve
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 s
u
st
ai
n
ab
ili
ty
 

p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

 

 
 

 
 

a.
 

R
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l c

ar
bo

n 
fo

ot
pr

in
t 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
(L

A
A

).
 

S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

£6
,0

00
 b

ud
ge

t. 
 S

ta
ff 

re
so

ur
ce

s.
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 
20

08
/0

9 
Im

pl
em

en
t a

n 
en

er
gy

 a
nd

 
ut

ili
ty

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 

b.
 

P
ro

du
ct

io
n 

an
d 

ad
op

tio
n 

of
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
. 

 

S
 H

an
le

y 
(G

 R
ev

an
s)

 
E

xt
er

na
l c

on
su

lta
nt

 
(r

es
ou

rc
es

 c
on

fir
m

ed
).

 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
7 

 
A

do
pt

io
n 

an
d 

la
un

ch
. 

c.
 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 R

ed
di

tc
h 

Lo
ca

l S
tr

at
eg

y 
S

 H
an

le
y 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
ro

je
ct

 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

8 
In

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

 r
ev

is
ed

 

Page 56



 
85

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

a 
ke

y 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

in
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
S

tr
at

eg
y.

 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
T

ea
m

. 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tr

at
eg

y.
 

2.
5 

T
o
 p
ro
vi
d
e 
a 
p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

tr
an
sp
o
rt
 n
et
w
o
rk
 t
h
at
 is
 a
cc
es
si
b
le
, 

re
lia
b
le
, e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
an
d
 a
ff
o
rd
ab
le
. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
a.

 
S

ec
ur

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

fo
r 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

 

S
 H

an
le

y 
 

C
ap

ita
l/R

ev
en

ue
 b

id
. 

Ju
ly

 2
00

7 
M

em
be

r 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 b

id
. 

 

b.
 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
th

e 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

of
 a

 
D

ia
l A

 R
id

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
af

te
r 

en
d 

of
 

W
iN

N
 fu

nd
in

g 
in

 A
pr

il 
20

08
. 

S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

S
ta

ff 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

 
A

ug
us

t 2
00

7 
Id

en
tif

y 
fu

nd
in

g 
sh

or
tfa

ll 
an

d 
fu

tu
re

 d
em

an
d/

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

an
d 

op
tio

ns
. 

c.
 

In
tr

od
uc

e 
S

m
ar

t C
ar

d 
bu

s 
pa

ss
es

 
in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 N
at

io
na

l 
C

on
ce

ss
io

na
ry

 F
ar

es
 S

ch
em

e.
 

S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 a

dm
in

 
re

so
ur

ce
.  

C
ap

ita
l 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
se

cu
re

d.
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
07

 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
7 

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

07
 

 A
pr

il 
20

08
 

T
ra

ns
fe

r 
da

ta
. 

C
os

t i
m

pl
ic

at
io

ns
/jo

in
t 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
n.

 
D

ev
el

op
 jo

in
t a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 
fo

r 
sy

st
em

 m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

Is
su

e 
ne

w
 b

us
 p

as
se

s.
 

d.
 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 m

on
ito

r 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
ta

xi
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

lic
en

si
ng

 b
y:

 
• 

P
la

nn
ed

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

• 
O

ng
oi

ng
 m

ed
ic

al
 c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

dr
ug

 te
st

in
g 

in
iti

at
iv

es
. 

S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

W
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s.
 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
8 

 D
at

es
 

no
t 

pu
bl

is
he

d.
 

A
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

tin
g 

to
 L

ic
en

si
ng

 
C

om
m

itt
ee

. 
D

at
es

 to
 b

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
in

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 

 

Page 57



 
86

 
O
B
JE
C
T
IV
E
 

L
E
A
D
 

D
ir
ec
to
r 

(H
o
fS
) 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 

T
A
R
G
E
T
 

M
IL
E
S
T
O
N
E
S
 

3.
 
H
O
U
S
IN
G
  

3.
1 

W
e 

w
ill
 
im
p
ro
ve
 
co
n
d
it
io
n
s 

in
 
th
e 

P
ri
va
te
 S
ec
to
r 
b
y:
 

 

 
 

 
 

a.
 

C
ar

ry
 o

ut
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t a

ct
iv

ity
 

ag
ai

ns
t l

an
dl

or
ds

 a
nd

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
er

s 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
ho

us
in

g 
co

nd
iti

on
s.

 

S
 H

an
le

y 
 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
W

ith
in

 e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

dg
et

s.
 

A
s 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
Is

su
e 

of
 n

ot
ic

es
/in

fo
rm

al
/ 

fo
rm

al
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t. 

b.
 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
lic

en
se

 a
s 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
H

ou
se

s 
in

 M
ul

tip
le

 
O

cc
up

at
io

n.
 

 

S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

D
ec

en
t H

om
es

 G
ra

nt
. 

20
07

/0
8 

O
ng

oi
ng

 a
nn

ua
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 li
ce

ns
in

g.
 

c.
 

Lo
an

 a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

fo
r 

en
er

gy
 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 H

ou
se

s 
in

 
M

ul
tip

le
 O

cc
up

at
io

n.
 

S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

D
ec

en
t H

om
es

 G
ra

nt
. 

20
07

/0
8 

P
ay

m
en

t o
f l

oa
n 

on
 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 e

ne
rg

y 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

m
ea

su
re

s.
 

d.
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
n 

E
m

pt
y 

H
om

es
 S

tr
at

eg
y.

 
J 

S
m

ith
 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
W

ith
in

 e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

dg
et

s.
 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

07
 

• 
Id

en
tif

y 
em

pt
y 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
20

07
. 

• 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 C
ou

nt
y/

di
st

ric
t 

co
lle

ag
ue

s 
du

rin
g 

20
07

/0
8 

 
c.

 
T

ar
ge

t r
es

ou
rc

es
 to

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 in

 n
on

 d
ec

en
t d

w
el

lin
gs

. 
J 

S
m

ith
 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t G
ra

nt
 

£2
56

,0
00

 fo
r 

20
06

/0
7.

 
A

w
ai

tin
g 

G
ra

nt
 fo

r 
20

07
/0

8.
 

A
ch

ie
ve

 ta
rg

et
 

of
 8

0%
 o

f 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 in
 

de
ce

nt
 

dw
el

lin
gs

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
9.

 

• 
P

ro
m

ot
io

n 
of

 s
ch

em
e 

du
rin

g 
20

06
-2

00
8 

• 
Id

en
tif

y 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 in
 n

on
 d

ec
en

t 
dw

el
lin

gs
 d

ur
in

g 
20

06
 -

20
08

. 

Page 58



 
87

 3.
2 

W
e 
w
ill
 d
el
iv
er
 a
 s
u
st
ai
n
ab
le
 c
u
st
o
m
er
 

fo
cu
se
d
 H
o
u
si
n
g
 S
er
vi
ce
 b
y:
 

 
 

 
 

a.
 

D
el

iv
er

in
g 

th
e 

1s
t y

ea
r 

of
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 fi
ve

 y
ea

r 
C

ap
ita

l I
nv

es
tm

en
t 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

in
 th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
st

oc
k 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

“R
ed

di
tc

h 
Q

ua
lit

y 
S

ta
nd

ar
d”

. 

J 
S

m
ith

  
(H

ea
d 

of
))

 
F

un
de

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
C

ap
ita

l P
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 
A

pp
oi

nt
in

g 
P

ar
tn

er
in

g 
C

on
tr

ac
to

rs
 to

 
de

liv
er

 D
ec

en
t 

H
om

es
 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

• 
T

he
 M

ob
ili

sa
tio

n 
of

 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 P
ar

tn
er

in
g 

C
on

tr
ac

to
rs

 fo
r 

th
e 

F
iv

e 
ye

ar
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
• 

31
st
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

8 
– 

fir
st

 
ye

ar
 o

f t
he

 5
 y

ea
r 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

co
m

pl
et

e.
 

b.
 

Im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 o

ur
 s

to
ck

 b
y 

m
at

ch
in

g 
su

pp
ly

 to
 r

ef
le

ct
 lo

ca
l 

de
m

an
d.

 

J 
S

m
ith

  
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

£4
1,

00
0 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
C

ap
ita

l P
ro

gr
am

m
e,

 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

fu
nd

in
g 

ag
re

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 

R
ev

en
ue

 A
cc

ou
nt

. 

H
ou

si
ng

 
A

dv
ic

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
op

er
at

io
na

l 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
6.

 
 

• 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

P
ol

ic
y 

ad
op

te
d 

Ju
ly

 2
00

7 
• 

IT
 s

ys
te

m
 s

of
tw

ar
e 

an
d 

 
pu

bl
ic

 a
cc

es
s 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
07

. 
• 

C
ho

ic
e 

B
as

ed
 L

et
tin

gs
 

du
e 

to
 o

pe
n 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
07

. 
c.

 
A

ch
ie

ve
 to

p 
qu

ar
til

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 in

 
ke

y 
bu

si
ne

ss
 a

re
as

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
8.

 
J 

S
m

ith
 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
W

ith
in

 e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

dg
et

s.
 

V
oi

ds
, r

en
t 

ta
rg

et
s 

in
 to

p 
qu

ar
til

e 
by

 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

8.
 

• 
P

ro
je

ct
ed

 ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r 

20
07

 
m

et
 

• 
P

ro
je

ct
ed

 ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r 

20
08

 
m

et
 

d.
 

Im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 k
ey

 T
en

an
t 

P
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 

ch
oi

ce
 in

 th
e 

w
ay

 te
na

nt
s 

ca
n 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
e 

in
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e.

 

J 
S

m
ith

  
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

W
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

bu
dg

et
s.

 
P

ub
lis

he
d 

st
ra

te
gy

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

07
. 

• 
D

ra
ft 

st
ra

te
gy

 p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 
Ju

ly
 2

00
7 

• 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

fo
r 

T
en

an
t 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
– 

en
d 

20
08

. 

Page 59



 
88

 3.
3 

W
e 
w
ill
 m
ee
t 
af
fo
rd
ab
le
 H
o
u
si
n
g
 N
ee
d
s 

b
y:

 
 

  
 

 

a.
 

Im
pl

em
en

t C
as

h 
in

ce
nt

iv
e 

S
ch

em
e.

 
J 

S
m

ith
 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
£2

50
,0

00
 C

ap
ita

l r
ec

ei
pt

. 
12

 fa
m

ili
es

 
as

si
st

ed
 in

to
 

ho
m

e 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p 

by
 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
8.

 

S
ch

em
e 

la
un

ch
ed

 M
ay

 2
00

7.
 

A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 a
ss

es
se

d 
an

d 
gr

an
te

d 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

8.
 

3.
4 

W
e 
w
ill
 t
ac
kl
e 
h
o
m
el
es
sn
es
s 
an
d
 

p
ro
vi
d
e 
ad
vi
ce
 o
n
 h
o
u
si
n
g
 o
p
ti
o
n
s 
b
y:
 

 
 

 
 

a.
 

R
ev

ie
w

in
g 

w
ith

 k
ey

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
S

tr
at

eg
y.

 
J 

S
m

ith
 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
W

ith
in

 e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

dg
et

s.
 

C
ou

nt
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
fin

al
is

ed
 

A
ug

us
t 2

00
7.

 

• 
D

ra
ft 

C
ou

nt
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 
ea

ch
 D

is
tr

ic
ts

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

. 
b.

 
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
a 

ho
us

in
g 

ad
vi

ce
 

st
ra

te
gy

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 
ad

vi
so

ry
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

. 

J 
S

m
ith

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

 

W
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

bu
dg

et
s.

 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

ad
op

te
d 

20
08

 
 

• 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
du

rin
g 

20
07

  
• 

D
ra

ft 
st

ra
te

gy
 p

re
pa

re
d 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
08

 
c.

 
In

cr
ea

si
ng

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

ct
or

. 

J 
S

m
ith

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

W
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

bu
dg

et
s.

 
A

cc
re

di
ta

tio
n 

sc
he

m
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

A
pr

il 
20

08
. 

• 
In

cr
ea

se
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
of

 
th

e 
La

nd
lo

rd
s 

fo
ru

m
 b

y 
50

%
 b

y 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
07

 
• 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
La

nd
lo

rd
s 

F
or

um
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 r
an

ge
 

of
 a

dv
ic

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 L

an
dl

or
ds

 -
 

A
pr

il 
20

08
. 

• 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

La
nd

lo
rd

 A
cc

re
di

ta
tio

n 
S

ch
em

e 
A

pr
il 

20
08

 
d.

 
E

xp
an

di
ng

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
ho

m
el

es
s 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
ro

le
. 

J 
S

m
ith

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

£3
0,

00
0 

gr
an

t f
ro

m
 th

e 
D

C
LG

 (
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

de
pa

rt
m

en
t)

. 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 
fa

m
ili

es
 

pr
ev

en
te

d 
fr

om
 

be
co

m
in

g 
ho

m
el

es
s 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
8.

 

• 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 fr

om
 

th
e 

S
oc

ia
l O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 
S

cr
ut

in
y 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 o

n 
ho

m
el

es
s 

pr
ev

en
tio

n.
 

Page 60



 
89

 

O
B
JE
C
T
IV
E
 

L
E
A
D
 

D
ir
ec
to
r 

(H
o
fS
) 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 

T
A
R
G
E
T
 

M
IL
E
S
T
O
N
E
S
 

4.
 
L
E
IS
U
R
E
 

4.
1 

C
re
at
e 
an
d
 Im
p
ro
ve
 L
ei
su
re
, C
u
lt
u
re
 

an
d
 A
rt
s 
F
ac
ili
ti
es
 

 

 
 

 
 

a.
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 n

ew
 p

la
n 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 
ne

w
 s

w
im

m
in

g 
po

ol
 a

nd
 le

is
ur

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

P
 P

at
te

n 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

In
iti

al
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t c
os

ts
 

to
 b

e 
fo

un
d 

fr
om

 e
xi

st
in

g 
re

ve
nu

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

 

R
ep

or
t t

o 
C

ou
nc

il 
- 

S
um

m
er

 2
00

7 

O
pt

io
n 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l a
nd

 
fin

an
ci

al
 m

od
el

in
g 

b.
 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 b

ud
ge

t s
tr

at
eg

y 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t t
ra

nc
he

 1
 in

ve
st

ig
at

e 
th

e 
ou

ts
ou

rc
in

g 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
sp

or
ts

 
si

te
 p

ro
vi

si
on

. 

P
 P

at
te

n 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

In
iti

al
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t c
os

ts
 

to
 b

e 
fo

un
d 

fr
om

 e
xi

st
in

g 
re

ve
nu

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

 

R
ep

or
t t

o 
C

ou
nc

il 
- 

A
ut

um
n 

20
07

 

F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

E
le

ct
ed

 M
em

be
r 

de
ci

si
on

 o
n 

th
e 

w
ay

 fo
rw

ar
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

A
bb

ey
 S

ta
di

um
 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
c.

 
S

up
po

rt
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f c
om

m
er

ci
al

 
le

is
ur

e 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

T
ow

n 
C

en
tr

e.
 

P
 P

at
te

n 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

W
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s.
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 
• 

R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

T
ow

n 
C

en
tr

e 
S

tr
at

eg
y.

 
• 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
su

b 
gr

ou
p 

of
 

R
ed

di
tc

h 
T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 to
 e

xp
lo

re
 

fu
rt

he
r 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

. 
• 

P
ro

vi
de

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
an

d 
op

er
at

or
s.

 
d 

P
la

n 
en

ha
nc

em
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

B
M

X
 

T
ra

ck
. 

P
 P

at
te

n 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

N
ot

 k
no

w
n 

- 
w

ill
 r

eq
ui

re
 

ca
pi

ta
l b

id
. 

A
ut

um
n 

20
07

 
• 

In
iti

al
 in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

Ju
ne

 
20

06
. 

• 
P

ro
je

ct
 T

ea
m

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
A

ug
us

t 2
00

6.
 

• 
P

ro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

la
n 

an
d 

C
ap

ita
l B

id
s 

A
ut

um
n 

20
06

. 

Page 61



 
90

 4.
2 

In
cr
ea
se
 t
h
e 
n
u
m
b
er
 o
f 
p
eo
p
le
 a
n
d
 t
h
e 

fr
eq
u
en
cy
 
o
f 
p
ar
ti
ci
p
at
io
n
 
in
 
a 
w
id
er
 

ra
n
g
e 
o
f 
ac
ti
vi
ti
es
  

 

P
 P

at
te

n 
R

B
C

 r
ev

en
ue

 fu
nd

in
g 

pl
us

 p
ro

je
ct

 fu
nd

in
g 

vi
a 

pa
rt

ne
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

. 

 
 

a.
 

Im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 P
la

y 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

in
cl

ud
in

g:
 

 
• 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f l
oc

al
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
s 

• 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f '

ris
ki

er
' p

la
y 

• 
in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 p
la

y 
ra

ng
er

s 

P
 P

at
te

n 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

• 
G

ra
nt

 fu
nd

in
g 

to
 b

e 
se

cu
re

d 
• 

R
B

C
 c

ap
ita

l b
id

 

S
um

m
er

 2
00

9 
• 

de
vi

se
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

pl
an

 
• 

co
ns

ul
t w

ith
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

• 
ex

pl
or

e 
fu

rt
he

r 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
 

• 
cr

ea
tio

n 
of

 'r
is

ki
er

' p
la

y 
si

te
s 

b.
 

P
ro

vi
de

 m
or

e 
le

is
ur

e,
 c

ul
tu

ra
l a

nd
 

sp
or

ts
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

as
 d

et
ai

le
d 

in
 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

pl
an

. 

P
 P

at
te

n 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

W
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

- 
su

pp
le

m
en

te
d 

by
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

fu
nd

in
g.

 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
9 

• 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 w
id

er
 

ra
ng

e 
of

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 fo

r 
m

or
e 

se
ct

or
s 

in
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
• 

In
cr

ea
se

 is
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

ra
te

s 
• 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 C

us
to

m
er

 
S

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

c.
 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 P

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 
th

e 
'Y

ou
th

 M
at

te
rs

' a
ge

nd
a 

P
 P

at
te

n 
W

ith
in

 e
xi

st
in

g,
 b

ut
 w

ill
 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 

du
rin

g 
20

07
-2

00
9 

O
ng

oi
ng

 
• 

T
ak

e 
ac

co
un

t o
f y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

's
 v

ie
w

s 
on

 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

nd
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

cu
rr

en
tly

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
• 

C
on

si
de

r 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

nd
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

• 
P

ub
lic

is
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Page 62



 
91

 4.
3 

P
ro
vi
d
e 
h
ig
h
 q
u
al
it
y 
se
rv
ic
es
 a
ch
ie
vi
n
g
 

aw
ar
d
s 
an
d
 r
ec
o
g
n
it
io
n
  

 

 
 

 
 

a.
 

R
et

ai
n 

'G
re

en
 F

la
g'

 s
ta

tu
s 

fo
r 

A
rr

ow
 

V
al

le
y 

P
ar

k.
 

S
 H

an
le

y 
/P

 
P

at
te

n 
(H

ea
d 

of
)/

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

W
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s.
 

A
nn

ua
l  

S
ee

k 
re

te
nt

io
n 

of
 th

e 
A

w
ar

d.
 

b.
 

R
et

ai
n 

'Q
ue

st
' s

ta
tu

s 
fo

r 
S

po
rt

s 
C

en
tr

es
 

P
 P

at
te

n 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

W
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s.
 

S
pr

in
g 

20
08

 
A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t o

f t
he

 A
w

ar
d 

c.
 

In
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 A

P
S

E
 

be
nc

hm
ar

ki
ng

 s
ch

em
e 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
al

l 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 

P
 P

at
te

n 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

/ 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

W
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
 

U
se

 o
f d

at
a 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 c
os

t 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 a

ll 
se

rv
ic

es
 

d.
 

U
se

 o
f b

ot
h 

T
A

E
S

 a
nd

 A
rt

s 
at

 th
e 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 C

en
tr

e 
se

lf 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
fr

am
ew

or
ks

 

P
 P

at
te

n 
 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
/  

(H
ea

d 
of

) 

W
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
O

ng
oi

ng
 

• 
C

om
pl

et
e 

se
lf 

as
se

ss
m

en
t t

oo
l 

• 
P

ro
du

ce
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
pl

an
 

• 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t p

la
n 

 

Page 63



 
92

 

O
B
JE
C
T
IV
E
 

L
E
A
D
 

D
ir
ec
to
r 

(H
o
fS
) 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 

T
A
R
G
E
T
 

M
IL
E
S
T
O
N
E
S
 

5.
 
W
E
L
L
 M
A
N
A
G
E
D
 O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
 

5.
1 

W
e 
w
ill
 r
ef
in
e 
o
u
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
es
 b
o
th
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 S
er
vi
ce
 

P
la
n
s 
in
cl
u
d
in
g
: 

 

 
  

 
 

a.
 

A
nn

ua
l r

ev
ie

w
 o

f b
ud

ge
ts

 li
nk

ed
 to

 
lo

ng
 te

rm
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

la
n 

– 
w

ith
 

m
em

be
r 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t i

n 
al

lo
ca

tin
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 p
rio

rit
y 

ar
ea

s.
 

 

C
 S

m
ith

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

W
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

A
nn

ua
l 

U
pd

at
ed

 M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

P
la

n 
- 

S
um

m
er

 
 A

nn
ua

l R
ev

is
ed

/In
iti

al
 

B
ud

ge
t P

ro
ce

ss
 –

 A
ut

um
n.

 
5.
2 

Im
p
ro
vi
n
g
 C
u
st
o
m
er
 A
cc
es
s 

 
a.

 
F

or
m

al
is

e 
th

e 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 E
qu

al
ity

 
S

ch
em

e 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

p 
an

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
 

 

  C
 S

m
ith

 
 

  W
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

 

  P
ub

lic
at

io
n 

of
 

dr
af

t b
y 

Ju
ly

 
20

07
 

 

  C
on

su
lt 

w
ith

 R
ed

di
tc

h 
A

cc
es

s 
G

ro
up

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

07
 

5.
3 

E
n
su
ri
n
g
 a
 s
u
st
ai
n
ed
 im

p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
in
 

se
rv
ic
es
 b
y:

 
 

 
 

 

a.
 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
m

em
be

r 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t i

n 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
C

M
T

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

S
ee

 5
.1

0 
S

ee
 5

.1
0 

S
ee

 5
.1

0 

b.
 

R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

C
om

pa
ct

 w
ith

 th
e 

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 S

ec
to

r 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 g
ra

nt
s 

pr
oc

es
s 

an
d 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 S

LA
’s

 fo
r 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 

C
 S

m
ith

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

M
in

or
 c

os
tin

gs
 fo

r 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
re

pr
in

ts
. 

N
ew

 C
om

pa
ct

  
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
08

 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

M
em

be
r 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
G

ro
up

 

Page 64



 
93

 5.
4 

T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l w
ill
 p
ro
m
o
te
 le
ar
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 

d
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e 
o
rg
an
is
at
io
n
 

 

 
 

 
 

a.
 

In
tr

od
uc

e 
a 

S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t/L
ea

de
rs

hi
p 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 

 S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

S
ee

 5
.8

 a
 

S
ee

 5
.8

 a
 

S
ee

 5
.8

a 

b.
 

P
ro

du
ce

 a
 r

ev
is

ed
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 
S

 H
an

le
y 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
T

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t M
an

ag
er

, 
C

M
T

, H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

08
 

F
or

w
ar

d 
pl

an
. 

c.
 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 a

 S
ta

ff 
M

an
ag

em
en

t C
ha

rt
er

. 
P

 P
at

te
n 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
H

ea
d 

of
 C

us
to

m
er

 a
nd

 
O

ffi
ce

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

pr
il 

20
06

 
S

ta
ff 

br
ie

fin
gs

 to
 la

un
ch

 th
e 

ch
ar

te
r 

A
pr

il 
20

06
. 

(c
om

pl
et

ed
) 

5.
5 

T
o
 D
ev
el
o
p
 o
u
r 
p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 w
o
rk
in
g
. 

 
 

 
 

a.
 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 r
es

tr
uc

tu
re

 th
e 

R
ed

di
tc

h 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
  

J 
S

m
ith

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

W
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

bu
dg

et
s.

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
07

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 to

 e
nd

or
se

 
ch

an
ge

s 
an

d 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

in
g 

to
 

be
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
by

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
07

 
 T

he
 R

ed
di

tc
h 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
be

co
m

es
 th

e 
 ‘p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 o

f 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
’ w

ith
in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

.  
 

b.
 

P
ro

du
ce

 a
 r

ev
is

ed
 v

er
si

on
 o

f t
he

 
R

ed
di

tc
h 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

J 
S

m
ith

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

T
he

m
at

ic
 L

ea
de

rs
 to

 
pr

od
uc

e 
S

ta
te

 o
f B

or
ou

gh
 

re
po

rt
s.

 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

07
 

R
es

ea
rc

h 
an

d 
da

ta
 v

al
id

at
io

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
va

rio
us

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

by
 

M
ay

 2
00

7.
 

 S
ta

te
 o

f t
he

 B
or

ou
gh

 
C

on
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 b
e 

he
ld

 in
 

Ju
ne

 2
00

7.
 

c.
 

R
ed

uc
in

g 
in

co
m

e 
de

pr
iv

at
io

n,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ch

ild
 a

nd
 p

en
si

on
er

 
po

ve
rt

y 

J 
S

m
ith

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

W
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

bu
dg

et
s.

 

  

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
07

 
S
u
g
g
es
t 
re
m
o
ve
 t
h
is
?
 

Page 65



 
94

d.
 

W
es

t M
id

la
nd

s 
LA

A
 / 

LS
P

 
R

eg
io

na
l C

ap
ac

ity
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

J 
S

m
ith

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

P
ro

je
ct

 C
ha

m
pi

on
 (

to
 b

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d)

 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

8 
 

e.
 

R
ed

di
tc

h 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 L

oc
al

 H
er

o 
A

w
ar

ds
 C

er
em

on
y 

an
d 

A
rt

 
C

om
pe

tit
io

n 

J 
S

m
ith

 
(A

 U
rk

a)
 

£8
,0

00
 r

ev
en

ue
 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 

Ju
ly

 2
00

7 
 

5.
6.
 
T
o
 a
ch
ie
ve
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
 f
in
an
ci
al
 

m
an
ag
em

en
t 

 
 

 
 

a.
 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
F

ee
s 

an
d 

C
ha

rg
es

 
M

em
be

r 
G

ro
up

 
C

hr
is

 S
m

ith
 

(H
ea

d 
of

)/
  

(H
ea

d 
of

) 

W
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

06
 

 

b.
 

Li
m

it 
C

ou
nc

il 
T

ax
 in

cr
ea

se
s 

to
 

In
fla

tio
n 

on
ly

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
ne

xt
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

s.
 

C
 S

m
ith

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

W
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
A

nn
ua

l 
C

ou
nc

il 
T

ax
 S

et
tin

g 

c.
 

C
on

du
ct

 A
nn

ua
l r

ev
ie

w
 o

f d
eb

t 
fr

ee
 s

ta
tu

s/
C

ap
ita

l f
un

di
ng

. 
C

 S
m

ith
 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
W

ith
in

 e
xi

st
in

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

A
nn

ua
l 

U
pd

at
ed

 M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

P
la

n 
an

d 
C

ap
ita

l S
tr

at
eg

y.
 

5.
7 

T
o
 m
an
ag
e 
o
u
r 
as
se
ts
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
ly

 
 

 
 

 
a.

 
D

el
iv

er
 fu

rt
he

r 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 
di

sp
os

al
s.

 
J 

S
m

ith
 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
W

ith
in

 e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

dg
et

s 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

8 
£0

.5
 m

ill
io

n 
re

ce
ip

ts
 

 

b.
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
n 

of
fic

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
st

ra
te

gy
. 

J 
S

m
ith

/ 
P

 P
at

te
n 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
/ 

(H
ea

d 
of

)  

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 A
ss

et
s 

M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

 a
nd

 
ot

he
r 

D
ire

ct
or

at
es

 

D
ra

ft 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

07
 

N
ew

 s
ur

ve
y 

to
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 to
 r

ef
le

ct
 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

an
d 

ex
te

rn
al

 p
ar

tn
er

 v
ac

at
in

g 
sp

ac
e 

 
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

de
la

ye
d 

de
fe

rr
ed

 fo
r 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

in
 2

00
8.

 
c.

 
Im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

P
la

n.
 

J 
S

m
ith

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

W
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

bu
dg

et
s 

 
O

ng
oi

ng
  

Y
ea

rly
 u

pd
at

e 
on

 th
e 

A
ss

et
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t P

la
n 

&
 E

ne
rg

y 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

to
 b

e 
pr

es
en

te
d 

to
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

. 
 

Page 66



 
95

 
d.

 
F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
th

e 
re

vi
ew

 o
f D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
en

tr
es

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
ac

tio
ns

 in
 th

e 
A

ss
et

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n 
a 

ne
w

 
co

rp
or

at
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

 i.
e.

   
 

“T
o 

ac
hi

ev
e 

th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 

C
hu

rc
h 

H
ill

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
en

tr
e 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 fu

ll 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 
te

na
nt

s”
 

  

J 
S

m
ith

 
(H

ea
d 

of
)w

ith
  

S
 H

an
le

y 
  

(R
 B

am
fo

rd
) 

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

W
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

st
af

f 
bu

dg
et

s 
su

pp
le

m
en

te
d 

by
 

ad
di

tio
na

l r
ev

en
ue

 
fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t o
f e

xt
er

na
l 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s 

C
ou

nc
il 

ap
pr

ov
al

s 
 in

 
D

ec
 2

00
6 

an
d 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

fo
r 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 o

f 
sc

he
m

e 
an

d 
fu

nd
in

g 
ap

pr
ov

al
s 

Ju
ne

 
20

07
 w

ith
 

fu
rt

he
r 

re
po

rt
 

on
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pa
rt

ne
r 

by
 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
8 

P
ub

lic
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
en

d 
of

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

07
. 

T
o 

co
m

m
en

ce
 

th
e 

re
bu

ild
in

g 
in

 2
00

8/
9 

if 
a 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

ca
n 

be
 a

ch
ie

ve
d.

 

• 
P

ub
lic

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

co
m

m
en

ce
d 

A
pr

il 
20

07
. 

•  
U

pd
at

e 
re

po
rt

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 b

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
in

 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

07
. 

5.
8 

T
o
 m
an
ag
e 
o
u
r 
st
af
f 
ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y.
 

 
 

 
 

a.
 

In
tr

od
uc

e 
a 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 
C

M
T

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

C
M

T
/H

ea
ds

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
/ 

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

. 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

07
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

7 

S
ki

lls
 A

ud
it.

 
M

en
u 

of
 O

pt
io

ns
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

m
en

to
rin

g/
 c

oa
ch

in
g.

 
b.

 
U

nd
er

ta
ke

 ta
rg

et
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

in
 

su
pp

or
t o

f t
he

 A
bs

en
ce

 P
ol

ic
y.

 
S

 H
an

le
y 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
S

ta
ff 

re
so

ur
ce

. H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
/H

ea
ds

 o
f 

S
er

vi
ce

. 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
07

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
07

 

R
ev

ie
w

 s
up

po
rt

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

fo
r 

em
pl

oy
ee

s.
 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f O

cc
up

at
io

na
l 

H
ea

lth
 p

ro
vi

si
on

. 

Page 67



 
96

 
c.

 
Im

pl
em

en
t a

n 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
H

S
E

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
R

ep
or

t. 
S

 H
an

le
y 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
O

ffi
ce

r 
re

so
ur

ce
. 

Ju
ne

 2
00

8 
G

ui
da

nc
e/

co
m

pe
te

nc
ie

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 r

is
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

. 
d.

 
R

ev
ie

w
 tu

rn
ov

er
 a

nd
 p

ro
du

ce
 a

 
R

et
en

tio
n 

S
tr

at
eg

y.
 

S
 H

an
le

y 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

O
ffi

ce
r 

re
so

ur
ce

. 
Ju

ne
 2

00
7 

 Ju
ly

 2
00

8 
   M

ar
ch

 2
00

8 

R
ev

ie
w

 e
xi

t q
ue

st
io

nn
ai

re
. 

 R
ev

ie
w

 m
od

er
n 

ap
pr

en
tic

es
hi

ps
/ t

ra
in

ee
s 

an
d 

ca
re

er
 g

ra
de

d 
po

st
. 

 R
ev

ie
w

 r
ec

ru
itm

en
t l

ite
ra

tu
re

 
an

d 
in

te
rn

et
 p

ag
e.

 
e.

 
C

om
pl

et
e 

S
in

gl
e 

S
ta

tu
s 

ne
go

tia
tio

ns
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

(s
ub

je
ct

 to
 r

ev
en

ue
 a

nd
 c

ap
ita

l 
bi

ds
).

 

C
M

T
 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
C

ap
ita

l a
nd

 R
ev

en
ue

 b
id

. 
Ju

ne
 2

00
7 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
07

 
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

07
 

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

9 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
09

 

 D
ec

is
io

n 
on

 J
ob

 E
va

lu
at

io
n 

- 
C

ou
nc

il.
 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 r

em
ai

ni
ng

 
te

rm
s 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s.
 

E
qu

al
 P

ay
 A

ud
it.

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

(s
ub

je
ct

 to
 

de
ci

si
on

).
 

5.
9 

T
o
 a
ch
ie
ve
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 b
es
t 
p
ra
ct
ic
e 

in
 e
q
u
al
it
y 
is
su
es
 

 

 
 

 
 

a.
 

A
ch

ie
ve

 le
ve

l 3
 o

f t
he

 E
qu

al
ity

 
S

ta
nd

ar
d 

fo
r 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t b

y 
20

08
. 

C
 S

m
ith

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

P
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 s
ta

ff 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

to
 b

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d.

 
A

ch
ie

ve
 le

ve
l  

by
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
08

 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

on
 R

ac
e 

sc
he

m
e.

 

5.
10
 
T
o
 m
an
ag
e 
o
u
r 
ri
sk
s 
ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y 

 
 

 
 

 

a.
 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
m

em
be

r 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t i

n 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
C

 S
m

ith
 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
M

em
be

r 
T

ra
in

in
g 

B
ud

ge
t 

Le
ad

 D
ire

ct
or

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

 
st

af
f. 

S
um

m
er

 2
00

7 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
to

 in
vo

lv
e 

po
rt

fo
lio

 a
nd

 le
ad

 c
om

m
itt

ee
. Page 68



 
97

 
b.

 
E

xp
an

d 
ou

r 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
sy

st
em

s.
 

C
 S

m
ith

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

W
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s.
 

S
um

m
er

 2
00

7 
  S

um
m

er
 2

00
7 

• 
C

or
po

ra
te

 a
nd

 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
R

is
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
 in

pu
t t

o 
R

is
k 

M
od

ul
e 

of
 T

E
N

 s
of

tw
ar

e.
 

• 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

an
d 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
sy

st
em

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d.

 
c.

 
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
e 

C
or

po
ra

te
 R

is
k 

R
eg

is
te

r.
 

C
M

T
 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
C

M
T

/H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 
N

ov
 2

00
7 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
s 

of
 r

is
ks

 a
nd

 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

s.
  

• 
M

em
be

r 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 

ris
ks

 a
nd

 c
on

tr
ol

 
m

ea
su

re
s.

 

Page 69



 
98

 5.
11
 
T
o
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
e 
an
d
 c
o
n
su
lt
 

ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y 

 

 
 

 
 

a.
 

F
ur

th
er

 d
ev

el
op

 o
ur

 C
us

to
m

er
 

A
cc

es
s 

S
tr

at
eg

y.
 

P
 P

at
te

n 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f C

us
to

m
er

 
Le

is
ur

e 
an

d 
B

us
in

es
s 

su
pp

or
t a

nd
 H

ea
d 

of
 

C
us

to
m

er
 a

nd
 O

ffi
ce

 
S

er
vi

ce
s.

 
C

us
to

m
er

 a
cc

es
s 

st
ra

te
gy

 
gr

ou
p.

  
H

ea
ds

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 

Ju
ly

 2
00

8 
• 

C
ur

re
nt

 c
us

to
m

er
 a

cc
es

s 
st

ra
te

gy
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 to
 

re
fle

ct
 o

ur
 c

ur
re

nt
 

po
si

tio
n 

w
ith

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
• 

R
es

ea
rc

h 
cu

st
om

er
 

ac
ce

ss
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 
pa

tte
rn

s 
of

 u
se

 a
nd

 
pr

ef
er

en
ce

s.
 

• 
P

ro
vi

de
 c

or
po

ra
te

 
cu

st
om

er
 s

er
vi

ce
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 

w
hi

ch
 is

 a
cc

re
di

te
d 

by
 a

 
re

co
gn

is
ed

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l 
bo

dy
 

• 
In

tr
od

uc
e 

a 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 B
us

in
es

s 
pr

oc
es

s 
re

-
en

gi
ne

er
in

g 
w

hi
ch

 lo
ok

s 
at

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fr

om
 a

 
cu

st
om

er
 p

er
sp

ec
tiv

e.
 

• 
In

vo
lv

e 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 to

 
ge

ne
ra

te
 tr

us
t a

nd
 

su
pp

or
t i

n 
de

liv
er

in
g 

ou
r 

C
us

to
m

er
 a

cc
es

s 
st

ra
te

gy
. 

• 
E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 

is
 e

vo
lu

tio
na

ry
 b

y 
re

gu
la

r 
an

d 
co

nt
in

uo
us

 p
la

nn
ed

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
w

ith
 

cu
st

om
er

s 
• 

B
ui

ld
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
na

l 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 a
 

Page 70



 
99

co
rp

or
at

e 
cu

st
om

er
 

fo
cu

s 
 

b.
 

R
ev

ie
w

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 S
tr

at
eg

y.
 

C
 S

m
ith

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

W
ith

in
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

T
ea

m
 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
8 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
M

em
be

r 
G

ro
up

 to
 

sc
ru

tin
is

e 
c.

 
D

ev
el

op
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

w
eb

si
te

. 
P

 P
at

te
n 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
IT

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

up
po

rt
 

S
er

vi
ce

 M
an

ag
er

s 
S

up
po

rt
 

IE
G

 F
un

di
ng

 
C

ap
ita

l F
un

di
ng

 
R

ev
en

ue
 F

un
di

ng
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 
• 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 p

ub
lic

 e
-

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n.

 
• 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 e

-
T

en
de

rin
g 

/ e
-

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t. 
• 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 o

nl
in

e 
lic

en
si

ng
 

• 
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 o
nl

in
e 

Lo
ca

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
• 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 C

ho
ic

e 
B

as
ed

 H
ou

si
ng

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
S

ys
te

m
 

 
d.

 
P

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 a
 C

ou
nt

y 
w

id
e 

C
iti

ze
ns

 P
an

el
. 

C
 S

m
ith

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 

P
an

el
s 

N
ow

 in
 p

la
ce

 th
ro

ug
h 

W
or

cs
 

C
ou

nt
y 

R
es

ea
rc

h 
an

d 
in

te
lli

ge
nc

e 
un

it.
 

e.
 

P
ro

du
ce

 a
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

P
la

nn
er

. 
C

 S
m

ith
 

(H
ea

d 
of

) 
W

ith
 IT

 a
nd

 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
. 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
8 

 

f. 
S

et
tin

g 
cl

ea
r 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 
fo

r 
ex

te
rn

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

ub
lic

at
io

ns
. 

 

C
 S

m
ith

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 T
ea

m
 

al
on

gs
id

e 
R

ep
ro

gr
ap

hi
cs

 
an

d 
IT

 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
8 

 

g.
 

Im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f e
xt

er
na

l 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
. 

 

C
 S

m
ith

 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 T
ea

m
 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
F

or
um

. 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
8 

B
as

el
in

e 
ye

ar
 s

o 
no

 ta
rg

et
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

fo
r 

as
se

ss
m

en
t. Page 71



 
10
0

 5.
12
 
T
o
 im

p
le
m
en
t 
e-
g
o
ve
rn
m
en
t 

 
 

 
 

 

a.
 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 th

e 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 
H

ub
 p

ro
je

ct
 

P
 P

at
te

n 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f C

us
to

m
er

, 
Le

is
ur

e 
an

d 
B

us
in

es
s 

S
up

po
rt

, H
ea

d 
of

 
C

us
to

m
er

 a
nd

 O
ffi

ce
 

S
er

vi
ce

s,
 H

ea
d 

of
 IT

 
S

er
vi

ce
s,

 O
S

S
 M

an
ag

er
, 

C
on

ta
ct

 C
en

tr
e 

M
an

ag
er

, 
C

S
A

s 

E
nd

 o
f p

ro
je

ct
 

in
 te

rm
s 

of
 

co
nt

ra
ct

ua
l 

ob
lig

at
io

ns
 is

 
A

ug
us

t 2
01

3.
 

• 
C

R
M

 (
es

ho
p)

 is
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

its
 

op
er

at
io

na
l c

ap
ab

ili
tie

s 
or

 a
 n

ew
 s

ys
te

m
 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
. (

20
08

) 
• 

F
ur

th
er

 m
ig

ra
tio

n 
of

 
co

un
ty

 c
ou

nc
il 

se
rv

ic
es

 
in

to
 th

e 
on

e 
st

op
 s

ho
p 

an
d 

co
nt

ac
t c

en
tr

e.
 In

 
20

07
 /2

00
8 

th
is

 w
ill

 
in

cl
ud

e 
fu

rt
he

r 
w

as
te

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
, 

re
gi

st
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

so
ci

al
 

ca
re

  (
fa

ce
 to

 fa
ce

) 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

• 
F

ur
th

er
 m

ig
ra

tio
n 

of
 

di
st

ric
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
to

 th
e 

co
nt

ac
t c

en
tr

e 
an

d 
on

e 
st

op
 s

ho
p.

 In
 2

00
7/

20
08

, 
th

is
 w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e,
 

lic
en

si
ng

, a
nd

 r
em

ai
nd

er
 

of
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

se
rv

ic
es

. 
• 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 c
on

si
st

en
cy

 o
f 

fr
on

t l
in

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
hu

b 
in

cl
ud

in
g,

 C
S

A
 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 r
ec

ru
itm

en
t. 

• 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 th
e 

fo
rm

ul
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
 H

ub
 

pu
bl

ic
ity

 c
am

pa
ig

n 
 

• 
F

ur
th

er
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f 
on

-li
ne

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 

Page 72



 
10
1

b.
 

U
se

 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

 
to

 
im

pl
em

en
t 

tr
an

sf
or

m
ed

, 
cu

st
om

er
 

fo
cu

se
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 
 

P
 P

at
te

n 
(H

ea
d 

of
) 

IE
G

 a
nd

 C
ap

ita
l F

un
di

ng
 

(A
lre

ad
y 

ap
pr

ov
ed

) 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 fu
nd

in
g 

m
ay

 b
e 

so
ug

ht
 fr

om
 c

ap
ita

l f
un

ds
. 

O
n 

go
in

g 
• 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f e

-f
or

m
s 

• 
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

• 
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 c
or

po
ra

te
 

re
co

rd
s 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

sy
st

em
s 

• 
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
sy

st
em

s 
• 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
 

de
liv

er
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

ac
ce

ss
 

ch
an

ne
ls

 
   

Page 73



Page 74



5 

A
N
A
L
Y
S
IS
 O
F
 P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 O
N
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 P
R
IO
R
IT
IE
S
 

 T
he
 C

or
po

ra
te

 a
nd

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 P
la

n 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 fo
r 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 e

xa
m

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 it
s 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
ar

e 
st

ill
 r

el
ev

an
t. 

 
T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l p

ri
o
ri
ti
es
 f
o
r 
th
e 
n
ex

t 
3 
ye
ar
s 
ar
e:
 

 • 
Im

p
ro
vi
n
g
 t
h
e 
re
al
it
y 
an

d
 p
er
ce
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
    S
a
fe
ty

S
a
fe
ty

S
a
fe
ty

S
a
fe
ty
 

 • 
P
ro
te
ct
in
g
 a
n
d
 im

p
ro
vi
n
g
 t
h
e 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t    
a
n
d

a
n
d

a
n
d

a
n
d
    T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

 • 
P
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 b
es

t 
st
an

d
ar
d
s 
an

d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
in
 H
o
u
s
in
g

H
o
u
s
in
g

H
o
u
s
in
g

H
o
u
s
in
g
     

 • 
P
ro
vi
d
in
g
 a
 w
id
e 
ra
n
g
e 
o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
fo
r 
L
e
is
u
re

L
e
is
u
re

L
e
is
u
re

L
e
is
u
re
     

 
T

he
 a

bo
ve

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
ar

e 
ve

ry
 b

ro
ad

. I
n 

or
de

r 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

m
ea

su
ra

bl
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 th
es

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

tr
an

sl
at

ed
 in

to
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 s

pe
ci

fic
 

ac
tio

ns
/o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 a
s 

se
t o

n 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

pa
ge

s.
 O

nc
e 

ag
re

ed
, a

n 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
od

uc
ed

 fo
r 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
pu

rp
os

es
, w

ith
 a

 le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 e
ac

h 
ta

sk
 a

nd
 a

 p
ro

vi
si

on
al

 ti
m

es
ca

le
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
. A

ll 
of

 th
es

e 
al

so
 m

ak
e 

a 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

 o
ne

 o
r 

m
or

e 
th

em
es

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tr

at
eg

y.
 

 T
h
e 
fo
llo

w
in
g
 s
ec

ti
o
n
s 
se

t 
o
u
t 
th
e 
fo
llo

w
in
g
 f
o
r 
ea

ch
 o
f 
o
u
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
es

: 
 • 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 a
g
ai
n
st
 o
u
r 
st
at
ed

 A
im

s 
an

d
 O
b
je
ct
iv
es
 f
o
r 
20
06
/0
7 

• 
P
ro
g
re
ss
 o
n
 o
u
r 
B
es

t 
V
al
u
e 
In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 f
o
r 
20

06
/0
7 
an

d
, 

• 
O
u
r 
A
im

s 
an

d
 O
b
je
ct
iv
es

 f
o
r 
th
e 
p
er
io
d
 2
00
7 
to
 2
01

0.
 

  

Page 75



6 

P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 1
 –
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 S
A
F
E
T
Y
 

 P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 :
 2
00
6/
07
 

 W
E
 A
IM

 T
O
: 
IM
P
R
O
V
E
 T
H
E
 R
E
A
L
IT
Y
 A
N
D
 P
E
R
C
E
P
T
IO
N
 O
F
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 S
A
F
E
T
Y
 

 C
om

m
un
ity
 S
af
et
y 
is
 “
co
m
m
un
ity
 b
as
ed
 a
ct
io
n 
to
 p
re
ve
nt
 a
nd
 r
em

ed
y 
th
e 
ca
us
es
 a
nd
 c
on
se
qu
en
ce
s 
of
 c
rim

in
al
, i
nt
im
id
at
or
y 
an
d 
ot
he
r 
re
la
te
d 

an
ti-
so
ci
al
 b
eh
av
io
ur
.”
 

 R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
su
pp
or
ts
 th
e 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
C
om

m
un
ity
 S
af
et
y 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 (
R
C
S
P
) 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 th
e 
C
om

m
un
ity
 S
af
et
y 
S
tr
at
eg
y.
  T
he
 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
co
nt
ai
ns
 fi
ve
 th
em

es
 w
hi
ch
 a
re
 m
irr
or
ed
 in
 th
e 
ai
m
s 
of
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
C
or
po
ra
te
 P
la
n.
 

 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
an
d 
th
e 
R
C
S
P
 a
im
 to
 k
ee
p 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
sa
fe
 a
nd
 to
 k
ee
p 
al
l p
ar
ts
 o
f t
he
 c
om

m
un
ity
 fe
el
in
g 
sa
fe
. 

 O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
 1
.1
 

W
e 
w
ill
 w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
to
 r
ed

u
ce

 c
ri
m
e 
b
y 
17

.5
%
 b
y 
M
ar
ch

 2
00

8,
 a
n
d
 in

 p
ar
ti
cu

la
r 
cr
im

in
al
 d
am

ag
e,
 

w
o
u
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 v
eh

ic
le
 c
ri
m
e.
 

 Is
su

es
 o

f c
rim

e 
an

d 
di

so
rd

er
 h

av
e 

a 
se

rio
us

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
.  

T
he

y 
al

so
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

im
ag

e 
an

d 
at

tr
ac

tiv
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
.  

T
he

re
fo

re
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 r

ep
or

te
d 

cr
im

e 
w

ill
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f l

ife
 fo

r 
al

l t
ho

se
 w

ho
 li

ve
, w

or
k 

or
 v

is
it 

R
ed

di
tc

h.
  W

e 
w

ill
 

w
or

k 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t p
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

cr
im

e 
by

 1
7.

5%
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

8,
 in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 c

rim
in

al
 d

am
ag

e,
 w

ou
nd

in
g 

an
d 

ve
hi

cl
e 

cr
im

e.
 

 S
in

ce
 2

00
3/

04
 B

rit
is

h 
C

rim
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

C
om

pa
ra

to
r 

C
rim

e 
(B

C
S

) 
ha

ve
 fa

lle
n 

by
 3

1.
7%

.  
C

om
pa

re
d 

to
 o

th
er

 C
rim

e 
an

d 
D

is
or

de
r 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

(C
D

R
P

s)
 in

 o
ur

 fa
m

ily
 g

ro
up

, w
e 

ar
e 

pe
rf

or
m

in
g 

ex
tr

em
el

y 
w

el
l. 

 R
ed

di
tc

h 
at

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 2

00
6/

07
 w

as
 r

an
ke

d 
se

co
nd

 fo
r 

al
l c

rim
e 

an
d 

fir
st

 fo
r 

B
C

S
 C

om
pa

ra
to

r 
C

rim
e.

 
 P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

T
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

C
D

R
P

 T
as

ki
ng

 to
 h

av
e 

a 
di

re
ct

 a
nd

 
co

nc
er

te
d 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
cr

im
in

al
, a

nt
i-s

oc
ia

l a
nd

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l i

ss
ue

s.
 

 

• 
T

er
m

s 
of

 r
ef

er
en

ce
 w

er
e 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

R
ed

di
tc

h 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

06
. 

• 
W

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 s

til
l b

ei
ng

 h
el

d 
as

 b
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

e 
 a

nd
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
S

af
et

y 
T

ea
m

 w
er

e 
in

vi
te

d 
by

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t O

ffi
ce

 S
ou

th
 W

es
t t

o 
sp

ea
k 

 a
t 

th
e 

‘In
te

lli
ge

nc
e 

le
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

 c
on

fe
re

nc
e’

 in
 B

ris
to

l o
n 

28
th

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

b.
 

T
o 

ca
rr

y 
ou

t a
n 

op
tio

ns
 a

pp
ra

is
al

 o
n 

m
er

gi
ng

 th
e 

R
ed

di
tc

h 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

. 
• 

M
ee

tin
g 

w
ith

 W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

es
 1

5th
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
06

 –
 

ag
re

em
en

t n
ot

 to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 a
 c

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
m

er
ge

r 
of

 C
D

R
P

s 
• 

M
ee

tin
g 

he
ld

 w
ith

 C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
es

 fo
r 

N
or

th
 W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

Page 76



7 

w
ho

 a
gr

ee
d 

in
 p

rin
ci

pl
e 

to
 lo

ok
 a

t t
he

 o
pt

io
ns

 fo
r 

m
er

ge
r.

  
• 

E
st

ab
lis

hm
en

t o
f R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
W

or
ki

ng
 G

ro
up

 –
 M

ay
 2

00
7 

• 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f b
us

in
es

s 
ca

se
 a

nd
 ti

m
et

ab
le

 d
ue

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

7 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

- 
A

pr
il 

20
09

.*
 N
ot
e 
ag
re
em

en
t w
ill
 n
ee
d 
to
 b
e 
se
cu
re
d 
w
ith
 

ot
he
r 
D
is
tr
ic
t C
ou
nc
ils
. 

c.
 

T
o 

m
ai

ns
tr

ea
m

 S
ec

tio
n 

17
 o

f t
he

 C
rim

e 
an

d 
D

is
or

de
r 

A
ct

 1
99

8.
 

• 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 -
 D

ec
is

io
n 

ta
ke

n 
by

 W
C

C
 th

at
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 im

pl
em

en
t a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
co

un
ty

. 
• 

A
 r

ep
or

t t
o 

W
C

C
 C

hi
ef

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

, w
as

  w
rit

te
n 

 
su

gg
es

tin
g 

an
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

st
ra

te
gy

 w
ith

in
 c

ur
re

nt
 r

es
ou

rc
es

. T
hi

s 
w

ill
 

no
w

 b
e 

le
d 

by
 W

C
C

. 
• 

R
ed

di
tc

h 
B

or
ou

gh
 C

ou
nc

il 
--

 T
he

 ti
m

es
ca

le
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

is
 w

er
e 

un
ac

hi
ev

ab
le

. T
hi

s 
ha

s 
no

w
 b

ee
n 

re
vi

ew
ed

 
an

d 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

pl
an

 w
ith

 r
ea

lis
tic

 m
ile

st
on

es
 a

nd
 

ac
tio

ns
 

• 
D

ev
el

op
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 r

es
ou

rc
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

– 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

8.
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
– 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
9 

d.
 

A
ch

ie
ve

 a
do

pt
io

n 
of

 S
P

D
 o

n 
S

af
er

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 -
 

D
es

ig
ni

ng
 O

ut
 C

rim
e.

 
S

P
D

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
06

 

O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
 1
.2
 

W
e 
w
ill
 a
ct
 t
o
 k
ee

p
 lo

ca
l c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
fe
el
in
g
 s
af
e.
   

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

su
pp

or
te

d 
th

e 
R

ed
di

tc
h 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 to

 r
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

pe
rc

ep
tio

n 
an

d 
fe

ar
 o

f c
rim

e 
by

 ta
ki

ng
 p

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 
an

d 
re

as
on

ab
le

 le
ga

l a
ct

io
n 

to
 r

es
ol

ve
 a

nt
i-s

oc
ia

l b
eh

av
io

ur
. 1

00
%

 o
f c

us
to

m
er

s 
re

tu
rn

in
g 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

qu
es

tio
nn

ai
re

s 
w

er
e 

ha
pp

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e.
  

 W
e 

ha
ve

 a
ch

ie
ve

d:
 

• 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 te

na
nc

y 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

• 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 c

om
pl

ai
na

nt
 a

nd
 w

itn
es

s 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
le

ve
ls

  
• 

Lo
ng

 te
rm

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
of

 a
nt

i s
oc

ia
l b

eh
av

io
ur

 
• 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
re

po
rt

in
g 

of
 in

ci
de

nt
s 

of
 a

nt
i-s

oc
ia

l b
eh

av
io

ur
 

 P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

T
o 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 fo
r 

re
co

rd
in

g 
an

d 
ta

ki
ng

 a
ct

io
n 

ag
ai

ns
t r

ac
ia

l a
nd

 a
ll 

fo
rm

s 
of

 h
ar

as
sm

en
t. 

• 
T

ra
in

in
g 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 

• 
A

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
rs

 o
f a

ge
nc

ie
s 

w
is

hi
ng

 to
 b

ec
om

e 
re

po
rt

in
g 

ce
nt

re
s 

an
d 

de
liv

er
in

g 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 to

 s
ta

ff 
an

d 
vo

lu
nt

ee
rs

 h
as

 le
d 

to
 a

 d
el

ay
 

of
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 la
un

ch
.  

T
im

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 ta

ke
n 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
ag

en
ci

es
 

Page 77



8 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
re

po
rt

in
g 

sc
he

m
e 

ar
e 

in
 a

 p
os

iti
on

 to
 d

ea
l a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ly

 
w

ith
 a

ny
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 c
om

m
un

ity
 m

em
be

rs
 c

an
 h

av
e 

co
nf

id
en

ce
 in

 th
e 

re
po

rt
in

g 
sy

st
em

.  
A

 p
ub

lic
 la

un
ch

 d
at

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 s

et
 

fo
r 

24
th

 A
pr

il 
20

07
 

b.
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
st

ra
te

gy
 fo

r 
th

e 
R

ed
di

tc
h 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
. 

F
in

al
 d

ra
ft 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 to
 b

e 
pr

es
en

te
d 

to
 R

C
S

P
 -

 A
pr

il 
20

07
. 

c.
 

S
af

er
 D

rin
ki

ng
 P

ro
je

ct
. 

N
ow

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 

d.
 

E
st

at
e 

E
nh

an
ce

m
en

t P
ro

je
ct

 
• 

W
or

k 
in

 W
oo

dr
ow

 is
 o

ng
oi

ng
, a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 g

ar
ag

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 r
em

ov
ed

 
an

d 
ne

w
 p

ar
ki

ng
 a

re
as

 c
om

pl
et

ed
.  

• 
W

in
ya

te
s 

in
iti

al
 s

ite
 s

ur
ve

ys
 a

nd
 c

rim
e 

ris
ks

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t a
nd

 
pu

bl
ic

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n.

 A
n 

A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 
be

in
g 

dr
aw

n 
up

. 
• 

Lo
dg

e 
pa

rk
 s

ite
 –

 C
rim

e 
R

is
k 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

de
la

ye
d 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
C

rim
e 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

er
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 d

ur
in

g 
A

pr
il/

M
ay

 2
00

7 
by

 a
n 

ex
te

rn
al

 c
on

su
lta

nt
. 

• 
S

ite
s 

fo
r 

ph
as

e 
2 

– 
R

ep
or

te
d 

to
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7.
 

A
re

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 M

at
ch

bo
ro

ug
h 

an
d 

C
hu

rc
h 

H
ill

. N
ew

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

cr
ite

ria
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
do

pt
ed

. A
 S

m
al

l A
re

a 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t F
un

d 
ha

s 
al

so
 

be
en

 a
do

pt
ed

. 
e.

 
D

ev
el

op
 a

n 
A

nt
i-S

oc
ia

l B
eh

av
io

ur
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

fo
r 

R
ed

di
tc

h 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

, e
nc

om
pa

ss
in

g 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 

to
 ta

ck
le

 A
S

B
, v

ic
tim

 a
nd

 w
itn

es
s 

su
pp

or
t, 

R
es

pe
ct

 
A

ge
nd

a 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 c
o-

or
di

na
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
. 

In
 v

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
R

es
pe

ct
 A

ge
nd

a,
 L

oc
al

 A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
ou

tc
om

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t f
or

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 c
om

m
it 

to
 th

e 
br

oa
de

r 
as

pe
ct

s 
of

 th
e 

N
at

io
na

l R
es

pe
ct

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n,
 th

e 
A

S
B

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

as
 a

 R
es

pe
ct

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

to
 e

nc
om

pa
ss

: 
• 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

• 
B

eh
av

io
ur

 a
nd

 a
tte

nd
an

ce
s 

in
 s

ch
oo

l 
• 

S
up

po
rt

in
g 

fa
m

ili
es

 
• 

S
tr

en
gt

he
ni

ng
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 

• 
E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 ju
st

ic
e 

 M
ed

iu
m

 te
rm

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

ra
ft 

of
 n

ew
 m

ea
su

re
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
P

ol
ic

e 
Ju

st
ic

e 
A

ct
. A

ls
o 

lin
ks

 in
 w

ith
 th

e 
P

ro
lif

ic
 &

 P
rio

rit
y 

O
ffe

nd
er

s 
st

ra
te

gy
 –

 P
re

ve
nt

 a
nd

 D
et

er
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 p
ar

en
tin

g 
su

pp
or

t a
nd

 
si

gn
po

st
in

g 
to

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
f. 

“R
es

pe
ct

 a
nd

 R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 S

ch
oo

ls
 P

ro
je

ct
” 

- 
to

 
in

cr
ea

se
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

 A
nt

i- 
S

oc
ia

l B
eh

av
io

ur
 fo

r 
• 

7 
sc

ho
ol

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

vi
si

te
d 

to
 d

at
e.

 O
ve

ra
ll 

th
e 

re
sp

on
se

 b
y 

bo
th

 p
up

ils
 

an
d 

te
ac

he
rs

 is
 v

er
y 

po
si

tiv
e.

  T
he

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ve
ry

 

Page 78



9 

te
ac

he
rs

 a
nd

 p
up

ils
 a

nd
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

w
or

ki
ng

. 
re

sp
on

si
ve

 a
nd

 e
ng

ag
in

g 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

se
ss

io
ns

. 
• 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, t

he
 A

S
B

 T
ea

m
 s

aw
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
74

0 
ye

ar
 5

 p
up

ils
 a

t t
he

 
Y

ou
ng

 C
iti

ze
ns

 C
ha

lle
ng

e 
at

 th
e 

F
ire

 S
ta

tio
n.

 
g.

 
T

o 
im

pl
em

en
t p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 fo

r 
em

er
gi

ng
 

le
gi

sl
at

io
n/

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
to

 ta
ck

le
 A

S
B

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 R

es
pe

ct
 A

ge
nd

a.
 

S
ee

 1
.2

e 
– 

th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f a

 R
es

pe
ct

 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n.
 

h.
 

T
o 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f t
he

 P
re

ve
nt

 a
nd

 D
et

er
 

el
em

en
t o

f t
he

 P
ro

lif
ic

 a
nd

 P
rio

rit
y 

O
ffe

nd
er

s 
S

tr
at

eg
y.

 
O

ut
co

m
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
. 

A
 p

ro
ce

ss
 o

f 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 t
he

 p
re

ve
nt

 a
nd

 d
et

er
 c

oh
or

t 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 
us

in
g 

 fo
ur

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
; 

 • 
R

is
k 

of
 r

e-
of

fe
nd

in
g 

m
at

rix
 a

nd
 p

er
si

st
en

cy
 –

 P
er

si
st

en
t y

ou
ng

 o
ffe

nd
er

s 
(p

le
dg

e 
de

fin
iti

on
) 

w
ho

 s
co

re
 4

0 
or

 m
or

e 
on

 th
e 

m
at

rix
 

• 
Y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 c
om

m
itt

in
g 

ac
ts

 o
f a

nt
i-s

oc
ia

l b
eh

av
io

ur
 

• 
Y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
Y

is
ps

 w
ith

 h
ig

h 
on

se
t s

co
re

s 
an

d;
 

• 
Y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

be
in

g 
ta

ke
n 

of
f t

he
 c

at
ch

 a
nd

 c
on

vi
ct

 li
st

. 
 In

iti
al

 c
oh

or
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 o
f t

he
 s

ch
em

e 
an

d 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

s 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
 1
.3
 

W
e 
w
ill
 p
ro
vi
d
e 
cl
ea
n
er
, g

re
en

er
 a
n
d
 s
af
er
 p
u
b
lic

 s
p
ac
es
 (
lin

ks
 t
o
 E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en

t 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
).
  

 P
ub

lic
 r

ep
or

ts
 o

f l
itt

er
, f

ly
-t

ip
pi

ng
 a

nd
 a

ba
nd

on
ed

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
ar

e 
at

 a
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

 lo
w

 a
nd

 o
ur

 s
co

re
 a

ga
in

st
 B

es
t V

al
ue

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

r 
19

9a
, w

hi
ch

 m
ea

su
re

s 
th

e 
cl

ea
nl

in
es

s 
of

 s
tr

ee
ts

 a
nd

 la
nd

 in
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 E
ng

la
nd

, p
ut

s 
us

 in
 th

e 
be

st
 2

5%
 o

f c
ou

nc
ils

 in
 th

e 
co

un
tr

y.
 

 P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

T
o 

ex
te

nd
 th

e 
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
. 

• 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t F
or

m
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

vi
a 

C
D

R
P

 ta
sk

in
g.

 
• 

40
 s

ite
s 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
20

06
/0

7 
 

• 
20

07
/0

8 
si

te
s 

cu
rr

en
tly

 b
ei

ng
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
. 

b.
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 G

ra
ffi

ti 
S

tr
at

eg
y.

 
 

• 
D

ra
ft 

ou
tli

ne
 o

f s
tr

at
eg

y 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

w
as

 r
ep

or
te

d 
to

 E
le

ct
ed

 M
em

be
rs

 a
t 

th
e 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l O
&

S
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

00
7.

 
• 

D
ue

 to
 p

ar
tn

er
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t t
he

re
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

an
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t t
o 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
tim

et
ab

le
: 

• 
P

ro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 r
ep

or
t i

nc
lu

di
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 fo

r 
ad

op
tio

n 
by

 a
ll 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
by

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 J

un
e 

20
07

. 
• 

A
do

pt
io

n 
by

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
07

. 

Page 79



10
 

c.
 

A
na

ly
se

 th
e 

C
le

an
er

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t A

ct
, S

af
er

 G
re

en
er

 
A

ge
nd

a 
an

d 
re

vi
ew

 C
le

an
er

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

an
d 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t A

ct
 w

ith
 r

eg
ar

d 
to

 h
ow

 R
ed

di
tc

h 
B

or
ou

gh
 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 u
se

 le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

to
 e

nh
an

ce
 th

e 
to

w
n.

 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 in
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
ag

re
ed

 n
ew

 p
ow

er
s 

an
d 

fix
ed

 p
en

al
ty

 
no

tic
es

. T
he

se
 c

on
si

st
 o

f i
te

m
s 

re
la

tin
g 

to
: 

• 
Li

tte
r 

• 
W

as
te

 d
is

po
sa

l  
• 

D
og

 fo
ul

in
g 

• 
F

ly
tip

pi
ng

 
• 

N
oi

se
 

d.
 

i. 
Im

pl
em

en
t L

A
A

  
 

 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e.

 
ii.

 
D

ev
el

op
 a

 c
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

co
he

si
ve

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 
m

an
ag

in
g 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
S

tr
ee

t S
ce

ne
. 

A
 C

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
W

or
ki

ng
 G

ro
up

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

to
 lo

ok
 a

t s
er

vi
ce

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 fo

r:
 

 
• 

C
ou

nt
yw

id
e 

G
ra

ffi
ti 

an
d 

F
ly

-p
os

tin
g 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p.
 

• 
C

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
S

er
vi

ce
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 fo
r 

Li
tte

r,
 S

w
ee

pi
ng

, A
V

’s
 a

nd
 F

T
. 

• 
S

ha
re

d 
/ c

oo
rd

in
at

ed
 p

ro
m

ot
io

na
l m

at
er

ia
ls

 
 Jo

in
t t

ra
in

in
g 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 fo

r 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 w

ho
 c

ar
ry

ou
t B

V
P

I 1
99

 
e.

 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f C
us

to
m

er
 A

cc
es

s 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
. 

T
hi

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

el
ay

ed
 d

ue
 to

 p
ro

bl
em

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ne
w

 M
3 

co
m

pu
te

r 
sy

st
em

. A
 r

ev
is

ed
 d

at
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 s
et

 o
f t

he
 e

nd
 o

f M
ay

 2
00

7.
 

 

Page 80



11
 

P
E
R
F
O
R
M
A
N
C
E
 M

E
A
S
U
R
E
S
 F
O
R
 2
00
6/
07
 

  P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 1
 –
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 S
A
F
E
T
Y
 

  
In
d
ic
at
o
r 

20
06
/0
7 

P
as
t 
P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 
F
u
tu
re
 t
ar
g
et
s 

R
ef
 

  D
es

cr
ip
ti
o
n
 

T
ar
g
et
 

A
ct
u
al
 

T
ar
g
et
 

m
et
 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 

o
n
 0
5/
6 

20
03

/4
 

20
04

/5
 

20
05

/6
 

20
05
/6
 

Q
u
ar
ti
le
 
 2
00

7/
8 

20
08

/9
 

20
09

/1
0 

C
S

2 
N

um
be

r 
of

 B
rit

is
h 

C
rim

e 
S

ur
ve

y 
C

om
pa

ra
to

r 
cr

im
es

 r
ep

or
te

d 

5,
07

1 
4,

14
5 
�
 
�

 
6,

06
9 

5,
19

9 
4,

35
0 

 
5.

00
7 

4,
74

1 
T

B
A

 w
ith

 
G

O
W

M
 

B
V

12
6 

D
om

es
tic

 B
ur

gl
ar

ie
s 

pe
r 

1,
00

0 
H

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
9 

8.
02

 
�
 
�

 
15

.9
8 

12
.7

3 
9.

81
 

 
8.

00
 

7.
8 

7.
6 

B
V

12
7a

 
V

io
le

nt
 C

rim
e 

pe
r 

1,
00

0 
P

op
ul

at
io

n 
22

 
23

.1
8 

X
 

X
 

 
 

22
.7

1 
 

22
 

21
.8

 
21

.6
 

B
V

12
7b

 
R

ob
be

rie
s 

pe
r 

1,
00

0 
P

op
ul

at
io

n 
0.

68
 

0.
9 

X
 

X
 

 
 

0.
68

 
 

0.
68

 
0.

66
 

0.
64

 

B
V

12
8 

V
eh

ic
le

 C
rim

e 
pe

r 
1,

00
0 

P
op

ul
at

io
n 

9 
7.

31
 
�

 
�

 
12

.7
8 

12
.0

0 
9.

09
 

 
8.

7 
8.

5 
8.

3 

B
V

17
4 

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 r

ac
ia

l i
nc

id
en

ts
 r

ec
or

de
d 

by
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 p

er
 1

00
,0

00
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
- 

18
.9

1 
- 

- 
N

ot
 

re
co

rd
ed

 
N

ot
 

re
co

rd
ed

 
3.

78
 

 
- 

- 
- 

B
V

17
5 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 r

ac
ia

l i
nc

id
en

ts
 th

at
 r

es
ul

te
d 

in
 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
�

 
- 

N
ot

 
re

co
rd

ed
 

N
ot

 
re

co
rd

ed
 

10
0.

00
%

  
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

    

Page 81



12
 

O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
S
 A
N
D
 P
R
O
JE

C
T
S
 F
O
R
 2
00
7-
20
10
 

 P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 1
 

C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 S
A
F
E
T
Y
  

 
1.
1 

T
o
 r
ed

u
ce

 c
ri
m
e 

 
a.

 
T

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
C

D
R

P
 T

as
ki

ng
 to

 h
av

e 
a 

di
re

ct
 a

nd
 c

on
ce

rt
ed

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
cr

im
in

al
, a

nt
i-s

oc
ia

l a
nd

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
ss

ue
s.

 
b.

 
T

o 
ca

rr
y 

ou
t a

n 
op

tio
ns

 a
pp

ra
is

al
 o

n 
m

er
gi

ng
 th

e 
R

ed
di

tc
h 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
. 

c.
 

T
o 

m
ai

ns
tr

ea
m

 S
ec

tio
n 

17
 o

f t
he

 C
rim

e 
an

d 
D

is
or

de
r 

A
ct

 1
99

8.
 

d.
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

P
ro

je
ct

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 c
rim

e 
re

du
ct

io
n 

ta
rg

et
s.

 
(i)

 
H

om
e 

S
ec

ur
ity

 P
ro

je
ct

 
(ii

) 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
ay

ba
ck

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

ce
m

en
ts

 
(ii

i) 
W

oo
dr

ow
 D

is
tr

ic
t C

en
tr

e 
P

ro
je

ct
 

 1.
2 

T
o
 k
ee

p
 lo

ca
l c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
fe
el
in
g
 s
af
e 

 
a.

 
T

o 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 fo

r 
re

co
rd

in
g 

an
d 

ta
ki

ng
 a

ct
io

n 
ag

ai
ns

t r
ac

ia
l a

nd
 a

ll 
fo

rm
s 

of
 h

ar
as

sm
en

t. 
b.

 
D

ev
el

op
 a

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

st
ra

te
gy

 fo
r 

th
e 

R
ed

di
tc

h 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

. 
 1.
3 

T
o
 p
ro
vi
d
e 
cl
ea

n
er
, g

re
en

er
 p
u
b
lic
 s
p
ac
es

. 
 

a.
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f C

ou
nt

y 
w

id
e 

G
ra

ffi
ti 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

. 
b.

 
D

ev
el

op
 m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
to

 m
an

ag
e 

th
e 

S
m

al
l A

re
a 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t F
un

d 
 1.
4 

B
u
ild

 r
es

p
ec
t 
in
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
an

d
 r
ed

u
ce
 a
n
ti
-s
o
ci
al
 b
eh

av
io
u
r:
 

 
a.

 
D

ev
el

op
 a

 R
es

pe
ct

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
to

 e
nc

om
pa

ss
: 

• 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

&
 Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

• 
B

eh
av

io
ur

 &
 A

tte
nd

an
ce

s 
at

 S
ch

oo
l 

• 
S

up
po

rt
in

g 
fa

m
ili

es
 

• 
S

tr
en

gt
he

ni
ng

 c
om

m
un

iti
es
 

• 
E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 ju
st

ic
e 

b.
 

Im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 R
es

pe
ct

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
fo

r 
H

ou
si

ng
 M

an
ag

em
en

t. 
c.

 
D

el
iv

er
 th

e 
R

es
pe

ct
 a

nd
 R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 S
ch

oo
ls

 P
ro

je
ct

. 
 

Page 82



13
 

P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 2
 –
 E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 &
 T
R
A
N
S
P
O
R
T
 

 P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 :
 2
00
6/
07
 

 W
E
 A
IM

 T
O
: 
P
R
O
T
E
C
T
 A
N
D
 IM

P
R
O
V
E
 T
H
E
 E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 A
N
D
 T
R
A
N
S
P
O
R
T
 

 R
ed
di
tc
h 
ha
s 
a 
di
st
in
ct
iv
e 
na
tu
ra
l e
nv
iro
nm

en
t, 
bu
ilt
 fo
rm
 a
nd
 tr
an
sp
or
t n
et
w
or
k.
   

 W
ith
 o
ve
r 
5 
m
ill
io
n 
tr
ee
s 
an
d 
sh
ru
bs
 to
 m
an
ag
e,
 a
ro
un
d 
30
,0
00
 b
in
s 
to
 e
m
pt
y 
ea
ch
 w
ee
k,
 1
60
 li
st
ed
 b
ui
ld
in
gs
 to
 p
ro
te
ct
 a
nd
 9
4 
un
de
rp
as
se
s 

to
 c
le
an
, t
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
m
ak
es
 a
 s
ig
ni
fic
an
t c
on
tr
ib
ut
io
n 
to
 m
ai
nt
ai
ni
ng
 a
nd
 e
nh
an
ci
ng
 th
e 
en
vi
ro
nm

en
t. 

 W
e 
ai
m
 to
 m
an
ag
e 
an
d 
su
pp
or
t t
he
se
 a
ss
et
s,
 w
ith
 th
e 
he
lp
 o
f o
ur
 p
ar
tn
er
s,
 fo
r 
th
e 
pr
es
en
t a
nd
 fu
tu
re
 g
oo
d 
of
 th
e 
B
or
ou
gh
. 

 O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
 2
.1
 

W
e 
w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e 
to
 e
n
ab

le
 im

p
ro
ve
m
en

ts
 t
o
 t
h
e 
b
u
ilt
 e
n
vi
ro
n
m
en

t 
th
ro
u
g
h
: 
 

 A
s 

th
e 

lo
ca

l P
la

nn
in

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

w
e 

ar
e 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

en
su

rin
g 

th
at

 th
e 

ph
ys

ic
al

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t o

f t
he

 B
or

ou
gh

 is
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

in
 

a 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
m

an
ne

r.
 

 In
 th

e 
la

st
 y

ea
r,

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

im
pr

ov
ed

 th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

 it
 o

ffe
rs

 to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

. T
he

 s
pe

ed
 w

ith
 w

hi
ch

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

re
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 

ha
s 

im
pr

ov
ed

 a
nd

 a
 w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
re

 n
ow

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
on

lin
e.

  I
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 fe
w

er
 a

pp
ea

le
d 

de
ci

si
on

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ac
ce

pt
ed

, w
hi

ch
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
s 

th
at

 o
ur

 p
ol

ic
y 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
is

 s
ou

nd
. 

 P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

A
do

pt
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
N

o.
 3

 
LP

3 
ad

op
te

d 
31

 M
ay

 2
00

6 
b.

 
Im

pl
em

en
t C

on
ta

m
in

at
ed

 L
an

d 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

i. 
P

ur
ch

as
e 

an
d 

in
st

al
l s

of
tw

ar
e 

da
ta

ba
se

 o
f h

is
to

ric
al

 
co

nt
am

in
at

iv
e 

us
es

. 

W
e 

ha
ve

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
43

9 
si

te
s 

of
 p

ot
en

tia
l c

on
ce

rn
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 a
ll 

of
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

at
eg

or
iz

ed
 a

nd
 th

en
 p

rio
rit

iz
ed

. 

O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
 2
.2
 

W
e 
w
ill
 r
ed

u
ce
 t
h
e 
am

o
u
n
t 
o
f 
h
o
u
se

h
o
ld
 w
as
te
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
: 

 W
e 

w
ill

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

W
as

te
 F

or
um

 in
 th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

Jo
in

t M
un

ic
ip

al
 W

as
te

 S
tr

at
eg

y.
 

 T
he

 a
ve

ra
ge

 w
ei

gh
t o

f h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 h
as

 r
ed

uc
ed

 to
 4

09
kg

 p
er

 h
ea

d 
of

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

- 
co

m
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 4
14

kg
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 y

ea
r.

  I
n 

ad
di

tio
n 

w
e 

ha
ve

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

ra
te

s 
to

 2
0.

23
%

 c
om

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 1

7.
02

%
 in

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 y
ea

r.
 

 P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

Page 83



14
 

a.
 

P
ro

du
ce

 a
nd

 p
re

se
nt

 p
la

n 
fo

r 
A

lte
rn

at
e 

W
ee

kl
y 

C
ol

le
ct

io
ns

 to
 

M
em

be
rs

 fo
r 

re
so

lu
tio

n 
- 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
w

as
te

 m
in

im
is

at
io

n 
el

em
en

t. 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

b.
 

R
ol

l o
ut

 o
f A

W
C

 (
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

M
em

be
r 

de
ci

si
on

).
 

• 
P

ha
se

 1
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 –

 9
2 

%
 o

f t
he

 b
or

ou
gh

 n
ow

 o
n 

A
W

C
 

sy
st

em
 

• 
P

la
nn

in
g 

co
m

m
en

ce
d 

re
: i

nt
ro

du
ct

io
n 

to
 fi

na
l 8

%
. 

c.
 

T
o 

ac
hi

ev
e 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
ta

rg
et

s 
(G

ov
er

nm
en

t T
ar

ge
t o

f 1
8%

 a
nd

 
JM

W
S

 ta
rg

et
 o

f 2
4%

 r
ec

yc
lin

g)
. 

20
06

/0
7 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
ra

te
 2

0.
23

%
 

O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
 2
.3
 

W
e 
w
ill
 t
ak
e 
ac

ti
o
n
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 s
u
st
ai
n
ab

ili
ty
 in

 t
h
e 
to
w
n
 

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 c

om
m

itt
ed

 to
 w

or
ki

ng
 to

w
ar

ds
 a

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 fu
tu

re
 b

y 
se

ek
in

g 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

it 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
nd

 in
flu

en
ce

 o
th

er
s 

in
 

do
in

g 
so

. 
 P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

R
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l e

co
lo

gi
ca

l f
oo

tp
rin

t o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il.
 

 
• 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ad
op

te
d 

th
e 

E
ne

rg
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
on

 2
4th

 A
pr

il 
20

06
.  

• 
E

ne
rg

y 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

s 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 m
on

ito
r 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 w
ith

 s
av

in
gs

 
id

en
tif

ie
d.

 
• 

F
un

di
ng

 o
f £

15
,0

00
 p

.a
. f

or
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

s 
ap

pr
ov

ed
.  

£1
5,

00
0 

sp
en

t 
20

06
/0

7.
   

• 
In

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 “
S

M
A

R
T

” 
m

et
er

s 
to

 m
on

ito
r 

ga
s 

an
d 

   
   

  
el

ec
tr

ic
 v

ia
 a

 w
eb

 li
nk

 a
ch

ie
ve

d.
 

• 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
- 

S
ta

ff 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

ca
m

pa
ig

n 
st

ar
te

d 
to

 s
av

e 
en

er
gy

 
• 

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 S

ol
ar

 p
an

el
s 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 f

un
ct

io
ni

ng
 a

s 
at

 3
1st

 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7.
 

 N
ot

tin
gh

am
 D

ec
la

ra
tio

n 
si

gn
ed

. 
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 b
ei

ng
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 to
 b

e 
pr

es
en

te
d 

du
rin

g 
20

07
. 

b.
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 s

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
fo

r 
pu

rc
ha

si
ng

. 
 

D
ra

ft 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 b

ei
ng

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 a

lo
ng

si
de

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 
ov

er
ar

ch
in

g 
S

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e.

   
c.

 
D

ev
el

op
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ad
vi

ce
 t

o 
ap

pl
ic

an
ts

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
de

si
gn

 a
nd

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n.
 

D
oc

um
en

t n
ow

 to
 b

e 
ca

lle
d 
C
lim
at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 
in
 P
la
nn
in
g 

an
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 A

pr
il 

20
07

 
O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
 2
.4
   
W
e 
w
ill
 e
n
h
an

ce
 t
h
e 
en

vi
ro
n
m
en

t 
in
 t
h
e 
to
w
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
: 

 W
e 

ai
m

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

s 
an

d 
th

e 
st

re
et

 s
ce

ne
 th

ro
ug

h 
be

tte
r 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
's

 la
nd

sc
ap

e,
 g

ro
un

ds
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
, w

as
te

 a
nd

 

Page 84



15
 

cl
ea

ns
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

 S
tr

ee
t c

le
an

lin
es

s 
ha

s 
im

pr
ov

ed
 p

ut
tin

g 
th

e 
to

w
n 

in
 th

e 
'c

le
an

es
t' 

25
%

 o
f t

he
 c

ou
nt

ry
.  

P
ub

lic
 r

ep
or

ts
 o

f l
itt

er
, f

ly
-t

ip
pi

ng
 a

nd
 a

ba
nd

on
ed

 
ve

hi
cl

es
 a

re
 a

t a
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

 lo
w

.  
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

at
 A

rr
ow

 V
al

le
y 

C
ou

nt
ry

 P
ar

k 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

re
co

gn
is

ed
 b

y 
a 

G
re

en
 

F
la

g 
aw

ar
d.

 
 P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

C
om

pl
et

e 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 fo
r 

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
an

d 
S

tr
ee

t C
le

an
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

 
• 

P
ro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 d

ra
ft 

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
an

d 
S

tr
ee

t C
le

an
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 r

ea
dy

 fo
r 

pu
bl

ic
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
/ m

em
be

r 
ap

pr
ov

al
. 

• 
T

he
 m

ov
e 

to
 A

W
C

 m
ea

nt
 th

at
 W

as
te

 C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
w

er
e 

pr
io

rit
is

ed
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 L

an
ds

ca
pe

 a
nd

 S
tr

ee
t 

C
le

an
si

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
re

 to
 fo

llo
w

 
b.

 
R

ev
ie

w
 im

pa
ct

 o
f L

an
ds

ca
pe

 C
ap

ita
l w

or
ks

. 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f i
m

pa
ct

 a
nd

 le
ve

l o
f c

ap
ita

l f
un

di
ng

 fo
r 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 h

as
 le

d 
to

 a
 r

ev
en

ue
 b

id
 b

ei
ng

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 fo

r 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 w

or
ks

 s
o 

th
at

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f c
ap

ita
l f

un
di

ng
 c

an
 b

e 
m

ax
im

iz
ed

. 
c.

 
Im

pl
em

en
t C

ap
ita

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 p
ar

ks
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
es

. 
M

or
to

n 
S

ta
nl

ey
 P

ar
k 

P
ro

je
ct

 C
om

pl
et

e.
 

C
ur

re
nt

ly
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
to

 p
ut

 to
ge

th
er

 p
la

n 
an

d 
ex

te
rn

al
 

fu
nd

in
g 

bi
ds

. 
T

en
de

r 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 s
cr

ut
in

iz
ed

 b
y 

le
ga

l s
er

vi
ce

s.
  

H
LF

 b
id

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
su

bm
itt

ed
 -

P
ha

se
 o

ne
 o

ut
co

m
e 

du
e 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

7 
d.

 
P

re
pa

re
 S

P
D

 o
n 

O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

 P
ro

vi
si

on
. 

D
ra

ft 
S

P
D

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
fo

r 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
 2
.5
   
T
o
 p
ro
vi
d
e 
a 
p
u
b
lic

 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
tr
an

sp
o
rt
 n
et
w
o
rk
 t
h
at
 is
 a
cc
es
si
b
le
, r
el
ia
b
le
, e

ff
ic
ie
n
t 
an

d
 a
ff
o
rd
ab

le
. 

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

m
et

 d
em

an
d 

by
 e

xp
an

di
ng

 th
e 

D
ia

l-A
-R

id
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
bo

ok
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
cu

st
om

er
s 

w
hi

ls
t t

he
 r

ev
is

ed
 

C
on

ce
ss

io
na

ry
 F

ar
es

 S
ch

em
e 

ha
s 

he
lp

ed
 e

ld
er

ly
 r

es
id

en
ts

 a
nd

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

to
 m

ak
e 

ov
er

 1
.2

 m
ill

io
n 

jo
ur

ne
ys

 th
is

 y
ea

r.
  W

e 
ha

ve
 

w
or

ke
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

B
us

 Q
ua

lit
y 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 (
B

Q
P

) 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

 P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

E
xp

lo
re

 o
pt

io
ns

 fo
r 

fu
rt

he
r 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
of

 th
e 

D
ia

l A
 R

id
e 

se
rv

ic
e.

 
 

O
pt

io
ns

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 C

ou
nc

il 
on

 1
1th

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

06
.  

F
ul

l 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

is
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

of
 r

ev
en

ue
 fu

nd
in

g 

b.
 

P
ro

m
ot

e 
th

e 
D

ia
l A

 R
id

e 
an

d 
S

ho
pm

ob
ili

ty
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 b

la
ck

 
an

d 
m

in
or

ity
 e

th
ni

c 
gr

ou
ps

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

. 
In

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
W

in
n 

pr
oj

ec
t a

s 
a 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

ex
er

ci
se

.  
A

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 B
M

E
 u

pt
ak

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

bu
t d

iff
ic

ul
t t

o 
qu

an
tif

y 
at

 p
re

se
nt

. 
F

ur
th

er
 w

or
k 

on
 jo

in
t s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
m

ot
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
pl

an
ne

d.
 

Page 85



16
 

c.
 

D
ev

el
op

 E
xi

t S
tr

at
eg

y 
on

 e
nd

 o
f f

un
di

ng
 fr

om
 U

rb
an

 B
us

 
C

ha
lle

ng
e.

 
In

cl
ud

ed
 w

ith
 2

.5
 a

. (
ab

ov
e)

.  
T

he
 s

ub
se

qu
en

t f
un

di
ng

 b
id

 to
 th

e 
W

in
n 

pr
oj

ec
t w

as
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l. 
d.

 
In

tr
od

uc
e 

S
m

ar
t C

ar
d 

bu
s 

pa
ss

es
. 

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s.

  O
rig

in
al

 c
ou

nt
y 

sc
he

m
e 

w
as

 s
up

er
se

de
d 

by
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 
fo

r 
N

at
io

na
l 2

00
8 

sc
he

m
e 

(d
et

ai
ls

 o
f s

ys
te

m
s 

an
d 

de
si

gn
 s

til
l t

o 
be

 
an

no
un

ce
d 

by
 D

O
T

).
   

W
ill

 s
til

l b
e 

a 
jo

in
t p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t e

xe
rc

is
e 

w
ith

 
W

C
C

? 
  

e.
 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 m

on
ito

r 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
ta

xi
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

lic
en

si
ng

. 
i. 

T
o 

ca
rr

y 
ou

t p
la

nn
ed

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
 in

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 a
ge

nc
ie

s,
 a

nd
 tw

ic
e 

a 
ye

ar
 

in
te

rn
al

ly
. 

ii.
 

Im
pl

em
en

t n
ew

 m
ed

ic
al

 c
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
dr

iv
er

 b
ad

ge
 

in
iti

at
iv

es
. 

iii
. 

T
o 

co
ns

id
er

 e
xt

en
si

on
 o

f t
he

 ta
xi

 b
us

 s
er

vi
ce

. 
 

 C
om

pl
et

ed
 

  In
tr

od
uc

ed
 M

ay
 2

00
6 

 T
he

 s
er

vi
ce

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

on
go

in
g 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
re

vi
ew

.  
T

o 
re

du
ce

 c
os

ts
, a

 s
m

al
l f

ee
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

in
tr

od
uc

ed
.  

T
he

 s
ch

em
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 
ex

te
nd

ed
 u

nt
il 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

08
 a

nd
 w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 b
e 

fu
nd

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 B

us
 C

ha
lle

ng
e 

fu
nd

in
g.

 
 

Page 86



17
 

P
E
R
F
O
R
M
A
N
C
E
 M

E
A
S
U
R
E
S
 F
O
R
 2
00
6/
07
 

 P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 2
 –
 E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 &
 T
R
A
N
S
P
O
R
T
 

  
In
d
ic
at
o
r 

20
06
/0
7 

P
as
t 
P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 
F
u
tu
re
 t
ar
g
et
s 

R
ef
 

  D
es

cr
ip
ti
o
n
 

T
ar
g
et
 

A
ct
u
al
 

T
ar
g
et
 

m
et
 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 

o
n
 0
5/
6 

20
03

/4
 
20
04

/5
 

20
05

/6
 

20
05
/6
 

Q
u
ar
ti
le
 
 2
00

7/
8 

20
08

/9
 

20
09

/1
0 

B
V

08
2a

 
(i)

 
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 a
ris

in
gs

 
w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 s

en
t b

y 
th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 fo

r 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

20
%

 
20

.2
3%

 
�

 
�

 
11

.4
4%

 
15

.8
8%

 
16

.8
6%

 
 

25
%

 
26

%
 

 

B
V

08
2a

 
(ii

) 
T

he
 to

ta
l t

on
na

ge
 o

f h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 a
ris

in
gs

 
w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 s

en
t b

y 
th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 fo

r 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

59
00

 
6,

56
0 
�

 
�

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
5,

53
4 

- 
72

00
 

82
00

 
 

B
V

08
2b

 
(i)

 
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 s
en

t b
y 

th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
fo

r 
co

m
po

st
in

g 
or

 tr
ea

tm
en

t b
y 

an
ae

ro
bi

c 
di

ge
st

io
n 

B
V

08
2b

 
(ii

) 
T

he
 to

nn
ag

e 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 s
en

t b
y 

th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
fo

r 
co

m
po

st
in

g 
or

 tr
ea

tm
en

t b
y 

an
ae

ro
bi

c 
di

ge
st

io
n 

W
e 

do
 n

ot
 c

ol
le

ct
 ‘g

re
en

 w
as

te
’ f

ro
m

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s,

 b
ut

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 r

es
id

en
ts

 to
 c

om
po

st
 it

 a
t h

om
e,

 a
s 

ag
re

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nt

y-
w

id
e 

Jo
in

t M
un

ic
ip

al
 W

as
te

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 

B
V

08
4a

 
K

ilo
gr

am
m

es
 o

f h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 p

er
 

he
ad

 
41

0 
40

9 
�

 
�

 
40

5 
41

7 
41

7 
B

el
ow

 
m

ed
ia

n 
37

0 
35

5 
 

B
V

08
4b

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
ch

an
ge

 fr
om

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
ye

ar
 in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 k

ilo
gr

am
m

e 
of

 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

w
as

te
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 p
er

 h
ea

d 
of

 th
e 

po
pu

la
tio

n 

-1
.6

%
 

-1
.2
0%

 
X

 
�

 
-4

.7
1%

 
2.

89
%

 
0.

07
%

 
 

-5
.8

%
 

-4
.0

%
 

 

B
V

08
6 

C
os

t o
f W

as
te

 C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

pe
r 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
- 

£4
9.

01
 

- 
- 

£2
9.

60
 

£4
5.

50
 

£4
2.

41
 

 
 

 
 

B
V

09
1a

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

re
si

de
nt

 in
 a

re
a 

se
rv

ed
 b

y 
a 

ke
rb

si
de

 r
ec

yc
la

bl
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
 

92
%

 
93

.7
3%

 
�

 
�

 
44

%
 

65
.5

5%
 

89
%

 
W

or
st

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
 

B
V

09
1b

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

re
si

de
nt

 in
 a

re
a 

se
rv

ed
 b

y 
a 

ke
rb

si
de

 r
ec

yc
la

bl
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
of

 a
t 

le
as

t t
w

o 
re

cy
cl

ab
le

s 

92
%

 
93

.7
3 
�

 
�

 
44

%
 

65
.5

5%
 

89
%

 
W

or
st

 
95

%
 

95
%

 
 

B
V

10
6 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 n

ew
 h

om
es

 b
ui

lt 
on

 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 la

nd
 

70
%

 
91

.6
3%

 
�

 
�

 
54

%
 

60
%

 
65

%
 

B
el

ow
 

m
ed

ia
n 

70
%

 
70

%
 

 

B
V

10
9a

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 m
aj

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 1

3 
w

ee
ks

 
60

%
 

77
.2

7%
 
�

 
�

 
61

%
 

60
%

 
63

.6
4 

A
bo

ve
 

m
ed

ia
n 

60
%

 
60

%
 

 

Page 87



18
 

In
d
ic
at
o
r 

20
06
/0
7 

P
as
t 
P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 
F
u
tu
re
 t
ar
g
et
s 

R
ef
 

  D
es

cr
ip
ti
o
n
 

T
ar
g
et
 

A
ct
u
al
 

T
ar
g
et
 

m
et
 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 

o
n
 0
5/
6 

20
03

/4
 
20
04

/5
 

20
05

/6
 

20
05
/6
 

Q
u
ar
ti
le
 
 2
00

7/
8 

20
08

/9
 

20
09

/1
0 

B
V

10
9b

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 m
in

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 8

 w
ee

ks
 

65
%

 
75

.6
9%

 
�

 
X

 
36

%
 

65
%

 
81

.3
1%

 
B

el
ow

 
m

ed
ia

n 
 

65
%

 
65

%
 

 

B
V

10
9c

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 o
th

er
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 8

 w
ee

ks
 

80
%

 
92

.4
6%

 
�

 
�

 
55

%
 

77
%

 
88

.8
6%

 
w

or
st

 
80

%
 

80
%

 
 

B
V

16
6a

 
S

co
re

 a
ga

in
st

 a
 c

he
ck

lis
t o

f e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t b
es

t 
pr

ac
tic

e 
fo

r 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

/tr
ad

in
g 

st
an

da
rd

s 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 
�

 
�

 
70

%
 

80
%

 
90

%
 

B
el

ow
 

m
ed

ia
n 

 
 

 

B
V

19
9a

 
T

he
 p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 r
el

ev
an

t l
an

d 
an

d 
hi

gh
w

ay
s 

(e
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
) 

th
at

 is
 a

ss
es

se
d 

as
 h

av
in

g 
co

m
bi

ne
d 

de
po

si
ts

 o
f l

itt
er

 a
nd

 
de

tr
itu

s 
th

at
 fa

ll 
be

lo
w

 a
n 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
 le

ve
l 

8%
 

8.
3%

 
X

 
X

 
13

.6
0%

 
9.

22
%

 
8.

11
%

 
be

st
 

8%
 

8%
 

8%
 

B
V

19
9b

 
T

he
 p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 r
el

ev
an

t l
an

d 
an

d 
hi

gh
w

ay
s 

(e
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
) 

fr
om

 w
hi

ch
 

un
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 le
ve

ls
 o

f g
ra

ffi
ti 

ar
e 

vi
si

bl
e 

1 
0.

67
 
�

 
�

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
1.

00
%

 
- 

1%
 

1%
 

1%
 

B
V

19
9c

 
T

he
 p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 r
el

ev
an

t l
an

d 
an

d 
hi

gh
w

ay
s 

(e
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
) 

fr
om

 w
hi

ch
 

un
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 le
ve

ls
 o

f f
ly

-p
os

tin
g 

ar
e 

vi
si

bl
e 

0 
0 

�
 
�

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
0%

 
- 

0%
 

0%
 

0%
 

B
V

19
9d

 
T

he
 y

ea
r 

on
 y

ea
r 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 th
e 

to
ta

l n
um

be
r 

of
 in

ci
de

nt
s 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
to

ta
l n

um
be

r 
of

 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t a
ct

io
ns

 ta
ke

n 
to

 d
ea

l w
ith

 fl
y-

tip
pi

ng
 (

sc
or

ed
 1

 to
 4

, w
ith

 1
 b

ei
ng

 b
es

t)
 

1 
2 

X
 

X
 

N
A

 
N

A
 

1 
- 

1 
1 

1 

B
V

20
0a

 
D

id
 th

e 
lo

ca
l p

la
nn

in
g 

au
th

or
ity

 s
ub

m
it 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
ch

em
e 

by
 2

8t
h 

M
ar

ch
 

20
05

 a
nd

 th
er

ea
fte

r 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
3-

ye
ar

 r
ol

lin
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e-

 

Y
E

S
 

Y
E

S
 
�

 
�

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
Y

E
S

 
- 

Y
es

 
Y

es
 

Y
es

 

B
V

20
0b

 
H

as
 th

e 
lo

ca
l p

la
nn

in
g 

au
th

or
ity

 m
et

 th
e 

m
ile

st
on

es
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t L

oc
al

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

ch
em

e 
se

ts
 o

ut
- 

Y
E

S
 

Y
E

S
 
�

 
�

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
N

A
 

- 
Y

es
 

Y
es

 
Y

es
 

B
V

20
0c

 
D

id
 th

e 
lo

ca
l p

la
nn

in
g 

au
th

or
ity

 p
ub

lis
h 

an
 

an
nu

al
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

re
po

rt
 b

y 
31

st
 D

ec
em

be
r 

of
 

th
e 

la
st

 y
ea

r-
 

Y
es

 
Y

E
S

 
�

 
�

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
Y

E
S

 
- 

Y
es

 
Y

es
 

 

B
V

20
4 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 a

pp
ea

ls
 a

llo
w

ed
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
's

 d
ec

is
io

n 
to

 r
ef

us
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
, a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pe
al

s 
ag

ai
ns

t r
ef

us
al

s 
of

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
  

33
%

 
50

%
 

X
 

X
 

N
A

 
41

%
 

15
%

 
w

or
st

 
33

%
 

33
%

 
 

Page 88



19
 

In
d
ic
at
o
r 

20
06
/0
7 

P
as
t 
P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 
F
u
tu
re
 t
ar
g
et
s 

R
ef
 

  D
es

cr
ip
ti
o
n
 

T
ar
g
et
 

A
ct
u
al
 

T
ar
g
et
 

m
et
 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 

o
n
 0
5/
6 

20
03

/4
 
20
04

/5
 

20
05

/6
 

20
05
/6
 

Q
u
ar
ti
le
 
 2
00

7/
8 

20
08

/9
 

20
09

/1
0 

B
V

20
5 

T
he

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y'
s 

sc
or

e 
ag

ai
ns

t a
 'q

ua
lit

y 
of

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
s'

 c
he

ck
lis

t 
10

0%
 

94
.4

4%
 

X
 
�

 
N

A
 

66
%

 
94

.4
4%

 
w

or
st

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
 

B
V

21
6a

 
N

um
be

r 
of

 s
ite

s 
of

 p
ot

en
tia

l c
on

ce
rn

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

ar
ea

, w
ith

 r
es

pe
ct

 to
 la

nd
 

co
nt

am
in

at
io

n 

N
A

 
46

9 
- 

�
 

N
A

 
N

A
 

50
0*

 
n/

a 
N

A
 

N
A

 
 

B
V

21
6b

 
N

um
be

r 
of

 s
ite

s 
fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 d

et
ai

le
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 d

ec
id

e 
w

he
th

er
 

re
m

ed
ia

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
la

nd
 is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
, a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f a
ll 

's
ite

s 
of

 p
ot

en
tia

l c
on

ce
rn

' 

N
A

 
11

 
- 

�
 

N
A

 
N

A
 

6.
2%

* 
- 

 
 

 

B
V

21
7 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

ol
lu

tio
n 

co
nt

ro
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
in

st
al

la
tio

ns
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 o
n 

tim
e 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 
�

 
�

- 
N

A
 

N
A

 
10

0%
 

- 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
 

B
V

21
8a

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 n
ew

 r
ep

or
ts

 o
f a

ba
nd

on
ed

 
ve

hi
cl

es
 in

ve
st

ig
at

ed
 w

ith
in

 2
4 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
no

tif
ic

at
io

n 

15
%

 
9.

32
%

 
X

 
X

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
10

.7
5%

 
- 

15
%

 
20

%
 

25
%

 

B
V

21
8b

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 a
ba

nd
on

ed
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

re
m

ov
ed

 
w

ith
in

 2
4 

ho
ur

s 
fr

om
 th

e 
po

in
t a

t w
hi

ch
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

is
 le

ga
lly

 e
nt

itl
ed

 to
 r

em
ov

e 
th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 

80
.1

0%
 

70
.5

%
 

X
 
�

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
52

.5
2%

 
- 

80
%

 
90

%
 

95
%

 

B
V

21
9a

 
T

ot
al

 n
um

be
r 

of
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

s 
in

 th
e 

lo
ca

l 
au

th
or

ity
 a

re
a 

co
nt

ex
tm

ea
su

re
 

2 
- 

- 
N

A
 

N
A

 
2 

n/
a 

N
A

 
N

A
 

N
A

 

B
V

21
9b

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
ar

ea
s 

in
 th

e 
lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
ity

 a
re

a 
w

ith
 a

n 
up

-t
o-

da
te

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 
�

 
�

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
10

0.
00

%
 

- 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

B
V

21
9c

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
ar

ea
s 

w
ith

 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ro
po

sa
ls

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
�

 
�

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
10

0.
00

%
 

- 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

E
T

01
 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

in
g 

in
 th

e 
R

B
C

 k
er

bs
id

e 
dr

y 
re

cy
cl

ab
le

s 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

75
%

 
63

%
 

X
 

X
 

55
.0

0%
 

69
.8

8%
 

71
.5

0%
 

 
C

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

E
T

04
 

N
um

be
r 

of
 p

ub
lic

 r
ep

or
ts

 o
f l

itt
er

  
19

9 
17

6 
�

 
�

 
34

8 
27

5 
21

4 
 

C
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n 

E
T

05
 

N
um

be
r 

of
 p

ub
lic

 r
ep

or
ts

 o
f f

ly
 ti

pp
in

g 
 

96
6 

94
3 

�
 
�

 
16

20
 

14
87

 
1,

01
7 

 
C

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

E
T

07
a 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 s

ch
ed

ul
ed

 h
ig

h 
ris

k 
fo

od
 

pr
em

is
es

 in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 th

at
 w

er
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 o

n 
tim

e 
  

10
0%

 
10

0%
 
�

 
�

 
87

%
 

70
%

 
10

0.
00

%
 

 
C

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

Page 89



20
 

In
d
ic
at
o
r 

20
06
/0
7 

P
as
t 
P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 
F
u
tu
re
 t
ar
g
et
s 

R
ef
 

  D
es

cr
ip
ti
o
n
 

T
ar
g
et
 

A
ct
u
al
 

T
ar
g
et
 

m
et
 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 

o
n
 0
5/
6 

20
03

/4
 
20
04

/5
 

20
05

/6
 

20
05
/6
 

Q
u
ar
ti
le
 
 2
00

7/
8 

20
08

/9
 

20
09

/1
0 

E
T

07
b 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 s

ch
ed

ul
ed

 lo
w

 r
is

k 
fo

od
 

pr
em

is
es

 in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 th

at
 w

er
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 o

n 
tim

e 
  

75
%

 
80

.3
%

 
�

 
�

 
72

%
 

67
%

 
77

.0
5%

 
 

C
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n 

E
T

08
a 

N
um

be
r 

of
 r

ep
or

ts
 o

f '
ab

an
do

ne
d'

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
93

4 
84

8 
�

 
�

 
16

05
 

11
63

 
95

8 
 

C
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n 

E
T

08
c 

N
um

be
r 

of
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

cl
as

se
d 

as
 a

ba
nd

on
ed

 a
nd

 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

ly
 r

em
ov

ed
 

23
2 

20
0 

�
 
�

 
31

2 
31

4 
23

8 
 

C
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n 

E
T

09
 

N
um

be
r 

of
 D

ia
l-A

-R
id

e 
pa

ss
en

ge
r 

tr
ip

s 
pe

r 
ye

ar
 

33
,5

00
 

37
,7

05
 
�

 
�

 
19

,9
42

 
26

,2
54

 
31

,4
71

 
 

C
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n 

E
T

10
 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 D

ia
l-A

-R
id

e 
us

er
s 

sa
yi

ng
 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

is
 g

oo
d 

or
 e

xc
el

le
nt

 
95

%
 

98
.3

%
 
�

 
�

 
N

A
 

99
%

 
92

%
 

 
C

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

E
T

11
 

T
ot

al
 n

um
be

r 
of

 u
se

s 
of

 S
ho

pm
ob

ili
ty

 
23

,0
00

 
22

,6
11

 
X

 
X

 
20

,8
98

 
22

,2
58

 
23

,1
80

 
 

C
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n 

E
T

12
 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 S

ho
pm

ob
ili

ty
 u

se
rs

 s
ay

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

is
 e

ith
er

 g
oo

d 
or

 e
xc

el
le

nt
. 

95
%

 
10

0%
 
�

 
�

 
N

A
 

99
%

 
99

.0
2%

 
 

C
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n 

E
T

15
 

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

on
ce

ss
io

na
ry

 jo
ur

ne
ys

 p
er

 y
ea

r 
1,

30
0,

00
0 

pe
r 

ye
ar

 
1,

49
8,

83
0 
�

 
�

 
N

A
 

82
3,

35
1  

12
47

96
6 

 
C

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

   

Page 90



21
 

O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
S
 A
N
D
 P
R
O
JE

C
T
S
 F
O
R
 2
00
7-
20
10

 
 P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 2
 

E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 &
 T
R
A
N
S
P
O
R
T
  

 E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 

 2.
1 

T
o
 e
n
ab

le
 im

p
ro
ve
m
en

ts
 t
o
 t
h
e 
b
u
ilt
 e
n
vi
ro
n
m
en

t 
to
 a
ch

ie
ve
 h
ig
h
 q
u
al
it
y 
d
ev
el
o
p
m
en

t 
in
 t
h
e 
co

n
te
xt
 o
f 
p
o
te
n
ti
al
 g
ro
w
th
: 

 
a.

 
R

es
po

nd
 to

 th
e 

W
es

t M
id

la
nd

s 
R

eg
io

na
l S

pa
tia

l S
tr

at
eg

y.
 

b.
 

R
es

po
nd

 to
 W

es
t M

id
la

nd
s 

R
eg

io
na

l S
pa

tia
l S

tr
at

eg
y 

P
ha

se
 3

 R
ev

is
io

n.
 

c.
 

P
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

of
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 (

D
P

D
s)

. 
d.

 
P

re
pa

re
 a

 S
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 P

la
nn

in
g 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 (

S
P

D
s)

. 
e.

 
R

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
C

on
ta

m
in

at
ed

 L
an

d 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

w
ith

 id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 n
ew

 p
rio

rit
ie

s.
 

 
2.
2 

T
o
 a
ch

ie
ve
 a
 s
u
st
ai
n
ab

le
 le
ve
l o

f 
h
o
u
se

h
o
ld
 w
as

te
. 

a.
 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 im

pr
ov

ed
 w

as
te

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 “

ha
rd

 to
 r

ea
ch

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s”

. 
b.

 
A

ch
ie

ve
 th

e 
Jo

in
t M

un
ic

ip
al

 W
as

te
 T

ar
ge

t o
f 2

4%
. 

c.
 

P
re

se
nt

 o
ut

co
m

es
 o

f m
ov

e 
to

 A
lte

rn
at

e 
W

ee
kl

y 
C

ol
le

ct
io

ns
. 

d.
 

T
o 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
ils

 in
 W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 to
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
Jo

in
t M

un
ic

ip
al

 W
as

te
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

in
ve

st
ig

at
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r 

sh
ar

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s/

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

ki
ng

. 
 2.
3 

P
ro
vi
d
e 
C
le
an

er
 G
re
en

 P
u
b
lic

 S
p
ac
es

. 
 

a.
 

P
ub

lis
h 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

t s
er

vi
ce

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 fo

r 
S

tr
ee

t C
le

an
si

ng
 a

nd
 L

an
ds

ca
pi

ng
. 

 
b.

 
T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. 
 

c.
 

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

 d
el

iv
er

y.
 

 
d.

 
E

st
at

e 
E

nh
an

ce
m

en
t P

ro
je

ct
. 

 
e.

 
E

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 C
le

an
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s 
an

d 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t A
ct

. 
f. 

 I
m

pl
em

en
t F

lo
od

 A
lle

vi
at

io
n 

S
ch

em
e 

– 
B

at
ch

le
y 

B
ro

ok
 

 
2.
4 

T
o
 d
ev
el
o
p
 p
la
n
s 
an

d
 s
tr
at
eg

ie
s 
to
 im

p
ro
ve
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 s
u
st
ai
n
ab

ili
ty
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

a.
 

R
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l c

ar
bo

n 
fo

ot
pr

in
t o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

(L
A

A
).

 
b.

 
P

ro
du

ct
io

n 
an

d 
ad

op
tio

n 
of

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

. 
c.

 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 R
ed

di
tc

h 
Lo

ca
l S

tr
at

eg
y 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

a 
ke

y 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

in
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tr

at
eg

y.
 

 
2.
5 

T
o
 p
ro
vi
d
e 
a 
p
u
b
lic

 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
tr
an

sp
o
rt
 n
et
w
o
rk
 t
h
at
 is

 a
cc
es
si
b
le
, r
el
ia
b
le
, e

ff
ic
ie
n
t 
an

d
 a
ff
o
rd
ab

le
. 

 
a.

 
S

ec
ur

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

fo
r 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

Page 91



22
 

b.
 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
th

e 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

of
 a

 D
ia

l A
 R

id
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

af
te

r 
en

d 
of

 W
iN

N
 fu

nd
in

g 
in

 A
pr

il 
20

08
. 

c.
 

In
tr

od
uc

e 
S

m
ar

t C
ar

d 
bu

s 
pa

ss
es

 in
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 N

at
io

na
l C

on
ce

ss
io

na
ry

 F
ar

es
 S

ch
em

e.
 

d.
 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 m

on
ito

r 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
ta

xi
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

lic
en

si
ng

 b
y:

 
• 

P
la

nn
ed

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

• 
O

ng
oi

ng
 m

ed
ic

al
 c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

dr
ug

 te
st

in
g 

in
iti

at
iv

es
. 

 

Page 92



23
 

P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 3
 –
 H
O
U
S
IN
G
 

 P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 :
 2
00
6/
07
 

 W
E
 A
IM

 T
O
: 
P
R
O
M
O
T
E
 B
E
S
T
 S
T
A
N
D
A
R
D
S
 A
N
D
 O
P
P
O
R
T
U
N
IT
IE
S
 IN

 H
O
U
S
IN
G
 A
N
D
 H
E
A
L
T
H
 

 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il'
s 
co
rp
or
at
e 
ho
us
in
g 
ag
en
da
 is
 e
nc
om

pa
ss
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
H
ou
si
ng
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
S
ta
te
m
en
t 2
00
5-
20
09
 a
do
pt
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
co
un
ci
l a
nd
 p
as
se
d 

'fi
t f
or
 p
ur
po
se
' b
y 
th
e 
G
ov
er
nm

en
t O

ffi
ce
 fo
r 
th
e 
W
es
t M

id
la
nd
s.
 

 It 
de
sc
rib
es
 h
ow
 h
ou
si
ng
 w
ill
 d
ev
el
op
 in
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
an
d 
th
e 
co
nt
rib
ut
io
n 
th
at
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
an
d 
its
 m
ai
n 
pa
rt
ne
rs
 w
ill
 m
ak
e 
to
 a
ch
ie
vi
ng
 th
is
. 

 H
O
U
S
IN
G
 

 O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
  3
.1
 

W
e 
w
ill
 im

p
ro
ve
 t
h
e 
q
u
al
it
y 
o
f 
p
ri
va
te
ly
 o
w
n
ed

 o
r 
re
n
te
d
 h
o
u
si
n
g
 in

 t
h
e 
B
o
ro
u
g
h
 

 W
e 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 la
nd

lo
rd

s 
an

d 
te

na
nt

s 
to

 r
ai

se
 th

e 
st

an
da

rd
 o

f p
riv

at
el

y 
re

nt
ed

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

an
d 

m
ee

t o
ur

 o
bl

ig
at

io
ns

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 A

ct
 2

00
4.

 
 In

 2
00

6/
07

 a
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t g
ra

nt
 w

as
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 th

e 
m

os
t v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 h

ou
si

ng
. 

 T
he

 g
ra

nt
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ut
ili

se
d 

to
:-

 
• 

pr
ov

id
e 

30
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
w

ith
 li

fe
 ti

m
e 

lo
an

s 
• 

Im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 H
ou

se
s 

in
 M

ul
tip

le
 O

cc
up

at
io

n 
(H

M
O

’s
) 

lic
en

si
ng

 
• 

A
ss

is
t 1

2 
cl

ie
nt

s 
w

ith
 h

om
e 

re
pa

irs
 a

nd
 1

1 
fu

rt
he

r 
gr

an
ts

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
• 

B
en

ef
it 

20
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
w

ith
 e

ne
rg

y 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

w
or

ks
 b

ei
ng

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t. 

 T
he

re
 is

 a
 fu

rt
he

r 
gr

an
t a

gr
ee

d 
fo

r 
20

07
/0

8 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
e 

ut
ili

se
d 

to
 fu

rt
he

r 
pr

og
re

ss
 th

e 
lic

en
si

ng
 o

f H
M

O
’s

, i
nc

re
as

e 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 d
is

ab
le

d 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

gr
an

ts
 a

nd
 h

om
e 

re
pa

irs
 a

ss
is

ta
nc

e.
 

 P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

C
ar

ry
 o

ut
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t a

ct
iv

ity
 a

ga
in

st
 la

nd
lo

rd
s 

an
d 

ho
us

eh
ol

de
rs

 to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

ho
us

in
g 

co
nd

iti
on

s.
 

N
in

e 
lic

en
se

s 
is

su
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

20
06

/0
7.

 O
th

er
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

ed
. 

b.
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
n 

E
m

pt
y 

H
om

es
 S

tr
at

eg
y.

 
• 

A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 s
ou

gh
t f

ro
m

 th
e 

E
m

pt
y 

H
om

es
 A

ge
nc

y,
 w

ho
 is

 
w

ill
in

g 
to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
  H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 

Page 93



24
 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 h
av

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

a 
lo

w
 n

um
be

r 
of

 e
m

pt
y 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
in

 R
ed

di
tc

h.
 

Lo
ok

in
g 

to
 h

av
e 

a 
jo

in
ed

 u
p 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 a
nd

 a
do

pt
 th

e 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 c
on

ta
in

ed
 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
w

id
e 

em
pt

y 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

st
ra

te
gy

. 
• 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 in

di
vi

du
al

 e
m

pt
y 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 r

eq
ue

st
ed

 fr
om

 
C

ou
nc

il 
T

ax
 r

ec
or

ds
. 

c.
 

T
ar

ge
t r

es
ou

rc
es

 to
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 in
 n

on
 

de
ce

nt
 d

w
el

lin
gs

. 
• 

F
ul

l C
ou

nc
il 

on
 3

0th
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
6 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 o
n 

ho
w

 
th

e 
gr

an
t w

ou
ld

 b
e 

sp
en

t. 
T

he
 g

ra
nt

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
sp

lit
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

ca
pi

ta
l b

ud
ge

ts
 fo

r 
H

M
O

’s
, H

om
e 

R
ep

ai
rs

 A
ss

is
ta

nc
e,

 E
ne

rg
y 

E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 

an
d 

up
da

tin
g 

th
e 

P
riv

at
e 

S
ec

to
r 

S
to

ck
 C

on
di

tio
n 

S
ur

ve
y 

in
 a

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 L
A

’s
. 

• 
U

p 
to

 £
80

,0
00

 w
as

 tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

to
 th

e 
ca

pi
ta

l b
ud

ge
t f

or
 li

fe
 ti

m
e 

lo
an

s 
fo

r 
H

M
O

’s
 -

 £
30

,0
00

 u
se

d 
w

ith
 3

0 
cu

st
om

er
s 

be
ne

fit
in

g.
 

• 
U

p 
to

 £
20

,0
00

 w
as

 u
se

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
H

M
O

 L
ic

en
si

ng
 

S
ch

em
e 

– 
th

is
 w

as
 u

se
d 

fo
r 

em
pl

oy
in

g 
an

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 r

es
ou

rc
e.

 
• 

U
p 

to
 £

10
0,

00
0 

w
as

 tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

to
 th

e 
ca

pi
ta

l b
ud

ge
t f

or
 H

om
e 

re
pa

irs
 

A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

- W
e 

ha
ve

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 1

2 
jo

bs
 fo

r 
ou

r 
cl

ie
nt

s 
in

 2
00

6/
07

. (
T

ot
al

 
co

st
 £

20
,4

80
) 

• 
In

 a
dd

iti
on

, t
he

re
 a

re
 1

1 
gr

an
ts

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
bu

t w
ill

 b
e 

sp
en

t i
n 

20
07

/0
8.

  
(T

ot
al

 c
os

t £
33

,3
95

) 
• 

U
p 

to
 £

50
,0

00
 w

as
 tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
to

 th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l b

ud
ge

t f
or

 e
ne

rg
y 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
w

or
ks

 -
 £

20
,0

00
 u

se
d 

w
ith

 2
0 

cu
st

om
er

s 
be

ne
fit

in
g.

 
• 

U
p 

to
 £

6,
00

0 
w

as
 u

se
d 

to
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
P

riv
at

e 
S

ec
to

r 
S

to
ck

 c
on

di
tio

n 
S

ur
ve

y 
– 

T
hi

s 
is

 fo
r 

a 
C

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
pr

oj
ec

t w
hi

ch
 is

 b
ei

ng
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 
no

ne
 o

f t
hi

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 s

pe
nt

 s
o 

fa
r 

an
d 

it 
w

ill
 r

ol
l o

ve
r 

to
 n

ex
t y

ea
r.

  
O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
  3
.2
 
W
e 
w
ill
 d
el
iv
er
 a
 s
u
st
ai
n
ab

le
 c
u
st
o
m
er
 f
o
cu

se
d
 H
o
u
si
n
g
 S
er
vi
ce

 
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 th
e 

la
rg

es
t l

an
dl

or
d 

in
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 w

ith
 6

13
6 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
(a

s 
at

 1
st
 A

pr
il 

20
07

) 
an

d 
ou

r 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

fo
r 

de
liv

er
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 

in
flu

en
ce

d 
by

 le
gi

sl
at

io
n,

 o
ur

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

an
d 

ke
y 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
H

R
A

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

la
n 

an
d 

th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y.
 

 In
 2

00
6/

07
 th

e 
5th

 y
ea

r 
of

 th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
ha

s 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly
 b

ee
n 

de
liv

er
ed

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 a

ll 
co

un
ci

l s
to

ck
 m

ee
ts

 th
e 

de
ce

nt
 

ho
m

es
 s

ta
nd

ar
d.

 
 T

he
 h

ou
si

ng
 o

pt
io

ns
 te

am
 w

as
 la

un
ch

ed
 in

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
00

7 
an

d 
ch

oi
ce

 b
as

ed
 le

tti
ng

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 fr

om
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

07
 o

ffe
rin

g 
te

na
nt

’s
 

ch
oi

ce
 a

nd
 o

pt
io

ns
 to

 c
on

si
de

r 
ho

w
 b

es
t t

o 
m

ee
t t

he
ir 

fu
tu

re
 h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

. 
 

Page 94



25
 

T
he

 s
er

vi
ce

 h
as

 s
ee

n 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
vo

id
 tu

rn
ar

ou
nd

 ti
m

e 
fo

r 
20

06
/0

7 
ho

w
ev

er
 r

en
t a

rr
ea

rs
 ta

rg
et

s 
w

er
e 

no
t a

ch
ie

ve
d 

du
e 

to
 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
an

d 
te

ch
ni

ca
l d

iff
ic

ul
tie

s.
 A

dd
iti

on
al

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

fo
r 

20
07

/0
8 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f r

en
t 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
s.

 
 P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

D
el

iv
er

in
g 

th
e 

5t
h 

ye
ar

 o
f t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

C
ap

ita
l I

nv
es

tm
en

t 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
in

 th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

st
oc

k 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

p 
a 

5 
ye

ar
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

“R
ed

di
tc

h 
Q

ua
lit

y 
S

ta
nd

ar
d”

. 

T
he

 fi
fth

 y
ea

r 
of

 th
e 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
lly

 d
el

iv
er

ed
. 

T
en

de
rs

 h
av

e 
be

en
 e

va
lu

at
ed

 a
nd

 th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
ill

 c
om

m
en

ce
 J

ul
y 

20
07

. 

b.
 

Im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 o

ur
 s

to
ck

 b
y 

m
at

ch
in

g 
su

pp
ly

 to
 

re
fle

ct
 lo

ca
l d

em
an

d.
 

• 
T

he
 r

ev
ie

w
 w

ill
 n

ow
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 in
 N

ov
em

be
r 

20
07

 a
s 

w
e 

ar
e 

in
tr

od
uc

in
g 

a 
ne

w
 IT

 s
ys

te
m

 a
 n

ew
ly

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
ho

us
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
fo

rm
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

• 
A

 C
ho

ic
e 

B
as

ed
 L

et
tin

gs
 S

up
pl

ie
r 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
.  

C
on

tr
ac

ts
 a

re
 w

ith
 

Le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

s.
  T

he
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 w
ill

 b
e 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7.

 
• 

O
ffi

ce
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
de

si
gn

ed
 a

nd
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

d.
 

• 
F

ur
th

er
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 P

ol
ic

y 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t i
n 

lin
e 

w
ith

 n
ew

 C
od

e 
of

 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

– 
7th

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7.

 
• 

W
ai

tin
g 

Li
st

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
. 

• 
S

of
tw

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 b
ei

ng
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 b
y 

su
pp

lie
r.

 
• 

H
ou

si
ng

 O
pt

io
ns

 S
er

vi
ce

 o
pe

ne
d 

on
 2

9th
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

00
7 

to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

. 
• 

C
ho

ic
e 

B
as

ed
 L

et
tin

gs
 d

ue
 to

 o
pe

n 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

07
 –

 d
at

e 
ex

te
nd

ed
 d

ue
 

to
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 P

ol
ic

y 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

ne
w

 C
od

e 
of

 G
ui

da
nc

e.
 

c.
 

A
ch

ie
ve

 to
p 

qu
ar

til
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 in
 k

ey
 b

us
in

es
s 

ar
ea

s 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
8.

 
• 

O
n 

ta
rg

et
 fo

r 
vo

id
s 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

. 
• 

D
ue

 to
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

w
ith

 S
af

fr
on

 u
na

bl
e 

to
 r

ep
or

t o
n 

re
nt

 a
rr

ea
rs

. 
• 

O
n 

ta
rg

et
 fo

r 
vo

id
s 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

. 
• 

R
en

t a
rr

ea
rs

 ta
rg

et
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
m

et
 in

 2
00

6/
07

 d
ue

 to
 S

af
fr

on
 c

om
pu

te
r 

sy
st

em
 p

ro
bl

em
s.

 
• 

A
n 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 a
nd

 e
xt

ra
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 p
ut

 in
to

 th
e 

T
ea

m
 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
. 

d.
 

Im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 k
ey

 T
en

an
t P

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 c
ho

ic
e 

in
 th

e 
w

ay
 te

na
nt

s 
ca

n 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

e 
in

 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e.

 

• 
T

he
 C

om
pa

ct
 h

as
 n

ow
 b

ee
n 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
lo

ng
 w

ith
 a

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 H

ou
si

ng
 

S
er

vi
ce

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 e

ve
nt

 h
el

d 
on

 6
th

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

06
.  

T
hi

s 
w

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 
F

in
al

 T
en

an
t P

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
du

e 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
07

. 
• 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

el
ay

ed
 –

 d
ue

 n
ow

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

07
. 

• 
T

en
an

t M
an

ag
em

en
t O

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 (
T

M
O

s)
 a

nd
 e

st
at

e 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 a
re

 
be

in
g 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
on

 in
 th

e 
B

at
ch

le
y 

ar
ea

. 
• 

T
he

 B
at

ch
le

y 
S

up
po

rt
 G

ro
up

 is
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 a

nd
 B

irm
in

gh
am

 C
o-

op
er

at
iv

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

an
d 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

on
 th

e 

Page 95



26
 

op
tio

ns
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 te

na
nt

s.
   

C
of

fe
e 

m
or

ni
ng

s,
 d

oo
r 

kn
oc

ki
ng

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l 
ev

en
ts

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 h

el
d.

  F
un

di
ng

 fr
om

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t O

ffi
ce

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
aw

ar
de

d 
fo

r 
a 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 s

tu
dy

. 
O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
 3
.3
 

W
e 
w
ill
 m

ax
im

is
e 
th
e 
p
ro
vi
si
o
n
 o
f 
h
ig
h
 q
u
al
it
y 
af
fo
rd
ab

le
 h
o
u
si
n
g
 in

 t
h
e 
to
w
n
 

 A
s 

w
el

l a
s 

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 th
e 

hi
gh

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

f t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
ho

us
in

g 
st

oc
k,

 w
e 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
id

en
tif

y 
la

nd
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

fo
r 

so
ci

al
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 d

riv
e 

fo
rw

ar
d 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

se
 s

ite
s.

 
 D

ur
in

g 
20

06
/0

7 
C

ou
nc

il 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 h

av
e 

m
ad

e 
si

te
 v

is
its

 w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ef

er
re

d 
pa

rt
ne

r 
to

 a
ss

es
s 

th
e 

de
liv

er
ab

ili
ty

 o
f s

ite
s.

  A
 n

um
be

r 
of

 s
ite

s 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
w

ith
 a

 p
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 7
0 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
be

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pe

d.
 

 P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

Im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

a 
ne

w
 S

P
D

 o
n 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 th

e 
th

re
sh

ol
ds

 fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
 to

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 p

ro
vi

si
on

. 

S
P

D
 to

 b
e 

th
e 

su
bj

ec
t o

f r
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

S
ep

t 2
00

7 
du

e 
to

 n
ew

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

gu
id

an
ce

 o
n 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 

b.
 

Id
en

tif
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

ow
ne

d 
la

nd
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

fo
r 

di
sp

os
al

 a
s 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

ite
s.

 
• 

S
ev

er
al

 s
ite

 v
is

its
 m

ad
e 

ar
ou

nd
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

pr
ef

er
re

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ar

tn
er

 to
 a

ss
es

s 
de

liv
er

ab
ili

ty
 o

f s
ite

s.
 A

 n
um

be
r 

of
 p

os
si

bl
e 

si
te

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

pa
ss

ed
 to

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t f
or

 a
pp

ra
is

al
. 

• 
T

w
o 

si
te

s 
so

ld
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 1
6 

bu
ng

al
ow

s,
 1

2 
ho

us
es

 fo
r 

re
nt

, a
nd

 8
 h

ou
se

s 
fo

r 
sh

ar
ed

 o
w

ne
rs

hi
p.

 
• 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 s

ite
 fo

r 
2 

ho
us

es
 to

 b
e 

so
ld

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7.

 
• 

A
 s

ite
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 C
hu

rc
h 

H
ill

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 u

p 
to

 8
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
an

d 
a 

si
te

 in
 G

re
en

la
nd

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 u
p 

to
 3

2 
pr

op
er

tie
s.

 
c.

 
Im

pl
em

en
t C

as
h 

in
ce

nt
iv

e 
S

ch
em

e.
 

A
ll 

re
le

va
nt

 s
ig

na
to

rie
s 

to
 th

e 
s.

10
6 

ha
ve

 a
gr

ee
d 

to
 th

e 
va

ria
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

s.
10

6 
to

 u
se

 th
e 

co
m

m
ut

ed
 s

um
 fo

r 
th

e 
ca

sh
 in

ce
nt

iv
e 

sc
he

m
e 

an
d 

th
e 

po
lic

y 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

gr
ee

d 
by

 F
ul

l C
ou

nc
il.

 A
ll 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
pr

es
s 

re
le

as
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 
dr

af
te

d 
an

d 
aw

ai
tin

g 
co

nf
irm

at
io

n 
th

at
 r

el
ev

an
t l

eg
al

 d
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 

si
gn

ed
.  

T
he

re
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

a 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l d
el

ay
 in

 a
ll 

pa
rt

ie
s 

si
gn

in
g 

do
cu

m
en

ts
.  

A
ch

ie
ve

d 
A

pr
il 

20
07

 –
 s

ch
em

e 
la

un
ch

ed
 M

ay
 2

00
7.

 
O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
 3
.4
 

W
e 
w
ill
 d
ev
el
o
p
 a
n
d
 im

p
le
m
en

t 
in
 p
ar
tn
er
sh

ip
 w
it
h
 k
ey
 a
g
en

ci
es

 a
 H
o
m
el
es
sn

es
s 
S
tr
at
eg

y 
 

 T
he

 S
oc

ia
l o

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 s
cr

ut
in

y 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 u
nd

er
to

ok
 a

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f h

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 d
ur

in
g 

20
06

/0
7 

th
is

 h
as

 r
es

ul
te

d 
in

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 w

ith
 th

e 
ke

y 
em

ph
as

is
 b

ei
ng

 o
n 

ho
m

el
es

s 
pr

ev
en

tio
n.

 
 A

 s
er

vi
ce

 r
ev

ie
w

 w
as

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t a

nd
 th

e 
ho

m
el

es
s 

te
am

 h
av

e 
no

w
 fo

rm
ed

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 n

ew
 fo

rm
ed

 h
ou

si
ng

 o
pt

io
ns

 s
er

vi
ce

. 

Page 96



27
 

 A
lth

ou
gh

 o
nl

y 
in

iti
al

 o
ut

co
m

es
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

la
st

 q
ua

rt
er

 o
f 2

00
6/

07
 3

9 
ho

m
el

es
s 

ca
se

s 
w

er
e 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 a
nd

 2
9 

ca
se

s 
w

er
e 

pr
ev

en
te

d 
w

hi
ch

 c
om

pa
re

s 
w

ith
 5

8 
ho

m
el

es
s 

ca
se

s 
in

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 q
ua

rt
er

. 
 P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

R
ev

ie
w

in
g 

w
ith

 k
ey

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
S

tr
at

eg
y.

 
• 

W
or

k 
in

 a
dv

an
ce

 o
f a

n 
up

da
te

 to
 th

e 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
 u

p 
to

 th
e 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
on

 H
om

el
es

s 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

an
d 

a 
re

vi
ew

 
fr

om
 W

or
cs

. S
up

po
rt

in
g 

P
eo

pl
e 

ad
dr

es
si

ng
 S

up
po

rt
 n

ee
ds

.  
Li

ke
ly

 to
 

fo
llo

w
 a

 c
ou

nt
y 

w
id

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s.
 

• 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 h

av
e 

be
en

 w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

a 
co

un
ty

w
id

e 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

S
tr

at
eg

y,
 a

 d
ra

ft 
ha

s 
be

en
 c

irc
ul

at
ed

 fo
r 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n.

  D
is

tr
ic

ts
 d

o 
no

t h
av

e 
to

 p
ro

du
ce

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 a
s 

th
ey

 e
ac

h 
ha

ve
 th

ei
r 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y.
 

b.
 

D
ev

el
op

in
g 

a 
ho

us
in

g 
ad

vi
ce

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 
ot

he
r 

ad
vi

so
ry

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
. 

• 
W

or
k 

to
 c

om
m

en
ce

 in
 2

00
7 

an
d 

ad
op

t t
he

 c
or

po
ra

te
 p

ro
je

ct
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 w

hi
ch

 is
 n

ow
 in

 p
la

ce
. 

• 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 w

ill
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 k
ey

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
to

 p
re

pa
re

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

. 
• 

D
ra

ft 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 a
re

 in
 p

la
ce

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
op

en
in

g 
of

 th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 
O

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 H

ou
si

ng
 A

dv
ic

e 
S

er
vi

ce
 o

n 
29

th
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

00
7.

 
c.

 
In

cr
ea

si
ng

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
in

 th
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

se
ct

or
. 

• 
F

or
um

 n
ow

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 b

y 
N

at
io

na
l L

an
dl

or
ds

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n.

  
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
id

ea
s 

fo
r 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
ra

is
in

g 
in

 k
ey

 is
su

es
 im

pa
ct

in
g 

on
 

pr
iv

at
e 

se
ct

or
. 

• 
T

he
 D

ra
ft 

La
nd

lo
rd

 A
cc

re
di

ta
tio

n 
S

ch
em

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

is
cu

ss
ed

 w
ith

 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 F
or

um
 a

t t
he

 J
un

e 
20

07
 m

ee
tin

g.
  T

he
re

 w
as

 a
 

po
si

tiv
e 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 a

nd
 fu

rt
he

r 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

s 
w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
. 

d.
 

E
xp

an
di

ng
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

ho
m

el
es

s 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

ro
le

. 
• 

Li
nk

ed
 in

to
 3

.2
 (

b)
.  

T
he

 H
ou

si
ng

 A
dv

ic
e 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
w

ill
 n

ow
 b

e 
op

er
at

io
na

l i
n 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
07

. 
• 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
 s

ho
w

in
g 

th
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 o

ut
co

m
es

 in
 lo

ok
in

g 
at

 a
 g

re
at

er
 e

m
ph

as
is

 o
n 

th
e 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
ro

le
. 

• 
T

he
 H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

T
ea

m
, n

ow
 r

en
am

ed
 th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 O

pt
io

ns
 

T
ea

m
, p

ro
vi

de
 H

ou
si

ng
 A

dv
ic

e 
an

d 
H

ou
si

ng
 O

pt
io

ns
.  

T
he

 s
er

vi
ce

 
w

as
 o

pe
ne

d 
in

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
00

7.
  I

t’s
 m

ai
n 

pu
rp

os
e 

is
 to

 h
el

p 
pr

ev
en

t 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

ho
us

in
g 

op
tio

ns
 to

 c
us

to
m

er
s.

 
• 

It 
is

 e
vi

de
nt

 th
at

 s
in

ce
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 in

 p
la

ce
, t

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 

Page 97



28
 

ca
se

s 
pr

ev
en

te
d 

fr
om

 b
ec

om
in

g 
ho

m
el

es
s 

ha
s 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
an

d 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 h
om

el
es

s 
ca

se
s 

ha
s 

re
du

ce
d.

  F
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 in

 th
e 

la
st

 
qu

ar
te

r 
of

 2
00

6/
07

, 3
9 

ho
m

el
es

s 
ca

se
s 

w
er

e 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 a

nd
 2

9 
ca

se
s 

w
er

e 
pr

ev
en

te
d,

 w
hi

ch
 c

om
pa

re
s 

to
 5

8 
ho

m
el

es
s 

ca
se

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 q

ua
rt

er
.  

T
he

 r
ol

e 
of

 th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 O
pt

io
ns

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 is
 

cu
rr

en
tly

 b
ei

ng
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

em
ph

as
is

 o
n 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
ra

th
er

 
th

an
 h

om
el

es
s 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n.
 

• 
T

he
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 S
oc

ia
l O

ve
rv

ie
w

 &
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ei

th
er

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

or
 fu

rt
he

r 
w

or
k 

is
 o

ng
oi

ng
 in

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

ea
s:

 
1.

4 
 C

ou
nt

y 
M

ed
ia

tio
n 

S
er

vi
ce

 –
 fu

nd
in

g 
re

qu
ire

d 
fr

om
 C

ou
nt

y.
 

1.
5 

C
om

pu
ls

or
y 

ho
m

e 
vi

si
ts

 –
 R

is
k 

A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 
pu

t i
n 

pl
ac

e.
 

1.
7 

C
ou

nt
y-

w
id

e 
P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
S

er
vi

ce
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
be

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pe

d.
 

1.
9 

Jo
in

t p
ro

to
co

l w
ith

 th
e 

P
ro

ba
tio

n 
S

er
vi

ce
 b

ei
ng

 d
ev

el
op

ed
. 

5.
  P

ee
r 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t d

ue
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
08

. 
 

Page 98



29
 

P
E
R
F
O
R
M
A
N
C
E
 M

E
A
S
U
R
E
S
 F
O
R
 2
00
6/
07
 

 P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 3
 –
 H
O
U
S
IN
G
 

 
In
d
ic
at
o
r 

20
06
/0
7 

P
as
t 
P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 
F
u
tu
re
 t
ar
g
et
s 

R
ef
 

  D
es

cr
ip
ti
o
n
 

T
ar
g
et
 

A
ct
u
al
 

T
ar
g
et
 

m
et
 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 

o
n
 0
5/
06
 

20
03

/4
 

20
04

/5
 

20
05

/6
 

20
05
/6
 

Q
u
ar
ti
le
 
 2
00

7/
8 

20
08

/9
 

20
09

/1
0 

B
V

06
2 

(f
or

m
er

) 
P

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 u
nf

it 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 m

ad
e 

fit
 

or
 d

em
ol

is
he

d 
as

 a
 d

ire
ct

 r
es

ul
t o

f a
ct

io
n 

by
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

3%
 

3.
17

%
 
�

 
�

 
2.

10
%

 
3.

70
%

 
2.

25
%

 
N

/A
 

3%
 

3%
 

 

B
V

P
I 6

3 
E

ne
rg

y 
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 -
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
S

A
P

 r
at

in
g 

of
 lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
ity

 o
w

ne
d 

dw
el

lin
gs

 
72

 
72

 
�

 
�

 
64

 
69

 
71

 
B

es
t 

72
 

72
 

72
 

B
V

06
4 

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 v
ac

an
t d

w
el

lin
gs

 
re

tu
rn

ed
 in

to
 o

cc
up

at
io

n 
or

 d
em

ol
is

he
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r 

as
 a

 d
ire

ct
 r

es
ul

t o
f l

oc
al

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
ac

tio
n 

1 
0 

X
 

X
 

0 
1 

1 
W

or
st

 
1 

1 
 

B
V

P
I 6

6a
 R

en
t c

ol
le

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
as

 a
 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 r
en

ts
 o

w
ed

 o
n 

H
ou

si
ng

 R
ev

en
ue

 
A

cc
ou

nt
 (

H
R

A
) 

dw
el

lin
gs

 

98
.5

%
 

97
.5

6%
 

X
 

X
 

98
.2

0%
 

98
.2

0%
 

98
.0

0%
 

B
el

ow
 

m
ed

ia
n 

98
.6

%
 

99
%

 
99

.1
%

 

B
V

P
I 6

6b
 T

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
te

na
nt

s 
w

ith
 m

or
e 

th
an

 s
ev

en
 w

ee
ks

 o
f (

gr
os

s)
 r

en
t a

rr
ea

rs
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l n
um

be
r 

of
 c

ou
nc

il 
te

na
nt

s 

7%
 

8%
 

X
 

X
 

N
A

 
N

A
 

7.
47

%
 

W
or

st
 

8%
 

7.
5%

 
7%

 

B
V

P
I 6

6c
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
te

na
nt

s 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

ha
d 

N
ot

ic
es

 S
ee

ki
ng

 P
os

se
ss

io
n 

se
rv

ed
 

15
%

 
2.

37
%

 
�

 
�

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
3.

19
%

 
B

es
t 

4%
 

3.
9%

 
3.

8%
 

B
V

P
I 6

6d
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
te

na
nt

s 
ev

ic
te

d 
as

 a
 

re
su

lt 
of

 r
en

t a
rr

ea
rs

 
1%

 
0.

02
%

 
�

 
�

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
0.

54
%

 
 

1%
 

1%
 

1%
 

B
V

P
I 1

56
 T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
bu

ild
in

gs
 o

pe
n 

to
 t

he
 

pu
bl

ic
 in

 w
hi

ch
 a

ll 
pu

bl
ic

 a
re

as
 a

re
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

fo
r,

 a
nd

 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 to
, d

is
ab

le
d 

pe
op

le
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 
�

 
�

 
54

.0
0%

 
52

.0
0%

 
86

%
 

N
/A

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

B
V

P
I 1

64
  D

oe
s 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 fo
llo

w
 th

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 fo

r 
R

ac
ia

l E
qu

al
ity

’s
 c

od
e 

of
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

in
 r

en
te

d 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
fo

llo
w

 th
e 

G
oo

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

fo
r 

so
ci

al
 la

nd
lo

rd
s 

on
 ta

ck
lin

g 
ha

ra
ss

m
en

t 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

co
de

 o
f P

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r 

S
oc

ia
l 

La
nd

lo
rd

s-
 

Y
E

S
 

Y
E

S
 
�

 
�

 
N

O
 

Y
E

S
 

Y
E

S
 

48
%

 
re

po
rt

ed
 

‘Y
E

S
’ 

Y
E

S
  

Y
E

S
 

 

Page 99



30
 

In
d
ic
at
o
r 

20
06
/0
7 

P
as
t 
P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 
F
u
tu
re
 t
ar
g
et
s 

R
ef
 

  D
es

cr
ip
ti
o
n
 

T
ar
g
et
 

A
ct
u
al
 

T
ar
g
et
 

m
et
 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 

o
n
 0
5/
06
 

20
03

/4
 

20
04

/5
 

20
05

/6
 

20
05
/6
 

Q
u
ar
ti
le
 
 2
00

7/
8 

20
08

/9
 

20
09

/1
0 

B
V

P
I 

18
3a

 
T

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 le

ng
th

 o
f s

ta
y 

(w
ee

ks
) 

in
 b

ed
 a

nd
 

br
ea

kf
as

t a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

of
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
w

ith
 

ei
th

er
 d

ep
en

de
nt

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
or

 p
re

gn
an

t w
om

en
 a

nd
 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 u

ni
nt

en
tio

na
lly

 h
om

el
es

s 
an

d 
in

 p
rio

rit
y 

ne
ed

. 

2.
1 

2.
95

 
X

 
X

 
2 

1.
5 

2.
24

 
A

bo
ve

 
m

ed
ia

n 
2 

2 
 

B
V

P
I 

18
3b

 
T

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 le

ng
th

 o
f s

ta
y 

(w
ee

ks
) 

in
 h

os
te

l 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

w
ith

 e
ith

er
 

de
pe

nd
en

t c
hi

ld
re

n 
or

 p
re

gn
an

t w
om

en
 a

nd
 w

hi
ch

 
ar

e 
un

in
te

nt
io

na
lly

 h
om

el
es

s 
an

d 
in

 p
rio

rit
y 

ne
ed

. 

10
.5

 
6.

87
 
�

 
�

 
7.

8 
8.

7 
11

.0
7 

B
el

ow
 

m
ed

ia
n 

6.
85

 
6 

0 

B
V

P
I 

18
4a

 
T

he
 p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 L
A

 H
om

es
 w

hi
ch

 w
er

e 
no

n-
de

ce
nt

 o
n 

th
e 

fir
st

 d
ay

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l y

ea
r 

 
0%

 
0%

 
�

 
�

 
0.

20
%

 
0.

20
%

 
0%

 
B

es
t 

0%
 

0%
 

0%
 

B
V

P
I 

18
4b

 
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
ch

an
ge

 in
 p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 n
on

-
de

ce
nt

 L
A

 h
om

es
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

co
ur

se
 o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
ye

ar
 

0%
 

0%
 
�

 
�

 
0%

 
10

0%
 

0%
 

B
es

t 
0%

 
0%

 
0%

 

B
V

P
I 2

02
  T

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

sl
ee

pi
ng

 r
ou

gh
 o

n 
a 

si
ng

le
 

ni
gh

t w
ith

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f t
he

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
0 

0 
�

 
�

 
N

A
 

5 
0 

B
es

t 
0 

0 
0 

B
V

P
I 2

03
 T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
ch

an
ge

 in
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 
fa

m
ili

es
, w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
e 

de
pe

nd
en

t c
hi

ld
re

n 
or

 a
 

pr
eg

na
nt

 w
om

an
, p

la
ce

d 
in

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

un
de

r 
th

e 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

co
m

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
fr

om
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 y

ea
r 

-1
%

 
-1

3%
 
�

 
�

 
N

A
 

-0
.0

3%
 

0%
 

A
bo

ve
 

m
ed

ia
n 

-1
%

 
-1

%
 

-1
%

 

B
V

P
I 2

12
 

/ L
IB

 2
40

 A
ve

ra
ge

 ti
m

e 
(d

ay
s)

 to
 r

e-
le

t L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

H
ou

si
ng

 
45

 
29

.9
4 
�

 
�

 
53

.1
9 

60
.0

1 
66

.1
4 

W
or

st
 

40
 

30
 

29
 

B
V

P
I 2

13
 N

um
be

r 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

w
ho

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

th
em

se
lv

es
 a

s 
ho

m
el

es
s,

 w
ho

 a
pp

ro
ac

he
d 

th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y'
s 

ho
us

in
g 

ad
vi

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
, a

nd
 fo

r 
w

ho
m

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
dv

ic
e 

ca
se

w
or

k 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
re

so
lv

ed
 th

ei
r 

si
tu

at
io

n,
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 p
op

ul
at

io
n.

 

2.
5 

2.
89

 
�

 
�

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
2.

22
 

A
bo

ve
 

M
ed

ia
n 

2.
9 

3 
3.

5 

B
V

P
I 2

14
 P

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 a
s 

st
at

ut
or

ily
 

ho
m

el
es

s 
w

ho
 w

er
e 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 a
s 

st
at

ut
or

ily
 

ho
m

el
es

s 
by

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
la

st
 tw

o 
ye

ar
s 

7%
 

6.
25

%
 
�

 
X

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
6.

23
%

 
W

or
st

 
7%

 
7%

 
 

LI
B

 2
19

 
T

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 le

ng
th

 o
f s

ta
y 

in
 B

 &
 B

 (
w

ee
ks

) 
2.

9 
3.

61
 

X
 

X
 

2.
6 

2.
48

 
3.

01
 

 
C

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

Page 100



31
 

In
d
ic
at
o
r 

20
06
/0
7 

P
as
t 
P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 
F
u
tu
re
 t
ar
g
et
s 

R
ef
 

  D
es

cr
ip
ti
o
n
 

T
ar
g
et
 

A
ct
u
al
 

T
ar
g
et
 

m
et
 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 

o
n
 0
5/
06
 

20
03

/4
 

20
04

/5
 

20
05

/6
 

20
05
/6
 

Q
u
ar
ti
le
 
 2
00

7/
8 

20
08

/9
 

20
09

/1
0 

LI
B

 2
31

 
R

en
t a

rr
ea

rs
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f r
en

t r
ol

l 
2.

5%
 

3.
49

%
 

X
 

X
 

2.
88

%
 

2.
67

%
 

2.
56

%
 

 
C

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

LI
B

 2
32

 
T

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 w

ee
kl

y 
co

st
s 

pe
r 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
dw

el
lin

g 
of

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

£1
5.

90
 

£1
4.

90
 

- 
- 

£1
2.

79
 

£1
3.

35
 

£1
4.

66
 

 
C

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

LI
B

 2
33

 
T

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 w

ee
kl

y 
co

st
s 

pe
r 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
dw

el
lin

g 
of

 r
ep

ai
rs

 
£1

0.
60

 
£1

0.
92

 
- 

- 
£7

.7
1 

£9
.8

9 
£1

0.
52

 
 

C
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n 

LI
B

 2
36

 
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 te
na

nt
s 

ow
in

g 
ov

er
 1

3 
w

ee
ks

 
re

nt
 (

ex
cl

ud
in

g 
le

ss
 th

an
 £

25
0)

 
2.

4%
 

3.
5%

 
X

 
X

 
6.

00
%

 
3.

26
%

 
2.

44
%

 
 

C
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n 

H
H

 1
 

(R
E

N
T

) 
R

en
t w

rit
te

n 
of

f a
s 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 r
en

t r
ol

l 
1%

 
0.

52
%

 
�

 
X

 
0.

84
%

 
0.

91
%

 
0.

26
%

 
 

C
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n 

H
H

 2
 

(R
E

N
T

) 
V

oi
d 

lo
ss

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f g
ro

ss
 r

en
t 

1.
1%

 
1.

16
%

 
X

 
X

 
1.

56
%

 
1.

52
%

 
1.

10
%

 
 

C
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n 

H
H

 4
 (

LL
) 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 L

ife
lin

e 
C

on
tr

ol
le

r 
re

sp
on

se
s 

w
ith

in
 6

0 
se

co
nd

s 
of

 c
al

l 
98

.5
%

 
98

.6
2 
�

 
X

 
98

.9
1%

 
99

.0
7%

 
98

.9
7%

 
 

C
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n 

H
H

 5
 (

LL
) 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 L

ife
lin

e 
us

er
s 

sa
yi

ng
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
is

 g
oo

d 
or

 e
xc

el
le

nt
 

95
%

 
97

.0
7%

 
�

 
�

 
N

A
 

94
.8

8%
 

94
.0

9%
 

 
C

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

H
H

 9
 

(W
R

D
) 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 u

se
rs

 o
f t

he
 W

ar
de

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
sa

yi
ng

 th
at

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

is
 g

oo
d 

or
 e

xc
el

le
nt

 
92

%
 

97
.0

7%
 
�

 
�

 
N

A
 

92
.8

1%
 

91
.9

6%
 

 
C

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

H
H

 1
0 

 
A

ve
ra

ge
 r

el
et

 ti
m

e 
(d

ay
s)

 fo
r 

dw
el

lin
gs

  (
ex

cl
ud

in
g 

th
os

e 
w

he
re

 o
ne

 o
f t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

ap
pl

ie
s:

 n
o 

w
ai

tin
g 

lis
t, 

lo
ng

 te
rm

 v
oi

d,
 d

iff
ic

ul
t t

o 
le

t, 
un

de
rg

oi
ng

 m
aj

or
 r

ep
ai

rs
) 

19
 

20
.6

 
X

 
X

  
N

A
 

N
A

 
18

.6
9 

 
C

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

H
H

 1
1 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 S

ur
e 

S
ta

rt
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
m

ot
he

rs
-t

o-
be

 
w

ho
 s

m
ok

e 
w

ho
 q

ui
t s

m
ok

in
g 

du
rin

g 
pr

eg
na

nc
y 

27
%

 
- 

- 
- 

20
%

 
20

%
 

26
.0

9%
 

 
C

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

H
H

 1
2 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 S

ur
e 

S
ta

rt
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
fa

m
ili

es
 u

si
ng

 
R

E
D

D
I l

ei
su

re
 c

ar
d 

14
%

 
15

%
 
�

 
�

 
N

A
 

5.
80

%
 

13
.4

0%
 

 
C

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

H
H

01
3 

C
ar

e 
an

d 
R

ep
ai

r 
- 

av
er

ag
e 

le
ng

th
 o

f t
im

e 
fr

om
 fi

rs
t 

co
nt

ac
t t

o 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
(w

ee
ks

) 
35

 
23

.6
9 
�

 
�

 
40

.1
 

41
.8

4 
29

.2
1 

 
C

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

H
H

 1
4 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t a

nd
 A

da
pt

at
io

ns
 -

 a
ve

ra
ge

 n
um

be
r 

of
 

w
ee

ks
 fr

om
 r

ec
ei

pt
 o

f a
ll 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 to
 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 w

or
ks

 

10
 

- 
 

 
N

A
 

6.
19

 
12

.3
1 

 
C

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

H
H

 1
5 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 S

ur
e 

S
ta

rt
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
ch

ild
re

n 
ac

ce
ss

in
g 

S
ur

e 
S

ta
rt

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
 

60
%

 
56

.1
0%

 
X

 
X

 
N

A
 

82
%

 
90

.4
0%

 
 

C
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n 

H
H

 1
7 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 r

ep
ai

rs
 r

eq
ui

rin
g 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 a
 

pr
op

er
ty

 fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 a

n 
ap

po
in

tm
en

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
m

ad
e 

60
%

 
54

%
 

X
 

X
  

N
A

 
N

A
 

57
.1

4%
 

 
C

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

Page 101



32
 

In
d
ic
at
o
r 

20
06
/0
7 

P
as
t 
P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 
F
u
tu
re
 t
ar
g
et
s 

R
ef
 

  D
es

cr
ip
ti
o
n
 

T
ar
g
et
 

A
ct
u
al
 

T
ar
g
et
 

m
et
 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 

o
n
 0
5/
06
 

20
03

/4
 

20
04

/5
 

20
05

/6
 

20
05
/6
 

Q
u
ar
ti
le
 
 2
00

7/
8 

20
08

/9
 

20
09

/1
0 

H
H

 1
8 

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 r
ep

ai
r 

ap
po

in
tm

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
th

at
 w

er
e 

ke
pt

 b
y 

R
B

C
 

95
%

 
98

%
 
�

 
X

  
N

A
 

N
A

 
98

.8
1%

 
 

C
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n 

   

Page 102



33
 

O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
S
 A
N
D
 P
R
O
JE

C
T
S
 F
O
R
 2
00
7-
20
10
 

 P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 3
 

H
O
U
S
IN
G
  

 3.
1 

W
e 
w
ill
 im

p
ro
ve
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s 
in
 t
h
e 
P
ri
va
te
 S
ec

to
r 
b
y:
 

a.
 

C
ar

ry
 o

ut
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t a

ct
iv

ity
 a

ga
in

st
 la

nd
lo

rd
s 

an
d 

ho
us

eh
ol

de
rs

 to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

ho
us

in
g 

co
nd

iti
on

s.
 

b.
 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
lic

en
se

 a
s 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
H

ou
se

s 
in

 M
ul

tip
le

 O
cc

up
at

io
n.

 
c.

 
Lo

an
 a

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
fo

r 
en

er
gy

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 H

ou
se

s 
in

 M
ul

tip
le

 O
cc

up
at

io
n.

 
d.

 
D

ev
el

op
 a

n 
E

m
pt

y 
H

om
es

 S
tr

at
eg

y.
 

c.
 

T
ar

ge
t r

es
ou

rc
es

 to
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 in
 n

on
 d

ec
en

t d
w

el
lin

gs
. 

 
3.
2 

W
e 
w
ill
 d
el
iv
er
 a
 s
u
st
ai
n
ab

le
 c
u
st
o
m
er
 f
o
cu

se
d
 H
o
u
si
n
g
 S
er
vi
ce

 b
y:
 

a.
 

D
el

iv
er

in
g 

th
e 

1s
t y

ea
r 

of
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 fi
ve

 y
ea

r 
C

ap
ita

l I
nv

es
tm

en
t P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
in

 th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

st
oc

k 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
“R

ed
di

tc
h 

Q
ua

lit
y 

S
ta

nd
ar

d”
. 

b.
 

Im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 o

ur
 s

to
ck

 b
y 

m
at

ch
in

g 
su

pp
ly

 to
 r

ef
le

ct
 lo

ca
l d

em
an

d.
 

c.
 

A
ch

ie
ve

 to
p 

qu
ar

til
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 in
 k

ey
 b

us
in

es
s 

ar
ea

s 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
8.

 
d.

 
Im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 k

ey
 T

en
an

t P
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 c

ho
ic

e 
in

 th
e 

w
ay

 te
na

nt
s 

ca
n 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
e 

in
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e.

 
 3.
3 

W
e 
w
ill
 m

ee
t 
af
fo
rd
ab

le
 H
o
u
si
n
g
 N
ee

d
s 
b
y:
 

a.
 

Im
pl

em
en

t C
as

h 
in

ce
nt

iv
e 

S
ch

em
e.

 
 3.
4 

W
e 
w
ill
 t
ac
kl
e 
h
o
m
el
es

sn
es
s 
an

d
 p
ro
vi
d
e 
ad

vi
ce

 o
n
 h
o
u
si
n
g
 o
p
ti
o
n
s 
b
y:
 

a.
 

R
ev

ie
w

in
g 

w
ith

 k
ey

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
S

tr
at

eg
y.

 
b.

 
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
a 

ho
us

in
g 

ad
vi

ce
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 a
dv

is
or

y 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
. 

c.
 

In
cr

ea
si

ng
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

ct
or

. 
d.

 
E

xp
an

di
ng

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
ho

m
el

es
s 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
ro

le
. 

  

Page 103



34
 

P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 4
 –
 L
E
IS
U
R
E
 

 20
06
/0
7 
P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

 W
E
 A
IM

 T
O
: 
P
R
O
V
ID
E
 A
 W

ID
E
 R
A
N
G
E
 O
F
 O
P
P
O
R
T
U
N
IT
IE
S
 F
O
R
 L
E
IS
U
R
E
 

 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
is
 c
om

m
itt
ed
 to
 in
cr
ea
si
ng
 th
e 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 p
eo
pl
e 
ac
ce
ss
in
g 
sp
or
ts
, a
rt
s 
an
d 
he
rit
ag
e 
ac
tiv
iti
es
 a
nd
 th
ei
r 
fr
eq
ue
nc
y 
of
 p
ar
tic
ip
at
io
n.
  

 T
he
re
 a
re
 m
an
y 
st
ud
ie
s 
w
hi
ch
 d
em

on
st
ra
te
 a
 r
an
ge
 o
f b
en
ef
its
 th
at
 c
an
 b
e 
ob
ta
in
ed
 th
ro
ug
h 
re
gu
la
r 
pa
rt
ic
ip
at
io
n 
in
 le
is
ur
e 
ac
tiv
iti
es
. 

 T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
cu
rr
en
tly
 o
pe
ra
te
s 
4 
sp
or
ts
 c
en
tr
es
, a
 s
w
im
m
in
g 
po
ol
, g
ol
f c
ou
rs
e,
 m
us
eu
m
, c
ou
nt
ry
si
de
 c
en
tr
e,
 p
itc
he
s 
an
d 
co
m
m
un
ity
 c
en
tr
es
. 

 T
he
re
 a
re
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 a
pp
ro
xi
m
at
el
y 
on
e 
m
ill
io
n 
vi
si
ts
 a
 y
ea
r 
to
 th
e 
fa
ci
lit
ie
s.
  V
is
its
 v
ia
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il’
s 
C
on
ce
ss
io
na
ry
 S
ch
em

e,
 a
im
ed
 a
t 

en
co
ur
ag
in
g 
in
cr
ea
se
d 
pa
rt
ic
ip
at
io
n,
 p
ar
tic
ul
ar
ly
 a
m
on
gs
t t
ar
ge
te
d 
gr
ou
ps
, h
as
 c
on
tin
ue
d 
to
 g
ro
w
. 

 O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
  4
.1
 

C
re
at
e 
an

d
 Im

p
ro
ve
 L
ei
su

re
, C

u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 A
rt
s 
F
ac

ili
ti
es

 
  T

he
re

 is
 a

 n
ee

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

re
 r

el
ev

an
t t

o 
th

e 
cu

st
om

er
s’

 n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 p

er
ce

pt
io

ns
.  

It 
is

 th
er

ef
or

e 
a 

co
ns

ta
nt

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f t
he

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
cr

ea
te

 n
ew

 o
ne

s 
th

at
 h

el
p 

to
 s

at
is

fy
 th

e 
de

m
an

d.
 

 In
 2

00
6/

07
 w

e 
to

ok
 a

ct
io

n 
ag

ai
ns

t s
ev

en
 m

ai
n 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
: 

 P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

C
om

pl
et

e 
M

et
tis

 S
po

rt
s 

P
ro

je
ct

. 
S

ch
em

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
06

. F
ac

ili
tie

s 
up

gr
ad

ed
 in

cl
ud

ed
 

te
nn

is
, b

ow
ls

, c
ric

ke
t, 

an
d 

fo
ot

ba
ll 

w
ith

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
pa

vi
lio

n.
 

b.
 

P
la

n 
a 

re
vi

se
d 

pr
oj

ec
t f

or
 th

e 
A

bb
ey

 S
ta

di
um

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
6 

– 
fin

al
 o

pt
io

ns
 r

e 
de

si
gn

 a
nd

 c
os

t m
od

el
in

g.
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

06
 –

 p
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
to

 M
em

be
rs

.  
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
06

 –
 F

ul
l C

ou
nc

il 
ap

pr
ov

al
 o

n 
op

tio
n 

to
 p

ro
ce

ed
. 

c.
 

P
ro

je
ct

 P
la

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
B

or
de

sl
ey

 P
os

t E
xc

av
at

io
n 

w
or

ks
 a

nd
 

in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

si
te

. 
D

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 h

av
e 

ta
ke

n 
pl

ac
e 

w
ith

 E
ng

lis
h 

H
er

ita
ge

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
po

st
-

ex
ca

va
tio

ns
.  

R
ep

or
t t

o 
M

em
be

rs
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

00
7.

 
d.

 
D

et
er

m
in

e 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

fo
r 

B
or

de
sl

ey
 A

bb
ey

 a
nd

 F
or

ge
 M

ill
 S

ite
. 

M
em

be
rs

 h
av

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 th

e 
op

er
at

io
n 

of
 th

is
 fa

ci
lit

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
Z

er
o 

B
as

ed
 B

ud
ge

t p
ro

ce
ss

. T
he

 o
pt

io
n 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l w
ill

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
7.

  
e.

 
S

up
po

rt
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f c
om

m
er

ci
al

 le
is

ur
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 
• 

T
he

 K
in

gf
is

he
r 

S
ho

pp
in

g 
C

en
tr

e 
“V

is
io

n 
S

ta
te

m
en

t”
 is

 b
ei

ng
 

Page 104



35
 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e.

 
re

fr
es

he
d 

an
d 

pa
rt

 o
f t

hi
s 

w
or

ks
 lo

ok
s 

at
 le

is
ur

e 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
. 

• 
T

he
 n

ew
 V

is
io

n 
S

ta
te

m
en

t w
ill

 a
ss

is
t i

n 
th

e 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e 

S
tr

at
eg

y.
 

f. 
P

la
n 

en
ha

nc
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
B

M
X

 T
ra

ck
. 

B
M

X
 c

lu
b 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

an
d 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 w

ith
 B

rit
is

h 
C

yc
lin

g 
F

ed
er

at
io

n.
 

P
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 r
e-

de
ve

lo
p 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

B
M

X
 tr

ac
k 

in
 

M
at

ch
bo

ro
ug

h.
 C

lu
b 

no
w

 ta
rg

et
in

g 
‘P

la
yf

ul
 id

ea
s’

 b
ig

 lo
tte

ry
 fu

nd
 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l t

o 
de

liv
er

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
 4
.2
 

W
e 
w
ill
 in

cr
ea
se
 t
h
e 
n
u
m
b
er
 o
f 
p
eo

p
le
 a
n
d
 t
h
e 
fr
eq

u
en

cy
 o
f 
p
ar
ti
ci
p
at
io
n
 in

 s
p
o
rt
s 
an

d
 a
rt
s 
ac
ti
vi
ti
es

. 
 In

 li
ne

 w
ith

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t p

ol
ic

y 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

ac
tiv

ity
 le

ve
ls

 o
f a

ll 
se

ct
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
, t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
cr

ea
te

d 
ne

w
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 to
 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
m

or
e 

pe
op

le
 to

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
in

 m
or

e 
w

ay
s.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

co
nt

in
ue

s 
to

 ta
rg

et
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

to
 e

xe
rc

is
e 

in
 m

or
e 

w
ay

s.
  T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 ta

rg
et

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e,
 w

om
en

 a
nd

 m
in

or
ity

 e
th

ni
c 

gr
ou

ps
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n.
 

 P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 P

la
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
• 

A
ud

it 
of

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
co

m
pl

et
e 

• 
C

ou
nt

y 
w

id
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 a

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
R

B
C

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

07
 

• 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

to
 b

e 
lin

ke
d 

to
 a

 lo
ca

l a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 fo
r 

R
ed

di
tc

h.
  

• 
P

la
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

G
ro

up
 s

et
 u

p 
an

d 
pr

og
re

ss
in

g 
lo

ca
l b

id
s 

to
 P

la
y 

E
ng

la
nd

 d
ur

in
g 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
07

. 
• 

R
ed

di
tc

h 
bi

d 
is

 b
ei

ng
 p

re
pa

re
d 

fo
r 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

ro
un

d 
of

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 
b.

 
O

ffe
r 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
sp

or
ts

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s.
 

• 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 &
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

M
em

be
r 

pa
ne

l w
or

k 
w

ith
 R

ed
di

ca
rd

 r
ev

ie
w

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

. O
ut

co
m

es
 r

ec
om

m
en

de
d;

 
o

 
A

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l p

os
t o

f M
ar

ke
tin

g 
O

ffi
ce

r 
an

d 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
op

er
at

io
na

l b
ud

ge
ts

 r
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
o

 
T

he
 s

ch
em

e 
of

 d
el

eg
at

io
n 

be
 a

m
en

de
d 

to
 a

llo
w

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 to
 

im
pl

em
en

t s
ho

rt
 te

rm
 a

nd
 o

ne
 o

ff 
pr

om
ot

io
ns

 
o

 
T

he
 s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 R
ed

di
ca

rd
 M

ar
ke

tin
g 

P
la

n 
be

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

o
 

T
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
re

vi
se

d 
ai

m
s 

an
d 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 o

f R
ed

di
ca

rd
 a

re
 

ag
re

ed
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

ad
op

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
S

M
A

R
T

 c
rit

er
ia

 
• 

20
 n

ew
 s

es
si

on
s 

an
d 

75
2 

in
di

vi
du

al
 n

ew
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

ac
ce

ss
in

g 
80

00
+ 

at
te

nd
an

ce
s 

at
 th

e 
B

at
ch

le
y 

S
po

rt
s 

H
ub

 d
ur

in
g 

fir
st

 y
ea

r 
of

 
op

er
at

io
n.

 
• 

Le
is

ur
e 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
ha

ve
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l c

on
ce

ss
io

na
ry

 

Page 105



36
 

at
te

nd
an

ce
s 

fr
om

 3
1,

53
1 

in
 2

00
5/

06
 to

 6
1,

90
7 

in
 2

00
6/

07
, a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 o

f 9
6%

.  
 

c.
 

P
ro

vi
de

 m
or

e 
le

is
ur

e,
 c

ul
tu

ra
l a

nd
 s

po
rt

s 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
. 

   

• 
P

ro
du

ce
d 

an
d 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 th

e 
fir

st
 e

di
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

cu
ltu

ra
l/a

rt
s 

’W
ha

t’s
 

on
’ p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 a

 w
id

er
 r

an
ge

 o
f a

ct
iv

iti
es

. G
ui

de
 fo

r 
R

ed
di

tc
h.

 
D

es
ig

ne
d 

th
e 

fir
st

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 fo

r 
th

e 
S

tu
di

o 
at

 th
e 

P
al

ac
e 

th
ea

tr
e,

 A
im

ed
 a

t a
ud

ie
nc

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t J
an

 –
 A

pr
il 

20
07

.  
W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 p

ol
ic

e 
an

d 
M

at
ch

bo
ro

ug
h 

P
A

C
T

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

po
rt

in
g 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 a
t A

rr
ow

 V
al

e 
S

C
 –

 s
tr

ee
t s

oc
ce

r,
 y

ou
th

 s
he

lte
r,

 B
ab

y 
G

ym
 a

nd
 tr

am
po

lin
in

g,
 s

tr
ee

t d
an

ce
, b

ox
er

ci
se

, g
ro

up
 c

yc
lin

g,
 ju

ni
or

 
yo

ga
, H

i/L
o 

da
nc

e,
 G

P
 r

ef
er

ra
l s

ch
em

e 
• 

T
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
se

ss
io

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 to

 a
ttr

ac
t w

om
en

 a
nd

 
gi

rls
 in

to
 s

po
rt

 a
nd

 p
hy

si
ca

l a
ct

iv
ity

; 
o

 
W

om
en

 a
nd

 g
irl

s 
N

et
ba

ll 
le

ag
ue

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
at

 
A

rr
ow

 V
al

e 
S

po
rt

s 
C

en
tr

e 
w

ith
 1

80
 w

om
en

 a
nd

 5
0 

gi
rls

 
at

te
nd

in
g 

on
 a

 w
ee

kl
y 

ba
si

s.
  

o
 

C
ha

nc
e 

to
 d

an
ce

 F
es

tiv
al

 
o

 
A

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 K

ee
p 

fit
 p

ro
gr

am
 w

hi
ch

 is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 8

0%
 

of
 th

e 
lo

ca
l s

ec
on

da
ry

 a
nd

 H
ig

h 
sc

ho
ol

s.
 T

he
 s

er
vi

ce
 is

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 r

un
ni

ng
 a

 H
i/L

o 
da

nc
e 

se
ss

io
n 

fo
r 

w
om

en
 a

nd
 s

in
ce

 
O

ct
ob

er
 th

er
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
60

 a
tte

nd
an

ce
s 

o
 

A
 S

tr
ee

t D
an

ce
 c

la
ss

 fo
r 

ju
ni

or
 g

irl
s 

(1
2-

16
) 

ta
ke

s 
pl

ac
e 

at
 

A
rr

ow
 V

al
e.

 T
he

 s
er

vi
ce

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 d
oi

ng
 s

ch
oo

l r
oa

d 
sh

ow
s 

(S
tr

ee
t D

an
ce

/ B
ox

in
g)

 a
nd

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 h

itt
in

g 
tw

o 
sc

ho
ol

s 
a 

w
ee

k,
 w

hi
ch

 e
qu

at
es

 to
 6

0 
gi

rls
 a

 w
ee

k 
o

 
A

 ju
ni

or
 G

irl
s 

B
as

ke
tb

al
l r

eg
io

na
l s

qu
ad

 ta
ke

s 
pl

ac
e 

on
 a

 
F

rid
ay

 a
fte

rn
oo

n 
fo

r 
gi

rls
 w

ith
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
20

 g
irl

s 
at

te
nd

in
g 

w
ee

kl
y 

o
 

W
om

en
’s

 b
as

ke
tb

al
l i

s 
al

so
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

on
 a

 w
ee

kl
y 

ba
si

s 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

20
 p

ar
tic

ip
an

ts
 th

at
 c

om
pe

te
 a

t a
 r

eg
io

na
l l

ev
el

 
• 

W
or

k 
un

de
rw

ay
 w

ith
 P

up
il 

re
fe

rr
al

 u
ni

t a
t I

ps
le

y 
S

ch
oo

l 
• 

A
ct

iv
e 

fa
m

ily
 s

es
si

on
s 

w
ith

in
 B

at
ch

le
y 

w
ar

d 
ha

ve
 s

ee
n 

67
3 

at
te

nd
an

ce
s 

O
ct

 2
00

6 
– 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7.

 
• 

P
ro

gr
es

si
ng

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 S
ur

eS
ta

rt
 –

 5
00

 fa
m

ily
 R

ed
di

ca
rd

s 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 to
 h

el
p 

w
ith

 r
em

ov
in

g 
so

ci
al

 a
nd

 e
co

no
m

ic
 b

ar
rie

rs
 to

 
ph

ys
ic

al
 a

ct
iv

ity
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

• 
In

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 th
e 

P
C

T
, t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

se
ss

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

Page 106



37
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 s
om

e 
of

 th
e 

P
C

T
’ s

 ta
rg

et
ed

 c
hr

on
ic

 il
ln

es
s 

an
d 

ob
es

ity
; 

o
 

E
xe

rc
is

e 
R

ef
er

ra
l p

ilo
t s

ch
em

e 
w

as
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 n
ow

 b
ei

ng
 

us
ed

 a
s 

a 
m

od
el

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 c

ou
nt

y 
o

 
 A

 S
m

ok
in

g 
C

es
sa

tio
n 

re
fe

rr
al

 s
ch

em
e 

at
 b

ot
h 

fit
ne

ss
 s

ui
te

s 
is

 
no

w
 in

 th
e 

ea
rly

 s
ta

ge
s 

of
 d

el
iv

er
y.

  
o

 
M

ul
tip

le
 S

cl
er

os
is

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
an

d 
m

ob
ili

ty
 s

es
si

on
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

de
liv

er
ed

 a
t o

ut
re

ac
h 

ve
nu

es
.  

o
 

A
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 W
al

ki
ng

 fo
r 

H
ea

lth
 p

ro
gr

am
 is

 a
n 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nt

ry
si

de
 C

en
tr

e’
s 

ac
tiv

ity
 p

ro
gr

am
.  

 
o

 
A

 m
ob

ile
 B

re
as

t S
ca

nn
in

g 
un

it 
w

ill
 b

e 
si

te
d 

at
 th

e 
A

bb
ey

 
S

ta
di

um
 to

 a
ttr

ac
t y

ou
ng

er
 w

om
en

 a
nd

 r
ai

se
 a

w
ar

en
es

s.
  

• 
A

 p
ro

gr
am

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

ns
, a

 y
ou

ng
 p

er
so

ns
 C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
m

od
el

. T
he

se
 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g;
 

o
 

T
ar

ge
te

d 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
by

 a
ct

iv
ity

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
sc

ho
ol

s 
sw

im
m

in
g,

 
ju

ni
or

 
sw

im
m

in
g 

le
ss

on
s,

 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

pa
rt

ie
s 

an
d 

ho
lid

ay
 

co
ac

hi
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

. 
A

ll 
of

 t
he

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t 

is
 

di
sp

la
ye

d 
to

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

an
d 

an
y 

ac
tio

ns
 a

re
 i

nc
lu

de
d 

in
 t

he
 

si
te

 s
pe

ci
fic

 S
IP

’s
 (

S
er

vi
ce

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
ns

).
  

o
 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
ar

e 
in

vi
te

d 
at

te
nd

 m
ee

tin
gs

 t
o 

di
sc

us
s 

pl
an

ni
ng

 o
f 

sc
ho

ol
 h

ol
id

ay
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 (

K
id

’s
 Q

ue
st

 F
or

um
).

 
o

 
In

 a
dd

iti
on

 t
o 

th
e 

ab
ov

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 h

av
e 

be
en

 i
nv

ol
ve

d 
in

 
co

ns
tr

uc
tin

g 
a 

F
LO

S
S

 b
id

 t
o 

ra
is

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
to

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
ne

w
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
co

ac
hi

ng
 s

up
po

rt
 i

n 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 t
he

 
st

re
et

 s
oc

ce
r 

se
ss

io
ns

 a
t A

rr
ow

 V
al

e 
S

po
rt

s 
C

en
tr

e 
o

 
Ju

ni
or

 
P

ac
t 

M
ee

tin
gs

 
- 

A
 

qu
ar

te
rly

 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

he
re

 
lo

ca
l 

ch
ild

re
n 

ca
n 

sp
ea

k 
to

 a
 p

an
el

 o
f 

pe
op

le
 t

ha
t 

in
cl

ud
e 

R
ed

di
tc

h 
B

or
ou

gh
 C

ou
nc

il,
 a

 lo
ca

l C
ou

nc
ill

or
, Y

ou
th

 W
or

ke
rs

, T
ea

ch
er

s 
an

d 
th

e 
P

ol
ic

e.
 O

ut
co

m
es

 o
f 

th
e 

fo
ru

m
 h

av
e 

le
d 

de
liv

er
y 

pr
og

ra
m

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
s 

re
qu

es
tin

g 
by

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
 

 • 
T

he
re

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 In

cr
ea

se
 o

f 6
8%

 (
21

08
 fr

om
 1

25
7)

 in
 

st
ud

en
t f

itn
es

s 
su

ite
 m

em
be

rs
hi

ps
 fr

om
 2

00
5/

06
 to

 2
00

6/
07

. T
hi

s 
is

 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

ne
w

 p
ric

in
g 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
be

in
g 

in
tr

od
uc

ed
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

ct
or

.  

Page 107



38
 

• 
P

al
ac

e 
T

he
at

re
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
co

nt
in

ua
lly

 b
ei

ng
 e

nh
an

ce
d.

 S
tu

di
o 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

no
w

 in
 p

la
ce

. Y
ou

th
 th

ea
tr

e 
at

te
nd

an
ce

 
in

cr
ea

se
d.

 
• 

N
ew

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 D
ia

l-a
- 

R
id

e 
gi

vi
ng

 r
es

id
en

ts
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 

ac
ce

ss
 th

ea
tr

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
s 

w
ho

 w
ou

ld
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
no

t b
e 

ab
le

 to
 

vi
si

t t
he

 th
ea

tr
e.

 2
2%

 o
f p

ar
tic

ip
an

ts
 h

ad
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

to
 th

e 
th

ea
tr

e 
be

fo
re

. 
• 

N
ew

 s
es

si
on

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
su

m
m

er
 a

t M
et

tis
 s

ch
em

e 
w

ith
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

to
 b

ow
ls

, t
en

ni
s 

an
d 

cr
ic

ke
t p

ro
vi

si
on

, e
na

bl
in

g 
th

e 
cl

ub
s 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 

m
em

be
rs

hi
ps

. 
• 

B
at

ch
le

y 
S

po
rt

s 
hu

b 
ha

s 
at

tr
ac

te
d 

ov
er

 7
00

 n
ew

 a
tte

nd
an

ce
s 

in
 th

e 
fir

st
 tw

o 
qu

ar
te

rs
 o

f t
hi

s 
ye

ar
 th

ro
ug

h 
ne

w
 s

es
si

on
s 

m
an

ag
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
lu

b 
C

om
m

un
ity

 D
ev

 O
ffi

ce
r,

 A
 1

2 
w

ee
k 

G
P

 r
ef

er
ra

l s
ch

em
e 

co
m

m
en

ce
d 

S
ep

t 2
00

6,
 la

di
es

 c
ric

ke
t t

ea
m

 fo
rm

ed
, C

lu
b 

M
ar

k 
fo

r 
ju

ni
or

 h
oc

ke
y 

se
ct

io
n.

 A
ll 

tim
e 

hi
gh

 fo
r 

ju
ni

or
 c

ric
ke

t s
ec

tio
n 

m
em

be
rs

. 
• 

S
uc

ce
ss

fu
l d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
fir

st
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
R

oo
m

 U
ps

ta
irs

 
(s

tu
di

o)
 a

t t
he

 P
la

ce
 th

ea
tr

e.
 6

 s
ho

w
s 

de
liv

er
ed

   
 ta

rg
et

in
g 

ne
w

 
au

di
en

ce
s.

 
O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
 4
.3
 

P
ro
vi
d
e 
h
ig
h
 q
u
al
it
y 
se

rv
ic
es

 a
ch

ie
vi
n
g
 a
w
ar
d
s 
an

d
 r
ec

o
g
n
it
io
n
. 

 E
xt

er
na

l v
al

id
at

io
n 

is
 v

ita
l i

f t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
ey

 a
re

: 
 • 

C
us

to
m

er
 fo

cu
se

d 
 

• 
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

ef
fic

ie
nt

ly
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
• 

C
on

fo
rm

in
g 

to
 r

el
ev

an
t l

eg
is

la
tio

n 
 T

he
 a

w
ar

ds
 a

ss
is

t i
n 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

of
 d

riv
in

g 
fo

rw
ar

d 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e,
 o

ffe
r 

re
co

gn
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

st
af

f a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f q
ua

lit
y 

fo
r 

ou
r 

M
em

be
rs

, C
us

to
m

er
s 

an
d 

ex
te

rn
al

 b
od

ie
s.

 
 P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

R
et

ai
n 

'G
re

en
 F

la
g'

 s
ta

tu
s 

fo
r 

A
rr

ow
 V

al
le

y 
P

ar
k.

 
G

re
en

 fl
ag

 a
w

ar
d 

ac
hi

ev
ed

/r
et

ai
ne

d.
 

S
ub

m
is

si
on

 fo
r 

20
07

 b
id

 b
ei

ng
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 
b.

 
R

et
ai

n 
'Q

ue
st

' s
ta

tu
s 

fo
r 

K
in

gs
le

y 
C

ol
le

ge
 S

po
rt

s 
C

en
tr

e 
R

e 
ac

cr
ed

ita
tio

n 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 A

pr
il 

20
06

. 
A

dd
iti

on
al

ly
; 

Page 108



39
 

 
o

 A
ct

io
n 

S
po

rt
s 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t U
ni

t Q
ue

st
 q

ua
lit

y 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ac

cr
ed

ite
d 

D
ec

 2
00

6 
o

 A
rr

ow
 V

al
e 

S
C

 r
et

ai
ne

d 
Q

ue
st

 Q
ua

lit
y 

m
an

ag
em

en
t s

ta
tu

s 
F

eb
 

07
 

 
H

ew
el

l R
oa

d 
P

oo
l a

nd
 K

in
gs

le
y 

S
C

 g
ai

ne
d 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
Li

fe
gu

ar
d 

T
ra

in
in

g 
C

en
tr

e 
st

at
us

 N
ov

 2
00

6  
  

  

Page 109



40
 

P
E
R
F
O
R
M
A
N
C
E
 M

E
A
S
U
R
E
S
 F
O
R
 2
00
6/
07
 

 P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 4
 –
 L
E
IS
U
R
E
 

 
In
d
ic
at
o
r 

20
06
/0
7 

P
as
t 
P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 
F
u
tu
re
 t
ar
g
et
s 

R
ef
 

  D
es

cr
ip
ti
o
n
 

T
ar
g
et
 

A
ct
u
al
 

T
ar
g
et
 

m
et
 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 

o
n
 0
5/
06
 
20
03

/4
 

20
04

/5
 
20
05

/6
 

20
05
/6
 

Q
u
ar
ti
l

e 

 2
00

7/
8 

20
08

/9
 

20
09

/1
0 

B
V

P
I 

17
0a

 
T

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 v
is

its
 to

/u
sa

ge
s 

to
 m

us
eu

m
s 

pe
r 

10
00

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

21
2 

24
7 

�
 
�

 
23

0 
23

5 
22

0.
9 

B
el

ow
 

m
ed

ia
n 

25
0 

25
5 

26
0 

B
V

P
I 

17
0b

 
T

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 t
ho

se
 v

is
its

 t
ha

t 
w

er
e 

in
 p

er
so

n 
pe

r 
10

00
 p

op
ul

at
io

n.
 

15
5 

14
9.

9 
X

 
�

 
15

7 
14

5 
14

9 
B

el
ow

 
m

ed
ia

n 
15

5 
16

0 
16

5 

B
V

P
I 

17
0c

 
T

he
 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

pu
pi

ls
 

vi
si

tin
g 

m
us

eu
m

s 
an

d 
ga

lle
rie

s 
in

 o
rg

an
is

ed
 s

ch
oo

l g
ro

up
s 

 
1,

47
0 

3,
11

1 
�

 
�

 
16

26
 

11
09

 
1,

45
8 

B
el

ow
 

m
ed

ia
n 

15
00

 
20

00
 

25
00

 

LT
 1

 
T

ot
al

 c
on

ce
ss

io
na

ry
 u

se
 

23
,5

68
 

61
,9

09
 
�

 
�

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
31

,5
31

 
 

C
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n 

LT
 2

 
S

po
rt

 a
nd

 L
ei

su
re

 o
ve

ra
ll 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

ra
te

 
74

%
 

76
.9

3%
 
�

 
�

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
73

.0
8%

 
 

C
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n 

LT
 3

 
A

ve
ra

ge
 n

um
be

r 
of

 v
is

its
 to

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
pe

r 
he

ad
 

of
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
7.

61
 

7.
91

 
�

 
�

 
8.

64
 

8.
65

 
7.

56
 

 
C

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

LT
 4

 
S

po
rt

 a
nd

 L
ei

su
re

: s
ub

si
dy

 p
er

 v
is

it 
£1

.2
2 

£1
.2

5 
x 

- 
£0

.9
4 

£0
.9

5 
£1

.2
5 

 
C

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

    

Page 110



41
 

O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
S
 A
N
D
 P
R
O
JE

C
T
S
 F
O
R
 2
00
7-
20
10
 

 P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 4
 

L
E
IS
U
R
E
  

 4.
1 

C
re
at
e 
an

d
 Im

p
ro
ve
 L
ei
su

re
, C

u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 A
rt
s 
F
ac

ili
ti
es

 
 

a.
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 n

ew
 p

la
n 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 n
ew

 s
w

im
m

in
g 

po
ol

 a
nd

 le
is

ur
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
b.

 
In

 li
ne

 w
ith

 b
ud

ge
t s

tr
at

eg
y 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t t

ra
nc

he
 1

 in
ve

st
ig

at
e 

th
e 

ou
ts

ou
rc

in
g 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

sp
or

ts
 s

ite
 p

ro
vi

si
on

. 
c.

 
S

up
po

rt
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f c
om

m
er

ci
al

 le
is

ur
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e.

 
d.

 
P

la
n 

en
ha

nc
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
B

M
X

 T
ra

ck
. 

4.
2 

In
cr
ea
se

 t
h
e 
n
u
m
b
er
 o
f 
p
eo

p
le
 a
n
d
 t
h
e 
fr
eq

u
en

cy
 o
f 
p
ar
ti
ci
p
at
io
n
 in

 a
 w
id
er
 r
an

g
e 
o
f 
ac

ti
vi
ti
es

  
 a.

 
Im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 P

la
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
• 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f l
oc

al
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
s 

• 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f '

ris
ki

er
' p

la
y 

• 
in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 p
la

y 
ra

ng
er

s 
b.

 
P

ro
vi

de
 m

or
e 

le
is

ur
e,

 c
ul

tu
ra

l a
nd

 s
po

rt
s 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 a
s 

de
ta

ile
d 

in
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
pl

an
. 

c.
 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 P

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 th
e 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

P
la

n 
w

ith
 li

nk
ag

e 
to

 th
e 

'Y
ou

th
 M

at
te

rs
' 

ag
en

da
 

 
4.
3 

P
ro
vi
d
e 
h
ig
h
 q
u
al
it
y 
se

rv
ic
es

 a
ch

ie
vi
n
g
 a
w
ar
d
s 
an

d
 r
ec

o
g
n
it
io
n
  

a.
 

R
et

ai
n 

'G
re

en
 F

la
g'

 s
ta

tu
s 

fo
r 

A
rr

ow
 V

al
le

y 
P

ar
k.

 
b.

 
R

et
ai

n 
'Q

ue
st

' s
ta

tu
s 

fo
r 

S
po

rt
s 

C
en

tr
es

 
c.

 
In

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 A
P

S
E

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 s

ch
em

e 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

al
l f

ac
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 

d.
 

U
se

 o
f b

ot
h 

T
A

E
S

 a
nd

 A
rt

s 
at

 th
e 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 C

en
tr

e 
se

lf 
as

se
ss

m
en

t f
ra

m
ew

or
ks

 
  

Page 111



42
 

P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 5
 –
 A
 W

E
L
L
 M

A
N
A
G
E
D
 O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
 

 20
06
/0
7 
P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

 W
E
 A
IM

 T
O
: 
B
E
 A
 W

E
L
L
 M

A
N
A
G
E
D
 O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
 

 R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
S
tr
iv
es
 to
 b
e 
a 
w
el
l m
an
ag
ed
 o
rg
an
is
at
io
n.
  I
t e
xp
ec
ts
 to
 b
e 
at
 th
e 
he
ar
t o
f d
ev
el
op
in
g 
th
e 
lo
ca
l e
co
no
m
y,
 

en
vi
ro
nm

en
t a
nd
 c
om

m
un
ity
. 

 In
 o
ur
 r
ol
e 
as
 a
 c
om

m
un
ity
 le
ad
er
, w
e 
es
ta
bl
is
he
d 
th
e 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 a
nd
 h
av
e 
le
d 
th
e 
de
ve
lo
pm

en
t o
f t
he
 2
0-
20
 V
is
io
n 
- 
C
om

m
un
ity
 

S
tr
at
eg
y.
 

 In
 o
ur
 r
ol
e 
as
 a
 s
er
vi
ce
 p
ro
vi
de
r 
w
e 
pu
rs
ue
 th
e 
de
liv
er
y 
of
 h
ig
h 
qu
al
ity
, c
os
t e
ffe
ct
iv
e 
se
rv
ic
es
 to
 r
ea
lis
e 
th
e 
ai
m
s 
of
 th
e 
C
or
po
ra
te
 P
la
n 
an
d 
th
e 

C
om

m
un
ity
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
an
d 
th
e 
as
pi
ra
tio
ns
 o
f t
he
 s
ta
ke
ho
ld
er
s 
in
 R
ed
di
tc
h.
 

 In
 2
00
6/
07
 w
e 
to
ok
 a
ct
io
n 
ag
ai
ns
t t
w
el
ve
 m
ai
n 
ob
je
ct
iv
es
: 

 O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
 

5.
1 
 

W
e 
w
ill
 r
ef
in
e 
o
u
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
es

 b
o
th
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 S
er
vi
ce

 P
la
n
s 
in
cl
u
d
in
g
: 

P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

A
nn

ua
l r

ev
ie

w
 o

f b
ud

ge
ts

 li
nk

ed
 to

 lo
ng

 te
rm

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
la

n 
– 

w
ith

 m
em

be
r 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t i

n 
al

lo
ca

tin
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 p
rio

rit
y 

ar
ea

s.
 

B
ud

ge
ts

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 A

ut
um

n 
20

06
.  

B
id

s 
to

ta
lli

ng
 £

1.
3m

 d
ef

er
re

d 
to

 a
fte

r 
th

e 
el

ec
tio

ns
 (

M
ay

 2
00

7)
.  

M
em

be
rs

 to
 r

ev
ie

w
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 

su
pp

or
t a

ny
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

bi
ds

.  
M

ed
iu

m
 T

er
m

 F
in

an
ci

al
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

to
 b

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ou

ttu
rn

 fo
r 

20
06

/0
7.

 
O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
 

5.
2 
 

Im
p
ro
vi
n
g
 C
u
st
o
m
er
 A
cc

es
s 

P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

F
or

m
al

is
e 

th
e 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 E

qu
al

ity
 S

ch
em

e 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

p 
an

 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 s

pe
ci

fic
 a

ct
iv

ity
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 

to
 p

ub
lic

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 

10
0%

 c
om

pl
et

e 
- 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

06
 

 

O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
 

5.
3 
 

E
n
su

ri
n
g
 a
 s
u
st
ai
n
ed

 im
p
ro
ve
m
en

t 
in
 s
er
vi
ce

s 
b
y:
 

P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

D
ev

el
op

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 c
or

po
ra

te
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 fo
r 

pr
oj

ec
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

F
ur

th
er

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 to
 b

e 
ro

lle
d 

ou
t d

ur
in

g 
20

07
/0

8 
by

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 w
ho

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

th
e 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
w

ith
 s

up
po

rt
 fr

om
 H

R
 

b.
 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
m

em
be

r 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t i
n 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

S
ee

 5
.1

0d
 

c.
 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

ro
lli

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
fo

r 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

 
S

er
vi

ce
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 b
ei

ng
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

. 

Page 112



43
 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
. 

P
rio

rit
y 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r 
cu

st
om

er
 a

cc
es

s 
an

d 
w

as
te

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 
du

rin
g 

20
06

/0
7.

 
d.

 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

th
e 

C
om

pa
ct

 w
ith

 th
e 

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 S

ec
to

r 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 g
ra

nt
s 

pr
oc

es
s 

an
d 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 S

LA
’s

 fo
r 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 

A
ll 

P
ro

je
ct

 G
ra

nt
s 

fo
r 

20
07

/0
8 

ar
e 

go
ve

rn
ed

 b
y 

a 
S

er
vi

ce
 L

ev
el

 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
P

rin
ci

pl
es

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nt

y 
w

id
e 

C
om

pa
ct

 
ag

re
em

en
t. 

 
 

O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
  

5.
4 

T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l w

ill
 p
ro
m
o
te
 le

ar
n
in
g
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e 
o
rg
an

is
at
io
n
 

P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

In
tr

od
uc

e 
a 

S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 

O
n 

ta
rg

et
.  

A
 n

um
be

r 
of

 s
en

io
r 

m
an

ag
er

s 
ha

ve
 e

m
ba

rk
ed

 o
n 

H
er

ef
or

d 
an

d 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 L
ea

de
rs

hi
p 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e.

   
M

en
u 

of
 le

ar
ni

ng
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

pt
io

ns
 to

 b
e 

in
tr

od
uc

ed
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
m

en
to

rin
g 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
of

 H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

. 
b.

 
U

pd
at

e 
th

e 
T

al
en

t P
la

n 
fo

r 
20

06
-9

. 
N

ew
 a

pp
ra

is
al

 s
ch

em
e 

to
 b

e 
in

tr
od

uc
ed

 fo
r 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

7 
ap

pr
ai

sa
ls

. 
c.

 
S

ha
re

 le
ar

ni
ng

 s
ys

te
m

at
ic

al
ly

 v
ia

 th
e 

3rd
 T

ie
r 

M
an

ag
er

s’
 

G
ro

up
 a

nd
 C

on
ta

ct
 a

rt
ic

le
s.

 
T

hi
s 

is
 o

ng
oi

ng
 a

nd
 g

oo
d 

pr
ac

tic
e 

no
w

 b
ei

ng
 d

is
se

m
in

at
ed

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y.

 
 R

eg
ul

ar
 C

M
T

/3
rd

 T
ie

r 
m

ee
tin

gs
 h

el
d.

  S
ub

 g
ro

up
s 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
w

ith
 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 k

ey
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

on
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
d.

 
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 a
 S

ta
ff 

M
an

ag
em

en
t C

ha
rt

er
. 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 A

pr
il 

20
06

 
O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
  

5.
5 

T
o
 D
ev
el
o
p
 o
u
r 
p
ar
tn
er
sh

ip
 w
o
rk
in
g
. 

P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

C
o-

or
di

na
te

 p
ar

tn
er

 r
es

po
ns

es
 to

 r
eg

io
na

l a
nd

 n
at

io
na

l 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n.
 

T
he

 R
ed

di
tc

h 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 M

an
ag

er
 h

as
 c

o-
or

di
na

te
d 

an
d 

re
sp

on
de

d 
to

: 
• 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

on
 th

e 
ro

le
 o

f L
S

P
s 

an
d 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

S
tr

at
eg

ie
s.

 
• 

R
ec

on
fig

ur
at

io
n 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 A
cu

te
 

H
os

pi
ta

ls
 N

H
S

 T
ru

st
. 

• 
T

he
 W

es
t M

id
la

nd
s 

R
eg

io
na

l L
oc

al
 A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t/L

oc
al

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 C
ap

ac
ity

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 

b.
 

Im
pl

em
en

t p
ro

po
sa

ls
 to

 r
es

tr
uc

tu
re

 th
e 

R
ed

di
tc

h 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
. 

• 
T

w
o 

M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

 m
ee

tin
gs

 a
nd

 o
ne

 s
pe

ci
al

 B
oa

rd
 m

ee
tin

g 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

he
ld

 w
hi

ch
 fo

cu
se

d 
its

 a
tte

nt
io

n 
on

 m
ig

ra
nt

 w
or

ke
r 

is
su

es
. 

• 
A

 m
ee

tin
g 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
rr

an
ge

d 
to

 b
rin

g 
to

ge
th

er
 th

em
e 

ch
am

pi
on

s 
to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
em

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
 a

t a
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

an
d 

at
 a

 c
ou

nt
y 

le
ve

l. 
• 

A
 r

ep
or

t w
as

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 th
e 

C
or

po
ra

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
 in

 

Page 113



44
 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

07
. T

hi
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
n 

ov
er

vi
ew

 o
f a

re
as

 it
 m

ay
 w

an
t t

o 
co

ns
id

er
 in

 d
et

er
m

in
in

g 
w

he
th

er
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

re
vi

se
d 

or
 a

lte
re

d 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
.  
 

• 
T

hi
s 

w
or

k 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
er

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

a 
re

vi
ew

 o
f p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

, r
ol

es
, r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s,
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
p 

an
d 

lin
ks

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

. 
• 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, t

he
 r

ep
or

t r
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
th

er
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
a 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
el

ec
te

d 
M

em
be

rs
 r

ol
e 

in
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

. 
• 

T
he

se
 a

ct
io

ns
 s

te
m

 fr
om

 is
su

es
 a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
S
tr
on
g 
an
d 

P
ro
sp
er
ou
s 
C
om

m
un
iti
es

 -
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t W
hi

te
 P

ap
er

.  
  

c.
 

P
ro

du
ce

 a
 r

ev
is

ed
 v

er
si

on
 o

f t
he

 R
ed

di
tc

h 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

• 
A

 S
ta

te
 o

f t
he

 B
or

ou
gh

 C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

w
as

 h
el

d 
on

 th
e 

18
th
 o

f J
un

e 
20

07
.  

T
he

m
at

ic
 S

ta
te

 o
f t

he
 B

or
ou

gh
 r

ep
or

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
pr

es
en

te
d 

as
 

di
sc

us
si

on
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 to
 p

re
se

nt
 th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 c

as
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

R
ed

di
tc

h 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 p

rio
rit

ie
s.

   
T

he
 S

ta
te

 o
f t

he
 B

or
ou

gh
 R

ep
or

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
 a

lo
ng

si
de

 o
th

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 r
ev

is
e 

th
e 

R
ed

di
tc

h 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
S

tr
at

eg
y.

  
• 

A
 r

ep
or

t w
as

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 th
e 

R
ed

di
tc

h 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 B

oa
rd

 in
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
07

.  
F

ur
th

er
 w

or
k 

w
as

 n
ee

de
d 

si
nc

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 h

ad
 

ad
di

tio
na

l i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
to

 s
up

pl
y.

   
• 

A
 r

ev
is

ed
 r

ep
or

t w
as

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 in

 A
pr

il 
20

07
 fo

r 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 to

 e
nd

or
se

 
pr

io
rit

ie
s.

  T
he

se
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

w
ill

 in
fo

rm
 th

e 
S

ta
te

 o
f t

he
 B

or
ou

gh
 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

in
 h

el
pi

ng
 to

 r
ev

is
e 

th
e 

R
ed

di
tc

h 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tr

at
eg

y.
 

O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
  

5.
6 

E
ff
ec

ti
ve
 F
in
an

ci
al
 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

 In
 2

00
7/

08
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 r

e-
pr

of
ile

 th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 R
ev

en
ue

 A
cc

ou
nt

 fi
na

nc
ia

l m
od

el
. 

 P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
fo

ur
 D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
Z

er
o 

B
as

e 
B

ud
ge

t R
ev

ie
w

 G
ro

up
s 

co
nv

en
ed

 to
 s

cr
ut

in
is

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 b

ud
ge

ts
, m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 

lin
ks

 to
 th

e 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t S

tr
at

eg
y.

 

O
ut

co
m

es
 w

er
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 to
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 1

1 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
6.

 

b.
 

Li
m

it 
C

ou
nc

il 
T

ax
 in

cr
ea

se
s 

to
 In

fla
tio

n 
on

ly
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

ne
xt

 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

s.
 

C
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

in
cr

ea
se

 fo
r 

20
07

/0
8 

se
t a

t i
nf

la
tio

n 

c.
 

C
on

du
ct

 A
nn

ua
l r

ev
ie

w
 o

f d
eb

t f
re

e 
st

at
us

/C
ap

ita
l f

un
di

ng
. 

C
ap

ita
l S

tr
at

eg
y 

up
da

te
d 

A
pr

il 
20

07
.  

F
ro

m
 2

00
6/

07
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 

ce
as

e 
to

 b
e 

de
bt

 fr
ee

. 
O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
   

5.
7 

A
ss

et
 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Page 114



45
 

 T
he

 A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
tr

at
eg

y 
se

ek
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ss
et

 h
ol

di
ng

s 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t r

ef
le

ct
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
na

l r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
 

de
liv

er
y 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
.  

It 
do

es
 th

is
 v

ia
 a

 r
ev

ie
w

 p
ro

ce
ss

 th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
th

e 
ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
fo

r 
re

ta
in

in
g 

as
se

ts
 a

nd
 c

or
re

la
te

s 
th

e 
co

st
 o

f m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
w

ith
 th

e 
ca

pi
ta

l r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 k

ee
p 

th
e 

as
se

ts
 to

 a
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

th
at

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

in
 th

e 
21

st
 c

en
tu

ry
.  

 
 P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

D
el

iv
er

 fu
rt

he
r 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 d

is
po

sa
ls

. 
D

is
po

sa
ls

 e
xc

ee
de

d 
th

e 
20

06
/0

7 
ta

rg
et

. 
D

is
po

sa
ls

 a
m

ou
nt

ed
 to

 £
71

5,
50

0 
ex

cl
ud

in
g 

R
ig

ht
 to

 B
uy

 s
al

es
. 

b.
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
n 

of
fic

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
st

ra
te

gy
. 

• 
C

om
m

is
si

on
ed

 c
on

su
lta

nt
 to

 r
ev

ie
w

 T
ow

n 
H

al
l s

to
ra

ge
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. 
• 

A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 b
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7.

  
 N

ew
 s

ur
ve

y 
to

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 to

 r
ef

le
ct

 D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

an
d 

ex
te

rn
al

 p
ar

tn
er

 v
ac

at
in

g 
sp

ac
e.

 
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

de
la

ye
d 

-d
ef

er
re

d 
fo

r 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
in

 2
00

7/
8.

 
c.

 
Im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t P

la
n.

 
• 

U
pd

at
e 

on
 th

e 
A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t P

la
n 

pr
es

en
te

d 
to

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 1
 N

ov
em

be
r 

20
06

.  
A

ls
o 

re
fe

r 
to

 2
.3

a 
E

ne
rg

y 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

U
pd

at
e 

 
Y

ea
rly

 u
pd

at
e 

on
 th

e 
A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t P

la
n 

&
 E

ne
rg

y 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

to
 

be
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 b

y 
en

d 
of

 2
00

7.
 

 S
ur

pl
us

 a
ss

et
s 

so
ld

. T
w

o 
re

du
nd

an
t a

llo
tm

en
t s

ite
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
d 

fo
r 

so
ci

al
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 s

ol
d 

to
 p

ar
tn

er
in

g 
lo

ca
l R

S
L.

   
 

O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
   

5.
8 
 

T
o
 m

an
ag

e 
o
u
r 
st
af
f 
ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y 

 R
ed

di
tc

h 
B

or
ou

gh
 C

ou
nc

il 
st

riv
es

 to
 b

e 
a 

go
od

 e
m

pl
oy

er
.  

T
he

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

of
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

ar
e 

th
e 

m
os

t v
al

ua
bl

e 
as

se
t t

ha
t i

t h
as

. 
 P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

In
tr

od
uc

e 
a 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 

T
hi

s 
to

 b
e 

am
al

ga
m

at
ed

 w
ith

 5
.4

a 
b.

 
In

tr
od

uc
e 

a 
P

ay
 a

nd
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
P

ar
tia

lly
 c

om
pl

et
ed

. S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n 
el

em
en

ts
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 to
 r

ef
le

ct
 P

ay
 

an
d 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

c.
 

R
ev

ie
w

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 A
pp

ra
is

al
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

E
F

Q
M

 m
od

el
. 

R
em

ov
e 

E
F

Q
M

 m
od

el
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

tr
od

uc
ed

 fo
r 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

7 
A

pp
ra

is
al

s 
d.

 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f A
bs

en
te

ei
sm

. 
• 

C
om

pl
et

ed
, h

el
d 

pe
nd

in
g 

co
m

m
en

ts
 fr

om
 th

e 
H

S
E

 in
sp

ec
tio

ns
. 

Page 115



46
 

• 
M

on
th

ly
 r

ep
or

ts
 n

ow
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

w
ith

in
 H

R
 a

nd
 s

en
t t

o 
al

l H
ea

ds
 o

f 
S

er
vi

ce
, w

ith
 r

ev
ie

w
 m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
 H

R
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 

• 
D

ig
ni

ty
 a

t W
or

k 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 c

on
tin

ui
ng

 to
 c

om
ba

t i
ss

ue
s 

of
 B

ul
ly

in
g 

an
d 

H
ar

as
sm

en
t. 

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 S

ur
ve

y 
sh

ow
s 

a 
re

du
ct

io
n 

is
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
fe

el
in

g 
bu

lli
ed

 o
r 

ha
ra

ss
ed

. 
• 

S
tr

es
s 

A
w

ar
en

es
s 

co
ur

se
s 

on
go

in
g,

 w
ith

 th
e 

in
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 a

 S
tr

es
s 

P
ol

ic
y 

im
m

in
en

t a
w

ai
tin

g 
co

m
m

en
ts

 fr
om

 th
e 

H
S

E
 In

sp
ec

tio
ns

 
e.

 
R

ev
ie

w
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 S
af

et
y 

P
ol

ic
y.

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

, h
el

d 
pe

nd
in

g 
co

m
m

en
ts

 fr
om

 th
e 

H
S

E
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

. 
f. 

R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

ac
tic

es
. 

• 
R

ec
ru

itm
en

t p
ol

ic
y 

re
vi

ew
 c

om
pl

et
ed

. 
• 

T
ur

no
ve

r 
re

po
rt

s 
no

w
 b

ei
ng

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
fo

r 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

pu
rp

os
es

. 
• 

C
ar

ee
r 

gr
ad

e 
sc

he
m

es
 in

tr
od

uc
ed

 in
to

 h
ar

d 
to

 r
ec

ru
it 

to
 a

re
as

, i
e 

P
la

nn
in

g.
 

• 
E

xi
t i

nt
er

vi
ew

 q
ue

st
io

nn
ai

re
s 

up
da

te
d 

an
d 

ci
rc

ul
at

ed
 a

t r
es

ig
na

tio
n 

st
ag

e,
 o

ffe
r 

of
 fu

rt
he

r 
in

te
rv

ie
w

 g
iv

en
. 

• 
R

eg
ul

ar
 s

up
po

rt
 o

f s
ch

oo
ls

 w
or

k 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e.

 
• 

F
le

xi
bl

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 p

ol
ic

y 
in

tr
od

uc
ed

. 
g.

 
C

om
pl

et
e 

S
in

gl
e 

S
ta

tu
s 

ne
go

tia
tio

ns
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n.

 
• 

In
iti

al
 d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 h

el
d 

w
ith

 T
ra

de
 U

ni
on

 R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
es

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

Jo
b 

E
va

lu
at

io
n 

S
ch

em
e.

  P
ro

po
se

d 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

pl
an

 s
ha

re
d.

  
P

ro
gr

es
s 

on
go

in
g 

w
ith

 s
ug

ge
st

ed
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

08
.  

T
he

 a
bo

ve
 a

re
 a

ll 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

m
em

be
r 

ap
pr

ov
al

 a
nd

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l 

R
ev

en
ue

 a
nd

 C
ap

ita
l B

id
s.

 
• 

F
ur

th
er

 S
in

gl
e 

S
ta

tu
s 

ne
go

tia
tio

ns
 to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
E

nd
 o

f J
un

e 
20

07
. 

O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
   

5.
9 
 

T
o
 a
ch

ie
ve
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 b
es

t 
p
ra
ct
ic
e 
in
 e
q
u
al
it
y 
is
su

es
 

 E
ve

ry
on

e 
in

 o
ur

 c
om

m
un

ity
 is

 e
qu

al
ly

 im
po

rt
an

t. 
 W

e 
w

ill
 tr

ea
t e

ve
ry

on
e 

w
ith

 r
es

pe
ct

, b
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 in
di

vi
du

al
 n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s 
an

d 
se

ek
 in

cl
us

io
n 

an
d 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 to
 o

ur
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

ta
ck

le
 d

is
ad

va
nt

ag
e.

 
 P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

D
ev

el
op

 e
qu

al
ity

 s
ch

em
es

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
. 

R
ac

e 
E

qu
al

ity
 s

ch
em

e 
re

vi
se

d 
in

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
06

. 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 S
ch

em
e 

be
in

g 
di

sc
us

se
d 

by
 th

e 
R

ed
di

tc
h 

D
is

ab
le

d 
A

cc
es

s 
G

ro
up

. 
G

en
de

r 
S

ch
em

e 
be

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pe

d.
 

b.
 

A
ch

ie
ve

 le
ve

l 3
 o

f t
he

 E
qu

al
ity

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
fo

r 
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t 
by

 2
00

8.
 

T
hi

s 
is

 to
 b

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nt
y 

w
id

e 
E

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 D

iv
er

si
ty

 
pr

oj
ec

t f
un

de
d 

by
 th

e 
R

eg
io

na
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t a

nd
 E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

. 

Page 116



47
 

O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
   

5.
10
 
T
o
 m

an
ag

e 
o
u
r 
ri
sk
s 
ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y 

  O
ur

 r
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t s
tr

at
eg

y 
is

 in
te

gr
al

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
in

g 
th

e 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 th
at

 w
e 

fa
ce

. I
t r

ef
le

ct
s 

ou
r 

va
lu

es
 a

nd
 b

eh
av

io
ur

s.
 

 S
tr

on
g 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t h

el
ps

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

e 
ba

la
nc

e 
in

 o
ur

 c
ul

tu
re

, m
an

ag
em

en
t a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

, r
es

ou
rc

e 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
th

at
 s

up
po

rt
 o

ur
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 in

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 o

ur
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

.  
It 

en
su

re
s 

th
at

 w
e 

op
er

at
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
ly

 w
ith

in
 o

ur
 c

or
po

ra
te

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

fr
am

ew
or

k.
 

 In
 2

00
6/

07
 w

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d,
 a

nd
 in

 s
om

e 
ar

ea
s 

im
pr

ov
ed

, o
ur

 r
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t f
ra

m
ew

or
k 

an
d 

sy
st

em
s 

w
ith

 r
is

k 
re

gi
st

er
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
r 

re
vi

ew
 

fu
rt

he
r 

em
be

dd
ed

. 
 P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
m

em
be

r 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t i
n 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

M
em

be
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 h
av

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

a 
po

te
nt

ia
l s

ou
rc

e 
of

 m
em

be
r 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 
fo

r 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
b.

 
E

xp
an

d 
ou

r 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t s
ys

te
m

s.
 

• 
T

o 
be

 p
ro

gr
es

se
d 

in
 2

00
7.

  D
el

ay
ed

 d
ue

 to
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ys

te
m

s.
  

• 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
to

 b
e 

pr
es

en
te

d 
to

 J
un

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
of

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

. 
c.

 
Im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
H

ea
lth

 &
 S

af
et

y 
au

di
t s

ys
te

m
. 

20
06

 a
ud

its
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t u
si

ng
 th

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 a

ud
it 

sy
st

em
.  

 
d.

 
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
e 

C
or

po
ra

te
 R

is
k 

R
eg

is
te

r.
 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

ris
ks

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s.
  C

M
T

 
re

vi
ew

 o
f c

or
po

ra
te

 r
is

ks
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

. 
O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
  

5.
11
  
T
o
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
e 
an

d
 c
o
n
su

lt
 e
ff
ec

ti
ve
ly
 

  W
e 

ar
e 

fo
cu

se
d 

on
 p

ut
tin

g 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 th

e 
cu

st
om

er
 fi

rs
t f

ro
m

 th
e 

w
ay

 w
e 

pl
an

 o
ur

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 th
ei

r 
de

liv
er

y 
to

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

t t
he

 fr
on

t-
lin

e.
 

G
oo

d 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
ar

e 
vi

ta
l f

or
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 o
ur

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 g

oa
ls

, d
el

iv
er

 o
n 

ou
r 

ai
m

s 
an

d 
re

m
ai

n 
ac

co
un

ta
bl

e 
to

 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

. 
 P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

F
ur

th
er

 d
ev

el
op

 o
ur

 C
us

to
m

er
 A

cc
es

s 
S

tr
at

eg
y.

 
• 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 n

ew
 c

us
to

m
er

 a
cc

es
s 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 C
ou

nc
il.

 
• 

P
rio

rit
is

at
io

n 
an

d 
di

ss
em

in
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
pl

an
 a

nd
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

to
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 
• 

C
or

po
ra

te
 c

us
to

m
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 is
 b

ei
ng

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t. 

Page 117



48
 

• 
C

us
to

m
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 s
ta

ff 
ar

e 
un

de
rt

ak
in

g 
an

 E
N

V
Q

 in
 c

us
to

m
er

 
se

rv
ic

e.
 

• 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

ar
e 

as
si

st
in

g 
in

 e
nd

 to
 e

nd
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

m
ap

pi
ng

 to
 in

fo
rm

 p
ro

ce
ss

 e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

b.
 

Im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 S
tr

at
eg

y.
 

P
ha

se
 tw

o 
of

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 to
 b

e 
ro

lle
d 

ou
t 2

00
7 

– 
20

09
.  

K
ey

 a
sp

ec
ts

 
ad

dr
es

s 
th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 m

ad
e 

in
 th

e 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
nd

 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t i

n 
20

06
. 

c.
 

F
ur

th
er

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
w

eb
si

te
. 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

M
od

er
n.

G
ov

 S
ys

te
m

, a
nd

 o
nl

in
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 
R

ev
en

ue
s 

an
d 

B
en

ef
its

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
de

la
ye

d,
 p

ro
gr

am
m

ed
 fo

r 
de

liv
er

y 
by

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

07
. T

he
re

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
w

eb
si

te
 a

s 
a 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

ch
an

ne
l, 

ev
id

en
ce

d 
by

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 p

ag
e 

vi
ew

s 
of

 
73

%
 in

 2
00

6/
07

.  
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 n
ew

 s
er

vi
ce

s:
 

• 
E

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
fo

rm
s 

gi
vi

ng
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 to
 tr

ac
k 

th
ei

r 
se

rv
ic

e 
re

qu
es

ts
. 

• 
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 e
nh

an
ce

d 
se

ar
ch

 c
ap

ab
ili

ty
 h

as
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

ac
cu

ra
cy

 
of

 s
ea

rc
h 

fu
nc

tio
n.

 
Lo

ca
lis

ed
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

d.
 

P
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 a

 C
ou

nt
y 

w
id

e 
C

iti
ze

ns
 P

an
el

. 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 p
an

el
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 C

ou
nt

y 
R

es
ea

rc
h 

an
d 

in
te

lli
ge

nc
e 

un
it 

e.
 

P
ro

du
ce

 a
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 P

la
nn

er
. 

N
ot

 in
 p

la
ce

 
f. 

S
et

tin
g 

cl
ea

r 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 fo

r 
ex

te
rn

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 

pu
bl

ic
at

io
ns

. 
P

ro
po

se
d 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
M

em
be

rs
 in

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

st
an

da
rd

s.
  

 
g.

 
Im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f e

xt
er

na
l c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
. 

S
ys

te
m

 n
ot

 in
 p

la
ce

 h
ow

ev
er

 p
os

iti
ve

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
im

pl
ie

d 
w

he
n 

as
se

ss
in

g 
th

e 
da

ta
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

B
V

P
I s

ur
ve

y.
 

O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
   

5.
12
 
T
o
 im

p
le
m
en

t 
e-
g
o
ve
rn
m
en

t 
P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 th

e 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 H
ub

 p
ro

je
ct

 
• 

S
om

e 
w

or
k 

ha
s 

be
en

 d
on

e 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

C
R

M
 fu

nc
tio

na
lit

y.
 T

he
 

hu
b 

is
 a

ls
o 

w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

a 
C

S
A

 ‘t
oo

lk
it’

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 a

ss
is

t t
he

m
 w

ith
 

an
sw

er
in

g 
an

d 
de

al
in

g 
w

ith
 c

us
to

m
er

 e
nq

ui
rie

s.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

a 
co

un
ty

 w
id

e 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

ba
se

. 
• 

T
he

re
 a

re
 o

ng
oi

ng
 d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 o

f t
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 C
R

M
 

. 
• 

F
ur

th
er

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

se
rv

ic
es

 m
ig

ra
te

d 
in

cl
ud

e,
 s

tu
de

nt
 fi

na
nc

e,
 

w
as

te
 p

er
m

its
 a

nd
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 to
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
ad

ul
ts

. H
ig

hw
ay

s 

Page 118



49
 

te
le

ph
on

e 
en

qu
ire

s 
ar

e 
no

w
 v

irt
ua

lis
ed

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

co
un

ty
. 

• 
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 h
av

e 
be

en
 m

ig
ra

te
d 

in
to

 th
e 

co
nt

ac
t c

en
tr

e 
al

on
g 

w
ith

 th
e 

ad
di

tio
n 

of
 a

 n
ew

 s
cr

ip
tin

g 
sy

st
em

. 
• 

W
C

C
 fa

ci
lit

at
in

g 
hu

b 
w

id
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 s
uc

h 
as

 in
du

ct
io

n 
an

d 
cu

st
om

er
 

se
rv

ic
e.

 
• 

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t p
ac

k 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
nd

 jo
in

t 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

re
 ta

ki
ng

 p
la

ce
. A

gr
ee

d 
H

ub
 s

ty
le

 g
ui

de
. 

• 
C

ou
nt

y 
w

id
e 

w
or

k 
ha

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f o

n 
lin

e 
se

rv
ic

es
, t

he
 in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 a
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r 

ha
te

 c
rim

es
 a

nd
 

th
e 

ro
ll 

ou
t o

f c
on

ce
ss

io
na

ry
 fa

re
s.

 
b.

 
M

ee
t t

he
 “

Im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

E
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t”

 ta
rg

et
s 

T
he

re
 a

re
 s

til
l a

 s
m

al
l n

um
be

r 
of

 o
ut

co
m

es
 to

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
e,

 w
he

re
 n

ew
 

sy
st

em
s 

or
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 to
 s

ys
te

m
s 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d,

 b
ut

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
pl

an
s 

ar
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t p

ro
gr

es
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 
th

es
e 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 o

ut
co

m
es

. 
O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
   

5.
12
 
O
th
er
 C
P
A
 Im

p
ro
ve
m
en

t 
P
la
n
 T
ar
g
et
s 
(n
o
t 
co

n
ta
in
ed

 in
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
) 

P
R
O
JE

C
T
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

a.
 

T
ra

in
in

g 
an

d 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 fo

r 
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
• 

A
s 

pe
r 

5.
3a

 
• 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

an
d 

dr
af

t d
oc

um
en

t c
om

pl
et

ed
 J

ul
y 

20
06

 –
 S

ep
t 2

00
6.

 
• 

F
in

al
 d

oc
um

en
t c

om
pl

et
ed

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

6.
 

• 
C

M
T

 a
pp

ro
va

l O
ct

 2
00

6.
  

• 
T

ra
in

in
g 

pi
lo

t p
ro

gr
es

se
d 

O
ct

 2
00

6.
 

• 
O

ffi
ce

r 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
O

ct
 2

00
6 

 to
 p

re
se

nt
. 

• 
F

ur
th

er
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 to

 b
e 

ro
lle

d 
ou

t d
ur

in
g 

20
07

/0
8 

by
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 w

ho
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
th

e 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

w
ith

 s
up

po
rt

 fr
om

 H
R

 
b.

 
R

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t d
el

eg
at

io
ns

 
S

ch
em

e 
fu

lly
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 a
nd

 r
ev

is
ed

; a
nd

 a
do

pt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

on
 2

3rd
 

A
pr

il 
20

07
. (

A
nn

ua
l r

ev
ie

w
 w

ill
 n

or
m

al
ly

 a
lw

ay
s 

be
 in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
f t

he
 

A
nn

ua
l m

ee
tin

g 
in

 M
ay

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
.)

 
  

Page 119



50
 

P
E
R
F
O
R
M
A
N
C
E
 M

E
A
S
U
R
E
S
 F
O
R
 2
00
6/
07
 

 P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 5
 –
 A
 W

E
L
L
 M

A
N
A
G
E
D
 O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
 

 
In
d
ic
at
o
r 

20
06
/0
7 

P
as
t 
P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 
F
u
tu
re
 t
ar
g
et
s 

R
ef
 

  D
es

cr
ip
ti
o
n
 

T
ar
g
et
 

A
ct
u
al
 

T
ar
g
et
 

m
et
 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 

o
n
 0
5/
06
 
20
03

/4
 

20
04

/5
 

20
05

/6
 

20
05
/6
 

Q
u
ar
ti
l

e 

 2
00

7/
8 

20
08

/9
 

20
09

/1
0 

B
V

P
I 1

c 
(f

or
m

er
) 

H
as

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 r
ep

or
te

d 
pr

og
re

ss
 to

w
ar

ds
 

im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

to
 th

e 
w

id
er

 c
om

m
un

ity
- 

If 
no

 w
he

n 
w

ill
 th

is
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

- 

Y
es

 
Y

es
 
�

 
�

 
N

O
 

N
O

 
Y

E
S

 
72

%
  

re
po

rt
ed

 
‘Y

E
S

’ 

Y
es

 
Y

es
 

 

B
V

P
I 2

a 
T

he
 

le
ve

l 
of

 
th

e 
E

qu
al

ity
 

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
fo

r 
lo

ca
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

to
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

co
nf

or
m

s 
in

 
re

sp
ec

t o
f g

en
de

r,
 r

ac
e 

an
d 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 

2 
2 

�
 
�

 
0 

1 
1 

N
/A

 
3 

3 
 

B
V

P
I 2

b 
T

he
 

qu
al

ity
 

of
 

an
 

A
ut

ho
rit

y'
s 

R
ac

e 
E

qu
al

ity
 

S
ch

em
e 

(R
E

S
) 

an
d 

th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 r
es

ul
tin

g 
fr

om
 it

s 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 

78
%

 
79

%
 
�

 
�

 
52

%
 

52
%

 
58

%
 

A
bo

ve
 

m
ed

ia
n 

85
%

 
90

%
 

 

B
V

P
I 8

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 i
nv

oi
ce

s 
fo

r 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 g

oo
ds

 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 

th
at

 
w

er
e 

pa
id

 
by

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ith
in

 3
0 

da
ys

 o
f 

re
ce

ip
t 

or
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 a
gr

ee
d 

pa
ym

en
t t

er
m

s 

94
.1

%
 

94
.1

%
 
�

 
�

 
91

.0
0%

 
91

.7
0%

 
93

.7
1%

 
B

el
ow

 
m

ed
ia

n 
94

.5
%

 
95

%
 

 

B
V

P
I 9

 
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

in
 th

e 
ye

ar
 

98
.5

%
 

96
.6

7%
 

X
 

X
 

98
.0

2%
 

97
.5

7%
 

97
.7

9%
 

B
el

ow
 

M
ed

ia
n 

98
.5

%
 

98
.5

%
 

98
.5

%
 

B
V

P
I 1

0 
T

he
 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

of
 

N
on

-D
om

es
tic

 
R

at
es

 
co

lle
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

in
 th

e 
ye

ar
 

99
.6

5%
 

99
.5

5%
 

X
 

X
 

99
.2

9%
 

99
.5

0%
 

99
.6

5%
 

B
es

t  
99

.6
5%

 
99

.6
5%

 
99

.6
5%

 

B
V

P
I 1

1a
 T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 t
he

 t
op

 p
ai

d 
5%

 o
f 

lo
ca

l 
au

th
or

ity
 s

ta
ff 

w
ho

 a
re

 w
om

en
 

39
%

 
39

%
 
�

 
�

 
39

%
 

35
%

 
40

%
 

B
es

t 
 

 
 

B
V

P
I 1

1b
 T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 t
he

 t
op

 p
ai

d 
5%

 o
f 

lo
ca

l 
au

th
or

ity
 s

ta
ff 

w
ho

 a
re

 fr
om

 a
n 

et
hn

ic
 m

in
or

ity
 

1.
67

 
1.

75
 
�

 
�

 
1.

7%
 

1.
75

%
 

1.
67

%
 

A
bo

ve
 

m
ed

ia
n 

 
 

 

B
V

P
I 1

1c
 T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 t
he

 t
op

 p
ai

d 
5%

 o
f 

lo
ca

l 
au

th
or

ity
 s

ta
ff 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
a 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
 

1.
67

 
2.

22
 
�

 
�

 
 

 
1.

67
%

 
B

es
t 

 
 

 

B
V

P
I 1

2 
T

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s/
sh

ift
s 

lo
st

 t
o 

th
e 

lo
ca

l 
au

th
or

ity
 

du
e 

to
 

si
ck

ne
ss

 
ab

se
nc

e 
pe

r 
F

T
E

 s
ta

ff 
m

em
be

r 

9.
77

 
10

.6
2 

X
 
�

 
13

 
12

.9
4 

11
.5

3 
W

or
st

  
 

 
 

B
V

P
I 1

4 
T

he
 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

of
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
re

tir
in

g 
ea

rly
 

(e
xc

lu
di

ng
 

ill
-h

ea
lth

 
re

tir
em

en
ts

) 
as

 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l w
or

k 
fo

rc
e 

0%
 

0.
6%

 
X

 
X

 
0%

 
0%

 
0%

 
B

es
t 

 
 

 

Page 120



51
 

In
d
ic
at
o
r 

20
06
/0
7 

P
as
t 
P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 
F
u
tu
re
 t
ar
g
et
s 

R
ef
 

  D
es

cr
ip
ti
o
n
 

T
ar
g
et
 

A
ct
u
al
 

T
ar
g
et
 

m
et
 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 

o
n
 0
5/
06
 
20
03

/4
 

20
04

/5
 

20
05

/6
 

20
05
/6
 

Q
u
ar
ti
l

e 

 2
00

7/
8 

20
08

/9
 

20
09

/1
0 

B
V

P
I 1

5 
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 l
oc

al
  

au
th

or
ity

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

re
tir

in
g 

on
 

th
e 

gr
ou

nd
s 

of
 

ill
 

he
al

th
 

as
 

a 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l w

or
kf

or
ce

 

0.
4%

 
0.

15
%

 
�

 
�

 
0.

3%
 

1.
26

%
 

0.
43

%
 

W
or

st
 

 
 

 

B
V

P
I 1

6a
 T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 l
oc

al
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
w

ith
 a

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 

2.
3%

 
2.

55
%

 
�

 
�

 
0.

98
%

 
1.

3%
 

2.
2%

 
W

or
st

 
 

 
 

B
V

P
I 1

6b
 N

um
be

rs
 

of
 

ec
on

om
ic

al
ly

 
ac

tiv
e 

di
sa

bl
ed

 
pe

op
le

 i
n 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 a
re

a 
ex

pr
es

se
d 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

al
l e

co
no

m
ic

al
ly

 a
ct

iv
e 

pe
op

le
 in

 
th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 a

re
a 

 

C
on

te
xt

 
m

ea
su

re
 

12
.8

0%
 

- 
- 

12
.8

0%
 

12
.8

0%
 

12
.8

0%
 

N
/A

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
N

A
 

B
V

P
I 1

7b
 T

he
 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

of
 

th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

al
ly

 
ac

tiv
e 

(p
er

so
n 

ag
ed

 
18

-6
5)

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

fr
om

 
et

hn
ic

 
m

in
or

ity
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 in

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
ar

ea
 

C
on

te
xt

 
m

ea
su

re
 

4.
54

%
 

- 
- 

4.
54

%
 

4.
54

%
 

4.
54

%
 

N
/A

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
N

A
 

B
V

P
I 7

6a
 T

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 b
en

ef
it 

cl
ai

m
an

ts
 in

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
ar

ea
 v

is
ite

d,
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 c
as

el
oa

d 
C

on
te

xt
 

m
ea

su
re

 
16

6.
09

 
- 

- 
28

.2
2 

10
0.

27
 

18
9.

17
 

N
/A

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
N

A
 

B
V

P
I 7

6b
 T

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 fr
au

d 
in

ve
st

ig
at

or
s 

em
pl

oy
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y,
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 c
as

el
oa

d 
C

on
te

xt
 

m
ea

su
re

 
0.

30
 

- 
- 

0.
33

 
0.

31
 

0.
31

 
N

/A
 

N
A

 
N

A
 

N
A

 

B
V

P
I 7

6c
 T

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 

an
d 

C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 B
en

ef
it 

fr
au

d 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t b

y 
th

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y,

 p
er

 y
ea

r,
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 c
as

el
oa

d  

C
on

te
xt

 
m

ea
su

re
 

48
.8

0 
- 

- 
36

.9
8 

55
.5

6 
61

.7
2 

N
/A

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
N

A
 

B
V

P
I 7

6d
 T

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 

an
d 

C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 B
en

ef
it 

pr
os

ec
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

 s
an

ct
io

ns
, p

er
 

ye
ar

, p
er

 1
,0

00
 c

as
el

oa
d,

 in
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

ar
ea

 

C
on

te
xt

 
m

ea
su

re
 

6.
97

 
- 

- 
5.

35
 

8.
5 

7.
42

 
N

/A
 

N
A

 
N

A
 

N
A

 

B
V

P
I 7

8a
 T

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 p

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
tim

e 
(d

ay
s)

  t
ak

en
 fo

r 
al

l n
e w

 H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 B
en

ef
it 

cl
ai

m
s 

su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y,

 fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
da

te
 o

f d
ec

is
io

n 
is

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r 

be
in

g 
re

po
rt

ed
 

37
 

34
 
�

 
�

 
45

.0
7 

30
.4

5 
35

.6
6 

B
el

ow
 

m
ed

ia
n 

29
 

29
 

26
 

B
V

P
I 7

8b
 T

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 p

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
tim

e 
(d

ay
s)

 ta
ke

n 
fo

r 
al

l w
rit

te
n 

no
tif

ic
at

io
ns

 to
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
y 

of
 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 a

 c
la

im
an

t's
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
 th

at
 

re
qu

ire
 a

 n
ew

 d
ec

is
io

n 
on

 b
eh

al
f o

f t
he

 
au

th
or

ity
 

9 
13

 
X

 
X

 
9.

25
 

7.
4 

9.
13

 
B

es
t 

8 
8 

8 

Page 121



52
 

In
d
ic
at
o
r 

20
06
/0
7 

P
as
t 
P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 
F
u
tu
re
 t
ar
g
et
s 

R
ef
 

  D
es

cr
ip
ti
o
n
 

T
ar
g
et
 

A
ct
u
al
 

T
ar
g
et
 

m
et
 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 

o
n
 0
5/
06
 
20
03

/4
 

20
04

/5
 

20
05

/6
 

20
05
/6
 

Q
u
ar
ti
l

e 

 2
00

7/
8 

20
08

/9
 

20
09

/1
0 

B
V

P
I 7

9a
 T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 c
as

es
 w

ith
in

 a
 r

an
do

m
 

sa
m

pl
e 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
's

 c
al

cu
la

tio
n 

of
 

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 B
en

ef
it 

is
 fo

un
d 

to
 b

e 
co

rr
ec

t 

98
.7

%
 

97
.6

%
 

X
 

X
 

97
.2

0%
 

99
.0

0%
 

98
.6

0%
 

A
bo

ve
 

M
ed

ia
n 

99
%

 
99

%
 

99
%

 

B
V

P
I 

79
b(

i) 
T

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 

ov
er

pa
ym

en
ts

 
re

co
ve

re
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

be
in

g 
re

po
rt

ed
 o

n 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 H
B

 d
ee

m
ed

 r
ec

ov
er

ab
le

 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

ts
 d

ur
in

g 
th

at
 p

er
io

d 

87
%

 
78

.3
%

 
X

 
X

 
 

 
85

.9
3%

 
B

es
t 

88
%

 
89

%
 

90
%

 

B
V

P
I 

79
b(

ii)
 

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 

(H
B

) 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

ts
 r

ec
ov

er
ed

 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

to
ta

l 
am

ou
nt

 o
f H

B
 o

ve
rp

ay
m

en
t d

eb
t o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 a

t 
th

e 
st

ar
t o

f t
he

 p
er

io
d 

pl
us

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f H

B
 

ov
er

pa
ym

en
ts

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 

36
%

 
31

.3
%

 
X

 
X

 
 

 
35

.0
9%

 
A

bo
ve

 
M

ed
ia

n 
38

%
 

40
%

 
42

%
 

B
V

P
I 

79
b(

iii
) 

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 

(H
B

) 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

ts
 w

rit
te

n 
of

f 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

to
ta

l 
am

ou
nt

 o
f H

B
 o

ve
rp

ay
m

en
t d

eb
t o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 a

t 
th

e 
st

ar
t o

f t
he

 p
er

io
d,

 p
lu

s 
am

ou
nt

 o
f H

B
 

ov
er

pa
ym

en
ts

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 

N
A

 
1.

7%
 

- 
X

 
 

 
1.

87
%

 
N

/A
 

N
A

 
N

A
 

N
A

 

B
V

P
I 

22
6a

 
T

ot
al

 a
m

ou
nt

 s
pe

nt
 b

y 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
y 

on
 

A
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 

ex
te

rn
al

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 

N
A

 
£1

69
50

0  
- 

- 
N

A
 

N
A

 
£1

69
50

0 
N

/A
 

N
A

 
N

A
 

N
A

 

B
V

P
I 

22
6b

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 m
on

ie
s 

sp
en

t o
n 

ad
vi

ce
 a

nd
 

gu
id

an
ce

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

w
hi

ch
 w

as
 g

iv
en

 to
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 h
ol

di
ng

 th
e 

C
LS

 Q
ua

lit
y 

M
ar

k 
at

 
'G

en
er

al
 H

el
p'

 le
ve

l a
nd

 a
bo

ve
 

58
%

 
67

%
 
�

 
�

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
57

.5
2%

 
N

/A
 

60
%

 
60

%
 

 

B
V

P
I 

22
6c

 
T

ot
al

 a
m

ou
nt

 s
pe

nt
 o

n 
A

dv
ic

e 
an

d 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

in
 

th
e 

ar
ea

s 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

, w
el

fa
re

 b
en

ef
its

 a
nd

 
co

ns
um

er
 m

at
te

rs
 w

hi
ch

 is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

di
re

ct
ly

 b
y 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 

C
on

te
xt

 
m

ea
su

re
 

£5
0,

00
0  

- 
- 

N
A

 
N

A
 

# 
N

/A
 

N
A

 
N

A
 

N
A

 

H
H

 1
6 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 n

ew
 H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 C

ou
nc

il 
T

ax
 

B
en

ef
it 

cl
ai

m
s 

w
he

re
 a

 d
ec

is
io

n 
w

as
 m

ad
e 

w
ith

in
 1

4 
da

ys
 o

f r
ec

ei
vi

ng
 a

ll 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 

80
%

 
- 

- 
- 

N
A

 
N

A
 

61
.7

3%
 

 
C

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

W
M

O
 2

 
T

ot
al

 n
et

 s
pe

nd
in

g 
pe

r 
he

ad
 o

f p
op

ul
at

io
n 

C
on

te
xt

 
m

ea
su

re
 

- 
- 

- 
£1

25
.7

0 
# 

£1
27

.1
5 

 
C

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

W
M

O
 3

 
O

ne
 S

to
p 

S
ho

p:
 C

us
to

m
er

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
92

%
 

95
.4

6%
 
�

 
�

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
92

.2
3%

 
 

C
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n 

Page 122



53
 

In
d
ic
at
o
r 

20
06
/0
7 

P
as
t 
P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 
F
u
tu
re
 t
ar
g
et
s 

R
ef
 

  D
es

cr
ip
ti
o
n
 

T
ar
g
et
 

A
ct
u
al
 

T
ar
g
et
 

m
et
 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 

o
n
 0
5/
06
 
20
03

/4
 

20
04

/5
 

20
05

/6
 

20
05
/6
 

Q
u
ar
ti
l

e 

 2
00

7/
8 

20
08

/9
 

20
09

/1
0 

W
M

O
 4

 
E

nq
ui

rie
s 

de
al

t w
ith

 a
t f

irs
t p

oi
nt

 o
f c

on
ta

ct
 

80
%

 
84

.5
7%

 
�

 
X

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
96

.2
2%

 
 

C
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n 

W
M

O
 5

 
S

w
itc

hb
oa

rd
 &

 C
on

ta
ct

 C
en

tr
e:

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 

ca
lls

 a
ns

w
er

ed
 w

ith
in

 2
0 

se
co

nd
s 

80
%

 
77

.8
4%

 
X

 
�

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
77

.4
9%

 
 

C
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n 

W
M

O
 6

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

de
al

t w
ith

 a
t t

he
 fi

rs
t 

po
in

t o
f c

on
ta

ct
 

50
%

 
54

.8
3%

 
�

 
�

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
25

.3
8%

 
 

C
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n 

W
M

O
 8

 
W

eb
si

te
 P

ag
e 

V
ie

w
s 

(m
ill

io
ns

) 
N

ew
 ta

rg
et

 
6.

69
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n 

W
M

O
 9

 
W

eb
si

te
 U

ni
qu

e 
V

is
ito

rs
 (

th
ou

sa
nd

s)
 

N
ew

 ta
rg

et
 

13
8.

75
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

W
M

O
 1

0 
N

um
be

r 
of

 e
-e

na
bl

ed
 w

eb
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 
N

ew
 ta

rg
et

 
25

29
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n 

    

Page 123



54
 

O
B
JE

C
T
IV
E
S
 A
N
D
 P
R
O
JE

C
T
S
 F
O
R
 2
00
7-
20
10
 

 P
R
IO
R
IT
Y
 5
 

W
E
L
L
 M

A
N
A
G
E
D
 O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
T
IO
N
  

 5.
1 

W
e 
w
ill
 r
ef
in
e 
o
u
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
es

 b
o
th
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 S
er
vi
ce

 P
la
n
s 
in
cl
u
d
in
g
: 

a.
 

A
nn

ua
l r

ev
ie

w
 o

f b
ud

ge
ts

 li
nk

ed
 to

 lo
ng

 te
rm

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
la

n 
– 

w
ith

 m
em

be
r 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t i

n 
al

lo
ca

tin
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 p
rio

rit
y 

ar
ea

s.
 

 5.
2 

Im
p
ro
vi
n
g
 C
u
st
o
m
er
 A
cc

es
s 

a.
 

F
or

m
al

is
e 

th
e 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 E

qu
al

ity
 S

ch
em

e 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

p 
an

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
 

 5.
3 

E
n
su

ri
n
g
 a
 s
u
st
ai
n
ed

 im
p
ro
ve
m
en

t 
in
 s
er
vi
ce

s 
b
y:

 
a.

 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

m
em

be
r 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 in
vo

lv
em

en
t i

n 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
b.

 
R

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
C

om
pa

ct
 w

ith
 th

e 
V

ol
un

ta
ry

 S
ec

to
r 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 g

ra
nt

s 
pr

oc
es

s 
an

d 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 S
LA

’s
 fo

r 
th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 

 5.
4 

T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l w

ill
 p
ro
m
o
te
 le

ar
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
ev
el
o
p
m
en

t 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e 
o
rg
an

is
at
io
n
 

a.
 

In
tr

od
uc

e 
a 

S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t D

ev
el

op
m

en
t/L

ea
de

rs
hi

p 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 

b.
 

P
ro

du
ce

 a
 r

ev
is

ed
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 
c.

 
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 a
 S

ta
ff 

M
an

ag
em

en
t C

ha
rt

er
. 

 5.
5 

T
o
 D
ev
el
o
p
 o
u
r 
p
ar
tn
er
sh

ip
 w
o
rk
in
g
. 

a.
 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 r
es

tr
uc

tu
re

 th
e 

R
ed

di
tc

h 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
  

b.
 

P
ro

du
ce

 a
 r

ev
is

ed
 v

er
si

on
 o

f t
he

 R
ed

di
tc

h 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
c.

 
R

ed
uc

in
g 

in
co

m
e 

de
pr

iv
at

io
n,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ch

ild
 a

nd
 p

en
si

on
er

 p
ov

er
ty

 
d.

 
W

es
t M

id
la

nd
s 

LA
A

 / 
LS

P
 R

eg
io

na
l C

ap
ac

ity
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

e.
 

R
ed

di
tc

h 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 L

oc
al

 H
er

o 
A

w
ar

ds
 C

er
em

on
y 

an
d 

A
rt

 C
om

pe
tit

io
n 

 5.
6.
 

T
o
 a
ch

ie
ve
 e
ff
ec

ti
ve
 f
in
an

ci
al
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
a.

 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

F
ee

s 
an

d 
C

ha
rg

es
 M

em
be

r 
G

ro
up

 
b.

 
Li

m
it 

C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 in
cr

ea
se

s 
to

 In
fla

tio
n 

on
ly

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
ne

xt
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

s.
 

c.
 

C
on

du
ct

 A
nn

ua
l r

ev
ie

w
 o

f d
eb

t f
re

e 
st

at
us

/C
ap

ita
l f

un
di

ng
. 

 5.
7 

T
o
 m

an
ag

e 
o
u
r 
as
se

ts
 e
ff
ec

ti
ve
ly

 
a.

 
D

el
iv

er
 fu

rt
he

r 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 d
is

po
sa

ls
. 

b.
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
n 

of
fic

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
st

ra
te

gy
. 

Page 124



55
 

c.
 

Im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n.
 

d.
 

F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f D
is

tr
ic

t C
en

tr
es

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
ac

tio
ns

 in
 th

e 
A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t P

la
n 

a 
ne

w
 c

or
po

ra
te

 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

 i.
e.

   
“T

o 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 C
hu

rc
h 

H
ill

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
en

tr
e 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 fu

ll 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 te
na

nt
s”

 
 5.
8 

T
o
 m

an
ag

e 
o
u
r 
st
af
f 
ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y.
 

a.
 

In
tr

od
uc

e 
a 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 

b.
 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 ta

rg
et

ed
 a

ct
io

n 
in

 s
up

po
rt

 o
f t

he
 A

bs
en

ce
 P

ol
ic

y.
 

c.
 

Im
pl

em
en

t a
n 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

H
S

E
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

R
ep

or
t. 

d.
 

R
ev

ie
w

 tu
rn

ov
er

 a
nd

 p
ro

du
ce

 a
 R

et
en

tio
n 

S
tr

at
eg

y.
 

e.
 

C
om

pl
et

e 
S

in
gl

e 
S

ta
tu

s 
ne

go
tia

tio
ns

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
(s

ub
je

ct
 to

 r
ev

en
ue

 a
nd

 c
ap

ita
l b

id
s)

. 
 5.
9 

T
o
 a
ch

ie
ve
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 b
es

t 
p
ra
ct
ic
e 
in
 e
q
u
al
it
y 
is
su

es
 

a.
 

A
ch

ie
ve

 le
ve

l 3
 o

f t
he

 E
qu

al
ity

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
fo

r 
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t b
y 

20
08

. 
 5.
10
 
T
o
 m

an
ag

e 
o
u
r 
ri
sk
s 
ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y 

a.
 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
m

em
be

r 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t i
n 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

b.
 

E
xp

an
d 

ou
r 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t s

ys
te

m
s.

 
c.

 
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
e 

C
or

po
ra

te
 R

is
k 

R
eg

is
te

r.
 

 5.
11
 
T
o
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
e 
an

d
 c
o
n
su

lt
 e
ff
ec

ti
ve
ly
 

a.
 

F
ur

th
er

 d
ev

el
op

 o
ur

 C
us

to
m

er
 A

cc
es

s 
S

tr
at

eg
y.

 
b.

 
R

ev
ie

w
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 S

tr
at

eg
y.

 
c.

 
D

ev
el

op
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

w
eb

si
te

. 
d.

 
P

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 a
 C

ou
nt

y 
w

id
e 

C
iti

ze
ns

 P
an

el
. 

e.
 

P
ro

du
ce

 a
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 P

la
nn

er
. 

f. 
S

et
tin

g 
cl

ea
r 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 fo
r 

ex
te

rn
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
ub

lic
at

io
ns

. 
g.

 
Im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f e

xt
er

na
l c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
. 

 
5.
12
 
T
o
 im

p
le
m
en

t 
e-
g
o
ve
rn
m
en

t 
a.

 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 th
e 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 H

ub
 p

ro
je

ct
 

b.
 

U
se

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
 to

 im
pl

em
en

t t
ra

ns
fo

rm
ed

, c
us

to
m

er
 fo

cu
se

d 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

   

Page 125



Page 126



 

 

 

 
 

COUNCIL 
 

 

No direct Ward Relevance 

25th June 2007 
 

G:council/070625/statement of accounts 06-07/ib/070622.paw 

 1301 

13. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2006/07 
 
 
(Report of the Borough Director) 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
To seek Members’ formal approval of the Council’s Statement of 
Accounts for 2006/07. 
 

2. Recommendation 
 
The Council is asked to RESOLVE that 
 
1) the 2006/07 Statement of Accounts, as attached to the 

report, be approved; and 
 
2) a copy of the statement be signed at the meeting by the 

Mayor (or in his absence Deputy Mayor, or other Member 
presiding). 

 
3. Financial, Legal, Policy and Risk Implications 
 
 Financial 
 
3.1 Financial implications are detailed throughout the report. 
 
 Legal 
 
3.2 Members’ approval of the annual Statement of Accounts is required 

under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 and the Accounts 
and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006 by the 30th of 
June each year. 

 
 Policy 
 
3.3 There are no direct policy implications arising from this report. 
 
 Risk 
 
3.4 If the Council does not approve the Statement of Accounts for 

2006/07 by the 30th of June 2006 it will not comply with the 
requirement of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 and the 
Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006. 

Agenda Item 13Page 127



   
 

 
 

COUNCIL 
 

  

 

25th June 2007 
 

G:council/070625/statement of accounts 06-07/ib/070622.paw 

 1302 

 
Report 
 

4. Background 
 
4.1 The 2006/07 Statement of Accounts has been distributed to 

Members separately from the Agenda papers, (additional copies will 
be available, if required, from the author or from Committee 
Services). 

 
4.2 Attached at Appendix A is a summary showing a brief explanation of 

the purpose of each Account.  The audit of the accounts will be 
carried out during July / August. 

 
4.3 The formal opinion will be issued by the Auditor in due course.  Any 

material changes will be formally reported to Members. 
 
5. Key Issues 
 
5.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 require authorities to 

comply with a number of issues relating to their finance activities.  
One such requirement is for the annual Statement of Accounts to be 
“approved by a resolution of a Committee” and that “such approval 
to take place as soon as reasonably practicable and in any event  
before the 30th of June immediately following the end of a year”.  
Following approval “the Statement of Accounts shall be signed and 
dated by the person presiding at the Committee at which that 
approval was given.” 

 
5.2 The format and content of the Statement of Accounts is based on 

“The Code of Practice on Local Government Accounting in the 
United Kingdom:  A Statement of Recommended Practice” (SORP).  
The Code is a statement of “proper accounting practice” with which 
local authorities in England and Wales must comply in preparing 
their financial statements in accordance with Sections 41 and 42 of 
the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.  It is updated annually 
to incorporate changes derived from both statute and professional 
accounting developments.  The accounts presented comply with the 
requirements of the 2006 Code. 

 
5.3 There has been a substantial change in the statement produced for 

2006/07 when compared with the statements for 2005/06 and earlier 
years.  The focus of the Statement of Accounts was the 
Consolidated Revenue Account, which had the dual role of setting 
out the council’s financial performance as measured in accordance 
with proper accounting practices and determining the net 
expenditure to be charged against council tax in the year. 

 

Page 128



   
 

 
 

COUNCIL 
 

  

 

25th June 2007 
 

G:council/070625/statement of accounts 06-07/ib/070622.paw 

 1303 

5.4. The new statements disaggregate the Consolidated Revenue 
Account (and the old Statement of Total Movements on Reserves) to 
produce a set of statements, each with a clear objective. 

 
5.5. These new statements are as follows: 

 
1) Income and Expenditure Account – a summary of the 

resources generated and consumed by the council for the 
year. 

 
2) Statement of the Movement on the General Fund Balances – 

a reconciliation showing how the balance of resources, 
generated/consumed in the year, links in with statutory 
requirements for raising Council Tax. 

 
3) Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses – a 

demonstration of how the movement in net worth in the 
Balance Sheet is identified to the Income and Expenditure 
Account surplus/deficit, and to other unrealised gains and 
losses. 

 
Group Accounts 
 

5.6 Local authorities have previously been required to produce group 
accounts where they have interests in subsidiaries, associated 
companies and joint ventures. The assessment excluded other local 
authorities and other bodies. Since 2004/05 local authorities have 
been required to consider all their interests in subsidiaries, 
associates and joint venture including local authorities and similar 
bodies (statutory bodies). Where they have a material interest they 
are required to produce a full set of group financial statements. 

 
5.7 Officers have reviewed the Council’s position and have concluded 

that the Council has no material interests in any other bodies and 
therefore it is not necessary to produce a full set of group financial 
statements for 2006/07. 

 
6. Other Implications 
 
 No direct Community Safety, Human Resources, Social Inclusion or 

Sustainability implications have been identified. 
 
7. Conclusion 
 
7.1 The Statement of Accounts has been prepared in accordance with 

current accounting requirements and fairly represents the financial 
position of the Council at the accounting date and its income and 
expenditure for the year ended the 31st of March 2007. 

 

Page 129



   
 

 
 

COUNCIL 
 

  

 

25th June 2007 
 

G:council/070625/statement of accounts 06-07/ib/070622.paw 

 1304 

7.2 Members’ approval is now required to satisfy the requirements of the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 and the Accounts and Audit 
(Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006. 

 
8. Consultation 
 

There has been no consultation other than with relevant Borough 
Council Officers. 

 
9. Background Papers 
 
 Final Accounts Working Papers files held in Financial Services. 
 Executive Committee 13th of June 2007 report and minutes. 
 Audit Committee 19th of June 2007 report and minutes. 
 
10. Author of Report 

 
The author of this report is Ian Batchelor (Group Accountant), who 
can be contacted on extension 3076 (e-mail ian.batchelor 
@redditchbc.gov.uk), for more information. 

 
11. Appendices 

 
Appendix A - Statement of Accounts: Summary. 
 
Appendix B - Statement of Accounts – under separate cover. 

  
 

Page 130



   
 

 
 

COUNCIL 
 

 

 
 

APPENDIX A 

 

 

25th June 2007 
 

G:council/070625/statement of accounts 06-07/ib/070622.paw 

1305 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS : SUMMARY 
 

The Council’s Statement of Accounts for the year 2006/07 comprises the 
following elements: 
 
1. The Income and Expenditure Account 
 This is the Council’s main revenue account, detailing income and 

expenditure on all services. 
 
2. Statement of Movement on General Fund Balances 
 This is summary of the differences between, the outturn on the 

Income and Expenditure Account and the General Fund Balance. 
  
3. Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses 
 This statement brings together all the gains and losses of the 

Council for the year and shows the aggregate change in its net 
worth. 

 
4. The Housing Revenue Account 
 This account shows the major elements of housing revenue 

expenditure - maintenance, administration, rent rebates and capital 
financing costs, and how these are met by rents, subsidy, and other 
income. 

 
5. The Collection Fund  
 This reflects the statutory requirement for billing authorities to 

maintain a separate Collection Fund.  The Account shows the 
transactions in relation to Non Domestic Rates and Council Tax, and 
illustrates the way in which these have been distributed to the 
County Council, the Police Authority, the Combined Fire and Rescue 
Authority and the General Fund. 

 
6. The Balance Sheet 
 This statement sets out the financial position of the Council as at 

31st March 2006.  It shows the assets and liabilities of the Council 
as a whole. 

 
7. The Cash Flow Statement 
 This statement summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising 

from both revenue and capital transactions with third parties. 
 
8. Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 
 This states the Council’s responsibilities under local government 

legislation, and the Chief Finance Officer's legal and professional 
responsibilities. 

 
9. Statement on Internal Control 
 This states the main components of the system of internal control 

and risk management, their maintenance and review. 

Page 131



   
 

 

 

COUNCIL 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B 

 

 

25th June 2007 
 

G:council/070625/statement of accounts 06-07/ib/070622.paw 

1306 

 
 
 

Redditch Borough 
Council 

Statement of Accounts  
2006/07 

 

Page 132



 

 1307 

 
Redditch Borough Council 
Statement of Accounts  

2006/07 
 

CONTENTS 
  
          Page number 
 
  Independent Auditors’ Report     2 
  The auditor’s opinion and comments on the Statement of Accounts 
  Explanatory Foreword      4 
  A brief explanation of the financial aspects of the council’s activities 
  Statement of Accounting Policies    8  
  A summary of the accounting policies followed in the preparation of 

The Statement of Accounts  
  Income and Expenditure Account    11 
  This statement reports the net cost of all the functions for which the 

 council is responsible and shows how it has been financed from 
 Government grants and income from tax payers  

  Statement of Movement on General Fund   11 
  Balance  
  A summary of the differences between the outturn on the Income  

and Expenditure Account and the General Fund Balance  
Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses   12 
This statement brings together all the gains and losses of the Council 
for the year and shows the aggregate change in its net worth. 

  Housing Revenue Account     18 
  Showing the major elements of housing  revenue expenditure and  

how these are met by rents, subsidy and other income 
  The Collection Fund        23 
  Transactions relating to non domestic rates and council tax and  

their distribution between preceptors and the council 
   The Balance Sheet      26 
  The Balance Sheet shows the balances and reserves and long-term 

indebtedness, and the fixed and current assets employed in the  
council’s operations, together with summarised information on the 
fixed assets held. 

  The Cash Flow Statement     37 
  A summary of cash inflows and outflows arising from transactions  

with third parties for revenue and capital purposes. 
  Statement of Responsibilities for the    40 
  Statement of Accounts      
  The council’s responsibilities under local government legislation, 

 and the chief finance officer’s legal and professional responsibilities 
  Statement on internal control      41 
  The framework within which financial control is managed and  

reviewed and the main components of the system, including the 
  arrangements for internal audit 
  Glossary of terms       46 
   
 

Independent Auditors’ report to Redditch Borough Council 

Page 133



 

 1308 

 
 
 

(To be add in due course) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 134



 

 1309 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 135



 

 1310 

Explanatory foreword 
 
This foreword provides a brief summary of the financial aspects of the council’s activities 
during the year. 
 
Revenue Expenditure 
Revenue expenditure covers the operational cost of services provided during the year 
including capital charges and contributions to or from reserve accounts.  Most revenue 
expenditure is paid for from the General Fund while council housing is accounted for 
separately within the Housing Revenue Account. 
 
The General Fund 
General Fund net revenue expenditure (after allowing for fees and charges to services and 
the use of reserves) is financed from Government grants (Revenue Support Grant and 
redistributed Non-Domestic Rates) and Council Tax income. 
 
The table below gives a comparison between General Fund actual and budgeted 
expenditure and income for the year. 
2005/06 
Actual 

          
£’000 

 2006/07 
Original 
Budget 
£’000 
 

2006/07 
Actual          

 
£’000 

2006/07 
Difference 

          
£’000 

11,707 Net expenditure on services 11,965 11,956 (9) 
187 Contributions to/ (from) reserves 4 246 242 
(740) Interest received (750) (699) 51 

11,154 Net General Fund expenditure 11,219 11,503 284 
 Financed by income from government 
grants and local taxpayers 

   

(3,254) Central Government Grants (1,266) (1,767) (501) 
(2,288) NDR contribution (5,110) (5,110) - 
(4,655) Council Taxpayers (4,814) (4,814) - 
(18) Collection Fund surplus 11 11 - 
939 Deficit/(Surplus) for the year funded 

from General Fund reserves 
40 (177) (217) 

 
The amount receivable from government grants and council tax income is fixed for the year, 
so any difference in actual net expenditure from the budget must be balanced by a 
contribution to or from General Fund reserves.   The difference for 2006/07 was a surplus of 
£177,330. The original forecast was for a deficit of £39,736 to be funded from revenue 
balances. The surplus of £217,066 has arisen from a net increase in government grants of 
£501,146 and a decrease in interest received of £51,000. An additional £242,000 was 
transferred to reserves, most to capital reserves to fund capital expenditure. 
 
The Local Authority Business Growth Incentive (LABGI) grant yielded £416,290 and 
additional Planning Delivery Grant of £6,384 was received. Crematorium income was 
£89,000 greater than the original budget. £60,000 of this additional income has been 
transferred to a reserve to fund the work required to the cremators by 2010 to reduce 
mercury emissions. Savings were achieved in support costs through staff vacancies and 
delayed recruitment and in administrative overheads.  These savings and other efficiency 
savings in services have enabled the council to deliver to budget on the cost of services. 
 
General Fund reserves amounted to £1.432 million at the year end.  These reserves, apart 
from a contingency provision of £300,000, are required to support future revenue budgets. 

Page 136



 

 1311 

 
The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
Revenue expenditure relating to council housing is accounted for separately in the Housing 
Revenue Account.  The expenditure is financed from rents and charges to tenants, interest 
received and retained balances. 
The table below gives a comparison between Housing Revenue Account actual and 
budgeted expenditure and income for the year. 
 
2005/06 
Actual 

          
£’000 

 2006/07 
Original 
Budget 
£’000 
 

2006/07 
Actual              

          
£’000 

2006/07 
Difference 

          
£’000 

8,277 Maintenance & management services 8,587 8,476 (111) 
169 Rent rebates - - - 

1,500 Revenue contribution to capital 1,500 1,250 (250) 
3,823 Negative Subsidy Transfer 4,488 4,462 (26) 

- Capital Financing Costs - 144 144 
113 Provision for bad debts 150 160 10 

3,587 Depreciation 3,530 3,530 - 
17,469 Housing Revenue Account expenditure 18,255 18,022 (233) 

 Financed by income from rents and 
government subsidies 

   

(17,505) Rents and charges to tenants (17,995) (17,976) 19 
(13) Other contributions - (11) (11) 
(288) Interest (297) (119) 178 
(337) Deficit/(surplus) for the year funded 

from HRA reserves 
(37) (84) (47) 

 
The actual surplus for the year was £84,392 compared to the original budget surplus of 
£36,560. £1.25 million was transferred to reserves and earmarked for capital expenditure. 
There was a reduction in interest received and additional costs associated with the need to 
borrow to fund capital expenditure. Housing Revenue Account reserves were £667,600 at 
the year-end. These reserves, apart from a contingency provision of £300,000, are required 
to support future revenue budgets. 
 
Capital expenditure 
Capital expenditure relates to the acquisition or construction of fixed assets, or the renewal 
and enhancement of fixed assets that will benefit the council for more than one year.  Fixed 
assets include sports centres and other public buildings, council housing, equipment, 
vehicles and plant. The Council’s capital expenditure in 2006/07 totalled £13.8 million 
compared to an initial estimate of £15.9 million. 
 
  2006/07 

Original 
Budget 
£’000 
 

2006/07 
Actual    

            
£’000 

2006/07 
Difference 

          
 £’000 

 Housing 10,670 9,022 (1,648) 
 General Fund 5,244 4,795 (449) 
 Total capital expenditure 15,914 13,817 (2,097) 

The main items of capital expenditure were improvements to council and private sector 
housing; improvements to play areas, Palace Theatre and other leisure and cultural assets;  
landscape improvements; recycling equipment; and new IT systems. The actual expenditure 

Page 137



 

 1312 

was lower than the original estimate due to slippage on the estate enhancement programme,  
the vehicle replacement programme and revisions to the programme during the year. 
 
The council has previously paid for a significant proportion of the capital programme from 
capital receipts. The introduction of pooling for Right to Buy (RTB) reduced the proportion 
any disposal due to the council to just 25%. In 2006/07 the council disposed of just 40 
dwelling via the RTB process. In 2006/07 the council borrowed £5.7 million to fund capital 
expenditure the balance of the required funding coming from housing revenue account major 
repairs reserve, government and other grants, and developers’ contributions. 
 
Spending plans in 2007/08 
General Fund 
Budgeted expenditure for 2007/08 and the way it is financed are shown below. 
 
 2007/08 

Original 
Budget 
£’000 

 
Net General Fund expenditure 12.069 
Financed by income from government grants and local taxpayers  
Government Grants (1,183) 
NDR contribution (5,383) 
Council Taxpayers (5,064) 
Collection Fund deficit (20) 
Deficit for the year funded from General Fund reserves 419 
 
Net expenditure is estimated to be £853,570 more than the original budget for 2006/07. The 
budget includes increases of 3% in employee remuneration, increased superannuation costs, 
increased energy costs, and an estimated increase in general prices of 3%. Funding from 
General Fund reserves required to support this expenditure is £379,644 more than in 
2006/07. 
 
The Housing Revenue Account 
The 2007/08 budget for the Housing Revenue Account is shown below. 
 2007/08 

Original 
Budget 
£’000 

Maintenance & management services 8,688 
Sums transferred under Section 80(2) 5,203 
Rent rebate subsidy limitation 0 
Revenue contribution to capital  2,000 
Provision for bad debts 200 
Depreciation 3,570 
Housing Revenue Account expenditure 19,661 
Rents and charges to tenants (19,100) 
Other contributions (2) 
Interest (331) 
Deficit for the year transferred from Housing Revenue Account reserves 228 
 
Capital expenditure 
Capital expenditure for 2007/08 is an estimated £12.371 million.  
 

Page 138



 

 1313 

Work programmed for the year includes improvements to council and private housing, 
landscaping works, improvements to public buildings, purchase of new vehicles and estate 
enhancements. 
 

Pensions 
The authority participates in a defined benefit scheme administered by Worcestershire 
County Council. The Council’s share of the assets and liabilities of the pension fund is a 
£30.4 million liability (2005/06 £34.4 million). The net pensions liability is a position taken at a 
point in time. Market prices tend to move up or down in the short term, and it is not possible 
to quantify what long term effect movement in market prices will have on the Pension Fund.  
The inclusion of pension assets and liabilities has reduced the net worth of the authority by 
11% and increased net operating expenditure by 7.5%. 
 

Changes to the accounting statements 
The accounts have been prepared in keeping with the revised Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2006 issued by the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy which was published in June 2006.   For 2006/07 the accounting 
statements represent a substantial change from the statements produced in 2005/06 and 
earlier years.  The focus of the Statement of Accounts was the Consolidated Revenue 
Account, which had the dual role of setting out the council’s financial performance as 
measured in accordance with proper accounting practices and determining the net 
expenditure to be charged against council tax in the year. 
 

The new statements disaggregate the Consolidated Revenue Account (and the old 
Statement of Total Movements on Reserves) to produce a set of statements each with a 
clear objective. 
 

• Income and Expenditure Account – summary of the resources generated and 
consumed by the council for the year. 

• Statement of the Movement on the General Fund Balances – a reconciliation showing 
how the balance of resources generated/consumed in the  year links in with statutory 
requirements for raising Council Tax. 

• Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses – a demonstration of how the 
movement in net worth in the Balance Sheet is identified to the Income and 
Expenditure Account surplus/deficit and to other unrealised gains and losses. 

 

Coincidentally with the change in accounting statements the notional interest charges 
element of the capital financing charge has been abolished for the 2006/07 accounts. 
 
Where necessary the comparative figures for 2005/06 have been changed to include these 
changes. 
 

Statutory functions 
There has been no change in the council’s statutory functions during the year. 
 

Further information 
Further information about the accounts is available from the Financial Services Section, 
Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Alcester Street, Redditch B98 8AH.  It is the council’s 
policy to provide full information about the council’s affairs.  Interested members of the public 
have a statutory right to inspect the accounts before the audit is completed.  Availability of 
the accounts for inspection is advertised in the local press. 
The accounts have been audited and the auditor’s certificate is on page 2. 

Statement of accounting policies 

Page 139



 

 1314 

 
1.General 
Local authorities are required to keep their accounts in accordance with ‘’proper practices’’.  
This is defined, for the purposes of local government legislation, as meaning compliance  
with the terms of the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (the code of practice) 
prepared by the CIPFA/LASAAC Joint Committee.  The code of practice is recognised by the 
Accounting Standards Board as a Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP).  
The SORP is reviewed continuously and is normally updated annually. The accounting 
statements have been prepared in accordance with the 2006 edition of the SORP. 
 
2. Fixed assets 
• Recognition 
The council recognises the following expenditure as fixed assets: 

acquisition, reclamation, enhancement or laying out of land; 
acquisition, construction, preparation, enhancement or replacement of roads, 
buildings and other structures; 
acquisition, installation or replacement of moveable or immovable plant, machinery, 
apparatus, vehicles and vessels. 

• Valuation 
Fixed assets are valued on the basis recommended by CIPFA and in accordance with the 
Practice Statements in the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Appraisal and Valuation 
Manual, published by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) 5th Edition. 
Fixed assets have been classified into groupings required by the SORP and are included in 
the balance sheet, net of depreciation where applicable, on the following basis: 
i. Land and operational assets – open market value for their existing use. 
ii. Specialised operational assets where there is no established market have been 

valued on a depreciated replacement cost value. 
iii. Infrastructure and community assets are included at historical cost. 
iv. non-operational assets have been valued at open market value. 
The sources of information and assumptions made in producing the various valuations are 
set out in the valuation reports. The valuation figures incorporated in the accounts are the 
aggregate of the separate valuations of parts of the portfolio. 
Revaluation of the Council’s fixed assets is undertaken using a five year rolling programme.  
Surpluses on revaluations are credited and impairment amounts are debited to the Fixed 
Asset Restatement Account when they are identified. 
Council dwellings were revalued at 1 April 2005. The valuation was made in accordance with 
the Practice Statements in the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Appraisal and 
Valuation Manual, published by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) 5th 
Edition. The valuation was carried out by the council’s internal valuer, Mr J Prendergrast, and 
valuers who conform to the requirements of these Practice Statements.  The valuation was 
based on Existing Use Value for Social Housing.  The housing stock was valued at £270 
million (the balance sheet valuation prior to revaluation was £145.4 million).  The valuation 
does not include the notional directly attributable acquisition costs that have been determined 
to be £5.4 million.  The vacant possession value of the properties has been calculated to be 
£547 million. 
• Intangible fixed assets 
Intangible fixed assets are recorded at cost and amortised to the revenue account over the 
estimated life of the asset. 
• Impairment 
The value at which each category of assets is included in the balance sheet is reviewed at 
the end of the year.  Where the value has changed materially the valuation is adjusted 
accordingly.  
 
• Disposals 

Page 140



 

 1315 

Income from the disposal of fixed assets is credited to the usable capital receipts reserve and 
accounted for on an accruals basis.  Where applicable the proportion reserved for repayment 
of external loans is credited to the capital financing reserve. 
Upon disposal the net book value of the asset disposed of is written off against the fixed 
asset restatement reserve. 
• Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided for on all fixed assets with a finite useful life which can be 
determined at the time of acquisition or revaluation.  Provision for depreciation is made by 
allocating the cost (or revalued amount) less estimated residual value of the assets as fairly 
as possible to the periods expected to benefit from their use.  The valuations have been split 
into land and building elements to calculate depreciation.  Depreciation has not been 
provided for freehold land or for non-operational investment properties. 
Where depreciation is provided for the straight-line method of depreciation has been used. 
The Joint Committee has accepted that the Major Repairs Allowance is likely to constitute a 
reasonable estimate of depreciation for housing revenue account properties.  An amount 
equivalent to the Major Repairs Allowance has been used as the annual depreciation charge 
for HRA assets. 
The useful economic life of the assets has been determined by the Council’s valuers and 
surveyors.  Council dwellings have an economic useful life of 60 years.  Other land and 
buildings assets and investment properties have a useful life of between 15 and 100 years.  
Vehicles and plant assets and software licences have a useful life of between 5 to 10 years.    
 
3. Interest charges 
Payments of external interest on loans outstanding are debited directly to the asset 
management revenue account and are not allocated to individual services. 
 
4. Deferred charges 
Deferred charges are payments of a capital nature where no asset is created but which may 
properly be financed over a number of years. Deferred charges are written off to revenue 
over an appropriate period so that the value of assets carried in the Balance Sheet is not 
overstated.  Expenditure on improvement grants, assets not owned by the council and grants 
for capital expenditure is written off in the year it is incurred.  Any unamortized deferred 
charges carried in the balance sheet are disclosed in the recognised asset categories. 
 
5. Debtors and creditors 
The council’s revenue accounts are maintained on an accruals basis in accordance with the 
Code of Practice and SSAP2.  Sums due to or from the council are included in the 
accounting statements whether or not they have actually been received or paid in the year.  
An exception to this principle relates to utilities and similar quarterly payments which are 
charged at the date of meter readings rather than being apportioned between financial years.  
This policy is consistently applied each year and does not have a material effect on the 
year’s accounts. 
 
6. Stocks and stores  
Stocks are valued in the balance sheet at the latest price paid.  Some minor stocks are not 
valued and are charged to services in the year of purchase. This is not in accordance with 
the accounting standard relating to stocks, SSAP 9, which states that stocks should be 
included in financial statements at the lower of cost or net realisable value. 
 
7. Costs of support services 
All costs of management and administration, except for corporate and democratic costs and 
certain unapportionable central overheads, have been fully allocated to services in 
accordance with the Best Value Code of Accounting Practice.  The basis of allocation used 
for the main elements of management and administration are outlined below.  

Page 141



 

 1316 

 
Cost Basis of allocation 
Support services and service management Actual time spent by staff 
Administrative buildings Area occupied 
 {Actual time spent by staff 
Information technology services {Terminal utilisation 
 {Actual software costs 
Corporate and democratic core Not apportioned to other expenditure heads 
 
8. Revenue funds 
The council maintains balances for both the general fund and the housing revenue account 
to meet future general expenditure.  Specific funds exist to meet future potential and 
contingent liabilities for insurance claims (see ‘Insurance provision’ below), capital 
expenditure and other specific services. 
 
9. Investments 
Investments are shown in the balance sheet at cost. 
 
10. Leases 
Rental payments under finance leases are apportioned between interest and the reduction in 
the leasing obligation, with the interest allocated and charged to revenue over the term of the 
lease. Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to revenue on a straight-line 
basis over the term of the lease. 
 
11. Insurance provision 
The council operates a self insurance fund for third party liability claims up to £27,000 and 
has created a reserve for this purpose.  External insurers provide other insurance. 
 
12. Government Grants  
Revenue grants are accrued and credited to income in the same period in which the related 
expenditure was charged.  Grants related to capital expenditure are credited to revenue over 
the expected useful life of the assets.  The capital grant is credited to the Government Grants 
Deferred Account and written off to the Asset Management Account over the life of the asset, 
thereby matching the depreciation of the asset. 
 
13. Pensions 
The authority participates in a defined benefit scheme administered by Worcestershire 
County Council. In accordance with the requirements of ‘FRS 17 Retirements Benefits’, the 
accounts recognise pensions liabilities when they become due even though the actual even 
though the actual pension payment will be made many years in the future.  
 
14. Post balance sheet events 
Events arising after the balance sheet date are reflected in the statement of accounts if they 
provide additional evidence of conditions that existed at the balance sheet date and 
materially affect the amounts to be included.  No such events are included in this years 
accounts. 
 
 
 
 
 

 Income & Expenditure Account 
      

Page 142



 

 1317 

2005/06   2006/07 2006/07 2006/07 
Net   Gross Gross Net 

Expenditure Note  Expenditure income Expenditure 

£’000   £’000 £’000 £’000 
877 1 Central services to the public 6,605 (5,416) 1,189

9,648 1 Cultural, environmental and planning 
services 

14,283 (5,590) 8,693

1,293 1 Highways, roads and transport services 1,518 (208) 1,310
(2,188)  Local authority housing (HRA) 16,008 (17,987) (1,979)
638 1 Other housing services 7,810 (7,255) 555

1,635  Corporate and democratic core 1,763 (24) 1,739
(1,140) 2 Non distributed costs 531 (114) 417

86  Other services - - - 
10,849  Net cost of services 48,518 (36,594) 11,924

  5  Precept paid to Feckenham Parish Council 5
(164) 3 Surplus on trading undertakings (576)
(740)  Interest receivable (699)
1,848  Contribution of housing capital receipts to 

Government Pool 
1,553

4,077 5 Pensions interest costs 4,421
(2,823) 5 Expected return on pensions assets (3,453)
234  Interest Payable 509
11 4 Provision for bad debts 50

13,297  Net operating expenditure 13,734
  (4,673) 10 Demand on the Collection Fund (4,803)

(3,254)  General government grants (1,767)
(2,288)  Non domestic rates redistribution (5,111)
3,082  Deficit for the year 2,053
      

Statement of Movement on the General Fund 
Balance  

 
2005/06  2006/07 
£’000  £’000 
3,082 Deficit for the year on the Income and Expenditure Account 2,053 

   
(2,143) Net additional amount required by statute and non-statutory proper 

practices to be debited or credited to the General Fund Balance for 
the year 

(2,230) 

939 (Increase)/Decrease in General Fund Balance for the year (177) 
   
   

 
 
 
T. Kristunas C.P.F.A.    25 June 2007  D. Hunt     25 June 2007 
Head of Financial Services    Mayor  
 

Reconciling items for the Statement of Movement on 
the General Fund Balance  

Page 143



 

 1318 

 
2005/06  2006/07 
£’000  £’000 

 Amounts included in the Income and Expenditure Account but 
required by statute to be excluded when determining the 
Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year 

 

   
(2,210) Depreciation of fixed assets (1,282) 

79 Government  grants deferred amortisation 125 
(478) Write down of deferred charges to be financed from capital resources (376) 

(2,164) Net charges made for retirement benefits in accordance with FRS17 (3,344) 
   

(4,773)  (4,877) 
 Amounts not included in the Income and Expenditure Account 
but required by statute when determining the Movement on the 
General Fund Balance for the year 

 

 Statutory provision for repayment of debt  
22 Capital expenditure charged in year to the General Fund Balance 5 

(1,848) Transfer from Usable Capital Receipts to meet payments to the 
Housing Capital Receipts Pool 

(1,553) 

2,432 Employers contributions payable to the Worcestershire Pension Fund 2,615 
   

606  1,067 
 Transfers to or from the General Fund Balance that are required 
to be taken into account when determining the Movement on the 
General Fund Balance for the year 

 

337 Housing Revenue Account Balance 84 
1,500 Voluntary revenue provision for capital financing 1,250 
187 Net transfer to or from earmarked reserves 246 

   
2,024  1,580 
(2,143) Net additional amount required to be credited to the General 

Fund balance for the year 
(2,230) 

   
 
 

Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses 
2005/06  2006/076 
£’000  £’000 

3,082 Deficit for the year on the Income and Expenditure 
Account 

2,053 

   
(115,374) Surplus/deficit arising on revaluation of fixed assets 8,290 

   
(144) (Surplus)/deficit on Collection Fund 130 

   
320 Actuarial (gain)/loss on pension fund assets and liabilities (4,693) 

   
(112,116) Total recognised (gain)/loss for the year 5,780 

Notes to the Income and Expenditure Account 

Page 144



 

 1319 

 
1. Service analysis 
The service classifications used in the Income and Expenditure Account follow the services 
set out in the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice.  A more detailed breakdown of the 
services included in each classification is given below. 
 
2005/06  2006/07 2006/07 2006/07 

Net  Gross Gross Net 

Expenditure  Expenditure income Expenditure 

£’000  £’000 £’000 £’000 
 Central services to the public    

371 Tax collection- including council tax benefits 5,812 (5,183) 629 
45 Registration of electors 89 (1) 88 
65 Conducting elections 66 (3) 63 
30 Emergency planning 29 - 29 

(111) Local land charges 107 (225) (118) 
477 General grants 502 (4) 498 
877  6,605 (5,416) 1,189 

 Cultural, environmental and planning 
services 

   

1,216 Culture and heritage- including Forge Mill 
Museum and Palace Theatre 

1,129 (534) 595 

1,791 Recreation and sport 2,952 (1,279) 1,673 
1,176 Open spaces 1,604 (334) 1,270 
414 Community centres 502 (145) 357 
74 Tourism 69 (4) 65 

(104) Cemeteries and crematorium 444 (635) (191) 
640 Environmental health 851 (213) 638 
474 Community safety 628 (36) 592 
92 Land drainage 93 (14) 79 
714 Street cleansing 1,221 (471) 750 

1,711 Waste collection-now includes recycling costs 2,233 (451) 1,782 
124 Building control 271 (133) 138 
566 Planning policy 720 (268) 452 
22 Environmental initiatives 49 - 49 
413 Economic development 689 (315) 374 

- Sure Start projects 758 (758) - 
325 Community development 70 - 70 

9,648  14,283 (5,590) 8,693 
 Highways, roads and transport    

13 Lighting 38 - 38 
1,243 Public transport- incl. concessionary fares 1,455 (207) 1,248 
37 Parking 25 (1) 24 

1,293  1,518 (208) 1,310 
 Housing services    

739 Housing services- general fund 2,282 (2,015) 267 
336 Housing benefits 5,528 (5,240) 288 
638  7,810 (7,255) 555 

 
2.Non distributed costs 
In compliance with the Best Value Code of Practice the following costs are not allocated to 
services: 
2005/06  2006/07 
£’000 Service £’000 

Page 145



 

 1320 

245         Pensions past service costs  292 
(1,184)         Pensions past service gain due to change in scheme benefits - 

         Redundancy and tribunal costs 141 
(220)         Refund of business rates on Town Hall offices 23 
19         Other unallocated costs (39) 

(1,140)  417 
 
3. Surplus on trading undertakings 
Trading undertakings are activities of a commercial nature which are financed substantially 
by charges made to the recipients of the service.  Commercial properties, business centres 
and the outdoor market are operated on this basis. 
2005/06  2006/07 
£’000 Service £’000 

(212)         Land and property holdings  (618) 
27         Business centres (24) 
4         Civic suite hire 6 
17         Market  60 

           (164)  (576) 
 
Turnover and expenditure details for significant trading undertakings are as follows:- 
 
 Undertaking  2006/07 
   £’000 £’000 
      The council manages and lets industrial  Turnover (869)  
 and commercial units located in various Expenditure 250  
 parts of the borough – trading objective  Surplus  (618) 
 is to maximise the surplus. (Surplus 2005/06   £212,000)  
      The council operates three business  Turnover (436)  
 centres which provide affordable premises Expenditure 412  
  for new and small businesses- trading Surplus  (24) 
  objective is to break even after excluding   
  capital charges. (Surplus 2005/06  £ 27,000)  
      The council operates an outdoor market  Turnover (111)  
 generating rental income from stallholders Expenditure 171  
 -the trading objective is to maximise the  Deficit  60 
 surplus. (Deficit 2005/06  £25,000)  
     
4. Provision for bad debts 
A general provision has been made against future losses or non recovery of general fund 
income.  An increased provision of £160,000 has been made for housing debtors. 
 
5. Pension fund transactions 
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employees, the 
authority offers retirement benefits.  Although these benefits will not actually be payable until 
employees retire, the authority has a commitment to make the payments that needs to be 
disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entitlement.  
The authority participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by 
Worcestershire County Council.  This is a funded scheme, meaning that the authority and 
employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the 
pensions liabilities with investment assets. 
The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the Net Cost of Services when they are 
earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.  

Page 146



 

 1321 

However the charge required to be made against council tax is based on the cash payable in 
the year, so the real cost of retirement benefits is reversed out of the Income and 
Expenditure after Net Operating Expenditure.  The following transactions have been made in 
the Expenditure and Income  Account during the year: 
2005/06  2006/07 
£’000  £’000 

  Net cost of services  
(2,094) • Current service cost (2,375) 
1,184 • Past service costs - 

  Net operating expenditure  
(4,077) • Interest cost (4,421) 
2,823 • Expected return on assets in the scheme 3,453 

 Amounts to be met from government grants and local taxation  
(268) • Movement on pensions reserve 728 

 Actual amount charged against council tax for pensions in year  
(2,432) • Employer’s contributions payable to scheme                                            (2,615) 

Note 14 (page 31) to the Balance Sheet contains details of the assumptions made in 
estimating the figures included in this note.   
 
10. Demand on the collection fund 
Further details of the movements on the Collection Fund can be found on pages 23 -25. 
 
11. Publicity 
In accordance with Section 5 of the Local Government Act 1986 the council is required to 
disclose total spending on publicity during the year.  In 2006/07 the council spent £291,920 
on publicity (£269,745 in 2005/06) of which £65,024 related to staff advertising costs 
(£81,172 in 2005/06).   
 
2005/06  2006/07 
£’000 Expenditure £’000 

81         Recruitment advertising 65 
83         Promotions and publicity 143 
106         Other advertising 84 
270  292 

 
12. Employees’ costs 
The council employed an average of 671 full time equivalent staff during the year.  In addition 
temporary staff were employed during the year to cover vacant posts and for seasonal 
activities. 
Staff costs were incurred as follows: 
2005/06  2006/07 
£’000 Expenditure £’000 
14,875          Salaries and wages 15,107 
1,055          Social security costs 1,066 
2,528          Pension costs 2,882 
18,458  19,055 

The number of staff whose remuneration, excluding pension contributions was £50,000 or 
more in bands of £10,000 was: 

2005/06 
 

 2006/07 
Number 

 
Remuneration band 

 
Number 

 3 Between £50,000 and £59,999 3 
1 Between £60,000 and £69,999 1 

Page 147



 

 1322 

1 Between £70,000 and £79,999 - 
- Between £80,000 and £89,999 1 

 
13. Members allowances 
Member’s allowances paid in the year were £107,081 (£106,962 in 2005/06).  The scheme 
for member’s allowances was introduced in 2002/03.  An independent panel has been 
formed to evaluate the remuneration to be made to members for the duties they perform. 
 
14. Related party transactions 
The council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or 
individuals that have the potential to control or influence the council or be controlled or 
influenced by the council. Disclosure of these transactions allows the reader to assess the 
extent to which the council might have been constrained in its ability to operate 
independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain 
freely with the council. 
• Central government has effective control over the general operations of the council – it 

is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the council operates, 
provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the form of many 
of the transactions that the council has with other parties.  Details of transactions with 
government departments are set out in a note to the Cash Flow Statement. 

• Members of the Council have direct control over the council’s financial and operating 
policies.  During 2006/07 no material works and services were commissioned from 
companies in which members had an interest. Grants totalling £173,500 were paid to 
voluntary organisations in which 5 members had an interest.  These organisations were: 

Citizens Advice Bureau (£90,000) 
Age Concern (£7,500) 
Redditch Play Council (£53,000) 
All Women’s House (£20,000) 
Redditch Arts Council (£3,000) 

Most of these members were acting as council nominated members of the boards of these 
organisations.  The grants were made with proper consideration of declarations of 
interest.  Where required the relevant members did not take part in any discussion or 
decision relating to the grants.  Details of all these transactions are recorded in the 
Register of Members’ Interest, open to public inspection at the Town Hall, Alcester Street, 
Redditch. 
A contribution of £27,000 was made to Redditch Community Commonwealth towards the 
employment costs of a voluntary sector funding coordinator.  A member of Redditch 
Borough Council was employed in this role.   

• Officers (no disclosures) 
 
• Other public bodies (no disclosures) 
 
• Assisted organisations. The council provides financial assistance to a number of 

organisations, however it does not impose terms or conditions that give it control over 
their operations   

 
• Management contracts (no disclosures) 
 
• Companies and joint ventures (no disclosures) 
 
15. Fees payable to the Audit Commission and appointed auditor 

Page 148



 

 1323 

Fees of £102,798 were paid for external audit services carried out by the appointed auditor 
under the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice in accordance with section 5 of the 
Audit Commission Act 1998. 
Statutory inspection fees of £11,987 were paid to the Audit Commission under section 10 of 
the Local Government Act 1999. 
Fees of £17,720 were paid for the certification of grant claims and returns by the appointed 
auditor under section 28 of the Audit Commission Act 1998. 
 
16. Building Control trading account 
The Building (Local Authority Charges) Regulations 1998 require the disclosure of 
information regarding the setting of charges for the administration of the building control 
function – ‘details of scheme for setting charges’.  However, certain activities performed by 
the building control unit cannot be charged for, such as providing general advice and liaising 
with other statutory authorities.  The statement below shows the total cost of operating the 
building control unit divided between the chargeable and non-chargeable activities. 
 

Building regulations charging account  2006/07 
 Chargeable Non-

chargeable 
Total building 

control 
 2005/06 2006/07 2005/06 2006/07 2005/06 2006/07 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Expenditure       
Employee expenses 72 101 95 75 167 176 
Premises 8 7 10 5 18 12 
Transport 2 3 3 2 5 5 
Supplies and services 5 10 5 3 10 13 
Central and support service charges 13 17 17 13 30 30 
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 100 138 130 98 230 239 
Income       
Building regulation charges 134 132 -  134 132 
Miscellaneous income -  2 1 2 1 
TOTAL INCOME 134 132 2 1 136 133 
       
Surplus/(deficit) for year 34 (6) (128) (97) (94) (104) 
 

Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses 
2005/06  2006/076 
£’000  £’000 
3,082 Deficit for the year on the Income and Expenditure Account 2,053 

   
(115,374) Surplus/deficit arising on revaluation of fixed assets 8,290 

   
(144) (Surplus)/deficit on Collection Fund 130 

   
320 Actuarial (gain)/loss on pension fund assets and liabilities (4,693) 

   
(112,116) Total recognised (gain)/loss for the year 5,780 

 
 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 
 
 

Page 149



 

 1324 

HRA Income and Expenditure Account 
    2005/06   2006/07 

£’000 Note  £’000 
  Income  
16,687 1 Dwelling rents(gross) 17,229 
672  Non dwelling rents (gross) 571 
146  Charges for services and facilities 176 
13  Contributions towards expenditure 11 
    17,518  Total income 17,987 

    
  Expenditure  
3,399 4 Repairs and maintenance 3,490 
4,098  Supervision and management 4,149 
141  Rent, rates, taxes, and other charges 212 
169  Rent rebates - 
113 11 Increase in provision for bad or doubtful debts 160 

3,587 7 Depreciation of fixed assets 3,530 
-  Debt management costs 5 
3,823 8 Negative subsidy transferable to DCLG 4,462 

    15,330  Total expenditure 16,008 
    
(2,188)  Net cost of HRA Services per authority Income  (1,979) 

  and Expenditure Account  
    
566  HRA services share of Corporate and Democratic Core 625 

(1,622)  Net cost of HRA Services (1,354) 

15 9 Pensions interest cost and expected return on assets 200 
-  Interest payable and similar charges 139 

(288)  Interest and Investment income (119) 
    (1,895)  (Surplus) or deficit for year on HRA Services (1,134) 

 
Statement of Movement on the HRA Balance 

2005/06  2005/06 

£’000  £’000 

(1,895) Surplus for the year on the HRA Income and Expenditure 
Account 

(1,134) 

1,558 Net additional amount required by statute and non-statutory 
proper practices to be debited or credited to the HRA Balance 
for the year 

1,050 

(337) Increase in Housing Revenue Account balance (84) 

(246) Housing Revenue Account surplus brought forward (583) 

(583) Housing Revenue Account surplus carried forward (667) 

 
Note to the Statement of Movement on the HRA 

Balance 
2005/06  2006/07 

Page 150



 

 1325 

£’000  £’000 
 Items included in the HRA  Income and Expenditure Account but 
excluded in the Movement on the HRA Balance for the year 

 

(470) Net charges made for retirement benefits in accordance with FRS17 (740) 
   

(470)  (740) 
 Items not included in the HRA Income and Expenditure Account 
but included in the movement on the HRA Balance for the year 

 

1,500 Capital expenditure funded by the HRA 1,250 
528 Employers contributions payable to the Worcestershire Pension Fund 540 

   
2,028  1,790 

   
1,558 Net additional amount required to be credited to the HRA balance 

for the year 
1,050 

 
Notes to the HRA Income and Expenditure Account 

1. Dwelling rent income 
This is the total rent income due for the year after allowance is made for voids etc.  During 
the year 1.15% properties were vacant (1.10% in 2005/06).  Average rents were £54.59 a 
week (52 week basis) in 2006/07, an increase of £2.41 or 4.62% over the previous year.  
 
2.  Housing stock 
The council was responsible for managing an average stock of 6,147 dwellings during 
2006/07.  The change in the number of properties is shown below. 
2005/06    2006/07 

Number of    Number of 
Properties    Properties 

6,259  Owned on April 1   6,167 
(92) Less Sales in year  (40) 

     6,167  Owned on March 31   6,127 
The dwelling stock is made up of the following types of properties 
2005/06    2006/07 

Number of    Number of 
Properties  Property type  Properties 

1,627  One bedroom flats  1,622 
588  Two bedroom flats  585 
28  Three or more bedroom flats  28 
662  One bedroom houses  662 
966  Two bedroom houses  955 

2,066  Three bedroom houses  2,046 
176  Four or more bedroom houses  175 
45  Non permanent dwellings  45 
9  Multi-occupied dwellings  9 

6,167  Total number of properties  6,127 
The balance sheet value of the land, houses and other property within the housing revenue 
account at 31 March 2007 was £257 million.  Council dwellings were revalued at 1 April 
2005. The valuation was made in accordance with the Practice Statements in the Royal 
Institution of Chartered Surveyors Appraisal and Valuation Manual, published by the Royal 
Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) 5th Edition. The valuation was carried out by the 
council’s internal valuer, Mr J Prendergrast, and valuers who conform to the requirements of 
these Practice Statements.  The valuation was based on Existing Use Value for Social 

Page 151



 

 1326 

Housing.  The housing stock was valued at £270 million (the balance sheet valuation prior to 
revaluation was £145.4 million).  The valuation did not include the notional directly 
attributable acquisition costs that have been determined to be £5.4 million. 
 Dwellings, 

garages, 
other land 

and buildings 
 £’000 
Value at 1 April 2006 262,654 
Additions in year - 
Reclassified as investment property (103) 
Disposals in year (2,896) 
Revaluations 1,168 
Gross balance sheet value at 31 March 2007 260,823 
Depreciation for year (3,531) 
Net balance sheet value at 31 March 2007 257,292 
The vacant possession value of dwellings within the housing revenue account as at 1 April 
2006 was £542.9 million. 
The vacant possession value and the balance sheet value of dwellings within the housing 
revenue account show the economic cost to Government of providing council housing at less 
than open market rents. 
 
3. Major repairs reserve 
The council is required to maintain a major repairs reserve.  The main credit to the major 
repairs reserve is an amount equivalent to the depreciation charge on housing revenue 
account assets.  The reserve can be used only for capital expenditure on housing revenue 
account assets. 
   Major 

repairs 
reserve 

   £’000 
Balance at 1 April 2006   - 
Transfer from capital financing reserve   3,531 
Capital expenditure funded by major repairs reserve   3,000 
Balance at 31 March 2007   531 
 
4.  Housing repairs account 
The movements on the housing repairs account are summarised below: - 
2005/06    2006/07 
£’000    £’000 

3,099  Expenditure in year  3,144 
300  Administration costs  300 

(3,399)  Contribution from housing revenue account  (3,444) 
-  Transfer from/ (to) specific reserve  - 

 
5. Capital expenditure 
During the year a total of £9.022 million capital expenditure was incurred on land, houses 
and other property within the housing revenue account. 
 
 Financing source £’000 
 Housing Major Repairs Reserve 3,000 
 Borrowing 5,712 

Page 152



 

 1327 

 Grant 179 
 Capital receipts 131 
 Total capital expenditure 9,022 
 
6. Capital receipts 
The council received £2.95 million capital receipts including income from the sale of 40 
houses under the Right to Buy scheme. 
 
7. Depreciation 
The council is required to charge depreciation on all housing revenue account properties 
calculated in accordance with proper practices.  For housing revenue account dwellings 
these proper practices need to be considered in the context of the major repairs allowance 
which the government has introduced.  It represents the estimated average annual cost of 
maintaining the condition of the housing stock over a 30 year period, based on the council’s 
own mix of dwelling types.  It is accepted that the major repairs allowance is likely to 
constitute a reasonable estimate of depreciation.  Accordingly, the major repairs allowance 
has been used as an estimate of depreciation charges in respect of housing revenue account 
dwellings in these accounts. Use of the major repairs allowance (MRA) is still considered an 
appropriate depreciation policy for the revalued housing assets. The cost of maintaining the 
condition of the housing stock represented by the MRA has not increased in line with the 
increase in the housing stock valuation.   The total charge for depreciation on operational 
assets for 2006/07 is £3,530,240.   
 
8. Housing revenue account subsidy 
The amount of subsidy payable for 2006/07 was calculated in accordance with the formula 
set out in paragraph 3.1 of the General Determination of Housing Subsidy for 2006/07.   
 
Subsidy element £’000 
Allowance for management and maintenance 8,590 
Allowance for major repairs 3,530 
Rental constraint allowance 26 
 12,146 
Less:  
Rent (16,329) 
Interest (279) 
Negative subsidy repaid to DCLG (4,462) 
 
9. HRA share of contributions to or from the Pensions Reserve 
Contributions to or from the Pensions Reserve have been apportioned to the Housing 
Revenue account pro rata pensionable pay.   
 
 
 
 
FRS17 accounting adjustments £’000 
Net cost current service pensions cost adjustment (50) 
Pensions interest cost 914 
Expected return on pensions assets (714) 
 150 
Housing Revenue Account share of contributions to/from Pensions Reserve  
Sum of FRS17 movements (691) 
Employers contributions 541 
Net effect on Housing Revenue Account nil 

Page 153



 

 1328 

 
10.  Rent arrears 
During the year 2006/07 gross rent arrears as a proportion of gross rent income have 
increased from 6.8% to 7.5%.  Arrears at 31 March 2007 were £1,302,086 (31 March 2006 
£1,154,095).  Arrears written off during the year amounted to £160,341 (£63,229 in 2005/06). 
 
11. Provision for bad debts 
2005/06    2006/07 
£’000    £’000 

450  Balance at 1 April  500 
113  Increase in provision  160 
(63)  Written off in year  (110) 
500  Balance at 31 March  550 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Collection Fund  
2005/06 Note   2006/07 
£’000    £’000 

  Income   
(28,433) 2 Income from council tax (net of benefits)  (30,017) 

       Transfers from general fund   
(4,403)  • council tax benefits  (4,673) 

     (28,476) 3 Income collectable from business ratepayers  (30,038) 
     

Page 154



 

 1329 

  Contributions   
4  
 

• adjustment of previous years’ community 
charges 

 - 

- 6 • towards previous year’s estimated 
collection fund deficit 

 (77) 

(61,308)    (64,805) 
  Expenditure   

32,814 4 Precepts and demands  34,477 
      3 Business rates   

28,358  • payment to national pool 29,920  
118  • costs of collection 118 30,038 

      5 Bad and doubtful debts   
13  • increased provision  420 
       Contributions   

149 6 • towards previous year’s estimated 
collection fund surplus 

 - 

144  Movement on fund balance  130 
     (171)  Fund (surplus)/deficit brought forward  (27) 
     (27) 7 Fund (surplus)/deficit carried forward  103 

 
Notes to the Collection Fund  

1. General 
This account reflects the statutory requirement for billing authorities to maintain a separate 
collection fund, which shows transactions relating to non-domestic rates and council tax.  It 
illustrates the way these have been distributed to preceptors and the general fund. 
 
2. Income from council tax - the council tax base 
Council tax income derives from charges raised according to the residential properties, which 
have been classified into eight valuation bands estimating 1 April 1991 values for this specific 
purpose.  Individual charges are calculated by estimating the amount of income required to 
be taken from the collection fund by Worcestershire County Council, Redditch Borough 
Council, the West Mercia Police Authority and Hereford and Worcester Fire and Rescue 
Authority for the forthcoming year and dividing this by the tax base (the total number of 
properties in each band adjusted by a proportion to convert the number to a band D 
equivalent).  The council tax base for 2006/07 was 26,685.92 (26,582.13 for 2005/06).  This 
basic amount of council tax for a band D property (£1,291.76 for 2006/07) is multiplied by the 
proportion specified for the particular band to give the amount due for each band. 
Council tax bills were based on the following proportions for bands A to H: - 
 
Tax band Number of 

properties 
Adjusted 

for 
discounts 

Proportion of 
band D 

Band D 
equivalent 

Council tax 
 
£ 

A(disabled) 10 9.00 5/9 5.00 £717.65 
A 7,018 5,853.00 6/9 3,902.00 £861.18 
B 11,048 10,017.75 7/9 7,791.58 £1,004.71 
C 6,925 6,402.50 8/9 5,691.11 £1,148.23 
D 4,067 3,835.50 1 3,835.50 £1,291.76 
E 2,958 2,848.00 11/9 3,480.89 £1,578.82 
F 1,097 1,058.25 13/9 1,528.58 £1,865.88 
G 392 376.75 15/9 627.92 £2,152.94 
H 13 12.5 18/9 25.00 £2,583.52 

Page 155



 

 1330 

      Total 33,528 30,413.25  26,887.58  
  Multiply by assumed collection rate 99.25%  

  Tax base 26,685.92  
 
3. Business rates 
Business rating is organised on a national basis.  The government specifies an amount   
(43.3p and 42.6p for small businesses in 2006/07 and 42.2p and 41.5p for small businesses 
in 2005/06) and, subject to the effects of transitional arrangements, local businesses pay 
rates calculated by multiplying their rateable value by that amount.  The council is 
responsible for collecting rates due from the ratepayers in its area but pays the proceeds into 
a Non Domestic Rate Pool administered by the government.  The government redistributes 
the sums paid into the pool back to local authorities on the basis of a fixed amount per head 
of population.    
The total non-domestic rateable value at 31 March 2007 was £79,748,482 (£79,347,172 at 
31 March 2006). 
 
4.. Precepts and demands 
The following authorities made a precept or demand on the collection fund: 
 

2005/06  2006/07 
£’000 Authority £’000 
22,782         Worcestershire County Council  24,001 
4,656         Redditch Borough Council 4,814 
3,806         West Mercia Police Authority 4,009 
1,570         Hereford & Worcester Fire & Rescue Authority  1,653 

   32,814  34,477 
 
5. Bad and doubtful debts 
The following provisions and write offs were made for council tax in the year:- 
 

2005/06  2006/07 
£’000 Provision for bad debts - Council Tax £’000 

787         Balance at 1 April 782 
13         Increase in provision 420 
(18)         Written off in year (22) 
782         Balance at 31 March 1,180 

 
Provisions and write offs for business rates were made as follows:- 
 
 

2005/06  2006/07 
£’000 Provision for bad debts – Business rates £’000 

568         Balance at 1 April 506 
13         Increase/(decrease) in provision 87 
(75)         Written off in year (31) 
506         Balance at 31 March 562 

 
6. Collection fund surpluses and deficits 
The deficit on the collection fund at 31 March 2007 will be recovered from Worcestershire 
County Council, Redditch Borough Council, the West Mercia Police Authority and Hereford 
and Worcester Fire and Rescue Authority in proportion to the respective precepts or 
demands made by those authorities on the collection fund. 

Page 156



 

 1331 

 

The Balance Sheet 
31 March 2006  31 March 2007 
£’000 Notes  £’000 £’000 

  Intangible assets  
190  • Software licences 911 

  Tangible fixed assets  
 1. Operational assets  
262,654  • Council dwellings 257,292  
13,197  • Other land and buildings 13,158  

30  • Infrastructure 62  
625  • Community assets 613  

4,684  • Vehicles, plant, furniture, equipment 4,539 275,664 
  Non operational assets  

9,026  • Investment properties 9,265 
290,406  Total fixed assets 285,840 
10,530 3. Long term investments 10,530 
318 4. Long term debtors 398 

301,254  Total long term assets 296,768 
  Current assets   

248 5. Stocks and stores 226  
8,020 6. Debtors 6,087  
5,000  Investments 5,200  
33  Cash in hand and at bank 32 11,545 

314,555  Total assets 308,313 
  Current liabilities  

(6,049) 7. Creditors (5,439)  
(13,025)  Short term borrowing (17,050)  
(458)  Bank overdraft (269) (22,758) 

295,023  Total assets less current liabilities 285,555 
  (34,421) 13. Pensions liability (30,456)  

(692) 16. Government grants deferred account (1,077)  
(1,245) 9. Deferred credits (1,109)  
(131) 10. Deferred capital receipts (120)  
(270) 14. Provisions (309) (33,071) 

258,264 11. Total assets less liabilities 252,484 
  Financed by  

145,911 20. Capital financing account 147,421 
138,602 19. Fixed asset restatement account 126,510 
3,312 18. Usable capital receipts reserve 1,993 

(34,421) 15. Pensions reserve (30,456) 
-  Major repairs reserve 530 
2,996 17. Specific reserves 4,491 
 12. Revenue balances  
1,254  • General fund 1,431 
583  • Housing revenue account 667 
27  • Collection fund (103) 

258,264  Total net worth 252,484 
 
 
T. Kristunas C.P.F.A .   25 June 2007   D Hunt  25 June 2007 
Head of Financial Services     Mayor 

Page 157



 

 1332 

Notes to the Balance Sheet 
1. Fixed assets  
• Fixed assets movements 
 Council Other Infra- Community Vehicles Investment Intangible  
 Dwellings Land and 

buildings 
Structure Assets 

 
And plant Properties assets TOTAL 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Historic cost or valuation         
         Value at 1 April 2006 266,241 15,686 43 688 6,250 9,026 246 298,180 
Additions 9,022 1,775 52 345 812 - 779 12,785 
Disposals (2,896) - - - - (909) - (3,805) 
Impairments - - - - - - - - 
Revaluations  1,168 89 - - - 1,045 - 2,302 
Non enhancement of asset values (9,022) (1,775) (19) (345) (204) - - (11,365) 
Other movements (103) - - - - 103 - - 
Value at 31 March 2007 264,410 15,775 76 688 6,858 9,265 1,025 298,097 
         Depreciation         

At 1 April 2006 3,587 2,489 13 63 1,566 - 56 7,774 

Charge for the year 3,531 387 1 12 753 - 58 4,742 

Disposals - - - - - - - - 
Reclassifications - - - - - - - - 
Revaluations - (259) - - - - - (259) 
Other movements  - - - - - - - - 
Depreciation at 31 March 2007 7,118 6,617 14 75 2,319 - 114 12,257 
         Net book value at 31 March 2007 257,292 13,158 62 613 4,539 9,265 911 285,840 
Net book value at 1 April 2006 262,654 13,219 30 625 4,684 9,026 190 290,406 

 
 
 
• Impairment 

P
age 158



 

 1333 

The annual review of assets did not identify any assets where the value had changed materially in the period. 
• Fixed asset valuations 
The freehold and leasehold properties which comprise the Council’s operational portfolio have been valued by the Council’s in 
house valuers in accordance with the Statements of Asset Valuation Practice and Guidance Notes of the Royal Institution of 
Chartered Surveyors. Revaluations of fixed assets are undertaken using a five year rolling programme. Fixed plant and equipment 
is included in the valuation of buildings. 
 
The following statement shows the dates of valuation of each category of fixed assets.   
 
 Council Other Infra- Community Vehicles Investment Intangible  
 Dwellings land and 

buildings 
Structure assets 

 
And plant Properties Assets TOTAL 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Valued at historic cost  - 76 688 6,858 -  7,622 
         Valued at current value in:         
1994/95 - 1,855 - - - 229 - 2,084 
1998/99 - 1,000 - - - - - 1,000 
1999/2000 - 11,260 - - - - - 11,260 
2001/02 - 109 - - - - - 109 
2002/03 - 100 - - - - - 100 
2004/05 - 168 - - - 475 164 807 
2005/06 264,410 - - - - 103 82 264,595 
2006/07 - 1,283 - - - 8,458 779 10,520 
         Gross value 264,410 15,775 76 688 6,858 9,265 1,025 298,098 
Cumulative depreciation 7,118 6,617 14 75 2,319 - - 12,257 
         Net book value at 31 March 2007 257,292 13,158 62 613 4,539 9,264 1,025 285,840 
 
Where valuations are not ‘as at’ the balance sheet date the council is not aware of any material change and therefore valuations 
have not been updated.  

P
age 159



 

 1334 

• Depreciation 
All assets other than housing revenue account, freehold land and non-operational investment 
properties have been depreciated using the straight line method.  An amount equivalent to the 
Major Repairs Allowance (MRA) has been used as the annual depreciation charge for housing 
revenue account assets.  The MRA represents the estimated average annual cost of 
maintaining the condition of the housing stock over a 30 year period.  It is considered that this 
constitutes a reasonable estimate of depreciation.  Depreciation has not been provided for 
freehold land or for non-operational investment properties.  
• Intangible assets 
These represent the purchase of software and are charged to the revenue account on the 
basis of cost and estimated life (5 years). 
• Financing of capital expenditure 
Capital expenditure, including capital grants and de minimus expenditure, was financed from 
the following sources: 

Financing source £’000 
Housing Major Repairs Reserve 3,000 
Capital receipts 3,624 
Government grant and contributions 1,476 
Borrowing 5,712 
Revenue contributions 5 

 13,817 
• Commitments under capital contracts 
Capital commitments under capital contracts amounted to £79,000. 
• Leasing 
The council does not currently finance capital expenditure through credit arrangements. The 
council holds various assets, principally vehicles, under operating leases.  No capital assets 
were acquired under operating leases during the year (2005/06 £nil).  Lease payments for the 
year amounted to £25,450. 
Undischarged options at 31 March 2007 amounted to £36,270. 

 £’000 
Amounts falling due within 1 year 6,800 
Amounts falling due within 2-5 years 29,470 

 36,270 
2. Deferred charges 
  Expenditure Funded by Written off Balance at 

  grant In year 1 April 2007 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
     Improvement grants 366 (196) (170) - 
Capital grants to other organisations 404 (198) (206) - 
     
 770 (394) (376) - 
Deferred charges that represent revenue expenditure which qualifies as capital for controls 
purposes, such as improvement grants and non repayable grants to third parties, are written 
out of the balance sheet to service revenue accounts on the basis of benefit obtained by the 
service.  
3. Investments 
Balance at  Balance at 
31 March 
2006 

Investment 31 March 
2007 

£’000  £’000 
   10,530 Capital receipts/revenue balances 10,530 

Page 160



 

 1335 

The capital receipts at 31 March 2007 were invested in an externally managed investment 
fund. The market value of this investment at 31 March 2007 was £10.97 million (£11.02 million 
at 31 March 2006).   
4. Long term debtors 
This figure includes all debtors whose amounts fall due after one year or more. 
Balance at  Balance at 
31 March 
2006 

Long term debtor 31 March 
2007 

£’000  £’000 
   131         Mortgages – Sale of council houses 120 

127         Housing associations 125 
-         Lifetime grants 90 
36         Employee car loans 40 
24         Other 23 
   318  398 

5. Stocks and stores 
Balance at  Balance at 
31 March 
2006 

Stock 31 March 
2007 

£’000  £’000 
   189         Depot stores 156 

59         Other miscellaneous stores  70 
   248  226 

6. Debtors 
This balance includes amounts falling due within one year. 
Balance at  Balance at 
31 March 
2006 

Debtor type 31 March 
2007 

£’000  £’000 
   1,509         Government departments 608 

3,319         Collection fund (council tax, business rates etc.) 3,023 
424         Interest on investments 583 
963         Housing rents 1,200 

3,945         Sundry debtors 3,365 
   10,160  8,779 

(2,140)         Less – provision for doubtful debts (2,692) 
8,020  6,087 

7. Creditors 
Balance at  Balance at 
31 March 
2006 

Creditor 31 March 
2007 

£’000  £’000 
   636         Government departments 646 

21         Interest on borrowing 32 
182         Housing rents prepaid 271 

1,273         Collection fund (council tax, business rates etc.) 1,167 
3,937         Sundry creditors 3,323 

   6,049  5,439 
8. Long term borrowing 
The council has no money outstanding by way of long term borrowing at the end of the year. 
 
 

Page 161



 

 1336 

9. Deferred credits 
Balance at  Balance at 
31 March 
2006 

 31 March 
2007 

£’000  £’000 

   1,057         Contractors’ contributions unapplied 999 
188         Capital grants and contributions unapplied 110 

   1,245  1,109 
 
10. Deferred capital receipts 
Deferred capital receipts are amounts derived from sales of assets that will be received in 
instalments over agreed periods of time.  They arise principally from mortgages on sales of  
council houses (£113,000), which form the main part of mortgages under long-term debtors. 
The balance (£7,000) relates to disposals of council houses under the ‘Rent to Mortgage’ 
scheme. 
 
11. Analysis of net assets employed 
Balance at  Balance at 
31 March 
2006 

 31 March 
2007 

£’000  £’000 

26,491         General fund 25,648 
266,886         Housing revenue account 257,292 
(34,421)         Pension fund (30,456) 
258,956         Total net assets employed 252,484 

 
12. Revenue Funds 
 Balance at Contribution Used in year Balance at 
 31 March 

2006 
In year  31 March 2007 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
     General fund 1,254 177 - 1,431 
Housing revenue account 583 84 - 667 
Collection fund 27 - (130) (103) 
      1,864 233 (130) 1,997 
The collection fund balance has been consolidated into the balance sheet in accordance with 
the revised code of practice. 
 
13. Disclosure of net pensions asset/liability 
Note 7 to the Income and Expenditure Account contains details of the Authority’s participation 
in the Local Government Pensions Scheme (administered by Worcestershire County Council).  
The underlying assets and liabilities for retirement benefits attributable to the authority at 31 
March are as follows: 

Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund 
Redditch Borough Council 

£million  £million 
2005/06  2006/07 
55.7 Market value of assets 59.6 
(90.1) Liabilities (90.1) 
(34.4) Net liability (30.5) 

 

Page 162



 

 1337 

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the authority has in the long run to pay 
retirement benefits.   
The affect of including these assets and liabilities on the Balance Sheet net assets value is as 
shown below: 
 
  £’000 
Total net worth excluding Pension Fund assets and liabilities  282,877 
Pension Fund Assets  59,680 
Pension Fund Liabilities  (90,163) 
Total net worth including Pension Fund assets and liabilities  252,394 
 
The deficit on the scheme will be made good by increased contributions over the remaining 
working life of employees as assessed by the scheme actuaries. 
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an 
estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent upon assumptions 
about mortality rates, salary levels, etc.   
The liabilities have been assessed by Mercer Human Resources Consulting Ltd, Liverpool L2 
2QH, an independent firm of actuaries.  The main assumptions used in their calculations are: 
 

Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund 
Redditch Borough Council 
Actuarial assumptions 

 
 

Beginning of 
year 

End of year 

Financial assumptions   
Rate of inflation 2.90% 3.1% 
Rate of increase in salaries  4.40% 4.6% 
Rate of increase in pensions 2.90% 3.1% 
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 4.90% 5.4% 

Expected rate of return on assets   
Equities 7.00% 7.5% 
Government Bonds 4.30% 4.7% 
Other bonds 4.90% 5.4% 
Property 6.00% 6.5% 
Cash/liquidity 4.50% 5.25% 

Split of assets between investment categories   
Equities 81.70% 90.3% 
Government Bonds  12.40% 5.0% 
Other bonds 4.40% 3.6% 
Property 0.0% 0.0% 
Cash/liquidity 1.50% 1.1% 

Market value of total fund assets(£ millions) 1,154 1,245 
The actuarial assumptions used in the calculation of the year end balance sheet liabilities are 
based on the 2004 actuarial valuation assumptions, other than the financial assumptions 
which are shown above. 
The above expected returns are gross of expenses.  A deduction of 0.36% in respect of 
expenses is made in calculating the expected return for the year. 
 

Page 163



 

 1338 

Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund 
Redditch Borough Council 

Disclosure items – 31 March 2007 year end 
 

BALANCE SHEET ITEMS AS AT 31 MARCH 2007 
  £’000  

Market value of assets 59,680  
Liabilities (90,136)  
Surplus/ (Deficit) (30,456)  
   

MOVEMENT IN SURPLUS DURING 2006/07 
Surplus/(deficit) at beginning of year (34,421)  
Current service cost (2,375)  
Employer contributions 2,615  
Past service cost/ curtailment cost 0  
Net interest/ return on assets (968)  
Actuarial gain or (loss) 4,693  
Surplus/ (Deficit) at end of year (30,456)  
   

REVENUE ITEMS FOR 2006/07 
              Operating   

Current service costs (2,375) 18.7% of pensionable payroll 
Past service costs 0 Due to change in Scheme benefits  
Curtailment cost 0  
Settlement gain 0  
Total cost (2,375)  

              Finance   
Expected return on assets 3,453  
Interest on pension liabilities (4,421)  
Net gain/ cost (968)  
   

STATEMENT OF ACTUARIAL GAINS AND (LOSSES) 
Asset gain (loss) 132 (0.2% of assets) 
Liability gain (loss) 0 (0.0% of liabilities) 
Change in assumptions 4,561 (5.1% of liabilities) 
Net gain/ (loss) 4,693 (5.2% of liabilities) 

   
ASSET VALUES BY CATEGORY 

 Assets at 31 March 2006 Assets at 31 March 2007 
 £’000 % £’000 % 
Equities 45,541 81.7% 53,892 90.3% 
Government bonds 6,912 12.4% 2,984 5.0% 
Other bonds 2,453 4.4% 2,148 3.6% 
Property 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 
Cash/liquidity 836 1.5% 656 1.1% 
Other 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 
Total 55,742  59,680  

 

 
 
14. Other information 

Page 164



 

 1339 

• Trust funds 
The council acts as sole trustee for four trust funds established to provide benefits to the 
needy from legacies left by individuals.  All funds are invested in bank deposit accounts.  The 
funds do not represent assets of the council and are not included in the consolidated balance 
sheet.  The aggregated movement on the trusts is summarised below – 

Balance at Expenditure Receipts  Balance at 
1 April 2006 in year in year 31 March 2007 

£ £ £ £ 
8,100 - 22 8122 

• Self insurance provision 
The council operates a self insurance provision for third party claims up to £27,000.  The  
movements are summarised below: 
 

Balance at                  
1 April 2006 

Contribution in year Claims paid in year Balance at                
31 March 2007 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
270 162 (123) 309 

 
15.Movement on the pensions reserve 
  Pensions  
  Reserve  
  £’000  
Actuarial gain in year  4,693  
FRS17 adjustments to Income and Expenditure Account  (728)  
    Net movement in year  3,965  
Balance brought forward at 1 April 2006  (34,421)  
Balance at 31 March 2007  (30,456)  
 
 2005/06 2006/07 
 £’000 % £’000 % 
Difference between expected and actual  return on assets 1,631 2.9 n/a  
Gain on liabilities (1,503) 1.7 0 0.0 
Effect of changes in demographic and financial 
assumptions 

(7,128) 7.9 4,561 5.1 

 
16. Government grants deferred 
  Government 

grants deferred 
  £’000 
Amounts credited to asset management revenue account in 2006/07  (124) 
Government grants deferred in year  509 
Movement on government grants deferred  385 
Balance brought forward at 1 April 2006  692 
Balance at 31 March 2007  1,077 
 
Grants received towards the cost of closed circuit television equipment, recycling plant, 
updated information technology, revenues and benefit software and Dial a Ride vehicles are 
being used over the life of the assets to offset provisions made for depreciation.  
 
 
17.Movements in specific reserves 
 Balance at Contribution Used in  Balance at 

Page 165



 

 1340 

 1 April 
2006 

in year Year 31 March 
2007 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
     Housing major repairs - 3,530 (3,000) 530 
     
Earmarked reserves:-     
Third party insurance 61 - - 61 
Community development 39  (5) 34 
Car loan scheme 7 - - 7 
Heming Road Enterprise Centre 45 - - 45 
Environmental Health 2 1 - 3 
Taxi licensing 10 17 (5) 22 
Public donations 71 16 - 87 
Trade waste - 89 - 89 
Mercury emissions  - 60 - 60 
Capital expenditure (General fund) 261 72 - 333 
Capital expenditure(HRA) 2,500 1,250 - 3,750 
      2,996 1,505 (10) 4,491 
 
The contribution to the major repairs reserve is an amount equivalent to the depreciation 
charge on housing revenue account (HRA) assets.  The contribution is funded within the HRA 
by the Major Repairs Allowance (MRA) which forms part of the housing subsidy received from 
the government.  Capital expenditure on housing properties is financed from the major repairs 
reserve.  
 
18.Movements in realised capital resources 
  Usable  
  capital receipts  
  £’000  
Amounts receivable in year  (2,294)  
Amounts applied to finance new capital investment  3,613  
    Total decrease in realised capital resources  1,319  
Balance brought forward at 1 April 2006  (3,312)  
Balance at 31 March 2007  (1,993)  
 
A proportion of capital receipts from the sale of council owned assets may be used to finance 
new expenditure for capital purposes.  The proportion that may be used is regulated by the 
Secretary of State and may be a value between 0% and 100% and may vary according to the 
source or nature of the receipts or the circumstances of the authority. 
The council received £2.9 million of useable capital receipts from council house sales during 
the year.  Regulations introduced in 2004/05 require receipts from house sales to be paid into 
a central pool.  This requirement is being phased in over 4 years, and £1.6 million of capital 
receipts were paid into the pool in 2006/07.   
A further £0.9 million was received from the sale of non housing assets. 
£3.6millions of usable capital receipts were used to finance capital expenditure during 
2006/07. 
 
 
 
 
19. Movement on fixed asset restatement account  
  Fixed asset 

restatement 
 

Page 166



 

 1341 

account 
  £’000  
Movements in unrealised value of fixed assets    

Gain on revaluation of fixed assets in 2006/07-Housing Revenue Account  (8,286)  
Loss on revaluation of fixed assets in 2006/07-General Fund    
    Total increase in unrealised capital resources  (8,286)  
    Value of assets sold, disposed of or decommissioned    
Amounts written off balance sheet for disposals in 2006/07  (3,806)  
Total movement on reserve in 2006/07  (12,092)  
Balance brought forward at 1 April 2006  138,602  
Balance at 31 March 2007  126,510  
    
The system of capital accounting introduced in 1994/95 required the establishment of the fixed 
asset restatement account.  The balance represents the difference between the valuation of 
assets under the previous system of capital accounting and subsequent revaluations, 
adjustments and disposals.  The account is written down each year by the net book value of 
assets as they are disposed of and debited or credited with deficits or surpluses arising on 
revaluations. 
During the year 40 council houses with a balance sheet value of £2.9 million were sold.   
 
20. Movement in amounts set aside to finance capital investment 
 
  Capital 

financing 
account 

 

  £’000  

Major repairs reserve applied 3,000   
Usable capital receipts applied 3,613   
Total capital receipts set aside  6,613  
Capital expenditure financed from revenue 5   
Reconciling amount for provision for loan repayment (5,108)   
Total revenue resources set aside  (5,103)  
Increase in amounts set aside to finance capital 
investment 

 1,510  

 Balance brought forward at 1 April 2006  145,911  
Balance at 31 March 2007  147,421  
 
The capital financing account contains the amounts which were required by statute to be set 
aside from capital receipts for the repayment of external loans and the amount of capital 
expenditure financed from revenue and capital receipts.  It also contains the difference 
between amounts provided for depreciation and that required to be charged to revenue to 
repay the principal element of external loans. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cash flow statement  
2005/06    2006/07 
£’000 Note  £’000 £’000 

  REVENUE ACTIVITIES   

Page 167



 

 1342 

  Cash outflows   
18,757  • Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 19,302  
10,752  • Other operating cash payments 10,443  
4,267  • Housing benefit paid out 5,004  
28,289  • Precept payments 29,596  
28,488  • Non domestic rates payments to national pool 29,150  
1,320  • Payments to the Housing Capital Receipts Pool 2,084  
3,823  • Negative subsidy transfer 4,462  
95,696    100,041 

  Cash inflows   
(9,370)  • Rents (9,335)  
(28,309)  • Council tax receipts (29,463)  

(4)  • Community charge receipts -  
(2,288)  • Non domestic rates payments from national pool  (5,111)  
(28,666)  • Non domestic rates receipts (29,877)  
(3,107)  • Revenue support grant (978)  
(17,093)  • DWP grants for rebates (19,652)  
(2,054) 1 • Other government grants (2,525)  
(6,374)  • Cash received for goods and services (7,544)  

  (97,265)   (104,485) 
(1,569) 2 Net cash flow from revenue activities  (4,444) 

  RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING 
OF FINANCE 

  

  Cash outflows   
223  • Interest paid  498 

  Cash inflows   
(833)  • Interest received  (540) 

  CAPITAL ACTIVITIES   
  Cash outflows   

18,004  • Expenditure on fixed assets 14,167  
0  • Purchase of investments 200  
0  • Other capital cash payments 19 14,386 
  Cash inflows   

(6,585)  • Sale of fixed assets (3,945)  
0  • Sale of investments 0  

(2,265) 3 • Capital grants received (2,017)  
(520)  • Other capital cash receipts (101) (6,063) 

   6,455  Net cash (inflow)/outflow before financing  3,837 
  MANAGEMENT OF LIQUID RESOURCES   

- 4 • Net increase/decrease in short term deposits   
  FINANCING   
  Cash outflows   

85,800 5 • Repayments of amounts borrowed  141,840 
   

-  • New loans raised   
(92,325)  • New short term loans  (145,865) 

(70) 6 (Increase)/decrease in cash  (188) 

Notes to the cash flow statement 
1. Government grants 
Amounts received in respect of government grants (other than from DWP for rebates and 
capital grants) are listed below: 

Grant £’000 

Page 168



 

 1343 

Sure Start 751 
Benefits administration 649 
Local Authority Business Growth Incentive  416 
Planning Delivery Grant 286 
Waste minimisation  206 
PSA Reward Grant 87 
Homelessness 59 
Safer Communities 41 
Housing defects 13 
Environmental health 12 
Bus operators grant  5 
 2,525 
2. Reconciliation of surplus to net revenue cash flow 

 £’000 
Deficit for year (per Income and Expenditure Account on page 11) 2,143 
   • Contributions to HRA Major Repairs Reserve (3,531) 
    • Interest receivable 699 
 • Interest payable 

•

(509) 
  • Non cash transactions (2,172) 

 • Contributions to other provisions and reserves 130 
  
Changes in debtors, creditors and stocks:  
 • Increase in debtors (1,198) 
 • Increase in creditors 16 
 • Increase in stocks (22) 
Net cash flow from revenue activities (4,444) 
3. Capital Grants 

Grant £’000 
Sport England 49 
Sure Start 164 
Disabled Facilities  193 
Heritage Lottery Fund 664 
Department of Works and Pensions  400 
Liveability Project 295 
British Gas 179 
Other 73 
 2,017 
4 Liquid resources 
The liquid resources of the council are short term investments. 

 
 

1st April 
2006 

31 March 
2007 

Movement 
in year 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Short term investments 5,000 5,200 200 
    
 
5 Repayments of amounts borrowed 
The council has no outstanding long-term debt. The repayments are loans taken out on a short 
term basis as part of treasury management activities. 
 
6 Increase/ decrease in cash  

 1st April 31 March Increase in 

Page 169



 

 1344 

 2006 2007 year 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Cash in hand and at bank (33) (32) 1 
Bank overdraft 458 269 (189) 
 425 237 (188) 
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Statement of responsibilities for the statement of accounts 
 

The authority’s responsibilities 
 
The council is required: 
• to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure 

that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs.  In this 
authority that officer is the Head of Financial Services (Chief Finance Officer); 

  

Page 170



 

 1345 

• to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and 
safeguard its assets; 

 
• approve the Statement of Accounts. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer’s responsibilities 
 
The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the preparation of the council’s statement of 
accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/ LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in Great Britain (the SORP). 
 
In preparing this statement of accounts, the Chief Finance Officer has: 
• selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently; 
 
• made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; 
 
• complied with the local authority SORP. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer has also: 
• kept proper accounting records which were up to date; 
 
• taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
In accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 10(2) I certify that the Statement of 
Accounts 2006/07 represents fairly the financial position of the Council at 31 March 2007 and 
its income and expenditure for the year. 
 
      …………………………25 June 2007 
      Teresa Kristunas C.P.F.A. 

Head of Financial Services 
Council Approval 
In accordance with Regulation 10 (3) (b) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 I certify 
that the Statement of Accounts for 2006/07 were approved at Council on 25 June 2007. 
 
 
   
      …………………………25 June 2007 

D Hunt 
       Mayor 

 
 

     
 
 

Statement on Internal Control 
 
1. Scope of Responsibility 

 
Introduction 
 

1.1. Redditch Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is 
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public 
money is safeguarded and properly accounted for. The Council also has a duty 

Page 171



 

 1346 

under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure 
continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having 
regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 
 

1.2. In discharging this overall responsibility, Redditch Borough Council is 
responsible for ensuring that there is a sound system of internal financial control 
which facilitates the effective exercise of Redditch Borough Council’s functions 
and which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 
 

1.3. The Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the United 
Kingdom requires the Head of Internal Audit to report to the authority an opinion 
on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the authority’s internal control 
environment. The opinion of the Head of Internal Audit is included in this 
statement. 
 

2. The Purpose of the System on Internal Control 
 

2.1. The system of internal financial control is designed to manage risk to a 
reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, 
aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute 
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal financial control is based on 
an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the 
achievement of Redditch Borough Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to 
evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they 
be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 
 

2.2. The system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular 
management information; financial regulations; administrative procedures, 
including the segregation of duties; management supervision; and a scheme of 
delegation and accountability. Development and maintenance of the system is 
undertaken by heads of service within the Council. In particular, the system 
includes: 
 
• Preparation of regular reports of actual expenditure and income against 
forecasts 

• Revised estimates process which allows unplanned changes to be reflected 
in the current year’s budget 

• The maintenance of an internal audit service 
• Service planning 
• Maintenance of corporate and directorate risk registers 
• A system of commitment accounting, and 
• A register of authorised signatories 

 
2.3. Redditch Borough Council has during the year ended 31 March 2007 continued 

to maintain a sound system of internal financial control. The system is 
constantly being reviewed and updated.  
 

3. The Internal Control Environment 
 
Policy Framework 

Page 172



 

 1347 

 
3.1. Redditch Borough Council has a policy framework which is defined in its 

Constitution. The Policy Framework comprises a number of plans and 
strategies that are designed to be consistent with one another. Monitoring of 
performance against the plans and strategies takes place on a regular basis. 
The Policy Framework is subject to periodic review and update. 
 

3.2. The Constitution also establishes the Executive as the elected body responsible 
for all of the local authority’s functions which are not the responsibility of any 
other part of the local authority, by law or under the Council’s Constitution. The 
Responsibilities for Functions section of the Constitution identifies the functions 
that the Council reserves to itself. These include the making, approving and 
adopting all policies, strategies and plans.  

 
Scheme of Delegation 
 

3.3. The Council and the Executive delegate the responsibility for specific activities 
of the authority to individual officers through its Scheme of Delegation to 
Officers. The Constitution further provides for the delegation to officers the 
responsibility for ensuring that the Council’s policies, practices and procedures 
are carried out in a corporate, consistent and co-ordinated manner, with specific 
defined responsibilities assigned to the Borough Director and other Directors 
and Heads of Service.  In addition appointments are made to the posts of the 
Head of the Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer. Each of 
these officers has statutory responsibilities in relation to the governance of the 
authority. 
 
Scrutiny by Members 
 

3.4. The Council has established a number of Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
with the responsibility for reviewing and/or scrutinising the decisions made or 
actions taken in connection with the discharge of any of the Council’s functions.  
They are also responsible for assisting the Council and the Executive in the 
review and development of its budget and policy framework. 
 

3.5. The Council has also established a number of regulatory and other committees 
in order to discharge certain functions. These include an Audit Committee to 
promote proper internal financial control, properly focus audit resources and 
independently monitor audit performance.  
 

3.6. A Member Development Programme has been devised to support the 
implementation of the Modernisation Process. This will assist Members in their 
expanding role and Portfolio Holders and members of overview and scrutiny 
committees.  
 
Risk Management 
 

3.7. The Council’s Risk Management Strategy was approved in October 2003. The 
Council continues to develop and review its authority-wide Risk Register 
incorporating both corporate and service related risks. It also continues to work 

Page 173



 

 1348 

on establishing a culture where risk management is embedded throughout the 
organisation.  
 
 
Performance Management 
 

3.8. Redditch Borough Council works within a Performance Management 
Framework. The Framework includes a process for regular reporting to both the 
Corporate Management Team and to members. 
 
Financial Management 
 

3.9. The Constitution sets out the framework for the financial management of the 
authority. Budgetary control is delegated to the Council’s Directors who receive 
regular monitoring reports. The reporting arrangements to members are set out 
in the Council’s Financial Regulations. The financial and accounting 
arrangements are under the supervision of the Borough Director. The 
framework for the financial management of the authority is subject to regular 
review and monitoring. 
 

4. Review of Effectiveness 
 

4.1. Redditch Borough Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a 
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal financial control. The review 
is informed by the work of the internal auditors and the service managers within 
the authority who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of 
the internal financial control environment, and also by comments made by the 
external auditors and other review agencies and inspectors. 
 
Internal Audit 
 

4.2. The Council directly employs a team of auditors to provide an internal audit 
service. The Head of Internal Audit reports directly to the Borough Director. He 
also reports on a regular basis to members via the Council’s Audit Committee. 
 

4.3. Internal Audit prepare an Annual Audit Plan based on a risk profile of the 
Council’s activities, areas identified for review by heads of services and which 
meets the `managed audit` requirements of external audit. The Plan is 
approved by the Borough Director and presented to the Audit Committee.  
 

4.4. External audit expect the internal audit service to undertake an annual review of 
all key financial systems. The outcomes of the reviews are examined by the 
Council’s external auditors prior to the commencement of the annual Final 
Accounts audit.  

 
4.5. Internal audit report the outcomes of their routine work to the Audit Committee 

and review the implementation of their recommendations by service managers. 
 
Internal Audit Reporting Arrangements 
 

Page 174



 

 1349 

4.5. At the conclusion of each audit the Head of Internal Audit reports the outcomes 
of the audit to the responsible Head of Service and any other relevant officer. 
Following agreement on the content of the report and its recommendations the 
report is finalised. A responsible officer and an implementation timescale are 
agreed for each recommendation. The implementation of agreed action is then 
monitored by Internal Audit. The outcomes of audits undertaken are reported on 
a regular basis to the Audit Committee. 
 
Review of Internal Financial Controls 
 

4.6. On an annual basis all heads of service and other responsible officers are 
required to confirm in writing that the internal financial controls within their area 
of responsibility are in place and that their operation is monitored. This process 
is overseen by the Head of Internal Audit. 
 

4.7. The Council’s Internal Audit Section in its review of internal financial controls, 
compliance with Standing Order 46 and Financial Regulations, during 2006/07 
financial year has not reported any major weaknesses in the Council’s system 
of internal controls.  
 

4.8. The Council’s Financial Services Section has produced regular monitoring 
reports for budget holders during the year and the expenditure is within budget. 
In addition the officers (the Head of the Paid Service, the Monitoring Officer and 
the Chief Financial Officer) with statutory responsibilities to report improper 
practices and financial imprudence have no issues to report. 
 

4.9. The work on embedding risk management continues. An analysis of risks is 
included in all services plans and Risk Registers are reviewed regularly by the 
Corporate and Directorate Management Teams. 
 
CPA and other external inspections 
 

4.10. In December 2004 the Council was assessed as `fair’ following the Audit 
Commission’s inspection of the authority in the previous September. The 
Commission concluded that, based on current plans, the Council is likely to 
improve as it recognises it needs to change and is aware of the issues it needs 
to address. In response the Council drafted an Action Plan for improvement.  
 

4.11. Last year the Council had to prepare a CPA Direction of Travel Statement. The 
Statement is intended to provide public assurance that councils are complying 
with their duty to secure continuous improvement. The 2005 Statement 
examines the progress made since the 2004 CPA inspection. The outcome of 
the Direction of Travel review is included in the Audit Commission Annual Audit 
and Inspection Letter 2005/06. 
 

4.12. The Council was also subject to a CPA Use of Resources examination 
undertaken by KPMG on behalf of the Audit Commission. The Use of 
Resources judgement covers Financial Reporting; Financial Management; 
Financial Standing; Internal Control and Value for Money. The Council was 

Page 175



 

 1350 

assessed to be `performing well’ in respect and Financial Reporting and to have 
an adequate level of performance against the remaining criteria. 
 

5. Statement by the Head of Internal Audit 
 
5.1. Part of the ongoing work of internal audit is to examine the overall adequacy 

and  effectiveness of the internal control environment and to identify any 
weaknesses and  to bring these to the attention of the senior management. 

 
5.2. I can confirm that there are no significant internal control weaknesses arising 

from the review processes.  
 
 
 
  
 
 
 ……………………………………….. 
 Bob Haycock 
 Head of Internal Audit 
 
  
 
 
 
 …………………………………………. 
 Chris Smith   
 Borough Director  
 
 
 
 …………………………………………. 
 Phil Mould 
 Leader of the Council 
 Leader of the Council 
 
 
 
 
Glossary 
Accounting Period 
The period of time covered by the accounts.  This is the twelve months starting on 1 April 
2006. The end of the accounting period is the balance sheet date. 
 
Accounting policies  
The policies and concepts used in the preparation of the accounts. 
 
Accruals 
Sums included in the accounts to cover income and expenditure attributable to the accounting 
period, but for which payment has not been received or made by 31 March. 
 

Page 176



 

 1351 

Audit of accounts 
An examination by an independent accountant of the Council’s financial affairs to check the 
relevant legal obligations and codes of practice have been followed. 
 
Balance sheet 
A summary of the Council’s assets, liabilities and other reserves at the end of the Accounting 
Period. 
 
Best value accounting code of practice 
Standard definitions of services and total cost which enables spending comparisons to be 
made with other local authorities. 
 
Budget 
A statement defining the Council’s policies over a period of time in terms of finance. 
 
Capital charge 
A charge to services to reflect the cost of fixed assets used in the provision of services. 
 
Capital expenditure 
Expenditure on the acquisition or construction of assets which have a value to the Council for 
more than a year e.g. vehicles, land and buildings. 
 
Capital financing 
The sources of money used to pay for capital expenditure. The sources include capital 
receipts, capital grants, contributions from revenue and reserves. 
 
Capital receipts 
Income from the sale of capital assets such as land and buildings. 
 
CIPFA 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy – the professional body that 
defines the way the Council’s accounts are prepared. 
 
Collection Fund 
A separate fund for recording the expenditure and income relating to council tax and non 
domestic rates. 
 
Creditors 
The amounts owed by the Council for goods and services provided for which payment has not 
been made by the end of the accounting period. 
 
Current Asset 
Something owned by the authority that has a monetary value that will be used by the end of 
the financial year. 
 
Debtors 
Amounts due to the Council but unpaid by the end of the accounting period. 
 
Deferred charges 
Capital expenditure for which no tangible fixed asset exists. 
 
Depreciation 
The fall in value of an asset due to wear and tear, age and obsolescence. 

Page 177



 

 1352 

 
Fixed assets 
A tangible asset which is intended to be used for several years such as a vehicle or a building. 
 
Fixed asset restatement account 
This account holds the balance of surpluses or deficits arising on the revaluation of fixed 
assets. 
 
Housing Benefits 
The national system for giving financial assistance to individuals towards certain housing 
costs. 
 
Impairment 
A reduction in the value of a fixed asset below its value in the balance sheet. 
 
Liability 
A liability is an amount owed by the Council to others. 
 
Non Domestic Rates 
The contribution collected from businesses towards the cost of local government services. 
 
Operating lease 
A lease where the ownership of the asset leased remains with the leasing company. 
 
Precept 
A charge made by the County Council, the Police and the Fire and Rescue Services for the 
cost of providing their services.  The Council collects this from council taxpayers on their 
behalf. 
 
Provisions 
Money set aside to meet any liabilities or losses which are likely to occur, but the amounts and 
date on which they will arise is uncertain. 
 
Reserves 
Money set aside  to meet the cost of specific future expenditure. 
 
Revenue Contributions to Capital 
Capital expenditure met from the annual revenue budget. 
 
Revenue expenditure 
The day to day expenditure associated with the provision of services. 
Revenue Support Grant 
A general grant paid by the Government in support of annual revenue expenditure. 
 
Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) 
The code of practice used in the preparation of the accounting statements. 
 
Temporary borrowing 
Money borrowed for a period of less than one year. 
 

Page 178


	Agenda
	7 Leaders' Questions
	QuestionsLATE070625

	8 Notice of Motion - Redditch Student Council
	9 Deputation - Redditch Alliance of Greens
	10 Executive Committee
	MA Local Land Charges Fees amended

	12 The Corporate Plan and Performance Plan
	Corp & Perf Plan document - 1 - 3
	Corp & Perf Plan Appendix A
	Corp & Perf Plan Appendix B(i) - Performance
	Corp & Perf Plan Appendix B(ii) - Customer Satisfaction
	Corp & Perf Plan Appendix C - Contract Statement
	Corp & Perf Plan Appendix D - Action Plan for 2007-10
	Corp & Perf Plan document - Section 4

	13 Statement of Accounts
	Statement of accounts - Appendix B


